
Table of Contents

  

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549
 

 

FORM 10-Q
 

 

Quarterly Report Pursuant To Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 29, 2008

Commission file number 1-11437
 

 

LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

 
 

 
MARYLAND  52-1893632

(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)  

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification Number)

 
6801 ROCKLEDGE DRIVE, BETHESDA, MD  20817

(Address of principal executive offices)  (Zip Code)

(301) 897-6000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

 
 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

YES  x    NO  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). (Check one)

Large Accelerated Filer  x    Accelerated Filer  ¨     Non-Accelerated Filer  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

YES  ¨    NO  x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.
 

Class  Outstanding as of June 29, 2008
Common stock, $1 par value  396,351,634

   



Table of Contents

LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION
FORM 10-Q

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 29, 2008
 

 

INDEX
 
   Page No.
Part I. Financial Information   

 Item 1.   Financial Statements   

   
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Earnings - Three Months and Six Months Ended June 29, 2008 and
June 24, 2007   4

   Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet - June 29, 2008 and December 31, 2007   5

   Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows - Six Months Ended June 29, 2008 and June 24, 2007   6

   Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements   7

   Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm   18

 Item 2.   Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations   19

 Item 3.   Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure of Market Risk   28

 Item 4.   Controls and Procedures   29

Part II. Other Information   

 Item 1.   Legal Proceedings   31

 Item 1A.   Risk Factors   31

 Item 2.   Changes in Securities, Use of Proceeds and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities   32

 Item 3.   Defaults Upon Senior Securities   32

 Item 4.   Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders   32

 Item 5.   Other Information   32

 Item 6.   Exhibits   32

Signatures   34
 

    2
    



Table of Contents

LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION
FORM 10-Q

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 29, 2008
 

 

INDEX
 
Exhibit 3.1

  
Charter of Lockheed Martin Corporation, as restated as of June 26, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2008)

Exhibit 3.2
  

Bylaws of Lockheed Martin Corporation, as amended effective April 25, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 25, 2008)

Exhibit 10.1   Lockheed Martin Corporation Deferred Management Incentive Compensation Plan

Exhibit 10.2   Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan

Exhibit 10.3   Lockheed Martin Corporation Nonqualified Capital Accumulation Plan

Exhibit 10.4   Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan

Exhibit 10.5   Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation

Exhibit 10.6   Lockheed Martin Supplementary Pension Plan for Transferred Employees of GE Operations

Exhibit 10.7   Lockheed Martin Corporation Severance Benefit Plan for Certain Management Employees

Exhibit 10.8   Lockheed Martin Corporation Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Performance Award Plan

Exhibit 10.9
  

Lockheed Martin Corporation 2009 Directors Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix E to the Corporation’s 2008
Annual Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on Schedule 14A on March 14, 2008)

Exhibit 12   Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Exhibit 15   Acknowledgment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Exhibit 31.1   Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Robert J. Stevens

Exhibit 31.2   Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Bruce L. Tanner

Exhibit 32.1   Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 of Robert J. Stevens

Exhibit 32.2   Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 of Bruce L. Tanner
 

    3
    



Table of Contents

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 

Item 1. Financial Statements

Lockheed Martin Corporation
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Earnings

 
   Quarter Ended   Six Months Ended

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007
   (In millions, except per share data)
Net sales         

Products   $ 9,108  $ 9,038  $17,572  $16,841
Services    1,931   1,613   3,450   3,085

   11,039   10,651   21,022   19,926
Cost of sales         

Products    8,007   8,134   15,530   15,127
Services    1,797   1,380   3,183   2,686
Unallocated Corporate costs    44   83   49   149

   9,848   9,597   18,762   17,962
   1,191   1,054   2,260   1,964

Other income (expense), net    172   110   281   185

Operating profit    1,363   1,164   2,541   2,149
Interest expense    92   93   179   186
Other non-operating income (expense), net    34   67   27   104

Earnings before income taxes    1,305   1,138   2,389   2,067
Income tax expense    423   360   777   599
Net earnings   $ 882  $ 778  $ 1,612  $ 1,468
Earnings per common share         

Basic   $ 2.21  $ 1.87  $ 4.00  $ 3.50
Diluted   $ 2.15  $ 1.82  $ 3.90  $ 3.42

Cash dividends declared per common share (see Note 7)   $ 0.42  $ 0.35  $ 0.84  $ 0.70

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

 
   (Unaudited)    

    
June 29,

2008   
December 31,

2007  
   (In millions)  
Assets    
Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 3,214  $ 2,648 
Short-term investments    96   333 
Receivables    5,218   4,925 
Inventories    1,623   1,718 
Deferred income taxes    724   756 
Other current assets    433   560 

Total current assets    11,308   10,940 

Property, plant and equipment, net    4,256   4,320 
Goodwill    9,484   9,387 
Purchased intangibles, net    409   463 
Prepaid pension asset    322   313 
Deferred income taxes    849   760 
Other assets    2,833   2,743 

  $ 29,461  $ 28,926 
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity    
Current liabilities    

Accounts payable   $ 1,993  $ 2,163 
Customer advances and amounts in excess of costs incurred    4,208   4,254 
Salaries, benefits and payroll taxes    1,637   1,544 
Current maturities of long-term debt    1,001   104 
Other current liabilities    2,417   1,806 

Total current liabilities    11,256   9,871 
Long-term debt, net    3,803   4,303 
Accrued pension liabilities    1,431   1,192 
Other postretirement benefit liabilities    949   928 
Other liabilities    2,688   2,827 

Total liabilities    20,127   19,121 

Stockholders’ equity    
Common stock, $1 par value per share    394   409 
Additional paid-in capital    —     —   
Retained earnings    10,756   11,247 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (1,816)  (1,851)

Total stockholders’ equity    9,334   9,805 
  $ 29,461  $ 28,926 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

 
   Six Months Ended  

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007  
   (In millions)  
Operating Activities    
Net earnings   $ 1,612  $ 1,468 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization    335   288 
Amortization of purchased intangibles    63   81 
Stock-based compensation    75   82 
Excess tax benefits on stock compensation    (43)  (61)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Receivables    (266)  (618)
Inventories    95   282 
Accounts payable    (176)  (94)
Customer advances and amounts in excess of costs incurred    (3)  720 

Other    681   738 
Net cash provided by operating activities    2,373   2,886 

Investing Activities    
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment    (274)  (254)
Sale of short-term investments, net    237   52 
Acquisitions of businesses / investments in affiliates    (88)  (136)
Divestiture of investment in affiliate    —     26 
Other    40   (11)

Net cash used for investing activities    (85)  (323)

Financing Activities    
Repurchases of common stock    (1,930)  (1,394)
Issuances of common stock and related amounts    117   193 
Excess tax benefits on stock compensation    43   61 
Common stock dividends    (340)  (295)
Issuance of long-term debt and related amounts    491   —   
Repayments of long-term debt    (103)  (32)

Net cash used for financing activities    (1,722)  (1,467)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    566   1,096 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    2,648   1,912 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 3,214  $ 3,008 

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

June 29, 2008

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION
We have prepared the condensed consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-Q in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. We have
continued to follow the accounting policies disclosed in the consolidated financial statements included in our 2007 Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

It is our practice to close our books and records on the Sunday prior to the end of the calendar quarter to align our financial closing with our
business processes. The interim financial statements and tables of financial information included herein are labeled based on that convention. This
practice only affects interim periods, as our fiscal year ends on December 31.

The interim financial information in this Form 10-Q reflects all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair
presentation of our results of operations for the interim periods. The results of operations for the six months ended June 29, 2008 are not
necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the full year.

We have reclassified certain amounts for prior years to conform with the 2008 presentation, primarily to reclassify interest income from Other
income (expense), net to Other non-operating income (expense), net (see Note 6).

NOTE 2 – EARNINGS PER SHARE
We compute basic and diluted per share amounts based on Net earnings for the periods presented. We use the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding during the period to calculate basic earnings per share. The weighted average number of common shares used in our
calculation of diluted per share amounts includes the dilutive effects of stock options and restricted stock units based on the treasury stock
method, and shares related to our convertible debentures discussed below.

We have issued $1.0 billion in original principal amount of floating rate convertible debentures that potentially can have a dilutive effect on
our earnings per share calculations. The debentures are convertible by holders into shares of our common stock under certain circumstances per
the terms of the indenture agreement, including our decision to call the debentures for redemption. On June 26, 2008, we announced the planned
redemption of any and all of the $1.0 billion of floating rate convertible debentures that remain outstanding on August 15, 2008. Holders may elect
to convert their debentures at any time prior to the close of business on August 14 (see Note 7).

Upon conversion of the debentures, we have irrevocably agreed to pay only cash in lieu of common stock for the accreted principal amount
of the debentures relative to our conversion obligations, and intend to satisfy the conversion obligations in excess of the accreted principal amount
entirely in shares of our common stock, with any fractional shares being paid in cash. FAS 128, Earnings Per Share, requires that shares to be
used to pay the conversion obligations in excess of the accreted principal amount be included in our calculation of weighted average common
shares outstanding for the diluted earnings per share computation. Amounts in excess of the accreted principal at June 29, 2008 were computed
based on the extent to which the closing price of our stock on that date exceeded the conversion price, which was $72.46 at June 29, 2008. The
number of shares included in the computations in the quarter and six month periods ended June 29, 2008 and June 24, 2007 did not have a
material impact on earnings per share.
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
Unless otherwise noted, we present all per share amounts cited in these financial statements on a “per diluted share” basis.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:
 
   Quarter Ended   Six Months Ended

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007
   (In millions, except per share data)
Net earnings for basic and diluted computations   $ 882  $ 778  $ 1,612  $ 1,468
Weighted average common shares outstanding:         

Average number of common shares outstanding for basic computations    399.3   416.7   402.9   419.1
Dilutive stock options, restricted stock and convertible securities    10.2   9.8   10.3   10.0
Average number of common shares outstanding for diluted computations    409.5   426.5   413.2   429.1

Earnings per common share         
Basic   $ 2.21  $ 1.87  $ 4.00  $ 3.50
Diluted   $ 2.15  $ 1.82  $ 3.90  $ 3.42

NOTE 3 – INVENTORIES
 

    
June 29,

2008   
December 31,

2007  
   (In millions)  

Work in process, primarily related to long-term contracts and programs in progress   $ 3,860  $ 4,039 
Less customer advances and progress payments    (2,757)  (2,839)

   1,103   1,200 
Other inventories    520   518 

  $ 1,623  $ 1,718 
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
NOTE 4 – POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The net pension cost as determined by FAS 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, and the net postretirement benefit cost as determined
by FAS 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, related to our plans include the following components:
 
   Quarter Ended   Six Months Ended  

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007  
   (In millions)  
Defined benefit pension plans      

Service cost   $ 205  $ 215  $ 411  $ 431 
Interest cost    435   407   870   815 
Expected return on plan assets    (546)  (515)  (1,091)  (1,032)
Amortization of prior service cost    20   23   40   45 
Recognized net actuarial losses    1   42   1   84 

Total net pension expense   $ 115  $ 172  $ 231  $ 343 
Retiree medical and life insurance plans      

Service cost   $ 11  $ 13  $ 22  $ 26 
Interest cost    45   48   90   95 
Expected return on plan assets    (39)  (37)  (77)  (73)
Amortization of prior service cost    (6)  (6)  (12)  (12)
Recognized net actuarial losses    1   6   1   11 

Total net postretirement expense   $ 12  $ 24  $ 24  $ 47 

In 2007, we made discretionary prepayments totaling $335 million to our defined benefit pension plans’ trust and $156 million to our retiree
medical plans. In 2008, we do not expect that there will be any required contributions to the defined benefit plans’ pension trust or the retiree
medical and life insurance plans, after giving consideration to the 2007 prepayments. These prepayments will also reduce our cash funding
requirements for 2009. There were no contributions in the first six months of 2008.

NOTE 5 – LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND CONTINGENCIES
We are a party to or have property subject to litigation and other proceedings, including matters arising under provisions relating to the

protection of the environment. We believe the probability is remote that the outcome of these matters will have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. We cannot predict the outcome of legal proceedings with certainty. These
matters include the following items which have been previously reported:

Legal Proceedings
On February 22, 2007, we received a subpoena issued by a grand jury in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia. The

subpoena requests documents related to our participation in a competition conducted in 2004-2005 by the National Archives and Records
Administration for a $3 million contract to provide Electronic Document System (eDOCS) Support Services. We are cooperating with the
investigation.

On November 30, 2007, the Department of Justice (DoJ) filed a complaint in partial intervention in a lawsuit filed under the qui tam provisions
of the Civil False Claims Act in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas, United States ex rel. Becker and Spencer v. Lockheed
Martin Corporation et al., alleging that we should have known that a subcontractor
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
falsified and inflated invoices submitted to us that were passed through to the government. We dispute the allegations and are defending against
them.

On February 6, 2004, we submitted a certified contract claim to the United States requesting contractual indemnity for remediation and
litigation costs (past and future) related to our former facility in Redlands, California. We submitted the claim consistent with a claim sponsorship
agreement with The Boeing Company, executed in 2001, in Boeing’s role as the prime contractor on the Short Range Attack Missile (SRAM)
program. The contract for the SRAM program, which formed a significant portion of our work at the Redlands facility, had special contractual
indemnities from the U.S. Air Force, as authorized by Public Law 85-804. On August 31, 2004, the United States denied the claim. Our appeal of
that decision is pending with the Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals.

On August 28, 2003, the DoJ filed complaints in partial intervention in two lawsuits filed under the qui tam provisions of the Civil False
Claims Act in the United States District Court for the Western District of Kentucky, United States ex rel. Natural Resources Defense Council, et
al., v. Lockheed Martin Corporation, et al., and United States ex rel. John D. Tillson v. Lockheed Martin Energy Systems, Inc., et al. The DoJ
alleges that we committed violations of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act at the Paducah Gaseous Diffusion Plant by not properly
handling, storing, and transporting hazardous waste and that we violated the False Claims Act by misleading Department of Energy officials and
state regulators about the nature and extent of environmental noncompliance at the plant. We dispute the allegations and are defending against
them.

As described in the “Environmental Matters” discussion below, we are subject to federal and state requirements for protection of the
environment, including those for discharge of hazardous materials and remediation of contaminated sites. As a result, we are a party to or have
property subject to various other lawsuits or proceedings involving environmental matters and remediation obligations.

We have been in litigation with certain residents of Redlands, California since 1997 before the California Superior Court for San Bernardino
County regarding allegations of personal injury, property damage, and other tort claims on behalf of individuals arising from our alleged contribution
to regional groundwater contamination. On July 11, 2006, the California Court of Appeal dismissed the plaintiffs’ punitive damages claim.
Proceedings in the trial court have resumed, but a trial date has not been set.

Environmental Matters
We are involved in environmental proceedings and potential proceedings relating to soil and groundwater contamination, disposal of

hazardous waste and other environmental matters at several of our current or former facilities. Environmental cleanup activities usually span
several years, which make estimating liabilities a matter of judgment because of such factors as changing remediation technologies, assessments
of the extent of contamination and continually evolving regulatory environmental standards. We consider these and other factors in estimates of
the timing and amount of any future costs that may be required for remediation actions, which generally results in the calculation of a range of
estimates for a particular environmental site. We record a liability for the amount within the range which we determine to be our best estimate of
the cost of remediation or, in cases where no amount within the range is better than another, we record an amount at the low end of the range. We
do not discount the recorded liabilities, as the timing of cash payments is not fixed or cannot be reliably determined. At June 29, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, the aggregate amount of liabilities recorded relative to environmental matters was $619 million and $572 million. We have
recorded assets totaling $520 million and $480 million as of the same dates for the portion of environmental costs that are probable of future
recovery in the pricing of our products and services on U.S. Government contracts.
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
We cannot reasonably determine the extent of our financial exposure in all cases at this time. We also are pursuing claims for contribution to

site cleanup costs against other potentially responsible parties (PRPs), including the U.S. Government.

At Redlands, California, in response to administrative orders issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, we are
investigating the impact and potential remediation of regional groundwater contamination by perchlorates and chlorinated solvents. With respect to
perchlorates, the State of California adopted a new drinking water standard of six parts per billion in the fourth quarter of 2007. The new drinking
water standard is consistent with the interim standard that has been in place for several years, and we have been implementing remediation plans
to achieve the six parts per billion level. The liabilities recorded at June 29, 2008 included estimated costs associated with this regulatory limit.
With respect to solvents, we have implemented a plan of well-head treatment on new and existing wells.

We also are conducting remediation activities under various consent decrees and orders relating to soil or groundwater contamination at
certain other sites of former operations. Under an agreement related to our Burbank and Glendale, California sites, the U.S. Government
reimburses us an amount equal to approximately 50% of expenditures for certain remediation activities in its capacity as a PRP under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA).

Letters of Credit
We have entered into standby letter of credit agreements, surety bonds and other arrangements with financial institutions and other third

parties primarily relating to advances received from customers and/or the guarantee of future performance on certain contracts. We have total
outstanding letters of credit, surety bonds and other arrangements aggregating $3.3 billion at June 29, 2008 and December 31, 2007. Letters of
credit and surety bonds are generally available for draw down in the event we do not perform.

Sale of International Launch Services
Under the agreement to sell our ownership interests in Lockheed Khrunichev Energia International, Inc. (LKEI) and International Launch

Services, Inc. (ILS) in 2006, we continue to have the responsibility to refund customer advances to certain customers if launch services are not
provided and ILS does not refund the advance. The amount we could be required to pay may increase over time due to the payment of additional
advances by the customers to ILS related to the specific launches we have guaranteed, and will be reduced by the occurrence of those launches.
At June 29, 2008, the total amount that could be payable under the guarantees, approximating the total contract value of the guaranteed launches,
was $121 million. That amount may be partially mitigated by approximately $28 million of cash we retained that, absent any requirements to make
payments under the guarantees, will be paid to the buyer as the launches occur.

Our Balance Sheet at June 29, 2008 included current assets relating to LKEI and ILS totaling $91 million and current liabilities totaling $119
million, both of which will be reduced as the launch services are provided. The assets relate primarily to advances we have made to Khrunichev
State Research and Production Space Center for future launches, and the liabilities relate primarily to advances we have received from customers
for future launches. Any potential earnings impact resulting from our inability to realize the assets we have recorded related to LKEI and ILS would
be mitigated by the unrecognized deferred net gain we recorded on the transaction at the end of 2006, which we expect to recognize as the
remaining launches occur.

The unrecognized deferred gain, net of state and federal income taxes, of $57 million at June 29, 2008 will be recognized as the remaining
two launches occur. We believe those launches will take place in 2008 based on the Proton launch schedule, which is subject to change. Based
on
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
the launches that had occurred through March 30, 2008, we recognized, net of state income taxes, $16 million of the deferred gain in the first
quarter of 2008 which increased net earnings by $10 million ($0.02 per share).

Investment in ULA
In connection with the formation of United Launch Alliance, LLC (ULA), both we and Boeing have each committed to providing up to $25

million in additional capital contributions and $200 million in other financial support to ULA, as required. The non-capital financial support will be
made in the form of a revolving credit facility between us and ULA or guarantees of ULA financing with third parties, in either case to the extent
necessary for ULA to meet its working capital needs. We have agreed to provide this support for at least five years from December 1, 2006, the
closing date of the transaction, and would expect to fund our requirements with cash on hand. To satisfy our non-capital financial support
commitment, we and Boeing put into place at closing a revolving credit agreement with ULA. As of December 31, 2007, we had provided a total of
$3 million of funding to ULA under the additional capital contribution commitment. We did not provide further funding to ULA during the first six
months of 2008. In addition, both we and Boeing have cross-indemnified ULA related to certain financial support arrangements (e.g., letters of
credit, surety bonds or foreign exchange contracts provided by either party) and guarantees by us and Boeing of the performance and financial
obligations of ULA under certain launch service contracts. We believe ULA will be able to fully perform its obligations, as it has done through
June 29, 2008, and that it will not be necessary to make payments under the cross-indemnities.

NOTE 6 – INFORMATION ON BUSINESS SEGMENTS
We operate in four principal business segments: Aeronautics, Electronic Systems, Information Systems & Global Services (IS&GS) and

Space Systems. We organize our business segments based on the nature of the products and services offered.

Amounts in 2007 reflect the reclassification of interest income from segment Operating profit and Unallocated Corporate income (expense),
net to Other non-operating income (expense), net to conform to the 2008 consolidated Statement of Earnings presentation. In the second quarter
of 2007, we reclassified $67 million, including $63 million from Unallocated Corporate income (expense), net and $4 million from across the
business segments. During the six-month period ended June 24, 2007, we reclassified $104 million, including $96 million from Unallocated
Corporate income (expense), net and $8 million from across the business segments. The amounts from Unallocated Corporate income (expense),
net were primarily attributable to U.S. bank accounts, and amounts from the business segments were attributable to interest from foreign bank
accounts. The impact of the reclassification on the individual segments’ operating results was not material.

In the following table relative to the caption “Operating profit,” total Operating profit of the business segments is reconciled to the
corresponding consolidated amount. The reconciling item “Unallocated Corporate income (expense), net” includes the FAS/CAS pension
adjustment (see discussion below), costs for certain stock-based compensation programs, the effects of items not considered part of
management’s evaluation of segment operating performance, Corporate costs not allocated to the operating segments and other miscellaneous
Corporate activities.

The FAS/CAS pension adjustment represents the difference between pension expense or income calculated for financial reporting purposes
in accordance with FAS 87, and pension costs calculated and funded in accordance with U.S. Government Cost Accounting Standards (CAS),
which are reflected in the business segment results. CAS is a major factor in determining pension funding requirements, and governs the extent of
allocability and recoverability of pension costs on government contracts. The CAS expense is recovered through the pricing of our products and
services on U.S. Government contracts, and therefore recognized in segment Net
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Lockheed Martin Corporation
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
sales. The results of operations of our segments only include pension expense as determined and funded in accordance with CAS rules.

Transactions between segments are generally negotiated and accounted for under terms and conditions that are similar to other government
and commercial contracts; however, these intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation and for purposes of the presentation of “Net
sales” in the related table that follows.

Selected Financial Data by Business Segment
 
   Quarter Ended   Six Months Ended  

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007  
   (In millions)  
Net sales        

Aeronautics   $ 2,884  $ 3,136  $ 5,691  $ 5,957 
Electronic Systems    3,095   2,927   5,884   5,442 
Information Systems & Global Services    2,858   2,520   5,362   4,665 
Space Systems    2,202   2,068   4,085   3,862 

Total   $11,039  $10,651  $21,022  $19,926 
Operating profit        

Aeronautics   $ 366  $ 378  $ 689  $ 677 
Electronic Systems    409   387   775   704 
Information Systems & Global Services    272   231   502   429 
Space Systems    268   214   499   399 

Total business segments    1,315   1,210   2,465   2,209 
Unallocated Corporate income (expense), net    48   (46)  76   (60)

Total   $ 1,363  $ 1,164  $ 2,541  $ 2,149 
Intersegment revenue        

Aeronautics   $ 36  $ 36  $ 71  $ 72 
Electronic Systems    146   144   286   268 
Information Systems & Global Services    243   266   458   529 
Space Systems    38   39   67   73 

Total business segments   $ 463  $ 485  $ 882  $ 942 
 

    
June 29,

2008   
December 31,

2007
   (In millions)
Assets     

Aeronautics   $ 3,331  $ 3,014
Electronic Systems    8,258   8,500
Information Systems & Global Services    7,503   7,477
Space Systems    2,844   2,977

Total business segments    21,936   21,968
Corporate activities (1)    7,525   6,958

  $29,461  $ 28,926
 
1) Assets primarily include Cash and cash equivalents, Short-term investments, Deferred income taxes and the Prepaid pension asset.
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NOTE 7 – OTHER
Matters Included in Earnings

In the second quarter of 2008, we recognized, net of state income taxes, $85 million in Other income (expense), net due to the elimination of
reserves related to various land sales in California. Reserves were originally recorded at the time of each land sale in 2007 and prior years based
on the U.S. Government’s assertion that a significant portion of the sale proceeds should be allocated to the buildings and improvements on the
properties, thereby giving the U.S. Government the right to share in the gains associated with the land sales. At the time the land sales occurred,
we believed the value of the properties sold was attributable to the land versus the buildings and improvements. The dispute ultimately went to trial
with the Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals (ASBCA), subsequent to which the ASBCA determined that our accounting for the land sales
was in accordance with the Federal Acquisition Regulation and CAS. We reached a settlement with the U.S. Government in the second quarter of
2008, and the previously recorded reserves were no longer required. Resolution of this matter increased our Net earnings in the second quarter by
$56 million ($0.14 per share).

In the first quarter of 2008, we recognized, net of state income taxes, a gain of $16 million in Other income (expense), net representing a
portion of the deferred net gain recorded in connection with the transaction to sell our ownership interests in LKEI and ILS in 2006 (see Note 5).
The gain increased Net earnings by $10 million ($0.02 per share).

In the second quarter of 2007, we sold our remaining 20% interest in COMSAT International for $26 million in cash. The transaction resulted
in a gain, net of state income taxes, of $25 million which we recorded in Other income (expense), net and an increase in Net earnings of $16
million ($0.04 per share).

In the first quarter of 2007, we reached closure with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) on their examination of our Federal income tax
returns for 2003 and 2004, as well as claims we filed for additional extraterritorial income (ETI) tax benefits for years prior to 2005. As a result, we
recognized additional tax benefits and reduced our income tax expense in the first quarter of 2007 by $59 million ($0.14 per share), including
related interest.

In the first quarter of 2007, we sold certain surplus land in California for $36 million in cash. The transaction resulted in a gain, net of state
income taxes, of $25 million which we recorded in Other income (expense), net, and an increase in Net earnings of $16 million ($0.04 per share).

In 2004, we recorded a charge associated with certain litigation related to a waste remediation contract with the Department of Energy. In the
first quarter of 2007, we reversed, net of state income tax benefits, $21 million of legal reserves into Other income (expense), net in connection
with the settlement of that litigation. This settlement increased Net earnings by $14 million ($0.03 per share).

Long-term Debt
On June 26, 2008, we announced the planned redemption of any and all of our $1.0 billion in original principal amount of floating rate

convertible debentures that remain outstanding on August 15, 2008 (see Note 2). Holders may elect to convert their debentures at any time prior to
the close of business on August 14, 2008. Any debentures that have not been delivered for conversion by the close of business on that date will
no longer be available for conversion and will be redeemed at $1,000 for each $1,000 in principal amount on August 15, 2008. At June 29, 2008,
the debentures have been classified as current liabilities on our Balance Sheet.

Upon conversion of the debentures, we have irrevocably agreed to pay only cash in lieu of common stock for the accreted principal amount
of the debentures relative to our conversion obligations, which at all times up to the redemption date will be equal to the original principal
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amount of the debentures. At June 29, 2008, the conversion rate was 13.7998 shares of common stock for each $1,000 in original principal
amount of debentures based on the conversion price of $72.46. The conversion obligations in excess of the accreted principal amount, using the
closing price of our stock on June 29, 2008, totaled $375 million. If that amount had been settled in shares on that date, we would have been
required to issue 3.8 million shares of our common stock. We intend to satisfy the conversion obligations in excess of the accreted principal
amount of the debentures entirely in shares of common stock, with any fractional shares being paid in cash. The actual total amount of the
conversion obligations will not be determined until after all of the debentures have been converted.

In the first quarter of 2008, we issued $500 million of long-term notes. The notes have a fixed coupon interest rate of 4.121% and are due in
2013.

The registered holders of $300 million of 40-year debentures issued in 1996 that bear interest of 7.20% had the opportunity to elect, between
March 1 and April 1, 2008, to have their debentures repaid on May 1, 2008. No such elections were made, and the debentures continue to be
classified as long-term at June 29, 2008.

Stockholders’ Equity
Share Repurchase Program

We used cash to repurchase common shares during the first six months of both 2008 and 2007 as follows:
 

•  In the first six months of 2008, $1,930 million was used to repurchase 18.3 million common shares that were executed and settled during the
six-month period, and an additional $25 million was paid for 0.3 million common shares purchased in June 2008 that were settled in July
2008; and

 

•  In the first six months of 2007, $1,394 million was used to repurchase 14.4 million common shares, all of which were executed and settled
during the six-month period.

As we repurchase our common shares, we reduce common stock for the $1 of par value of the shares repurchased, with the remainder of
the purchase price over par value recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital. Due to the volume of repurchases made under our share
repurchase program, additional paid-in capital was reduced to zero, with the remainder of the excess of purchase price over par value of $1,595
million recorded as a reduction of retained earnings.

Our share repurchase program authorizes the repurchase of up to 128 million shares of our common stock from time-to-time at
management’s discretion. As of June 29, 2008, we had repurchased a total of 113.9 million shares under the program, and there remained
14.1 million shares that may be repurchased in the future.

Dividends
During the first six months of 2008, we declared and paid quarterly dividends totaling $340 million ($0.42 per share per quarter). We also

declared our third quarter 2008 dividend totaling $168 million ($0.42 per share per quarter), which was recorded as a current liability and a reduction
of retained earnings. This dividend will be paid in September 2008. In the first six months of 2007, we declared and paid dividends totaling $295
million ($0.35 per share per quarter).
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Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income for the three months and six months ended June 29, 2008 and June 24, 2007 consisted of the
following:
 

   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007
   (In millions)
Net earnings   $ 882  $ 778  $ 1,612  $ 1,468
Other comprehensive income    22   4   35   4
Comprehensive income   $ 904  $ 782  $ 1,647  $ 1,472

Income Tax and Interest Payments
We made federal and foreign income tax payments, net of refunds received, of $444 million and $376 million during the six-month periods

ended June 29, 2008 and June 24, 2007. Our total interest payments were $162 million and $164 million during the same respective periods.

New Accounting Rules
In the first quarter of 2008, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) 157, Fair Value Measurements, which defines

fair value, establishes a market-based framework or hierarchy for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
FAS 157 is applicable whenever another accounting pronouncement requires or permits assets and liabilities to be measured at fair value, but
does not require any new fair value measurements. The FAS 157 requirements for certain non-financial assets and liabilities have been deferred
until the first quarter of 2009 in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Staff Position (FSP) 157-2. The adoption of FAS
157 did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

The fair-value hierarchy established in FAS 157 prioritizes the inputs used in valuation techniques into three levels as follows:
 

 •  Level 1 – Observable inputs – quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;
 

 
•  Level 2 – Observable inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities – includes quoted prices

for similar instruments, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets, and amounts derived from valuation
models where all significant inputs are observable in active markets; and

 

 •  Level 3 – Unobservable inputs – includes amounts derived from valuation models where one or more significant inputs are
unobservable and require us to develop relevant assumptions.

The net amount of assets and liabilities we recorded at fair value at June 29, 2008 totaled $466 million, including $96 million of Short-term
investments, $597 million of other investments we hold in a trust related to certain of our non-qualified benefit plans, $173 million of liabilities
associated with non-qualified deferred compensation plans, and $54 million of net liabilities related to derivative financial instruments. We
determined the fair values of approximately 97% of the assets included in Short-term investments using the Level 2 methodology, with the
remainder valued based on the Level 1 methodology. The fair values of approximately 60% of the investments held in the trust for non-qualified
benefit plans were determined using the Level 1 methodology, with the remainder of those assets valued based on the Level 2 methodology. We
record assets and liabilities related to our derivative financial instruments and liabilities associated with non-qualified deferred compensation plans
at fair value using the Level 2 methodology.
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We elected not to adopt the fair value option included in FAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities –

Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115, which became effective January 1, 2008 for companies electing adoption.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) APB 14-1, Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement), which is effective beginning with our first quarter 2009 financial reporting. The FSP
requires retrospective application to all periods presented and does not grandfather existing debt instruments. The FSP changes the accounting for
our $1.0 billion in original principal amount of floating rate convertible debentures in that it requires that we bifurcate the proceeds from the debt
issuance between a debt and equity component as of the August 2003 issuance date. The equity component would reflect the value of the
conversion feature of the debentures. We are currently assessing the impact of the new rule, but currently expect its adoption would result in
immaterial changes to our previously reported Balance Sheets and Statements of Earnings to reflect the amortization of additional Interest
expense over the period from August 2003 to August 2008, based on the requirement for retrospective application.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS 141(R), Business Combinations, which will become effective January 1, 2009. The new standard
will replace existing guidance and significantly change accounting and reporting relative to business combinations in consolidated financial
statements, including requirements to recognize acquisition-related transaction and post-acquisition restructuring costs in our results of operations
as incurred. FAS 141(R) will be effective for businesses acquired after the effective date.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Lockheed Martin Corporation

We have reviewed the condensed consolidated balance sheet of Lockheed Martin Corporation as of June 29, 2008, and the related
condensed consolidated statements of earnings for the three- and six-month periods ended June 29, 2008 and June 24, 2007, and the condensed
consolidated statements of cash flows for the six-month periods ended June 29, 2008 and June 24, 2007. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation’s management.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of
interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the condensed consolidated financial
statements referred to above for them to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheet of Lockheed Martin Corporation as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of earnings,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein) and in our report dated February 26, 2008, we expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from
which it has been derived.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
July 22, 2008
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

June 29, 2008

We principally research, design, develop, manufacture, integrate, operate and sustain advanced technology systems and products, and
provide a broad range of management, engineering, technical, scientific, logistics and information services. We serve both domestic and
international customers with products and services that have defense, civil and commercial applications, with our principal customers being
agencies of the U.S. Government. Our sales to agencies of the U.S. Government, including those to the Department of Defense (DoD),
represented 84% of our sales in 2007. Of the remaining 16% of sales, approximately 13% related to sales to international customers (including
foreign military sales funded, in whole or in part, by the U.S. Government), with the remainder attributable to commercial and other customers. Our
main areas of focus are in defense, space, intelligence, homeland security, and government information technology.

We operate in four principal business segments: Aeronautics, Electronic Systems, Information Systems & Global Services (IS&GS) and
Space Systems. As a systems integrator, our products and services range from electronics and information systems, including integrated net-
centric solutions, to missiles, aircraft and spacecraft.

The following discussion should be read along with our 2007 Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and with the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-Q.

Consolidated Results of Operations
Since our operating cycle is long-term and involves many types of development and production contracts with varying production delivery

schedules, the results of operations of a particular quarter, or quarter-to-quarter comparisons of recorded sales and profits, may not be indicative of
our future operating results. The following discussions of comparative results among periods should be viewed in this context. All per share
amounts cited in the following discussions are presented on a “per diluted share” basis.

The following discussion of Net sales and operating results provides an overview of our operations by focusing on key elements set forth in
our Statement of Earnings. The “Discussion of Business Segments” section which follows describes the contributions of each of our business
segments to our consolidated Net sales and Operating profit for the quarter and six-month periods ended June 29, 2008 and June 24, 2007. We
follow an integrated approach for managing the performance of our businesses and generally focus the discussion of our results of operations
around major lines of business, versus distinguishing between products and services. Product sales are predominantly generated in the
Aeronautics, Electronic Systems and Space Systems segments, while most of our services revenues are generated in our IS&GS segment.

Net sales for the second quarter of 2008 were $11.0 billion, a 4% increase over the second quarter 2007 sales of $10.7 billion. Net sales for
the six months of 2008 were $21.0 billion, a 6% increase over the $19.9 billion recorded in the comparable 2007 period. Sales increased in every
business unit except Aeronautics, which declined mainly due to lower volume on F-16 programs.

Other income (expense), net was $172 million for the second quarter of 2008 compared to $110 million recorded in the comparable 2007
period. Other income (expense), net for the six months ended June 29, 2008 and June 24, 2007 were $281 million and $185 million, respectively.
The increase was primarily due to higher equity earnings in affiliates and the benefits from the impact of certain items included in Other income
(expense), net (see Note 7 under the caption “Matters Included in Earnings”).
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Operating profit for the second quarter of 2008 was $1,363 million, an increase of 17% from the $1,164 million recorded in the comparable
2007 period. During the quarter, operating profit increased in every business unit except Aeronautics, which declined slightly due to the lower
volume on F-16 programs. Operating profit for the six months ended June 29, 2008 was $2,541 million, an 18% increase over the $2,149 million
recorded in the comparable 2007 period. Operating profit for the first half of 2008 increased in every business segment. The second quarter and
first six months of 2008 were also favorably impacted by the decline in the FAS/CAS pension adjustment and by the benefits of certain items
included in Other income (expense), net.

Other non-operating income (expense), net was income of $34 million in the second quarter of 2008 as compared to income of $67 million in
the second quarter of 2007. For the six months ended June 29, 2008, other non-operating income (expense), net was income of $27 million
compared to income of $104 million for the six months ended June 24, 2007. The decrease was primarily due to lower interest income on invested
cash balances and reduced investment income on marketable securities we hold in a trust related to certain of our non-qualified benefit plans.

Interest expense for the second quarter and six months ended June 29, 2008 was $92 million and $179 million, respectively, as compared to
$93 million and $186 million in the comparable 2007 periods. This decrease was mainly driven by interest expense we accrued in the first quarter
of 2007 related to acquisition activities.

Our effective income tax rates were 32.4% and 32.5% for the quarter and six months ended June 29, 2008 and 31.6% and 29.0% for the
quarter and six months ended June 24, 2007. The effective rates for all periods were lower than the statutory rate of 35% due to tax benefits for
U.S. manufacturing activities and dividends related to our employee stock ownership plans. The effective tax rates for the quarter and six-month
periods in 2008 are higher than the comparable periods in 2007 primarily due to the expiration of the research tax credit at the end of 2007 and a
reduction of income tax expense of $59 million recorded in the first quarter of 2007 arising from the closure of the IRS examination of the 2003 and
2004 tax years.

Net earnings for the second quarter of 2008 were $882 million ($2.15 per share) compared to $778 million ($1.82 per share) reported in the
second quarter of 2007. Net earnings for the six months ended June 29, 2008 were $1,612 million ($3.90 per share) compared to $1,468 million
($3.42 per share) reported in the comparable 2007 period.

DISCUSSION OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The following tables of financial information and related discussions of the results of operations of our business segments are consistent

with the presentation of segment information in Note 6. In our discussions of comparative results, changes in Net sales and Operating profit are
generally expressed in terms of volume and/or performance. Volume refers to increases (or decreases) in sales resulting from varying production
activity levels, deliveries or service levels on individual contracts. Volume changes typically include a corresponding change in Operating profit
based on the estimated profit rate at completion for a particular contract for design, development and production activities.

Changes in segment Operating profit are also expressed in terms of performance. Performance generally refers to changes in contract profit
rates at completion. These changes on our contracts for products usually relate to profit recognition associated with revisions to total estimated
costs at completion of the contract that reflect improved (or deteriorated) operating or award fee performance on a particular contract. Changes in
estimates of Net sales and Operating profit on contracts for products are recognized by recording adjustments in the current period for the
inception-to-date effect of the changes on current and prior periods.

The Aeronautics segment generally includes fewer programs that have much larger sales and operating results than programs included in the
other segments. Therefore, due to the larger
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number of comparatively smaller programs in the remaining segments, the discussions of the results of operations of these business segments
generally focus on lines of business within the segments rather than on specific programs.

Aeronautics
Aeronautics’ operating results included the following:

 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007
   (In millions)
Net sales   $ 2,884  $ 3,136  $ 5,691  $ 5,957
Operating profit   $ 366  $ 378  $ 689  $ 677

Net sales for Aeronautics decreased by 8% for the quarter and 4% for the six months of 2008 from the comparable 2007 periods. In both
periods, decreases in Combat Aircraft sales more than offset increases in Air Mobility and Other Aeronautics Programs. The decrease in Combat
Aircraft for both the quarter and the six months was due primarily to lower volume on F-16 programs. The increase in Air Mobility for the quarter
and first half of the year was due primarily to higher volume on C-130J programs, including deliveries and support activities. There were three C-
130J deliveries in the second quarter of 2008 and six during the first six months of the year compared to three and five deliveries in the
comparable periods of 2007. The increase in Other Aeronautics Programs for both periods was due mainly to higher volume in sustainment
services activities.

Operating profit decreased by 3% for the quarter and increased by 2% for the six months of 2008 from the comparable 2007 periods. During
the quarter, operating profit decreases in Combat Aircraft and Air Mobility offset an increase in Other Aeronautics Programs. In Combat Aircraft,
the decline was due mainly to lower volume on F-16 programs. The decrease in operating profit at Air Mobility was attributable primarily to
performance on C-5 programs offset partially by improved performance on C-130 programs. The increase in Other Aeronautics Programs was due
mainly to higher volume and improved performance in sustainment services activities. During the first six months of the year, an increase in Other
Aeronautics Programs was offset partially by declines in Air Mobility and Combat Aircraft. The increase in Other Aeronautics Programs was due
mainly to higher volume in sustainment services activities. In Air Mobility, operating profit decreased due to performance on C-5 programs which
was partially offset by improved performance and the delivery of one additional C-130J in 2008.

Electronic Systems
Electronic Systems’ operating results included the following:

 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007
   (In millions)
Net sales   $ 3,095  $ 2,927  $ 5,884  $ 5,442
Operating profit   $ 409  $ 387  $ 775  $ 704

Net sales for Electronic Systems increased by 6% for the quarter and 8% for the six months of 2008 from the comparable 2007 periods.
During the quarter and the first half of the year, sales increased due mainly to higher volume in fire control and tactical missile programs at
Missiles & Fire Control (M&FC) and undersea systems, surface systems, and radar systems activities at Maritime Systems & Sensors (MS2).
These increases were offset partially in both periods by declines in platform integration activities at Platform, Training & Energy (PT&E).
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Operating profit for Electronic Systems increased by 6% for the quarter and 10% for the six months of 2008 from the comparable 2007
periods. In both the quarter and six month periods, the increases in operating profit were attributable primarily to higher volume and improved
performance in tactical missile and fire control programs at M&FC and radar systems at MS2. In both periods, these increases were offset partially
by declines in operating profit at PT&E due mainly to performance in the second quarter on platform integration programs.

Information Systems & Global Services
Information Systems & Global Services’ operating results included the following:

 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended

   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007
   (In millions)
Net sales   $ 2,858  $ 2,520  $ 5,362  $ 4,665
Operating profit   $ 272  $ 231  $ 502  $ 429

Net sales for IS&GS increased by 13% for the quarter and 15% for the six months of 2008 from the comparable 2007 periods. Sales
increased in all three lines of business for both the quarter and six months. The increase in Global Services was due principally to global and
mission services activities. The increase in Mission Solutions was driven primarily by mission and combat support solutions activities and global
security solutions programs. The increase in Information Systems was due to higher volume on information technology programs.

Operating profit for IS&GS increased by 18% for the quarter and 17% for the six months of 2008 from the comparable 2007 periods. In both
the quarter and the six-month periods, the increase in operating profit was driven by Information Systems and Mission Solutions. The increase in
Information Systems was due to higher volume on IT programs and a benefit from a contract restructuring during the first quarter of 2008. Mission
Solutions operating profit grew due to higher volume and improved performance on secure enterprise solutions and mission and combat support
solutions activities.

Space Systems
Space Systems’ operating results included the following:

 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007
   (In millions)
Net sales   $ 2,202  $ 2,068  $ 4,085  $ 3,862
Operating profit   $ 268  $ 214  $ 499  $ 399

Net sales for Space Systems increased by 6% for both the quarter and six-month periods of 2008 from the comparable 2007 periods. In both
periods, sales growth in Space Transportation was offset partially by a decline in Satellites. The sales growth in Space Transportation was due
primarily to higher volume on the Orion program. In Satellites, reduced volume in government satellite activities was offset partially by an increase
in commercial satellite activities in both periods. There was one commercial satellite delivery during the second quarter and two during the first six
months of 2008. In the first six months of 2007, there was one commercial satellite delivery in the second quarter.
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Operating profit increased by 25% for both the quarter and six months of 2008 from the comparable 2007 periods. In both periods, the
increase in operating profit was due to growth in Space Transportation and Satellites. In Space Transportation, the increase was attributable mainly
to higher equity earnings on the United Launch Alliance joint venture, volume on the Orion program and the results from successful negotiations of
a terminated commercial launch service contract in the first quarter of 2008. In Satellites, the increase was attributable mainly to higher volume
and improved performance on commercial satellite activities.

Unallocated Corporate Income (Expense), Net
The following table shows the components of Unallocated Corporate income (expense), net. For a discussion of the FAS/CAS pension

adjustment and other types of items included in Unallocated Corporate income (expense), net, see Note 6 to the financial statements in this Form
10-Q.
 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007  
   (In millions)  
FAS/CAS pension adjustment   $ 32  $ (14) $ 64  $ (28)
Items not considered in segment operating performance    85   25   101   71 
Stock compensation expense    (40)  (33)  (75)  (82)
Other, net    (29)  (24)  (14)  (21)

  $ 48  $ (46) $ 76  $ (60)

The following table shows the CAS cost that is included as expense in the segments’ operating results, the related FAS expense, and the
resulting FAS/CAS pension adjustment:
 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  

    
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007   
June 29,

2008   
June 24,

2007  
   (In millions)  
FAS 87 expense   $ (115) $ (172) $ (231) $ (343)
Less: CAS cost    (147)  (158)  (295)  (315)

FAS/CAS pension adjustment – expense   $ 32  $ (14) $ 64  $ (28)

The FAS/CAS pension adjustment resulted in income in the second quarter and first six months of 2008 versus expense in the prior-year
periods due to an increase in the discount rate and other factors such as our actual return on plan assets. This trend is consistent with our
expectations based on the assumptions we used in computing the FAS 87 expense and CAS cost amounts as discussed in the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations section of our 2007 Form 10-K under the caption “Critical Accounting
Policies.”
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Certain items are excluded from segment results as part of senior management’s evaluation of segment operating performance consistent
with the management approach promulgated by FAS 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. For example,
gains and losses related to the disposition of businesses or investments managed by Corporate, as well as other Corporate activities, are not
considered by management in evaluating the operating performance of business segments. Therefore, for purposes of segment reporting, the
following items were included in Unallocated Corporate income (expense), net for the respective quarters:
Second Quarter 2008 –
 

•  Earnings, net of state income taxes, of $85 million from the elimination of reserves associated with various land sales that occurred in prior
years (see Note 7).

First Quarter 2008 –
 

•  A gain, net of state income taxes, of $16 million representing recognition of a portion of the deferred net gain recorded in connection with the
transaction to sell our ownership interests in LKEI and ILS in 2006 (see Note 5).

On an aggregate basis, these items increased our net earnings by $56 million ($0.14 per share) and $66 million ($0.16 per share) during the
quarter and six month periods ended June 29, 2008.

Second Quarter 2007 –
 

•  A gain, net of state income taxes, of $25 million related to the sale of our remaining 20% interest in COMSAT International.

First Quarter 2007 –
 

•  A gain, net of state income taxes, of $25 million related to the sale of certain surplus land in California; and
 

•  Earnings, net of state income taxes, of $21 million from the reversal of legal reserves following the settlement of certain litigation related to a
waste remediation contract with the Department of Energy.

On an aggregate basis, these items increased our net earnings by $16 million ($0.04 per share) and $46 million ($0.11 per share) during the
quarter and six months ended June 30, 2007. The first quarter of 2007 also was favorably affected by the closure of certain IRS examinations
disclosed previously (see Note 7) which resulted in a reduction in our first quarter 2007 income tax expense of $59 million ($0.14 per share). On a
combined basis, these items increased earnings for the first six months of 2007 by $105 million ($0.25 per share).

LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOWS
We have a balanced cash deployment and disciplined growth strategy to enhance shareholder value and position ourselves to take

advantage of new business opportunities when they arise. Consistent with that strategy, we have invested in our business (e.g., capital
expenditures, independent research and development), made selective acquisitions of businesses, repurchased shares, increased our dividends
and opportunistically reduced and refinanced our debt.

Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $513 million in the first six months of 2008 from the first six months of 2007. The

decrease primarily was attributable to a $640 million decline in cash provided by operating working capital as compared to 2007. This decline in
operating working capital was primarily due to a decrease in Customer advances and amounts in excess of costs incurred on Combat Aircraft
programs at Aeronautics and various programs in the Missiles & Fire Control line of business at Electronic Systems. This decrease was partially
offset by an increase in cash between the six
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month periods primarily attributable to higher net earnings. Operating working capital accounts consist of Receivables, Inventories, Accounts
payable, and Customer advances and amounts in excess of costs incurred.

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures – Capital expenditures for Property, plant and equipment amounted to $274 million during the first six months of 2008

and $254 million in the comparable 2007 period. We expect our annual capital expenditures over the next three years to exceed 2007 expenditures
consistent with the expected growth in our business and to support specific program requirements.

Acquisitions, divestitures and other activities – We have a process in place to selectively identify businesses for acquisition that meet our
financial targets and help build a balanced portfolio. We paid $88 million in the first six months of 2008 and $136 million in the comparable 2007
period related to acquisition activities.

There were no divestiture activities in the first six months of 2008. We received proceeds of $26 million in the first six months of 2007
related to the sale of our 20% interest in COMSAT International.

During the first six months of 2008, we decreased our short-term investments by $237 million compared to a decrease of $52 million in the
same period of 2007.

Financing Activities
Share activity and dividends – We used $1,930 million and $1,394 million of cash to repurchase common shares during the first six months

of 2008 and 2007 (see Note 7 under the caption “Stockholders’ Equity”). These purchases were made under our share repurchase program. As of
June 29, 2008, we had repurchased a total of 113.9 million shares under the program, and there remained 14.1 million shares that may be
repurchased in the future. See Part II, Item 2 of this Form 10-Q, for additional information regarding the repurchase of shares during the quarter
ended June 29, 2008.

Cash received from the issuance of our common stock during the first six months of 2008 related to the exercise of stock options and
associated tax benefits totaled $160 million, compared to $254 million during the same period in 2007. Those activities resulted in the issuance of
2.2 million shares and 3.9 million shares during the respective periods.

During the first six months of 2008, we declared and paid quarterly dividends totaling $340 million compared to $295 million in the first half of
2007. We also declared our third quarter dividend of $168 million in June 2008, which was recorded as a current liability and a reduction of retained
earnings. This dividend will be paid in September 2008. We paid quarterly dividends of $0.42 per share in 2008 compared to $0.35 per share in
2007.

Issuance and repayment of long-term debt – In the first quarter of 2008, we issued $500 million of long-term notes due in 2013. The notes
have a fixed coupon interest rate of 4.121%. We used $103 million in the first six months of 2008 for repayments of long-term debt, compared to
$32 million in the comparable 2007 period. Cash from operations has been our principal source of funds to reduce our long-term debt.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES

At June 29, 2008, we held Cash and cash equivalents of approximately $3.2 billion and Short-term investments of $96 million. Our total
Long-term debt, net of unamortized discounts, amounted to $4.8 billion at June 29, 2008, an increase of $397 million from the December 31, 2007
balance resulting from the first quarter debt issuance of $500 million partially offset by a second quarter repayment of $103 million.

Our Long-term debt is mainly in the form of publicly issued notes and debentures. We have $1.0 billion of convertible debentures that have a
floating interest rate based on LIBOR. At June 29, 2008, we had agreements in place to swap variable interest rates on the debentures for fixed
interest rates. With this swap agreement, our entire Long-term debt portfolio effectively bears interest at fixed rates. Our debt-to-total capital ratio,
net of unamortized discounts, increased from 31% at December 31, 2007 to 34% at June 29, 2008, primarily due to the first quarter debt issuance
and share repurchase activity.

On June 26, 2008, we announced the planned redemption of our $1.0 billion of floating rate convertible debentures that remain outstanding on
August 15, 2008 (see Note 7 under the caption “Long-term Debt”). At June 29, 2008, the debentures were classified as Current maturities of long-
term debt on our Balance Sheet. Upon conversion of the debentures, we have irrevocably agreed to pay only cash in lieu of common stock for the
accreted principal amount of the debentures relative to our conversion obligations. We intend to satisfy the conversion obligations in excess of the
accreted principal amount of the debentures entirely in shares of common stock, with any fractional shares being paid in cash.

At June 29, 2008, the conversion rate was 13.7998 shares of common stock for each $1,000 in original principal amount of debentures
based on the conversion price of $72.46. The conversion obligations in excess of the accreted principal amount, using the closing price of our
stock on June 29, 2008, totaled $375 million. If that amount had been settled in shares on that date, we would have been required to issue
3.8 million shares of our common stock. The actual total amount of the conversion obligations will not be determined until after all of the
debentures have been converted. We do not expect that the redemption of the debentures, or the anticipated conversions by holders in advance of
redemption, will have a material effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Our stockholders’ equity amounted to $9,334 million at June 29, 2008, a decrease of $471 million from December 31, 2007. The following
items were the drivers of the decrease:
 

    
Common

Stock   

Additional
Paid-in
Capital   

Retained
Earnings   

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
(Loss) Income   Total  

   (In millions)  
Balance at December 31, 2007   $ 409  $ —    $11,247  $ (1,851) $ 9,805 
Net earnings    —     —     1,612   —     1,612 
Common stock dividends declared    —     —     (508)  —     (508)
Stock-based awards and ESOP activity (1)    4   341   —     —     345 
Common stock repurchases    (19)  (341)  (1,595)  —     (1,955)
Other comprehensive income    —     —     —     35   35 
Net activity    (15)  —     (491)  35   (471)
Balance at June 29, 2008   $ 394  $ —    $10,756  $ (1,816) $ 9,334 
 
(1) Common Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital include amounts related to the exercise of 2.2 million stock options, resulting in the issuance

of a like number of common shares.
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We actively seek to finance our business in a manner that preserves financial flexibility while minimizing borrowing costs to the extent
practicable. We review changes in financial, market and economic conditions to manage the types, amounts and maturities of our indebtedness.
We may at times refinance existing indebtedness, vary our mix of variable-rate and fixed-rate debt, or seek alternative financing sources for our
cash and operational needs.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, cash flow from operations and other available financing resources, are expected to be
sufficient to meet anticipated operating, capital expenditure and debt service requirements, as well as acquisition and other discretionary
investment needs, projected over the next three years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The foregoing discussion of our financial condition and results of operations is based on the consolidated financial statements included in

this Form 10-Q, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, sales and
expenses, and the related disclosures of contingencies. We base these estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

During the six months ended June 29, 2008, there were no significant changes to the critical accounting policies we disclosed in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

OTHER MATTERS
Following our sale of Lockheed Khrunichev Energia International, Inc. (LKEI) and ILS in 2006, we continue to be responsible to refund

customer advances to certain customers if launch services are not provided and ILS does not refund the advance (see Note 5). At June 29, 2008,
the total amount that could be payable under the guarantees, approximating the total contract value of the guaranteed launches, was $121 million.
That amount may be partially mitigated by approximately $28 million of cash we retained that, absent any requirements to make payments under
the guarantees, will be paid to the buyer as the launches occur.

Our Balance Sheet at June 29, 2008 included current and noncurrent assets relating to LKEI and ILS totaling $91 million, and current and
noncurrent liabilities totaling $119 million, both of which will be reduced as the launch services are provided. Any potential earnings impact
resulting from our inability to realize the assets we have recorded related to LKEI and ILS would be mitigated by the deferred net gain we recorded
on the transaction at the end of 2006, which we expect to recognize as the remaining launches occur. The unrecognized deferred gain, net of state
and federal income taxes, of $57 million at June 29, 2008, will be recognized as the remaining two launches occur. We believe those launches will
take place in 2008 based on the Proton launch schedule, which is subject to change.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure of Market Risk

Our main exposure to market risk relates to interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. Our financial instruments that are subject to
interest rate risk principally include fixed-rate and floating-rate long-term debt. At June 29, 2008, we had an agreement in place to swap variable
interest rates on our $1.0 billion of convertible debentures based on LIBOR for a fixed interest rate through August 15, 2008. With this swap
agreement, our long-term debt portfolio effectively bears interest at fixed rates.

We have designated the swap agreement as a cash flow hedge of the forecasted LIBOR-based variable interest payments. Based on our
evaluation at the inception of the hedging agreement and in subsequent periods, we expect the hedging relationship to be highly effective in
achieving the offsetting cash flows attributable to the hedged variable interest payments, resulting in a fixed net Interest expense reported on the
Statement of Earnings. We determined that the hedging relationship remained highly effective at June 29, 2008. The fair value of the interest rate
swap agreement is adjusted at each Balance Sheet date, with a corresponding adjustment to Other comprehensive income (loss). At June 29,
2008, the fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was not material.

We use forward foreign exchange contracts to manage our exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, and generally do so
in ways that qualify for hedge accounting treatment. These exchange contracts hedge the fluctuations in cash flows associated with firm
commitments or specific anticipated transactions contracted in foreign currencies, or hedge the exposure to rate changes affecting foreign
currency denominated assets or liabilities. Related gains and losses on these contracts, to the extent they are effective hedges, are recognized in
income at the same time the hedged transaction is recognized. To the extent the hedges are ineffective, gains and losses on the contracts are
recognized in the current period. At June 29, 2008, the fair value of forward exchange contracts outstanding and the amounts of gains and losses
recorded during the quarter and six-month periods then ended were not material.

We evaluate the credit quality of potential counterparties to derivative transactions and only enter into agreements with those deemed to
have minimal credit risk. We periodically monitor changes to counterparty credit quality as well as our concentration of credit exposure to individual
counterparties. We do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, including internal control over financial reporting, which are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in our periodic filings with the SEC is reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms,
and to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly executed and recorded. Our disclosure controls
and procedures are also designed to ensure that information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and
evaluating such controls and procedures, we recognize that any system of controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated,
can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily is required to use its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Also, we have investments in certain unconsolidated entities. As we
do not control or manage these entities, our controls and procedures with respect to those entities are necessarily substantially more limited than
those we maintain with respect to our consolidated subsidiaries.

We performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, including internal control over financial reporting,
as of June 29, 2008. The evaluation was performed with the participation of senior management of each business segment and key Corporate
functions, and under the supervision of the CEO and CFO. Based on our evaluation, we concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of June 29, 2008.

We routinely review our system of internal control over financial reporting and make changes to our processes and systems to improve
controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment. Changes may include such activities as
implementing new, more efficient systems, consolidating the activities of two or more business units, and migrating certain processes to our
shared services centers. In addition, when we acquire new businesses, we review the controls and procedures of the acquired business as part of
our integration activities.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the most recently completed fiscal quarter that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-Q contains statements which, to the extent that they are not recitations of historical fact, constitute forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the federal securities laws, and are based on our current expectations and assumptions. The words “believe,” “estimate,”
“anticipate,” “project,” “intend,” “expect,” “plan,” “outlook,” “forecast” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially
because of factors such as: the availability of government funding for our products and services both domestically and internationally; changes in
government and customer priorities and requirements (including changes to respond to election cycles, Congressional actions, Department of
Defense reviews, budgetary constraints and cost-cutting initiatives); the impact of continued military operations in Iraq and Afghanistan on funding
for existing defense programs; the award or termination of contracts; returns on pension plan assets, interest and discount rates, and other
changes that may impact pension plan assumptions; difficulties in developing and producing operationally advanced technology systems; the
timing and customer acceptance of product deliveries; materials availability and performance by key suppliers, subcontractors and customers;
charges from any future impairment reviews that may result in the recognition of losses and a reduction in the book value of goodwill or other long-
term assets; the future impact of legislation, changes in accounting interpretations or pronouncements, tax rules, or export policies; the future
impact of acquisitions or divestitures, joint ventures or teaming arrangements; the outcome of legal proceedings and other contingencies (including
lawsuits, government/regulatory investigations or audits, and environmental remediation efforts); the competitive environment for our products and
services; and economic, business and political conditions domestically and internationally.

These are only some of the factors that may affect the forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-Q. For a discussion identifying
additional important factors that could cause actual results to vary materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements, see our
filings with the SEC including, but not limited to, the discussions of “Government Contracts and Regulations” and “Risk Factors” on page 16, and
pages 18 through 24, respectively, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007; “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 19 through 27 of this Form 10-Q; and “Note 4 – Postretirement Benefit Plans”
and “Note 5 – Legal Proceedings and Contingencies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Unaudited Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 9 and pages 9 through 12, respectively, included in this Form 10-Q.

Our actual financial results likely will be different from those projected due to the inherent nature of projections. Given these uncertainties,
you should not rely on forward-looking statements in making investment decisions. The forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-Q
speak only as of the date of its filing. We expressly disclaim a duty to provide updates to forward-looking statements after the date of this Form
10-Q to reflect subsequent events that have occurred, changed circumstances, changes in expectations, or the estimates and assumptions
associated with them. The forward-looking statements in this Form 10-Q are intended to be subject to the safe harbor protection provided by the
federal securities laws.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
We are a party to or have property subject to litigation and other proceedings, including matters arising under provisions relating to the

protection of the environment, as described in “Note 5 – Legal Proceedings and Contingencies” in this Form 10-Q, and in our 2007 Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the Securities Exchange Commission (Form 10-K), or arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management and in-house counsel, the probability is remote that the outcome of any such litigation or other proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. The results of legal proceedings, however, cannot be
predicted with certainty.

We are primarily engaged in providing products and services under contracts with the U.S. Government and, to a lesser degree, under direct
foreign sales contracts, some of which are funded by the U.S. Government. These contracts are subject to extensive legal and regulatory
requirements and, from time to time, agencies of the U.S. Government investigate whether our operations are being conducted in accordance with
these requirements. U.S. Government investigations, whether relating to these contracts or conducted for other reasons, could result in
administrative, civil or criminal liabilities, including repayments, fines or penalties being imposed on us, or could lead to our suspension or
debarment from future U.S. Government contracting. U.S. Government investigations often take years to complete and many result in no adverse
action against us.

We are subject to federal and state requirements for protection of the environment, including those for discharge of hazardous materials and
remediation of contaminated sites. As a result, we are a party to or have our property subject to various other lawsuits or proceedings involving
environmental protection matters. Due in part to their complexity and pervasiveness, such requirements have resulted in our being involved with
related legal proceedings, claims and remediation obligations. The extent of our financial exposure cannot in all cases be reasonably estimated at
this time. For information regarding these matters, including current estimates of the amounts that we believe are required for remediation or clean-
up to the extent estimable, see “Note 5 – Legal Proceedings and Contingencies” on pages 9 through 12 of this Form 10-Q.

We and BAE Systems Information and Electronic Systems Integration, Inc. (BAE) are both named in a civil administrative proceeding by the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency alleging violations of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act in connection with a solvent collection
system operated by BAE at a facility that we own and lease to them. The parties are in settlement discussions with the EPA related to payment of
a possible fine in excess of the required $100,000 reporting threshold with respect to the alleged violations. We believe the matter will be resolved
without material liability to us.

In addition, see the “Legal Proceedings” section of the Form 10-K for a description of previously reported matters.
 
Item 1A. Risk Factors

While we attempt to identify, manage and mitigate risks and uncertainties associated with our business to the extent practical under the
circumstances, some level of risk and uncertainty will always be present. Item 1A of our 2007 Form 10-K (pages 18 through 24) describes some of
the risks and uncertainties associated with our business. These risks and uncertainties have the potential to materially affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, projected results and future prospects. We do not believe that there have been any material
changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in our 2007 Form 10-K.
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Item 2. Changes in Securities, Use of Proceeds and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information about our purchases during the three-month period ended June 29, 2008 of our equity securities that
are registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
 

Period   

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased   

Average
Price
Paid

Per Share  

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Announced
Programs (1)   

Maximum Number
of Shares That May
Yet Be Purchased

Under the
Programs (2)

April 2008   1,065,600  $ 101.27  1,065,600  20,369,931
May 2008   3,005,000  $ 107.53  3,005,000  17,364,931
June 2008   3,233,464  $ 104.69  3,233,464  14,131,467
 
(1) We repurchased a total of 7,304,064 shares of our common stock during the quarter ended June 29, 2008 under a share repurchase program

that we announced in October 2002.
 

(2) Our Board of Directors has approved a share repurchase program for the repurchase of up to 128 million shares of our common stock from
time-to-time. Under the program, management has discretion to determine the number and price of the shares to be repurchased, and the
timing of any repurchases in compliance with applicable law and regulation.

 
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.
 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

On April 24, 2008, we held our Annual Meeting of Stockholders. A description of matters voted upon by stockholders at that meeting, and
the results of such votes, were disclosed in a Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 25, 2008.
 
Item 5. Other Information

None.
 
Item 6. Exhibits
 

(a) Exhibits
 

Exhibit 3.1
 

Charter of Lockheed Martin Corporation, as restated as of June 26, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2008)

Exhibit 3.2
 

Bylaws of Lockheed Martin Corporation, as amended effective April 25, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
the Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 25, 2008)

Exhibit 10.1  Lockheed Martin Corporation Deferred Management Incentive Compensation Plan

Exhibit 10.2  Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan

Exhibit 10.3  Lockheed Martin Corporation Nonqualified Capital Accumulation Plan

Exhibit 10.4  Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan
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Exhibit 10.5  Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation

Exhibit 10.6  Lockheed Martin Supplementary Pension Plan for Transferred Employees of GE Operations

Exhibit 10.7  Lockheed Martin Corporation Severance Benefit Plan For Certain Management Employees

Exhibit 10.8  Lockheed Martin Corporation Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Performance Award Plan

Exhibit 10.9
 

Lockheed Martin Corporation 2009 Directors Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix E to the Corporation’s
2008 Annual Proxy Statement filed with the SEC on Schedule 14A on March 14, 2008)

Exhibit 12  Lockheed Martin Corporation Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges for the six months ended June 29, 2008

Exhibit 15  Acknowledgment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Exhibit 31.1  Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Robert J. Stevens

Exhibit 31.2  Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Bruce L. Tanner

Exhibit 32.1  Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 of Robert J. Stevens

Exhibit 32.2  Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 of Bruce L. Tanner
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 

 Lockheed Martin Corporation
 (Registrant)

Date: July 23, 2008  by: /s/ Martin T. Stanislav
  Martin T. Stanislav
  Vice President and Controller
  (Chief Accounting Officer)

 
    34
    



Exhibit 10.1

LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION
DEFERRED MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE

COMPENSATION PLAN

(As Amended and Restated Effective June 26, 2008)

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Deferred Management Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Deferral Plan”) are to
provide certain key management employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) the opportunity to defer receipt of
(i) Incentive Compensation awards under the Lockheed Martin Corporation Management Incentive Compensation Plan (the “MICP”); (ii) Long Term
Incentive Award payments under the Lockheed Martin Corporation 1995 Omnibus Performance Award Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”) and the Lockheed
Martin Corporation Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Performance Award Plan (the “IPA Plan”); and (iii) certain benefits payable under the
Lockheed Martin Corporation Post-Retirement Death Benefit Plan for Elected Officers (“Death Benefit Plan”). Providing this opportunity to defer
income under the Deferral Plan will encourage key employees to maintain a financial interest in the Company’s performance. Except as expressly
provided hereinafter, the provisions of this Deferral Plan and the MICP, the Omnibus Plan, the IPA Plan, and the Death Benefit Plan shall be
construed and applied independently of each other.

The Deferral Plan applies solely to MICP awards, Long Term Incentive Award payments under the Omnibus Plan and the IPA Plan,
and certain payments under the Death Benefit Plan, and expressly does not apply to any special awards which may be made under any of the
Company’s other incentive plans, except and to the extent specifically provided under the terms of such other incentive plans and the relevant
awards.

The Deferral Plan was amended and restated, effective January 1, 2005, in order to comply with the requirements of Code section
409A. The 2005 amendment and restatement of the Deferral Plan applied only to the portion of a Participant’s Account Balance that is earned or
becomes vested on or after January 1, 2005 (and any earnings attributable to that portion). The portion of a Participant’s Account Balance that was
earned and vested prior to January 1, 2005 (and any earnings attributable to that portion) shall be governed by the terms of the Deferral Plan in
effect on December 31, 2004, which is attached hereto as Appendix A. The Deferral Plan was subsequently amended and restated, effective
January 1, 2007, to permit eligible executives of the Company to defer payments that are available to them pursuant to the partial termination of
the Death Benefit Plan.

The Deferral Plan was amended and restated, effective January 1, 2008 to modify the annual installment payment option to conform with
other nonqualified plans maintained by the Company. The Deferral Plan and Appendix A were further amended and restated, effective January 1,
2008, to provide for new investment options in which Participants may invest their



Account Balances, whether earned and vested before or after January 1, 2005. The addition of the new investment option in Appendix A is not
intended to constitute a material modification within the meaning of Code section 409A.

The Deferral Plan is hereby amended and restated, effective June 26, 2008, to clarify certain provisions in accordance with the final Treasury
regulations issued under Code section 409A and to make other administrative changes.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings hereinafter indicated:
1. ACCOUNT — The bookkeeping account maintained by the Company for each Participant which is credited with the Participant’s

Deferred Compensation and earnings (or losses) attributable to the investment options selected by the Participant, and which is debited to reflect
distributions and forfeitures; the portions of a Participant’s Account allocated to different investment options and the portions attributable to the
deferral of Incentive Compensation awards, Long Term Incentive Award payments, and Death Benefit payments will be accounted for separately.

2. ACCOUNT BALANCE — The total amount credited to a Participant’s Account at any point in time, including the portions of the
Account allocated to each investment option.

3. AWARD YEAR — As to Incentive Compensation, the calendar year with respect to which an Eligible Employee is awarded Incentive
Compensation; as to a Long Term Incentive Award payment and the related Company Deferral, the first calendar year in the Performance Period
for which the Long Term Incentive Award is effective with respect to an Eligible Employee.

4. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons (including a trust or trusts) validly designated by a Participant, on the form provided by the
Company, to receive distributions of the Participant’s Account Balance, if any, upon the Participant’s death. In the absence of a valid designation,
or if the designated Beneficiary has predeceased the Participant, the Participant’s Beneficiary shall be the personal representative of the
Participant’s estate in the event of a Participant’s death. A Participant may amend his or her Beneficiary designation at any time before the
Participant’s death.

5. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

6. CODE — the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, including the regulations and guidance of general
applicability thereunder.

7. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article VIII.
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8. COMMON STOCK — The $1.00 par value common stock of the Company.

9. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its Subsidiaries.

10. COMPANY DEFERRALS — The amount deferred by the Company, and not at the election of the Participant, for the two-year
period following the end of a Performance Period for a Long Term Incentive Award.

11. COMPANY STOCK INVESTMENT OPTION — The investment option under which the amount credited to a Participant’s Account
will be based on the market value and investment return of the Company’s Common Stock.

11A. DEATH BENEFIT — The amount payable to an Eligible Employee pursuant to Article X, Section 1 of the Death Benefit Plan.

11B. DEATH BENEFIT PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Post-Retirement Death Benefit Plan for Elected Officers.

12. DEFERRAL AGREEMENT — The written agreement executed by an Eligible Employee on the form provided by the Company
under which the Eligible Employee elects to defer Incentive Compensation for an Award Year, a Long Term Incentive Award and any related
Company Deferral for an Award Year, or a Death Benefit payable pursuant to the Death Benefit Plan.

13. DEFERRAL PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Deferred Management Incentive Compensation Plan, adopted by the Board
on July 27, 1995, and as amended from time to time.

14. DEFERRED COMPENSATION — The amount of Incentive Compensation credited to a Participant’s Account under the Deferral
Plan, the amount of any Long Term Incentive Award payment credited to a Participant’s Account under the Deferral Plan (other than Company
Deferrals), and the amount of the Death Benefit payment credited to a Participant’s Account under the Deferral Plan.

15. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who is a participant in the MICP, who receives a Long Term Incentive
Award under the Omnibus Plan or the IPA Plan, who is eligible to receive a Death Benefit under the Death Benefit Plan, and who has satisfied
such additional requirements for participation in this Deferral Plan as the Committee may from time to time establish. In the exercise of its
authority under this provision, the Committee shall limit participation in the Plan to employees whom the Committee believes to be a select group
of management or highly compensated employees within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended.

16. EXCHANGE ACT — The Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

16A. FUND INVESTMENT OPTION — The investment option under which earnings will be credited to a Participant’s Account based
on the market value and investment
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return of the investment options (including the asset allocation funds and core mutual funds (and successor funds), and excluding the Company
Stock Fund, ESOP Fund, and Self-Managed Account) that are available to participants pursuant to the terms of the Qualified Savings Plan,
provided that the Committee retains the discretion to add certain funds to, or to exclude certain funds from, the Fund Investment Option.

17. INCENTIVE COMPENSATION — The MICP amount granted to an employee for an Award Year.

18. IPA PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Performance Award Plan.

19. INTEREST OPTION — The investment option under which earnings will be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the
interest rate applicable under Cost Accounting Standard 415, Deferred Compensation.

20. LONG TERM INCENTIVE AWARD — A long term incentive performance award granted to an employee under the Omnibus Plan or
the IPA Plan.

21. MICP — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Management Incentive Compensation Plan or the 2006 Lockheed Martin Corporation
Management Incentive Compensation Plan (for incentive compensation awarded after February 1, 2006).

22. OMNIBUS PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation 1995 Omnibus Performance Award Plan.

23. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee for whom Incentive Compensation, a Long Term Incentive Award payment, or a Death
Benefit payment has been deferred for one or more years under this Deferral Plan; the term shall include a former employee whose Deferred
Compensation has not been fully distributed.

24. PAYMENT DATE — As to any Participant, the January 15 or July 15 on or about on which payment to the Participant is to be
made or to begin in accordance with Article V.

25. PERFORMANCE PERIOD — The period set forth in a Long Term Incentive Award over which the Company’s performance is
measured by reference to total stockholder return to determine whether any payment will be made under such Long Term Incentive Award.

25A. QUALIFIED SAVINGS PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Salaried Savings Plan or any successor plan.

26. SECTION 16 PERSON — A Participant who is subject to the reporting and short-swing liability provisions of Section 16 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on the date a Deferral Agreement or other election form is delivered to the Company in accordance with the
terms of this Deferral Plan.
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27. SPECIFIED EMPLOYEE — A Participant who is reasonably determined to a be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code
section 409A(2)(B)(i) as of December 31 of a calendar year and who shall be treated as such for the 12-month period beginning the next April 1 and
for twelve calendar months thereafter.

28. SUBSIDIARY — As to any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50% or
more of the voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporation), is owned or controlled (directly or indirectly) by
that entity, or by one or more of the Subsidiaries of that entity, or by a combination thereof.

29. TRADING DAY — A day upon which transactions with respect to Company Common Stock are reported in the consolidated
transaction reporting system.

ARTICLE III

ELECTION OF DEFERRED AMOUNT

1. Timing of Deferral Elections.
(a) Incentive Compensation. An Eligible Employee may elect to defer Incentive Compensation for an Award Year by executing

and delivering to the Company a Deferral Agreement no later than June 30 of the Award Year.
(b) Long Term Incentive Awards and Company Deferrals. An Eligible Employee may elect to defer the payment of a Long Term

Incentive Award and a Company Deferral for an Award Year by executing and delivering to the Company a Deferral Agreement as of a
date specified by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, which shall be no later than six months prior to the end of the
Performance Period.

(c) Irrevocability of Elections. No Eligible Employee shall have the right to modify or revoke a Deferral Agreement after the
applicable deadline described in Section 1(a), Section 1(b), or Section 1(d) of this Article III for delivering a Deferral Agreement to the
Company, provided no Section 16 Person shall have the right to modify or revoke a Deferral Agreement after such applicable deadline
or, if earlier, after the date the agreement has been delivered to the Company. The Senior Vice President, Human Resources may
establish policies and procedures to determine when a Deferral Agreement or other election called for under this Plan has been
delivered to the Company. Each Deferral Agreement that relates to an Award Year shall apply only to amounts deferred in that Award
Year, and a separate Deferral Agreement must be completed for each Award Year for which an Eligible Employee defers Incentive
Compensation or a Long Term Incentive Award. A Deferral Agreement relating to a Death Benefit payment shall relate only to such
Death Benefit payment.
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(d) Death Benefit. An Eligible Employee may elect to defer a Death Benefit payable under the Death Benefit Plan by executing
and delivering to the Company a Deferral Agreement no later than the date specified by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources
in accordance with Code section 409A.

2. Amount of Deferral Elections. An Eligible Employee’s deferral election may be stated as:
(a) a dollar amount which is at least $5,000 and is an even multiple of $1,000;
(b) the greater of $5,000 or a designated percentage of the Eligible Employee’s Incentive Compensation, Long Term Incentive

Award payment, or Death Benefit payment;
(c) the excess of the Eligible Employee’s Incentive Compensation, Long Term Incentive Award payment, or Death Benefit

payment over a dollar amount specified by the Eligible Employee; or
(d) all of the Eligible Employee’s Incentive Compensation, Long Term Incentive Award payment, or Death Benefit payment.

In the case of a deferral election under paragraph (c) of this Section 2, an Eligible Employee’s deferral election shall be effective only if the
resulting excess amount is at least $5,000.

3. Effect of Taxes on Deferred Compensation. The amount that would otherwise be deferred and credited to an Eligible Employee’s
Account will be reduced by the amount of any tax that the Company is required to withhold with respect to the Deferred Compensation. The
reduction for taxes shall be made proportionately out of amounts otherwise allocable to the Interest Option or the Company Stock Investment
Option.

4. Multiple Awards. In the case of an Eligible Employee who receives more than one Long Term Incentive Award with respect to the
same Performance Period, the elections made by the Eligible Employee under this Article III as well as under Articles V and VI for the first Long
Term Incentive Award granted to the Eligible Employee with respect to a Performance Period shall be deemed to be the elections made by that
Eligible Employee for any other Long Term Incentive Awards granted to that Eligible Employee with respect to that same Performance Period.

5. Company Deferrals. Pursuant to the terms of the Long Term Incentive Awards, 50% of the amount payable at the end of the
Performance Period will be automatically deferred until the second anniversary of the last day of the Performance Period with respect to a
particular award. The Company may establish an account for Company Deferrals under the Company Stock Investment Option of this Deferral
Plan. However, the terms governing the Company Deferrals will be governed for the two year period of deferral by the terms of the award
agreement entered into under the Omnibus Plan or the IPA Plan with respect to the Long Term Incentive Award and not by this Deferral Plan
except to the extent the award agreement expressly refers to the terms of this Deferral Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the
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Participant elects to defer the Company Deferrals beyond the second anniversary of the end of the Performance Period, the deferrals will be
treated as made under this Deferral Plan for the period following the second anniversary of the end of the Performance Period.

ARTICLE IV

CREDITING OF ACCOUNTS

1. Crediting of Deferred Compensation. Incentive Compensation or a Long Term Incentive Award payment, that a Participant has
elected to defer under this Deferral Plan shall be credited to the Participant’s Account as of the Trading Day set by action of the Committee or, if
the Committee does not act to set such a day, on the second Trading Day which follows the date of approval of the related Incentive
Compensation or Long Term Incentive Award payment (other than Company Deferrals). A Death Benefit payment that a Participant has elected to
defer under this Deferral Plan shall be credited to the Participant’s Account as of the date on which the amount of the Death Benefit payment was
determined and paid to eligible employees absent any election to defer. If the Company establishes an account for Company Deferrals pursuant to
Section 5 of Article III, the Company Deferrals shall be credited to such account as of the last Trading Day in the Performance Period. Any
Deferred Compensation credits under this Section 1 which are allocable to the Interest Option shall be credited at the dollar amount of such
credits. Any Deferred Compensation and Company Deferral credits under this Section 1 which are allocable to the Company Stock Investment
Option shall be credited as if the dollar amount of credits had been invested in the Company’s Common Stock at the published closing price of the
Company’s Common Stock on the applicable Trading Day described in this Section 1. Any Deferred Compensation and Company Deferral credits
under this Section 1 which are allocable to the Fund Investment Option shall be credited as if the dollar amount of credits had been invested in the
applicable fund at the published closing price of the applicable fund on the applicable Trading Day described in this Section 1.

2. Crediting of Earnings.
(a) General Rules.
(i) Earnings shall be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the investment option or options to which the Account has

been allocated beginning with the applicable Trading Day described in this Article IV.
(ii) Any amount distributed from a Participant’s Account pursuant to Article V shall be credited with earnings through the Trading

Day that is four (4) business days prior to the Payment Date on which a distribution is to be made.
(iii) Company Deferrals shall be credited with earnings through the last Trading Day in the period which ends on the second

anniversary of the end of the applicable Performance Period unless deferred further pursuant to a Deferral Agreement.
 

7



(b) Interest Option. The portion of a Participant’s Account allocated or reallocated to the Interest Option shall be credited with
interest, compounded daily, while so allocated or reallocated at a rate equivalent to the then published rate for computing the present
value of future benefits at the time cost is assignable under Cost Accounting Standard 415, Deferred Compensation, as determined by
the Secretary of the Treasury on a semi-annual basis pursuant to Pub. L. 92-41, 85 Stat. 97.

(c) Company Stock Investment Option.
(i) The portion of a Participant’s Account allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option shall be credited when so allocated

on the applicable Trading Day described in this Article IV as if such amount had been invested in the Company’s Common Stock at
the published closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on such Trading Day.

(ii) The portion of the Participant’s Account Balance allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option shall reflect any post-
allocation appreciation or depreciation in the market value of the Company’s Common Stock based on the published closing price of
the stock on each Trading Day and shall reflect dividends paid and any other distributions made with respect to the Company’s
Common Stock.

(iii) Cash dividends shall be treated as if such dividends had been reinvested in the Company’s Common Stock at the published
closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on the Trading Day on which the cash dividend is paid or, if the dividend is paid on a
day which is not a Trading Day, on the Trading Day which immediately precedes the day the dividend is paid.

(d) Fund Investment Option. Earnings shall be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the investment option or options
within the Fund Investment Option to which his or her Account has been allocated. The manner in which earnings are credited under
each of the investment options shall be determined in the same manner as under the Qualified Savings Plan. The procedures for
directing the allocation and reallocation among the investment options in the Fund Investment Option shall be the same as the
procedures for making allocations under the Qualified Savings Plan.

2. Election of Investment Options. A Participant’s initial investment elections for a particular type of award for an Award Year or a
Death Benefit shall be made in his or her Deferral Agreement for such Award Year or Death Benefit, and no Participant shall have the right to
modify or revoke any such election after the time the Participant no longer has the right to make or revoke a Deferral Agreement under Section 1
of Article II. A Participant’s allocations between investment options shall be subject to such minimum allocations as the Committee may establish.
In the event a Participant fails to specify an investment election in his or her Deferral Agreement, the amount subject to that Deferral Agreement
shall be deemed allocated to the Interest Option.
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3. Reallocation Among Investment Options. Effective June 16, 2008, a Participant may reallocate the portion of his Account Balance
that is invested in the Interest Option and the Fund Investment Option to the Interest Option, the Company Stock Investment Option, and the
various investment funds in the Fund Investment Option, subject to the trading restrictions that apply to the transfer and reallocation of
investments under the terms of the Qualified Savings Plan, applied as if such Qualified Savings Plan restrictions also pertain to the Interest
Option; provided that a Participant may not at any time reallocate the portion of his Account Balance that is invested at any time in the Company
Stock Investment Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any election by a Section 16 Person to reallocate any portion of his Account Balance to
the Company Stock Investment Option shall only become effective if the election is made at least six months following the most recent election
with respect to any plan of the Corporation that involved the disposition of the Corporation’s equity securities pursuant to a “Discretionary
Transaction” (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 16b-3).

ARTICLE V

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. General.
(a) Account Balance and Elections. The Company’s liability to pay benefits to a Participant or Beneficiary under this Deferral

Plan shall be measured by and shall in no event exceed the Participant’s Account Balance. Except as otherwise provided in this
Deferral Plan (including but not limited to Section 5 of Article III with respect to Company Deferrals), a Participant’s Account Balance
shall be paid to him in accordance with the Participant’s elections under this Article V.

(b) Cash and Stock Payments. All benefit payments shall be made in cash to the extent a Participant’s Account is allocated to
the Interest Option or Fund Investment Option or is attributable to Company Deferrals and shall be made in whole shares of the
Company’s Common Stock to the extent that a Participant’s Account is allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option (other than
with respect to Company Deferrals) and, except as otherwise provided, shall reduce allocations to the Interest Option, Fund
Investment Option, and the Company Stock Investment Option in the same proportions that the Participant’s Account Balance is
allocated between those investment options at the end of the month preceding the date of distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
no amount of Deferred Compensation attributable to the Company Stock Investment Option shall be distributed to a Section 16 Person
under this Deferral Plan unless such amount was allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option in accordance with Section 1 of
Article IV at least six months prior to the date of distribution. At the Company’s discretion a distribution of Common Stock may be
made directly to a Participant or to a brokerage account opened in the name of the Participant. When an Account is distributed in a
lump sum or, if an Account is distributed in installments, cash shall be distributed at that time in lieu of any

 
9



fractional share of Common Stock. The cash distribution in lieu of fractional shares shall be based on the published closing price of the
Company’s Common Stock on the last Trading Day of the month preceding the date the distribution is scheduled to be made.

2. Election for Commencement of Payment. At the time a Participant completes a Deferral Agreement, he or she shall elect from
among the following options governing the date on which the payment of benefits shall commence:

(a) Payment to begin on the Payment Date next following the date of the Participant’s termination of employment with the
Company for any reason.

(b) Payment to begin on the first Payment Date of the year next following the year in which the Participant terminates
employment with the Company for any reason.

(c) Payment to begin on the first Payment Date of the year next following the date on which the Participant has both terminated
employment with the Company for any reason and attained the age designated by the Participant in the Deferral Agreement.

No payment shall commence or be made under this Section 2 unless the Participant’s termination of employment constitutes a “separation from
service” under Code section 409A(a)(2)(a)(i).

Notwithstanding a Participant’s election or any other provision of the Deferral Plan, the following specific rules apply to Participants who are
Section 16 Persons or Specified Employees. Subject to the rules regarding distributions to a Specified Employee, any payment of benefits in the
form of shares of Common Stock that would result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act shall be
delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not
result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act. Any distributions to a Specified Employee (including a Section 16 Person) on account of
a termination of employment shall commence or be made on the Payment Date determined pursuant to the Specified Employee’s election (or as
otherwise provided under this Deferral Plan), except that if such Payment Date would be within six (6) months of the date of the Specified
Employee’s termination of employment from the Company, distributions shall commence or be made on the next date that is at least six
(6) months following such termination of employment, regardless of whether such date is a Payment Date.

3. Election for Form of Payment. At the time a Participant completes a Deferral Agreement, he or she shall elect the form of payment
of his or her Deferred Compensation for the specified Award Year or Death Benefit, as applicable, from among the following options:

(a) A lump sum.
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(b) Annual installment payments for a period of years designated by the Participant, which, for distributions commencing prior to
January 1, 2008, shall not exceed fifteen (15) annual installments, and for distributions commencing on or after January 1, 2008, shall
not exceed twenty (20) annual installments. The amount of each annual payment shall be determined by dividing the Participant’s
Account Balance at the end of the month prior to such payment by the number of installment payments then remaining in the
designated installment period.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Account Balance of a Participant who is entitled to begin payment equals $10,000 or less, the Participant’s
Account Balance shall be paid in a single lump sum payment as soon as administratively practicable in full discharge of all liabilities with respect
to such benefits.

4. Prospective Change of Payment Elections.
(a) If a Participant has different payment options in effect with respect to his or her Account Balance, the Company shall

maintain sub-accounts for the Participant to determine the amounts subject to each payment election.
(b) In the event a Participant does not make a valid election with respect to the commencement of payment and form of benefit

for an Award Year or for a Death Benefit, the Participant will be deemed to have elected that payment of benefits with respect to that
Award Year or Death Benefit be made in a lump sum on or about the Payment Date next following the date of the Participant’s
termination of employment.

(c) A Participant’s election with respect to an Award Year or Death Benefit (including a “deemed election” in accordance with the
preceding paragraph) shall remain in effect unless and until such election is modified by a subsequent election in accordance with
(d) below.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article V, a Participant may make a new election with respect to the
commencement of payment and form of payment with respect to any sub-account maintained for Award Years or a Death Benefit or
with respect to his or her entire Account Balance. A new election under this section shall be made by executing and delivering to the
Company an election in such form as prescribed by the Company. To constitute a valid election by a Participant making a prospective
change to a previous election, (i) the prospective election must be executed and delivered to the Company at least twelve (12) months
before the date the first payment would be due under the Participant’s previous election, and (ii) the first payment must be delayed by
at least sixty (60) months from the date the first payment would be due under the Participant’s previous election, and (iii) such change
in election shall not be given effect until twelve 12 months from the date that the change in election is delivered to the Company. In the
event an election fails to satisfy the provisions set forth in this paragraph, such election shall be
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void and, if such an election is void, payment shall be made in accordance with the most recent election which was valid.
(e) Notwithstanding the above, for periods prior to January 1, 2009, (or such later date as may be provided by the Internal

Revenue Service in guidance of general applicability), the Senior Vice President, Human Resources may provide alternative rules for
elections with respect to the commencement of payment and form of payment that conform to the rules provided in Notice 2005-1, and
subsequent Internal Revenue Service guidance providing transition relief under Code section 409A.

(f) A Participant may not make or modify an election with respect to commencement of payment or form of payment after the
date a Participant terminates employment.

5. Acceleration upon Early Termination. Notwithstanding a Participant’s payment elections under this Article V, if the Participant
terminates employment with the Company, other than by reason of death or disability (as defined in Section 8(b) of this Article V), and before the
Participant has attained age 55, except as provided in Section 5 of Article III with respect to Company Deferrals, the Participant’s Account
Balance shall be distributed to him or her in a lump sum on or about the Payment Date next following the date of the Participant’s termination of
employment with the Company. Distributions under this Section 5 are limited by Section 1 of Article VIII, by any delay in distribution required for
Specified Employees as provided in Section 2 of this Article V and, further, by any delay in distribution required to avoid liability under
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, as provided in Section 2 of this Article V.

6. Acceleration Upon Conflict of Interest. Notwithstanding a Participant’s payment elections under this Article V, if following a
Participant’s termination of employment with the Company, the Participant takes a position (or accepts a position) with a governmental entity,
agency, or instrumentality and that employer has determined that the Participant’s continued participation in the Plan may constitute a conflict of
interest precluding the Participant from continuing in his position (or from accepting an offered position) with that employer or subjecting the
Participant to penalty, sanction, or otherwise limiting the Participant’s responsibilities for that employer, except as provided in Section 5 of Article
III with respect to Company Deferrals, then the Participant’s Account Balance shall be distributed to him or her in a lump sum as soon as practical
following the later of (i) the date on which the Participant commences employment with the government employer; or (ii) the date on which it is
determined or indicated that the conflict of interest may exist. This Section 6 of Article V shall apply, however, only to the extent that the
accelerated payment upon a conflict of interest determination conforms with Code section 409A.

7. Benefits Payable Upon Death. Upon the death of a Participant before a complete distribution of his or her Account Balance, the
Account Balance will be paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in accordance with the payment elections applicable to the Participant. If a
Participant dies while actively employed or otherwise before the payment of benefits has commenced, payments to the Beneficiary shall
commence on the date payments to the Participant would have commenced, taking account of the Participant’s termination of
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employment (by death or before) and, if applicable, by postponing commencement until after the date the Participant would have attained the
commencement age specified by the Participant. Whether the Participant dies before or after the commencement of distributions, payments to the
Beneficiary shall be made for the period or remaining period elected by the Participant.

8. Early Distributions in Special Circumstances. Notwithstanding a Participant’s payment elections under this Article V, a Participant or
Beneficiary may request an earlier distribution in the following limited circumstances (except as provided in Section 5 of Article III with respect to
Company Deferrals):

(a) Hardship Distributions. A Participant may apply for a hardship distribution pursuant to this Section 8(a) on such form and in
such manner as the Committee shall prescribe and, subject to the last sentence of this Section 8(a) with respect to Section 16
Persons, the Committee shall have the power and discretion at any time to approve a payment to a Participant if the Committee
determines that the Participant is suffering from an unforeseeable serious financial emergency caused by circumstances beyond the
Participant’s control which would cause a hardship to the Participant unless such payment were made. Any such hardship payment will
be in a lump sum and will not exceed the lesser of (i) the amount necessary to satisfy the financial emergency (taking account of the
income tax liability associated with the distribution), or (ii) the Participant’s Account Balance; provided, however, that if a distribution in
accordance with the provisions of this Section 8(a) from the portion of the Participant’s Account allocated to the Company Stock
Investment Option would otherwise result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of
distribution with respect to such portion to such Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution
either would not result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the
Exchange Act. The Committee’s determination under this Section 8(a) shall conform to the requirements of Code section 409A(a).

(b) Disability. If the Committee determines that a Participant has become permanently disabled within the meaning of
Section 409A(a)(2)(C) of the Code before the Participant’s entire Account Balance has been distributed, the Participant’s remaining
Account Balance will be distributed in a lump sum payment; provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions
of this Section 8(b) from the portion of the Participant’s Account allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option would otherwise
result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to such
portion to any Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a
nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.
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9. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Deferral Plan, except as provided in Section 5 of Article III with respect to

Company Deferrals, the Account Balance of each Participant shall be distributed in a single lump sum within fifteen (15) calendar days
following a “Change in Control.”

(b) For purposes of this Deferral Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:
(i) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or

more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of
directors of the Company.

(ii) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other
entities that are not Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other
reorganization, less than 75% of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately
after the event be owned in the aggregate by the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis
of record ownership as of the date of determination of holders entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day
immediately prior to the event).

(iii) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person
described in and satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1 (b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule
13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the combined
voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

(iv) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or
other reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to
constitute at least a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors”
shall mean the persons who were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were
elected or nominated as their successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of
the Board members who were then Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).
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(v) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially
all of the Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no distribution shall be made solely on account of a Change in Control and prior to the benefit
commencement date specified in Section 2 of Article V unless the Change in Control is an event qualifying for a distribution of deferred
compensation under both the definition of Change in Control in this Plan and in Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(v) of the Code.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 9(a), if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of Section 9(a) would result
in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act with respect to any Section 16 Person, then the date
of distribution to such Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a
nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

(d) This Section 9 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout
of Deferred Compensation in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

(e) The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 9 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in
Control, this Section 9 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five
years, and any defined term used in Section 9 shall not, for purposes of Section 9, be subject to cancellation or modification during the
five-year period.

10. Deductibility of Payments. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, in the event that the payment of benefits in
accordance with the Participant’s elections under this Article V would prevent the Company from claiming an income tax deduction with respect to
any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the right to modify the timing of distributions from the Participant’s Account as
necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee
shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most closely approximate the Participant’s elections, consistent
with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to reduce a Participant’s Account Balance or
to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s Account Balance in the event that all or a portion thereof would not be deductible by the
Company.

11. Change of Law. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, if the Committee determines in good faith, based on
consultation with counsel that the Federal income tax treatment or legal status of the Plan has or may be adversely affected by a change in the
Code, Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable
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law or by an administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee may direct that the Accounts of affected Participants or of all
Participants be distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the
Committee to cure or mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in law or interpretation thereof.

12. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder, or with respect to
any Incentive Compensation, Long Term Incentive Award, or Death Benefit payment deferred hereunder or credit contributed by the Company
under Article IV, any Federal, state, or local income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish the recipient and the applicable
government agency or agencies with such reports, statements, or information as may be legally required.

ARTICLE VI

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Deferral Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the
future, and each Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial
interest in any specific assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Deferral Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to
assist the Company in meeting its obligations under this Deferral Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust described in Revenue
Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422, and the Company may direct that its obligations under this Deferral Plan be satisfied by payments out of such
trust. The assets of any such trust will remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Company. It is the Company’s intention that the
Deferral Plan be unfunded for Federal income tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary. Notwithstanding, any portion of a Participant’s benefit
under this Plan may be paid to a spouse or former spouse pursuant to the terms of a domestic relations order (as defined in Code section 414(p)(1)
(B)), provided that the form of payment designated in such order is one that is provided for under Section 3 of Article V of this Deferral Plan.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Deferral Plan at any time
subject to any shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect
of reducing a Participant’s Account Balance or postponing the time when a Participant
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is entitled to receive a distribution of his Account Balance. Further, no amendment may alter the formula for crediting interest to Participants’
Accounts with respect to amounts for which deferral elections have previously been made, unless the amended formula is not less favorable to
Participants than that previously in effect, or unless each affected Participant consents to such change.

2. Termination. The Board reserves the right to terminate this Plan at any time and to pay all Participants their Account Balances in
any form and at such times that the Board reasonably determines in its discretion is appropriate and conforms to the requirements of Code section
409A; provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2 would otherwise result in a nonexempt short-
swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to any Section 16 Person shall be delayed until
the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability
under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

3. Transfer of Liability. The Board reserves the right to transfer to another entity all of the obligations of Company with respect to a
Participant under this Plan if such entity agrees pursuant to a binding written agreement to assume all of the obligations of the Company under this
Plan with respect to such Participant.

ARTICLE VIII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Deferral Plan shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the
Board or such other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board and constituted so as to permit this Deferral Plan to comply with
the disinterested administration requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the
Board. A majority of the members of the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the
unanimous written consent of the Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and the Claims Administrator (identified in
Section 6 below) shall have full authority to interpret the Plan, and interpretations of the Plan by the Committee or the Claims Administrator shall
be final and binding on all parties. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Deferral Plan or in any document issued under the Deferral Plan, it is
intended that the Deferral Plan will at all times conform to the requirements of Code section 409A and any regulations or other guidance issued
thereunder, and that the provisions of the Deferral Plan will be interpreted to meet such requirements. If any provision of the Deferral Plan is
determined not to conform to such requirements, the Deferral Plan shall be interpreted to omit such offending provision.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and
deliver those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Deferral Plan in accordance with its terms and
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purpose, except that the Committee may not delegate any authority the delegation of which would cause this Deferral Plan to fail to satisfy the
applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action under this Deferral Plan, the Committee or
its delegate may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Company. No member of the Committee or
officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision specifically relating to his or her individual rights or benefits
under the Deferral Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person
participating in any determination of any question under this Deferral Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have
any liability to any party for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Deferral Plan or for the failure of the Deferral Plan or any
Participant’s rights under the Deferral Plan to achieve intended tax consequences, to qualify for exemption or relief under Section 16 of the
Exchange Act and the rules thereunder, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may direct that such
benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such
minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or the Claims Administrator) from all liability with respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Committee or the Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or
incapacity of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Deferral Plan is wholly or partially denied by the Claims Administrator
are as follows:

(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a
manner calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to pertinent
Deferral Plan provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for the
claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the steps to be
taken if the claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section
502(a) of ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90-day period may be extended for not more than an additional 90
days if special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall give the claimant, before the end of
the initial 90-day
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period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special circumstances and the date by which the Claims Administrator expects
to render a decision.

(b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice
described in paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.

(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments,
documents, records and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be
provided, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information “relevant”
to claimant’s claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in making the benefit
determination; (2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether
such document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or (3) demonstrates compliance with
administrative processes and safeguards required under Federal law.

(d) The Deferral Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information
submitted by the claimant relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial
benefit determination. The Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60
days after receipt by the Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120 days after
such receipt if special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing prior to the expiration
of the original 60-day period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for the extension and the date by
which it is expected that a decision will be reached. The decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in a manner calculated to be
understood by the claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific reference to the pertinent Deferral
Plan provisions on which the decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of
charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, and other information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for
benefits; (4) a description of any additional material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of
why such material or information is necessary; (5) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to
obtain information about such procedures, if any; and (6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a)
of ERISA following an adverse benefit determination on review. If in the event that the reviewing committee must make a determination
of disability in order to decide a claim, the reviewing committee shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits
described in Department of Labor Regulation section 2560.503-1(d). The reviewing committee shall render a
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decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days) after the claimant’s request for review, rather than within 120 days as set
forth in the above paragraph.

(e) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Savings Plan Administrative Committee. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be the
Committee.

ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. No Guarantee of Employment or Award. Neither this Deferral Plan, a Company Deferral nor a Participant’s Deferral Agreement,
either singly or collectively, shall in any way obligate the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does either
this Deferral Plan, a Company Deferral or a Deferral Agreement limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the
Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Deferral Plan, a Company Deferral or a Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, by their
terms or implications constitute an employment contract of any nature whatsoever between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this
Deferral Plan, a Company Deferral or a Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, by their terms or implications in any way obligate the
Company to award Incentive Compensation, grant any award under the Omnibus Plan or IPA Plan, pay any Death Benefit, or make any Long Term
Incentive Award payment to any Eligible Employee for any Award Year, whether or not the Eligible Employee is a Participant in the Deferral Plan
for that Award Year, nor in any other way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Notice. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at
6801 Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of the Senior Vice President, Human Resources. Any written notice to a
Participant shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at
his or her last-known place of residence or business address.

3. Performance of Acts. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by
this Deferral Plan, the Company or the Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent
and the purpose of this Deferral Plan.

4. Employee Consent. By electing to become a Participant hereunder, each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have
accepted and consented to all of the terms of this Deferral Plan.

5. Terms Binding. The provisions of this Deferral Plan and the Deferral Agreements hereunder shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal
representatives.
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6. Copy of Plan. A copy of this Deferral Plan shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under
the Deferral Plan at reasonable times at the offices of the Company.

7. State Law. The validity of this Deferral Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects
under and by the laws of the State of Maryland, except as to matters of Federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

8. Regulatory Requirements. This Deferral Plan and its operation, including but not limited to, the mechanics of deferral elections, the
reallocation of all or a portion of a Participant’s Account Balance, the issuance of securities, if any, or the payment of cash hereunder is subject to
compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws, rules and regulations (including but not limited to state and Federal insider trading,
registration, reporting and other securities laws) and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the
opinion of counsel for the Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.

9. Section 16 of Exchange Act. It is the intent of the Company that this Deferral Plan satisfy and be interpreted in a manner, that, in
the case of Participants who are or may be Section 16 Persons, satisfies any applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or other
exemptive rules under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and will not subject Section 16 Persons to short-swing profit liability thereunder. If any
provision of this Deferral Plan would otherwise frustrate or conflict with the intent expressed in this Section 9, that provision to the extent possible
shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid such conflict. To the extent of any remaining irreconcilable conflict with this intent, the
provision shall be deemed disregarded. Similarly, any action or election by a Section 16 Person with respect to the Deferral Plan to the extent
possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid liability under Section 16 or, if this is not possible, to the extent necessary to
avoid liability under Section 16, shall be deemed ineffective. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Deferral Plan, the provisions of this
Deferral Plan may at any time be bifurcated by the Board or the Committee in any manner so that certain provisions of this Deferral Plan are
applicable solely to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Deferral Plan to the contrary, if a distribution which would
otherwise occur is prohibited or proposed to be delayed because of the provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or the provisions of the
Deferral Plan designed to ensure compliance with Section 16, the Section 16 Person involved may affirmatively elect in writing to have the
distribution occur in any event; provided that the Section 16 Person shall concurrently enter into arrangements satisfactory to the Committee in its
sole discretion for the satisfaction of any and all liabilities, costs and expenses arising from this election.

10. Securities Laws. This Deferral Plan, allocations to and from the Company Stock Investment Option and the issuance and delivery
of shares of Common Stock and/or other securities or property or the payment of cash under this Deferral Plan, are subject to compliance with all
applicable Federal and state laws, rules and regulations (including but not limited to state and Federal insider trading, registration, reporting and
other securities laws and Federal margin requirements) and to such approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may,
 

21



in the opinion of counsel for the Company be necessary or advisable to comply with all legal requirements. Any securities delivered under this
Deferral Plan shall be subject to such restrictions (and the person acquiring such securities shall, if requested by the Company provide such
evidence, assurance and representations to the Company as to compliance with any thereof) as counsel to the Company may deem necessary or
desirable to assure compliance with all applicable legal requirements.

11. Electronic Notice and Signatures. Whenever a signature notice or delivery of a document is required or appropriate under this
Deferral Plan, signature, notice or delivery may be accomplished by paper or written format or, to the extent authorized by the Committee, by
electronic means. In the event the Committee authorizes electronic means for the signature, notice or delivery of a document under this Deferral
Plan, the electronic record or confirmation of that signature, notice or delivery maintained by or on behalf of the Committee shall for purposes of
this Deferral Plan be treated as if it was a written signature or notice and was delivered in the manner provided herein for a written document.

ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Deferral Plan was originally adopted by the Board on July 27, 1995 and became effective upon adoption to awards of Incentive
Compensation for the Company’s fiscal year ending December 31, 1995 and subsequent fiscal years. Subsequent amendments to the Deferral
Plan are effective as of the date stated in the amendment or the adopting resolution.

This Deferral Plan has been amended and restated effective as of the date stated on the first page herein.

APPENDIX A

This Appendix A shall govern the portion of a Participant’s Account Balance that was earned and vested prior to January 1, 2005 (and any
earnings attributable to that portion). This Appendix A shall not apply to the portion of a Participant’s Account Balance that is earned or becomes
vested on or after January 1, 2005 (and any earnings attributable to that portion).

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Deferred Management Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Deferral Plan’) are to
provide certain key management
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employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) the opportunity to defer receipt of (i) Incentive Compensation
awards under the Lockheed Martin Corporation Management Incentive Compensation Plan (the “MICP”) and (ii) Long Term Incentive Award
payments under the Lockheed Martin Corporation 1995 Omnibus Performance Award Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”) and the Lockheed Martin
Corporation 2003 Incentive Performance Award Plan (the “IPA Plan”). Providing this opportunity to defer income under the Deferral Plan will
encourage key employees to maintain a financial interest in the Company’s performance. Except as expressly provided hereinafter, the provisions
of this Deferral Plan and the MICP, the Omnibus Plan and the IPA Plan shall be construed and applied independently of each other.

The Deferral Plan applies solely to MICP awards and Long Term Incentive Award payments under the Omnibus Plan and the IPA Plan
and expressly does not apply to any special awards which may be made under any of the Company’s other incentive plans, except and to the
extent specifically provided under the terms of such other incentive plans and the relevant awards.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings hereinafter indicated:
1. ACCOUNT — The bookkeeping account maintained by the Company for each Participant which is credited with the Participant’s

Deferred Compensation and earnings (or losses) attributable to the investment options selected by the Participant, and which is debited to reflect
distributions and forfeitures; the portions of a Participant’s Account allocated to different investment options and the portions attributable to the
deferral of Incentive Compensation awards and Long Term Incentive Award payments will be accounted for separately.

2. ACCOUNT BALANCE — The total amount credited to a Participant’s Account at any point in time, including the portions of the
Account allocated to each investment option.

3. AWARD YEAR — As to Incentive Compensation, the calendar year with respect to which an Eligible Employee is awarded Incentive
Compensation; as to a Long Term Incentive Award payment and the related Company Deferral, the first calendar year in the Performance Period
for which the Long Term Incentive Award is effective with respect to an Eligible Employee.

4. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons (including a trust or trusts) validly designated by a Participant, on the form provided by the
Company, to receive distributions of the Participant’s Account Balance, if any, upon the Participant’s death. In the absence of a valid designation,
or if the designated Beneficiary has predeceased the Participant, the Participant’s Beneficiary shall be the personal representative of the
Participant’s estate in the
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event of a Participant’s death. A Participant may amend his or her Beneficiary designation at any time before the Participant’s death.

5. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

6. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article VIII.

7. COMMON STOCK — The $1.00 par value common stock of the Company.

8. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries.

9. COMPANY DEFERRALS — The amount deferred by the Company, and not at the election of the Participant, for the two-year period
following the end of a Performance Period for a Long Term Incentive Award.

10. COMPANY STOCK INVESTMENT OPTION — The investment option under which the amount credited to a Participant’s Account
will be based on the market value and investment return of the Company’s Common Stock.

11. DEFERRAL AGREEMENT — The written agreement executed by an Eligible Employee on the form provided by the Company
under which the Eligible Employee elects to defer Incentive Compensation for an Award Year, or a Long Term Incentive Award and any related
Company Deferral for an Award Year.

12. DEFERRAL PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Deferred Management Incentive Compensation Plan, adopted by the Board
on July 27, 1995, and as amended from time to time.

13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION — The amount of Incentive Compensation credited to a Participant’s Account under the Deferral
Plan and the amount of any Long Term Incentive Award payment credited to a Participant’s Account under the Deferral Plan (other than Company
Deferrals).

14. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who is a participant in the MICP or who receives a Long Term Incentive
Award under the Omnibus Plan or the IPA Plan and who has satisfied such additional requirements for participation in this Deferral Plan as the
Committee may from time to time establish. In the exercise of its authority under this provision, the Committee shall limit participation in the Plan
to employees whom the Committee believes to be a select group of management or highly compensated employees within the meaning of Title I
of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

15. EXCHANGE ACT — The Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

15A. FUND INVESTMENT OPTION — The investment option under which earnings will be credited to a Participant’s Account based
on the market value and investment return of the investment options (including the asset allocation funds and core mutual funds (and
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successor funds), and excluding the Company Stock Fund, ESOP Fund, and Self-Managed Account) that are available to participants pursuant to
the terms of the Qualified Savings Plan, provided that the Committee retains the discretion to add certain funds to, or to exclude certain funds
from, the Fund Investment Option.

16. INCENTIVE COMPENSATION — The MICP amount granted to an employee for an Award Year.

17. IPA PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation 2003 Incentive Performance Award Plan.

18. INTEREST OPTION — The investment option under which earnings will be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the
interest rate applicable under Cost Accounting Standard 415, Deferred Compensation.

19. LONG TERM INCENTIVE AWARD — A long term incentive award granted to an employee under the Omnibus Plan or the IPA
Plan.

20. MICP — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Management Incentive Compensation Plan.

21. OMNIBUS PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation 1995 Omnibus Performance Award Plan.

22. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee for whom Incentive Compensation or a Long Term Incentive Award payment has been
deferred for one or more years under this Deferral Plan; the term shall include a former employee whose Deferred Compensation has not been fully
distributed.

23. PAYMENT DATE — As to any Participant, the January 15 or July 15 on or about on which payment to the Participant is to be
made or to begin in accordance with Article V.

24. PERFORMANCE PERIOD — The period set forth in a Long Term Incentive Award over which the Company’s performance is
measured by reference to total stockholder return to determine whether any payment will be made under such Long Term Incentive Award.

24A. QUALIFIED SAVINGS PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Salaried Savings Plan or any successor plan.

25. REALLOCATION EFFECTIVE DATE — The date a reallocation elected by a Participant or Beneficiary under Section 6(a) of Article
IV is effected, which shall be the June 30, July 31, August 31 or September 30 immediately following the end of the Reallocation Election Period in
which his or her election under Section 6(a) becomes irrevocable.

26. REALLOCATION ELECTION PERIOD — A period in which a Participant or Beneficiary may under Section 6(a) of Article IV elect a
reallocation of his or her
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Account Balance from one investment option to another investment option, and there shall be four such election periods: June 1 through June 15,
2004, June 16 through July 15, 2004, July 16 through August 15, 2004 and August 16 through September 15, 2004.

27. SECTION 16 PERSON — A Participant who is subject to the reporting and short-swing liability provisions of Section 16 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on the date a Deferral Agreement or other election form is delivered to the Company in accordance with the
terms of this Deferral Plan.

28. SUBSIDIARY — As to any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50% or
more of the voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporation), is owned or controlled (directly or indirectly) by
that entity, or by one or more of the Subsidiaries of that entity, or by a combination thereof.

29. TRADING DAY — A day upon which transactions with respect to Company Common Stock are reported in the consolidated
transaction reporting system.

ARTICLE III

ELECTION OF DEFERRED AMOUNT

1. Timing of Deferral Elections.
(a) Incentive Compensation. An Eligible Employee may elect to defer Incentive Compensation for an Award Year by executing

and delivering to the Company a Deferral Agreement no later than October 31 of the Award Year, provided that any election by a Section 16
Person shall be subject to the provisions of Section 4 of Article IV.

(b) Long Term Incentive Awards and Company Deferrals. An Eligible Employee may elect to defer the payment of a Long Term
Incentive Award and a Company Deferral for an Award Year by executing and delivering to the Company a Deferral Agreement no later than
October 31 of the Award Year, provided that any election by a Section 16 Person shall be subject to the provisions of Section 4 of Article IV.

(c) Irrevocability of Elections. No Eligible Employee shall have the right to modify or revoke a Deferral Agreement for an Award
Year after the applicable deadline described in Section 1(a) and Section 1(b) of this Article III for delivering a Deferral Agreement to the Company
for such Award Year, provided no Section 16 Person shall have the right to modify or revoke a Deferral Agreement after such applicable deadline
or, if earlier, after the date the agreement has been delivered to the Company. The Committee may establish policies and procedures to determine
when a Deferral Agreement or other election called for under this Plan has been delivered to the Company. Each Deferral Agreement shall apply
only to amounts deferred in that Award Year and a separate Deferral Agreement must be completed for each Award Year for which an Eligible
Employee defers Incentive Compensation or a Long Term Incentive Award.
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2. Amount of Deferral Elections. An Eligible Employee’s deferral election may be stated as:
(a) a dollar amount which is at least $5,000 and is an even multiple of $1,000,

(b) the greater of $5,000 or a designated percentage of the Eligible Employee’s Incentive Compensation or Long Term Incentive
Award payment (adjusted to the next highest multiple of $1,000),

(c) the excess of the Eligible Employee’s Incentive Compensation or Long Term Incentive Award payment over a dollar amount
specified by the Eligible Employee (which must be an even multiple of $1,000), or

(d) all of the Eligible Employee’s Incentive Compensation or Long Term Incentive Award payment.

An Eligible Employee’s deferral election shall be effective only if the Participant is awarded, in the case of Incentive Compensation, at least
$10,000 of Incentive Compensation for that Award Year, or in the case of Long Term Incentive Award, at least $10,000 is payable to the
Participant in cash at the conclusion of the Performance Period applicable to a Long Term Incentive Award payment. In addition, in the case of a
deferral election under paragraph (c) of this Section 2, an Eligible Employee’s deferral election shall be effective only if the resulting excess
amount is at least $5,000.

3. Effect of Taxes on Deferred Compensation. The amount that would otherwise be deferred and credited to an Eligible Employee’s
Account will be reduced by the amount of any tax that the Company is required to withhold with respect to the Deferred Compensation. The
reduction for taxes shall be made proportionately out of amounts otherwise allocable to the Interest Option and the Company Stock Investment
Option.

4. Multiple Awards. In the case of an Eligible Employee who receives more than one Long Term Incentive Award with respect to the
same Performance Period, the elections made by the Eligible Employee under this Article III as well as under Articles V and VI for the first Long
Term Incentive Award granted to the Eligible Employee with respect to a Performance Period shall be deemed to be the elections made by that
Eligible Employee for any other Long Term Incentive Awards granted to that Eligible Employee with respect to that same Performance Period.

5. Company Deferrals. Pursuant to the terms of the Long Term Incentive Awards, 50% of the amount payable at the end of the
Performance Period will be automatically deferred until the second anniversary of the last day of the Performance Period with respect to a
particular award. The Company may establish an account for Company Deferrals under the Company Stock Investment Option of this Deferral
Plan. However, the terms governing the Company Deferrals will be governed for the two year period of deferral by the terms of the award
agreement entered into under the Omnibus Plan or the IPA Plan with respect to the Long Term Incentive Award and not by this Deferral Plan
except to the extent the award agreement expressly refers to the terms of this Deferral Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the
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Participant elects to defer the Company Deferrals beyond the second anniversary of the end of the Performance Period, the deferrals will be
treated as made under this Deferral Plan for the period following the second anniversary of the end of the Performance Period.

ARTICLE IV

CREDITING OF ACCOUNTS

1. Crediting of Deferred Compensation. Incentive Compensation or a Long Term Incentive Award payment that a Participant has
elected to defer under this Deferral Plan shall be credited to the Participant’s Account as of the Trading Day set by action of the Committee or, if
the Committee does not act to set such a day, on the second Trading Day which follows the date of approval of the related Incentive
Compensation or Long Term Incentive Award. If the Company establishes an account for Company Deferrals pursuant to Section 5 of Article III,
the Company Deferrals shall be credited to such account as of the last Trading Day in the Performance Period. Any Deferred Compensation
credits under this Section 1 which are allocable to the Interest Option shall be credited at the dollar amount of such credits. Any Deferred
Compensation and Company Deferral credits under this Section 1 which are allocable to the Company Stock Investment Option shall be credited
as if the dollar amount of credits had been invested in the Company’s Common Stock at the published closing price of the Company’s Common
Stock on the applicable Trading Day described in this Section 1. Any Deferred Compensation and Company Deferral credits under this Section 1
which are allocable to the Fund Investment Option shall be credited as if the dollar amount of credits had been invested in the applicable fund at
the published closing price of the applicable fund on the applicable Trading Day described in this Section 1.

2. Crediting of Earnings and Reallocations.
(a) General Rules.
(i) Earnings shall be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the investment option or options to which the Account has

been allocated beginning with the applicable Trading Day described in this Article IV.
(ii) Earnings on amounts reallocated in accordance with this Article IV shall be credited to the Participant’s Account as of the

applicable day or Trading Day described for such reallocation in this Article IV.
(iii) Any amount distributed from a Participant’s Account pursuant to Article V shall be credited with earnings through the Trading

Day that is four (4) business days prior to the Payment Date on which a distribution is to be made.
(iv) Company Deferrals shall be credited with earnings through the last Trading Day in the period which ends on the second

anniversary of the end of the applicable Performance Period unless deferred further pursuant to a Deferral Agreement.
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(b) Interest Option. The portion of a Participant’s Account allocated or reallocated to the Interest Option shall be credited with
interest, compounded daily, while so allocated or reallocated at a rate equivalent to the then published rate for computing the present
value of future benefits at the time cost is assignable under Cost Accounting Standard 415, Deferred Compensation, as determined by
the Secretary of the Treasury on a semi-annual basis pursuant to Pub. L. 92-41, 85 Stat. 97.

(c) Company Stock Investment Option.
(i) The portion of a Participant’s Account allocated or reallocated to the Company Stock Investment Option shall be credited

when so allocated or reallocated on the applicable Trading Day described in this Article IV as if such amount had been invested in the
Company’s Common Stock at the published closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on such Trading Day.

(ii) The portion of the Participant’s Account Balance allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option shall reflect any post-
allocation appreciation or depreciation in the market value of the Company’s Common Stock based on the published closing price of
the stock on each Trading Day and shall reflect dividends paid and any other distributions made with respect to the Company’s
Common Stock.

(iii) Cash dividends shall be treated as if such dividends had been reinvested in the Company’s Common Stock at the published
closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on the Trading Day on which the cash dividend is paid or, if the dividend is paid on a
day which is not a Trading Day, on the Trading Day which immediately precedes the day the dividend is paid.

(iv) If any portion of a Participant’s Account is reallocated in accordance with paragraph 6 (or paragraph 5 prior to October 1,
2004) of this Article IV from the Company Stock Investment Option to the Interest Option, the reallocation shall be credited to the
Interest Option as if the Company’s Common Stock had been bought or sold at the published closing price of the Company’s Common
Stock on the Trading Day on which the reallocation is effective, or if the reallocation is effective as of the day that is not a Trading
Day, the Trading Day which immediate precedes the effective date of the reallocation.

(d) Fund Investment Option. Earnings shall be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the investment option or options
within the Fund Investment Option to which his or her Account has been allocated. The manner in which earnings are credited under
each of the investment options shall be determined in the same manner as under the Qualified Savings Plan. The procedures for
directing the allocation and reallocation among the investment options in the Fund Investment Option shall be the same as the
procedures for making allocations under the Qualified Savings Plan.
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3. Election of Investment Options. A Participant’s initial investment elections for a particular type of award for an Award Year shall be
made in his or her Deferral Agreement for such Award Year, and no Participant shall (except as provided for in Section 6 and Section 7 of this
Article IV) have the right to modify or revoke any such election after the time the Participant no longer has the right to modify or revoke a Deferral
Agreement under Section 1 of Article III. A Participant’s allocations between investment options shall be subject to such minimum allocations as
the Committee may establish.

4. Special Rule for Section 16 Persons. An election by a Section 16 Person to have any Deferred Compensation allocated to the
Company Stock Investment Option shall be effective on the Trading Day described in Section 1 of this Article IV unless he or she delivers the
related Deferral Agreement to the Company less than six months before such Trading Day. If he or she delivers the related Deferral Agreement to
the Company less than six months before such date, his or her Company Stock Investment Option election automatically shall be treated as an
Interest Option election under Section 1 of this Article IV until the first Trading Day of the seventh month following the month in which the Deferral
Agreement is delivered to the Company. The Deferred Compensation so allocated to the to the Interest Option together with any related interest
credits shall by operation of this Deferral Plan automatically be reallocated and credited to the Company Stock Investment Option on such Trading
Day in accordance with Section 2(b) of this Article IV.

Reallocations to Interest Option (deleted effective September 30, 2004). If benefit payments to a Participant or Beneficiary are to be
paid or commenced to be paid over a period that extends more than six months after the date of the Participant’s termination of employment with
the Company, the Participant or Beneficiary, as applicable, may make a one-time irrevocable election under this Section 5 at any time after the
Participant’s termination of employment and before the completion of benefit payments to have the portion of the Participant’s Account that is
allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option reallocated to the Interest Option. A reallocation under this Section 5 shall take effect as of the
first Trading Day of the month following the month in which an executed reallocation election is delivered to the Company, provided an election by
a Participant or Beneficiary who is a Section 16 Person on the date the election is delivered to the Company shall be effective only if such election
satisfies on such date all the requirements of the exemption under Rule l6b-3 of the Exchange Act for a “discretionary transaction” or otherwise
would not result in a short swing profit recovery pursuant to Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act. In the event such election does not satisfy the
exemption pursuant to Rule l6b-3 under the Exchange Act for a “discretionary transaction” and if giving effect to the election would result in liability
under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the election shall not be given effect until the first Trading Day of the month following the month in which
the election could be given effect without creating liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, no election may be made under this Section 5 after September 15, 2004, and any such election made during September 2004 will be
valued and take effect as of September 30, 2004.

5. One-Time Reallocation Right.
(a) General Rule. Subject to Section 5(b) of this Article IV, a Participant or Beneficiary may during a Reallocation Election Period

execute and deliver to the Company an
 

30



election made on such form and in such manner as prescribed by the Committee to the Company to reallocate all or a portion (in five (5) percent
increments) of his or her Account Balance (other than Company Deferrals) which is then allocated to one investment option to the other investment
option. Any such election shall be irrevocable when received by the Company, and the reallocation which the Participant or Beneficiary elects shall
be effective as of the Reallocation Effective Date that immediately follows the end of the Reallocation Election Period in which his or her election
becomes irrevocable. Only one reallocation election may be made by a Participant or Beneficiary with the result that a reallocation made in one
Reallocation Election Period will preclude a reallocation election in a subsequent Reallocation Election Period.

(b) Exception. If a Participant or a Beneficiary is a Section 16 Person on any date in a Reallocation Election Period and delivers an
election to the Company in such period, such election shall have no force or effect under Section 6(a) unless such election complies with the
exemption under Rule l6b-3 of the Exchange Act for a “discretionary transaction”.

(c) Additional Credit. The Company shall credit to the Account of each Participant or Beneficiary that has Deferred Compensation
(other than Company Deferrals) credited to the Stock Investment Option as of September 30, 2004 an amount equal to the greater of (i) $24.95 per
Account Balance; or (ii) $0.10 for each whole share of Common Stock reflected in the Participant’s or Beneficiary’s Account Balance (exclusive of
Company Deferrals). Such amount shall be allocated and credited to the Interest Option as of September 30, 2004, after taking into account any
reallocation under Section 6(a) of this Article IV.

6. Reallocation Among Investment Options. Effective June 16, 2008, a Participant may reallocate the portion of his Account Balance
that is invested in the Interest Option and the Fund Investment Option to the Interest Option, the Company Stock Investment Option, and the
various investment funds in the Fund Investment Option, subject to the trading restrictions that apply to the transfer and reallocation of
investments under the terms of the Qualified Savings Plan, applied as if such Qualified Savings Plan restrictions also pertain to the Interest
Option; provided that a Participant may not at any time reallocate the portion of his Account Balance that is invested at any time in the Company
Stock Investment Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any election by a Section 16 Person to reallocate any portion of his Account Balance to
the Company Stock Investment Option shall only become effective if the election is made at least six months following the most recent election
with respect to any plan of the Corporation that involved the disposition of the Corporation’s equity securities pursuant to a “Discretionary
Transaction” (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 16b-3).
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ARTICLE V

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. General.
(a) Account Balance and Elections. The Company’s liability to pay benefits to a Participant or Beneficiary under this Deferral Plan shall

be measured by and shall in no event exceed the Participant’s Account Balance. Except as otherwise provided in this Deferral Plan (including but
not limited to Section 5 of Article III with respect to Company Deferrals), a Participant’s Account Balance shall be paid to him in accordance with
the Participant’s elections under this Article V.

(b) Cash Only Payment. With respect to benefit payments made on a Payment Date which is on or before September 30, 2004, all
such benefit payments shall be made in accordance with the terms of this Deferral Plan as in effect on such date in cash and, except as otherwise
provided under such terms, shall reduce allocations to the Interest Option and the Company Stock Investment Option in the same proportions that
the Participant’s Account Balance is allocated between those investment options at the end of the month preceding the date of distribution.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amount of Deferred Compensation shall be distributed to a Section 16 Person under this Deferral Plan which is
attributable to the Stock Investment Option unless such amount was allocated to the Participant’s Account in accordance with Section 1 of Article
4 at least six months prior to the date of distribution or no portion of such amount was allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option in the
six months prior to distribution.

(c) Cash and Stock Payments. With respect to benefit payments made after September 30, 2004, all such benefit payments shall be
made in cash to the extent a Participant’s Account is allocated to the Interest Option or Fund Investment Option or is attributable to Company
Deferrals and shall be made in whole shares of the Company’s Common Stock to the extent that a Participant’s Account is allocated to the
Company Stock Investment Option (other than with respect to Company Deferrals) and, except as otherwise provided, shall reduce allocations to
the Interest Option, the Fund Investment Option, and the Company Stock Investment Option in the same proportions that the Participant’s
Account Balance is allocated between those investment options at the end of the month preceding the date of distribution. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, no amount of Deferred Compensation shall be distributed to a Section 16 Person under this Deferral Plan unless such amount was
allocated to the Participant’s Account in accordance with Section 1 of Article 4 at least six months prior to the date of distribution At the
Company’s discretion a distribution of Common Stock may be made directly to a Participant or to a brokerage account opened in the name of the
Participant. When an Account is distributed in a lump sum or, if an Account is distributed in installments, when the final installment is made, cash
shall be distributed at that time in lieu of any fractional share of Common Stock. The cash distribution in lieu of fractional shares shall be based on
the published closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on the last Trading Day of the month preceding the date the distribution is scheduled
to be made.
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2. Election for Commencement of Payment. At the time a Participant first completes a Deferral Agreement, he or she shall elect from
among the following options governing the date on which the payment of benefits shall commence:

(a) Payment to begin on the Payment Date next following the date of the Participant’s termination of employment with the Company for
any reason.

(b) Payment to begin on the first Payment Date of the year next following the year in which the Participant terminates employment with
the Company for any reason.

(c) Payment to begin on the Payment Date next following the date on which the Participant has both terminated employment with the
Company for any reason and attained the age designated by the Participant in the Deferral Agreement.

Notwithstanding a Participant’s election, any payment of benefits in the form of shares of Common Stock that would otherwise commence within
six months of the date on which a Participant ceased to be Section 16 Person shall not be paid on that date but instead shall be paid on the first
Payment Date that is at least six months after the date on which that Participant ceased to be a Section 16 Person.

3. Election for Form of Payment. At the time a Participant first completes a Deferral Agreement, he or she shall elect the form of
payment of his or her Account Balance from among the following options:
 

 (A) A lump sum.
 

 

(B) Annual installment payments for a period of years designated by the Participant, which shall not exceed fifteen
(15) annual installments. The amount of each annual payment shall be determined by dividing the Participant’s Account
Balance at the end of the month prior to such payment by the number of installment payments then remaining in the
designated installment period. The installment period may be shortened, in the sole discretion of the Committee, if the
Committee at any time determines that the amount of the annual payments that would be made to the Participant during
the designated installment period would be too small to justify the maintenance of the Participant’s Account and the
processing of payments.

4. Prospective Change of Payment Elections.
(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article V, a Participant may make an election with respect to the commencement of

payment (from among the options set forth in Section 2(A), (B), or (C) above) and form of payment (from among the options set forth in
Section 3(A) or (B) above) of his or her entire Account Balance, or with respect to specific Award Years, by executing and delivering to the
Company an election form on or after October 1, 2002 in such form as prescribed by the Company. If a Participant has different payment options
in effect with respect to his or her Account Balance, the Company shall
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maintain sub-accounts for the Participant to determine the amounts subject to each payment election; however, no election or modification of an
election will be accepted if it would require the Company to maintain more than five sub-accounts within the Participant’s Account in order to make
payments in accordance with the Participant’s elections.

(b) In the event a Participant does not make a valid election with respect to the commencement of payment and form of benefit for an
Award Year commencing on or after October 1, 2002, the Participant will be deemed to have elected that payment of benefits with respect to that
Award Year be made in a lump sum on or about the Payment Date next following the date of the Participant’s termination of employment.

(c) A Participant’s election with respect to an Award Year (including a “deemed election” in accordance with the preceding paragraph)
shall remain in effect unless and until such election is modified by a subsequent election in accordance with the second preceding paragraph
above.

(d) To constitute a valid election by a Participant making a prospective change to a previous election, the prospective election must be
executed and delivered to the Company (i) at least six months before the date the first payment would be due under the Participant’s previous
election and (ii) in a different calendar year than the date the first payment would be due under the Participant’s previous election. In the event an
election fails to satisfy the provisions set forth in this paragraph, such election shall be void and, if such an election is void, payment shall be
made in accordance with the most recent election which was valid. In addition, no prospective election will be considered valid to the extent the
prospective election would (i) result in a payment being made within six months of the date of the prospective election or (ii) result in a payment
under the prospective election in the same calendar year as the date of the prospective election. In the event a prospective election fails to satisfy
the provisions set forth in the preceding sentence, the first payment under the prospective election will be delayed until the first Payment Date that
is both (i) at least six months after the date of the prospective election and (ii) in a calendar year after the date of the prospective election.

(e) A Participant may not make or modify an election with respect to commencement of payment or form of payment after the date a
Participant terminates employment.

5. Acceleration upon Early Termination. Notwithstanding a Participant’s payment elections under this Article V, if the Participant
terminates employment with the Company other than by reason of layoff, death or disability and before the Participant is eligible to commence
receiving retirement benefits under a pension plan maintained by the Company (or before the Participant has attained age 55 if the Participant does
not participate in such a pension plan), except as provided in Section 5 of Article III with respect to Company Deferrals, the Participant’s Account
Balance shall be distributed to him or her in a lump sum on or about the Payment Date next following the date of the Participant’s termination of
employment with the Company; provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5 would otherwise result
in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to any Section 16 Person
shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt short-
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swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

6. Acceleration Upon Conflict of Interest. Notwithstanding a Participant’s payment elections under this Article V, if following a
Participant’s termination of employment with the Company, the Participant takes a position (or accepts a position) with a governmental entity,
agency, or instrumentality and that employer has determined or indicated that the Participant’s continued participation in the Plan may constitute a
conflict of interest precluding the Participant from continuing in his position (or from accepting an offered position) with that employer or subjecting
the Participant to penalty, sanction, or otherwise limiting the Participant’s responsibilities for that employer, except as provided in Section 5 of
Article III with respect to Company Deferrals, then the Participant’s Account Balance shall be distributed to him or her in a lump sum as soon as
practical following the later of (i) the date on which the Participant commences employment with the government employer; or (ii) the date on which
it is determined or indicated that the conflict of interest may exist. This Section 6 shall be applicable only to the extent that such distribution
conforms to Code section 409A.

7. Death Benefits.
(a) General Rule. Upon the death of a Participant before a complete distribution of his or her Account Balance, the Account Balance

will be paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in accordance with the payment elections applicable to the Participant. If a Participant dies while
actively employed or otherwise before the payment of benefits has commenced, payments to the Beneficiary shall commence on the date
payments to the Participant would have commenced, taking account of the Participant’s termination of employment (by death or before) and, if
applicable, by postponing commencement until after the date the Participant would have attained the commencement age specified by the
Participant. Whether the Participant dies before or after the commencement of distributions, payments to the Beneficiary shall be made for the
period or remaining period elected by the Participant.

(b) Special Rule. Notwithstanding Section 7(a) of this Article V, in the event that a Participant dies before the Participant’s entire
Account Balance has been distributed, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may modify the timing of distributions from the Participant’s Account,
including the commencement date and number of distributions, if it concludes that such modification is necessary to relieve the financial burdens
of the Participant’s Beneficiary; provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of this Section 7(b) from the portion of
the Participant’s Account allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option would otherwise result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to such portion to any Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest
date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

8. Early Distributions in Special Circumstances. Notwithstanding a Participant’s payment elections under this Article V, a Participant or
Beneficiary may request an earlier distribution in the following limited circumstances (except as provided in Section 5 of Article III with respect to
Company Deferrals):
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(a) Hardship Distributions. A Participant may apply for a hardship distribution pursuant to this Section 8(a) on such form and in
such manner as the Committee shall prescribe and, subject to the last sentence of this Section 8(a) with respect to Section 16
Persons, the Committee shall have the power and discretion at any time to approve a payment to a Participant if the Committee
determines that the Participant is suffering from a serious financial emergency caused by circumstances beyond the Participant’s
control which would cause a hardship to the Participant unless such payment were made. Any such hardship payment will be in a lump
sum and will not exceed the lesser of (i) the amount necessary to satisfy the financial emergency (taking account of the income tax
liability associated with the distribution), or (ii) the Participant’s Account Balance; provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance
with the provisions of this Section 8(a) from the portion of the Participant’s Account allocated to the Company Stock Investment
Option would otherwise result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution
with respect to such portion to such Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would
not result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

(b) Withdrawal with Forfeiture. A Participant may elect on such form and in such manner as the Committee shall prescribe at any
time to withdraw ninety percent (90%) of the amount credited to the Participant’s Account. If such a withdrawal is made, the remaining
ten percent (10%) of the Participant’s Account shall be permanently forfeited, and the Participant will be prohibited from deferring any
amount under the Deferral Plan for the Award Year in which the withdrawal is received (or the first Award Year in which any portion of
the withdrawal is received); provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of this Section 8(b) from the
portion of the Participant’s Account allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option would otherwise result in a nonexempt short-
swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to such portion to any Section 16
Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt short-swing
transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

(c) Disability. If the Committee determines that a Participant has become permanently disabled before the Participant’s entire
Account Balance has been distributed, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may modify the timing of distributions from the
Participant’s Account, including the commencement date and number of distributions, if it concludes that such modification is
necessary to relieve the financial burdens of the Participant; provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions
of this Section 8(c) from the portion of the Participant’s Account allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option would otherwise
result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16 (b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to such
portion to any Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the
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distribution either would not result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b)
of the Exchange Act.

9. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Deferral Plan, except as provided in Section 5 of Article III with respect to

Company Deferrals, the Account Balance of each Participant shall be distributed in a single lump sum within fifteen (15) calendar days
following a “Change in Control.”

(b) For purposes of this Deferral Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:
(1) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or

more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of
directors of the Company.

(2) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other
entities that are not Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other
reorganization, less than 75% of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately
after the event be owned in the aggregate by the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis
of record ownership as of the date of determination of holders entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day
immediately prior to the event)

(3) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person
described in and satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1 (b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule
13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the combined
voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

(4) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or
other reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to
constitute at least a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors”
shall mean the persons who were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were
elected or nominated as their successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of
the Board
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members who were then Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated)
(5) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially

all of the Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.
(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 9(a), if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of Section 9(a) would result

in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act with respect to any Section 16 Person, then the date
of distribution to such Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a
nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

(d) This Section 9 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout
of Deferred Compensation in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

(e) The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 9 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in
Control, this Section 9 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five
years, and any defined term used in Section 9 shall not, for purposes of Section 9, be subject to cancellation or modification during the
five-year period.

10. Deductibility of Payments. In the event that the payment of benefits in accordance with the Participant’s elections under this
Article V would prevent the Company from claiming an income tax deduction with respect to any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall
have the right to modify the timing of distributions from the Participant’s Account as necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the
exercise of its discretion to adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in
such amounts as most closely approximate the Participant’s elections, consistent with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company.
The Committee shall have no authority to reduce a Participant’s Account Balance or to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s Account
Balance in the event that all or a portion thereof would not be deductible by the Company.

11. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the Committee determines in good faith, based on consultation
with counsel, that the Federal income tax treatment or legal status of the Plan has or may be adversely affected by a change in the Code, Title I of
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable law or by an administrative or judicial construction thereof, the
Committee may direct that the Accounts of affected Participants or of all Participants be distributed as soon as practicable after such
determination is made, to the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Committee to
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cure or mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in law or interpretation thereof.

12. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder, or with respect to
any Incentive Compensation or Long Term Incentive Award payment deferred hereunder or credit contributed by the Company under Article IV, any
Federal, state, or local income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish the recipient and the applicable government agency or
agencies with such reports, statements, or information as may be legally required.

ARTICLE VI

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Deferral Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the
future, and each Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial
interest in any specific assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Deferral Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to
assist the Company in meeting its obligations under this Deferral Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust described in Revenue
Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422, and the Company may direct that its obligations under this Deferral Plan be satisfied by payments out of such
trust. The assets of any such trust will remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Company. It is the Company’s intention that the
Deferral Plan be unfunded for Federal income tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Deferral Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported
transfer, assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Deferral Plan, or any interest therein shall
not be permitted or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary. Notwithstanding, any portion of a
Participant’s benefit under this Plan may be paid to a spouse or former spouse pursuant to the terms of a domestic relations order (as defined in
Code section 414(p)(1)(B)), provided that the form of payment designated in such order is one that is provided for under Section 3 of Article V of
this Deferral Plan.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Deferral Plan at any time
subject to any shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect
of reducing a Participant’s Account Balance or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his Account Balance.
Further, no amendment may alter the formula for crediting interest to Participants’ Accounts with respect to amounts for which deferral elections
have previously been made, unless the amended formula is not less favorable
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to Participants than that previously in effect, or unless each affected Participant consents to such change.

2. Termination. The Board reserves the right to terminate this Plan at any time and to pay all Participants their Account Balances in a
lump sum immediately following such termination or at such time thereafter as the Board may determine; provided, however, that if a distribution in
accordance with the provisions of this Section 2 would otherwise result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16(b) of the
Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to any Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution
either would not result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

3. Transfer of Liability. The Board reserves the right to transfer to another entity all of the obligations of Company with respect to a
Participant under this Plan if such entity agrees pursuant to a binding written agreement to assume all of the obligations of the Company under this
Plan with respect to such Participant.

ARTICLE VIII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Deferral Plan shall be administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board or such other committee of
the Board as may be designated by the Board and constituted so as to permit this Deferral Plan to comply with the disinterested administration
requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of the members of
the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written consent of the
Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee or its delegate shall have full authority to interpret the Plan, and
interpretations of the Plan by the Committee or its delegate shall be final and binding on all parties.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and
deliver those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Deferral Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose, except that the Committee may not delegate any authority
the delegation of which would cause this Deferral Plan to fail to satisfy the applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3. In making any determination or
in taking or not taking any action under this Deferral Plan, the Committee may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional
advisors to the Company. No member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision
specifically relating to his or her individual rights or benefits under the Deferral Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person
participating in any determination of any question under this Deferral Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof,
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shall have any liability to any party for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Deferral Plan or for the failure of the Deferral Plan or
any Participant’s rights under the Deferral Plan to achieve intended tax consequences, to qualify for exemption or relief under Section 16 of the
Exchange Act and the rules thereunder, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or its delegate may direct that such benefits be
paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such minor,
incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or its delegate) from all liability with respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Committee or its delegate may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or incapacity of
any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. If a claim under this Deferral Plan is denied by the Committee, the Committee or its delegate shall communicate
such denial and shall provide an opportunity to appeal such denial in a manner which the Committee deems appropriate under the circumstances,
which may include following the then applicable claims procedures under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. No Guarantee of Employment or Award. Neither this Deferral Plan, a Company Deferral nor a Participant’s Deferral Agreement,
either singly or collectively, shall in any way obligate the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does either
this Deferral Plan, a Company Deferral or a Deferral Agreement limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the
Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Deferral Plan, a Company Deferral or a Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, by their
terms or implications constitute an employment contract of any nature whatsoever between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this
Deferral Plan, a Company Deferral or a Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, by their terms or implications in any way obligate the
Company to award Incentive Compensation, grant any award under the Omnibus Plan or IPA Plan or make any Long Term Incentive Award
payment to any Eligible Employee for any Award Year, whether or not the Eligible Employee is a Participant in the Deferral Plan for that Award
Year, nor in any other way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Affect on Retirement Plans. Neither Incentive Compensation nor Long Term Incentive Award payments deferred under this Deferral
Plan shall be treated as
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compensation for purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan
maintained by the Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Notice. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at
6801 Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of the Vice President, Human Resources. Any written notice to a Participant
shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at his or her
last-known place of residence or business address.

4. Performance of Acts. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by
this Deferral Plan, the Company or the Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent
and the purpose of this Deferral Plan.

5. Employee Consent. By electing to become a Participant hereunder, each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have
accepted and consented to all of the terms of this Deferral Plan and all actions or decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with
regard to the Deferral Plan.

6. Terms Binding. The provisions of this Deferral Plan and the Deferral Agreements hereunder shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal
representatives.

7. Copy of Plan. A copy of this Deferral Plan shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under
the Deferral Plan at reasonable times at the offices of the Company.

8. State Law. The validity of this Deferral Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects
under and by the laws of the State of Maryland, except as to matters of Federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

9. Regulatory Requirements. This Deferral Plan and its operation, including but not limited to, the mechanics of deferral elections, the
reallocation of all or a portion of a Participant’s Account Balance, the issuance of securities, if any, or the payment of cash hereunder is subject to
compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws, rules and regulations (including but not limited to state and Federal insider trading,
registration, reporting and other securities laws) and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the
opinion of counsel for the Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.

10. Section 16 of Exchange Act. It is the intent of the Company that this Deferral Plan satisfy and be interpreted in a manner, that, in
the case of Participants who are or may be Section 16 Persons, satisfies any applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange
 

42



Act or other exemptive rules under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and will not subject Section 16 Persons to short-swing profit liability
thereunder. If any provision of this Deferral Plan would otherwise frustrate or conflict with the intent expressed in this Section 10, that provision to
the extent possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid such conflict. To the extent of any remaining irreconcilable conflict
with this intent, the provision shall be deemed disregarded. Similarly, any action or election by a Section 16 Person with respect to the Deferral
Plan to the extent possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid liability under Section 16 or, if this is not possible, to the
extent necessary to avoid liability under Section 16, shall be deemed ineffective. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Deferral Plan, the
provisions of this Deferral Plan may at any time be bifurcated by the Board or the Committee in any manner so that certain provisions of this
Deferral Plan are applicable solely to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Deferral Plan to the contrary, if a distribution
which would otherwise occur is prohibited or proposed to be delayed because of the provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or the provisions
of the Deferral Plan designed to ensure compliance with Section 16, the Section 16 Person involved may affirmatively elect in writing to have the
distribution occur in any event; provided that the Section 16 Person shall concurrently enter into arrangements satisfactory to the Committee in its
sole discretion for the satisfaction of any and all liabilities, costs and expenses arising from this election.

11. Securities Laws. This Deferral Plan, allocations to and from the Company Stock Investment Option and the issuance and delivery
of shares of Common Stock and/or other securities or property or the payment of cash under this Deferral Plan, are subject to compliance with all
applicable Federal and state laws, rules and regulations (including but not limited to state and Federal insider trading, registration, reporting and
other securities laws and Federal margin requirements) and to such approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the
opinion of counsel for the Company be necessary or advisable to comply with all legal requirements. Any securities delivered under this Deferral
Plan shall be subject to such restrictions (and the person acquiring such securities shall, if requested by the Company provide such evidence,
assurance and representations to the Company as to compliance with any thereof) as counsel to the Company may deem necessary or desirable
to assure compliance with all applicable legal requirements.

12. 1995 Awards. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Deferral Plan, each Eligible Employee who is a Section 16 Person and
has entered into a Deferral Agreement prior to the initial distribution of a prospectus relating to this Deferral Plan shall be entitled, during a ten-
business-day period following the initial distribution of that prospectus, to make an irrevocable election to (i) receive a distribution of all or any
portion of his or her Account Balance attributable to Deferred Compensation for the 1995 Award Year during the seventh month following the month
of the election, or (ii) reallocate all or any part of his or her Account Balance attributable to Deferred Compensation for the 1995 Award Year to a
different investment option as of the end of the sixth month following the month of the election.

13. Limits on Accounts. At no time shall the aggregate Account Balances of all Participants to the extent allocated to the Company
Stock Investment Option exceed an amount equal to the then fair market value of 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, nor shall
the cumulative amount of Incentive Compensation and Long Term Incentive
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Award payments deferred under this Deferral Plan by all Eligible Employees for all Award Years exceed $250,000,000.
14. Electronic Notice and Signatures. Whenever a signature notice or delivery of a document is required or appropriate under this

Deferral Plan, signature, notice or delivery may be accomplished by paper or written format or, to the extent authorized by the Committee, by
electronic means. In the event the Committee authorizes electronic means for the signature, notice or delivery of a document under this Deferral
Plan, the electronic record or confirmation of that signature, notice or delivery maintained by or on behalf of the Committee shall for purposes of
this Deferral Plan be treated as if it was a written signature or notice and was delivered in the manner provided herein for a written document.

ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE AND SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL

This Deferral Plan was adopted by the Board on July 27, 1995 and became effective upon adoption to awards of Incentive
Compensation for the Company’s fiscal year ending December 31, 1995 and subsequent fiscal years; provided, however, that with respect to
Section 16 Persons, the availability of the Company Stock Investment Option is conditioned upon the approval of this Deferral Plan by the
stockholders of Lockheed Martin Corporation. In the event that this Deferral Plan is not approved by the stockholders, then Section 16 Persons
shall not be entitled to have Deferred Compensation allocated to the Company Stock Investment Option; any prior elections by Section 16
Persons to have allocations made to the Company Stock Investment Option shall retroactively be deemed ineffective, and the Account Balances
of those Section 16 Persons shall be restated as if all of their Deferred Compensation had been allocated to the Interest Option at all times.
Subsequent amendments to the Deferral Plan are effective as of the date stated in the amendment or the adopting resolution.

This Deferral Plan has been amended and restated effective as of the date stated on the first page herein.
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Exhibit 10.2

LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION
SUPPLEMENTAL SAVINGS PLAN

(Amended and Restated as of June 26, 2008)

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan (the “Supplemental Savings Plan”) are to provide certain key
management employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) the opportunity to defer compensation that cannot be
contributed under the Lockheed Martin Salaried Corporation Savings Plan (the “Qualified Savings Plan”) because of the limitations of Code section
401(a)(17), 402(g), or 415(c)(1)(A), and to provide those employees with matching credits equal to the matching contributions that would have been
made by the Company on their behalf under the Qualified Savings Plan if the amounts deferred had been contributed to the Qualified Savings
Plan.

The Plan was amended and restated, effective January 1, 2005, in order to comply with the requirements of Code section 409A. The 2005
amendment and restatement of the Plan applied only to the portion of a Participant’s Account Balance (and any earnings attributable to those
amounts) that is deferred or becomes vested on or after January 1, 2005. The portion of a Participant’s Account Balance that was deferred and
vested prior to January 1, 2005 (and any earnings attributable to those amounts) shall be governed by the terms of the Plan in effect on
December 31, 2004, which is attached hereto as Appendix A.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings hereinafter indicated:
1. ACCOUNT — The bookkeeping account maintained by the Company for each Participant which is credited with the Participant’s Deferred

Compensation, Matching Credits, and earnings (or losses) attributable to the Investment Options selected by the Participant, and which is debited
to reflect distributions. The portions of a Participant’s Account allocated to different Investment Options will be accounted for separately.

2. ACCOUNT BALANCE — The total amount credited to a Participant’s Account at any time, including the portions of the Account allocated
to each Investment Option.



3. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons designated by the Participant as his or her beneficiary under the Qualified Savings Plan.

4. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

5. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

6. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article IX.

7. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries.

8. COMPANY STOCK INVESTMENT OPTION — The Investment Option under which the Participant’s Account is credited as if invested
under the investment option in the Qualified Savings Plan for the common stock of the Company.

9. COMPENSATION — An employee’s base salary from the Company, as defined in the Qualified Savings Plan.

10. DEFERRAL AGREEMENT — The written agreement executed by an Eligible Employee on the form provided by the Company under
which the Eligible Employee elects to defer Compensation for a Year.

11. DEFERRED COMPENSATION — The amount of Compensation deferred and credited to a Participant’s Account under the Supplemental
Savings Plan for a Year.

12. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — A salaried employee who is eligible to participate in the Qualified Savings Plan as of the thirtieth (30th) day
preceding the last day on which a Deferral Agreement may be made for a Year, and whose annual rate of Compensation equals or exceeds
$150,000 as of November 1 of the Year preceding the Year for which a Deferral Agreement is to take effect, and who satisfies such additional
requirements for participation in this Supplemental Savings Plan as the Committee may from time to time establish. In the exercise of its authority
under this provision, the Committee shall limit participation in the Plan to employees whom the Committee believes to be a select group of
management or highly compensated employees within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended.

13. EXCHANGE ACT — The Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

14. INVESTMENT OPTION — A measure of investment return pursuant to which Deferred Compensation credited to a Participant’s Account
shall be further credited with earnings (or losses). The Investment Options available under this Supplemental Savings Plan shall correspond to the
investment options available under the Qualified Savings Plan (other than the ESOP Fund or the Self-Managed Account, which are not available
under this Plan).
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15. MATCHING CREDIT — Any amount credited to a Participant’s Account under Article IV.

16. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee for whom Compensation has been deferred under this Supplemental Savings Plan; the term
shall include a former employee whose Account Balance has not been fully distributed.

17. QUALIFIED SAVINGS PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Salaried Savings Plan or any successor plan.

18. SECTION 16 PERSON — A Participant who at the relevant time is subject to the reporting and short-swing liability provisions of
Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

19. SUBSIDIARY — As to any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50% or more
of the voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporation), is owned or controlled (directly or indirectly) by that
entity, or by one or more of the Subsidiaries of that entity, or by a combination thereof.

20. SUPPLEMENTAL SAVINGS PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan, which was originally adopted by
the Board of Directors of Lockheed Corporation, effective January 1, 1984, as the Lockheed Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan, and which
was amended and restated (and re-named) pursuant to action of the Board on July 25, 1996, and as further amended from time to time, including
this restatement, effective January 1, 2005.

21. YEAR — The calendar year.
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ARTICLE III

ELECTION OF DEFERRED AMOUNT

1. Timing of Deferral Elections. An Eligible Employee may elect to defer Compensation for a Year by executing and delivering to the
Company a Deferral Agreement no later than November 30 of the preceding Year. An Eligible Employee’s Deferral Agreement shall be irrevocable
when delivered to the Company and shall remain irrevocably in effect for all succeeding Years, except that the Deferral Agreement may be
modified or revoked with respect to any succeeding year by the Eligible Employee’s execution and delivery to the Company of a new or modified
Deferral Agreement on or before November 30 of such succeeding Year.

2. Amount of Deferred Compensation. Unless an Eligible Employee elects to make no deferral for a Year, the Eligible Employee’s Deferred
Compensation for a Year shall equal (i) his or her Compensation from the time when his or her Deferral Agreement takes effect during the Year (as
elected under Section 3 of this Article III) until the last day of the Year, multiplied by (ii) the percentage of Compensation that the Eligible
Employee has elected to contribute to the Qualified Savings Plan (whether in the form of pre-tax salary reduction contributions, after-tax
contributions, or a combination thereof) for that Year. An Eligible Employee who has elected to make a deferral for a Year under this Supplemental
Savings Plan shall be precluded from modifying his or her rate of contributions to the Qualified Savings Plan for that Year after the date on which
his or her Deferral Agreement for that Year (including any continuing Deferral Agreement) has become irrevocable under Section 1 of this Article
III.

3. Time when Deferral Agreement Takes Effect. The Eligible Employee may elect to have his or her Deferral Agreement take effect after the
occurrence of either of the following triggering events:

(a) the Eligible Employee’s pre-tax salary reduction contributions and/or Roth 401(k) contributions, if applicable, under the Qualified
Savings Plan for the Year equal the applicable limit under Code section 402(g), or

(b) the Compensation paid to the Eligible Employee for the Year equals the applicable compensation limit under Code section 401(a)
(17), or, if earlier, the annual additions (within the meaning of Code section 415(c)(2)) of the Eligible Employee for the Year under the
Qualified Savings Plan and any other plan maintained by the Company equal the applicable limit under Code section 415(c)(1)(A).

An Eligible Employee’s Deferral Agreement shall first take effect and apply to that portion of Compensation earned by the Eligible Employee for a
particular payroll period that exceeds the amount at which, or with respect to which, the triggering event occurs.
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ARTICLE IV

MATCHING CREDITS

The Company shall credit to the Account of a Participant as Matching Credits the same percentage of the Participant’s Deferred
Compensation as it would have contributed as matching contributions to the Qualified Savings Plan if the amount of the Participant’s Deferred
Compensation had been contributed as pre-tax salary reduction or after-tax contributions to the Qualified Savings Plan.

ARTICLE V

CREDITING OF ACCOUNTS

1. Crediting of Deferred Compensation. Deferred Compensation shall be credited to a Participant’s Account as of the day on which such
amount would have been credited to the Participant’s account under the Qualified Savings Plan if the Participant’s Deferred Compensation had
been contributed as pre-tax salary reduction or after-tax contributions to the Qualified Savings Plan.

2. Crediting of Matching Credits. Matching Credits shall be credited to a Participant’s Account as of the day on which the Deferred
Compensation to which they relate are credited under Section 1.

3. Crediting of Earnings. Earnings shall be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the Investment Option or Options to which his or her
Account has been allocated, beginning with the day as of which any amounts (or any reallocation of amounts) are credited to the Participant’s
Account. Any amount distributed from a Participant’s Account shall be credited with earnings through the day on which the distribution is
processed. The manner in which earnings are credited under each of the Investment Options shall be determined in the same manner as under the
Qualified Savings Plan.

4. Selection of Investment Options. A Participant may elect to allocate his or her Account among the Investment Options available under the
Qualified Savings Plan (other than the options designated as the ESOP Fund or the Self Managed Account). The procedures for directing
allocation and reallocations among the Investment Options in the Supplemental Savings Plan (including the procedures relating to timing,
frequency, amount, and the investment of Matching Credits) shall be the same as the procedures for making allocations under the Qualified
Savings Plan. In the event a Participant does not make an investment allocation for the Supplemental Savings Plan, his elections will be deemed
to be the elections made by the Participant in the Qualified Savings Plan (except that an election for the ESOP Fund or the Self Managed Account
shall be disregarded).
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ARTICLE VI

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. General. The Company’s liability to pay benefits to a Participant or Beneficiary under this Supplemental Savings Plan shall be measured
by and shall in no event exceed the Participant’s Account Balance, which shall be fully vested and nonforfeitable at all times. All benefit payments
shall be made in cash and, except as otherwise provided, shall reduce allocations to the Investment Options in the same proportions that the
Participant’s Account Balance is allocated among those Investment Options.

2. Commencement of Payment. The payment of benefits to a Participant shall commence as soon as administratively feasible following the
Participant’s termination of employment with the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, benefits paid under this Plan to a Participant who is
reasonably determined by the Company to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code section 409A(2)(B)(i), shall not commence before
six (6) months following the month in which the Participant terminates employment.

3. Form of Payment. At the time an Eligible Employee first completes a Deferral Agreement, he or she shall irrevocably elect the form of
payment of his or her Account Balance from among the following options:
 

 (a) A lump sum.
 

 

(b) Annual payments, as designated by the Participant (i) for a period of 5, 10, 15, or 20 years for distributions commencing prior to
January 1, 2008, or (ii) for a period not to exceed 20 years (or 20 annual payments) for distributions commencing on or after
January 1, 2008. The amount of each annual payment shall be determined by dividing the Participant’s Account Balance on the
date such payment is processed by the number of years remaining in the designated installment period. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if the Account Balance of a Participant who is entitled to begin payment equals $10,000 or less, the Participant’s
Account Balance shall be paid in a single lump sum payment in full discharge of all liabilities with respect to such benefits.

4. Prospective Change of Payment Election. A Participant may modify his or her payment election at the time the Participant enters into a
Deferral Agreement for a Year. Any such modification shall apply to all amounts credited to the Participant’s Account under this Supplemental
Savings Plan. No such modification will be effective if made within 12 months of the date of the Participant’s termination of employment, and the
first payment must be delayed by at least 60 months from the date of the Participant’s termination of employment.
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5. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a Participant before a complete distribution of his or her Account Balance, the Account Balance will be
paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in an immediate lump sum.

6. Acceleration Upon Conflict of Interest. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article IX, notwithstanding a Participant’s form of payment
election under Section 3 of this Article VI, if following a Participant’s termination of employment with the Company, the Participant takes a position
(or accepts a position) with a governmental entity, agency, or instrumentality and that employer has determined or indicated that the Participant’s
continued participation in the Plan may constitute a conflict of interest precluding the Participant from continuing in his position (or from accepting
an offered position) with that employer or subjecting the Participant to penalty, sanction, or otherwise limiting the Participant’s responsibilities for
that employer, then the Participant’s Account Balance shall be distributed to him or her in a lump sum as soon as practical following the later of
(i) the date on which the Participant commences employment with the government employer; or (ii) the date on which it is determined that the
conflict of interest may exist.

7. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Supplemental Savings Plan, the Account Balance of each Participant shall be

distributed in a single lump sum within fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”
(b) For purposes of this Supplemental Savings Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following

events:
(1) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of

the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the
Company.

(2) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that
are not Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75%
of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate
by the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination
of holders entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).

(3) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in
and satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as
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defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

(4) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

(5) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no distribution shall be made solely on account of a Change in Control and prior to the benefit

commencement date specified in Section 2 of Article V unless the Change in Control is an event qualifying for a distribution of deferred
compensation under Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(v) of the Code.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7(a), if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(a) would result in a
nonexempt transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act with respect to any Section 16 Person, then the date of distribution to such
Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt transaction or
would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

(d) This Section 7 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout of an
Account Balance in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

(e) The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 7 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control,
this Section 7 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any
defined term used in Section 7 shall not, for purposes of Section 7, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period.
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8. Deductibility of Payments. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article IX, in the event that the payment of benefits in accordance
with the Participant’s election under Section 3 of this Article VI would prevent the Company from claiming an income tax deduction with respect to
any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the right to modify the timing of distributions from the Participant’s Account as
necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee
shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most closely approximate the Participant’s election, consistent
with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to reduce a Participant’s Account Balance or
to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s Account Balance in the event that all or a portion thereof would not be deductible by the
Company.

9. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article IX, if the Committee
determines in good faith, based on consultation with counsel, that the federal income tax treatment or legal status of this Supplemental Savings
Plan has or may be adversely affected by a change in the Internal Revenue Code, Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, or other applicable law or by an administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee may direct that the Accounts of affected
Participants or of all Participants be distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to the extent deemed necessary or
advisable by the Committee to cure or mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in law or interpretation thereof.

10. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder, or with respect to any
amounts credited to a Participant’s Account hereunder, any Federal, state, or local income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish
the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports, statements, or information as may be legally required. However,
the amount of Deferred Compensation or Matching Credits to be credited to a Participant’s Account will not be reduced or adjusted by the amount
of any tax that the Company is required to withhold with respect thereto.

11. 409A Transition Period Elections. Notwithstanding the above, for periods prior to January 1, 2009, (or such later date as may be provided
by the Internal Revenue Service in guidance of general applicability), the Senior Vice President, Human Resources may provide alternative rules
for elections with respect to the commencement of payment and form of payment that conform to the rules provided in Notice 2005-1, and
subsequent Internal Revenue Service guidance providing transition relief under Code section 409A.
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ARTICLE VII

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Supplemental Savings Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in
the future, and each Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial
interest in any specific assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Supplemental Savings Plan. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its obligations under this Supplemental Savings Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or
trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422 (generally known as a “rabbi trust”), and the Company may direct that its
obligations under this Supplemental Savings Plan be satisfied by payments out of such trust or trusts. It is the Company’s intention that this
Supplemental Savings Plan be unfunded for federal income tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary.

ARTICLE VIII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Supplemental Savings Plan at any
time subject to any shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the
effect of reducing a Participant’s Account Balance or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his or her
Account Balance.

2. Termination. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article IX, the Board reserves the right to terminate this Supplemental Savings Plan
at any time and to pay all Participants their Account Balances in a lump sum immediately following such termination or at such time thereafter as
the Board may determine; provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2 would otherwise result in a
nonexempt transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to any Section 16 Person shall be delayed
until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.
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ARTICLE IX

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Supplemental Savings Plan shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee
of the Board or such other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board and constituted so as to permit this Supplemental Savings
Plan to comply with the requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A
majority of the members of the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous
written consent of the Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and the Claims Administrator shall have full authority
to interpret the Plan, and interpretations of the Plan by the Committee or the Claims Administrator shall be final and binding on all parties.
Notwithstanding anything contained in the Plan or in any document issued under the Plan, it is intended that the Plan will at all times conform to
the requirements of Code section 409A and any regulations or other guidance issued thereunder, and that the provisions of the Plan will be
interpreted to meet such requirements. If any provision of the Plan is determined not to conform to such requirements, the Plan shall be interpreted
to omit such offending provision.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Supplemental Savings Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose, except that the Committee may not delegate
any authority the delegation of which would cause this Supplemental Savings Plan to fail to satisfy the applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3. In
making any determination or in taking or not taking any action under this Supplemental Savings Plan, the Committee or its delegate may obtain
and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Company. No member of the Committee or officer of the Company who
is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision specifically relating to his or her individual rights or benefits under the Supplemental
Savings Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this Supplemental Savings Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have
any liability to any party for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Supplemental Savings Plan or for the failure of the Supplemental
Savings Plan or any Participant’s rights under the Supplemental Savings Plan to achieve intended tax consequences, to qualify for exemption or
relief under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the rules thereunder, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the
part of the Company.
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4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may direct that such
benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such
minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or the Claims Administrator) from all liability with respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Committee or the Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or
incapacity of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is wholly or partially denied by Claims Administrator are as follows:
 

 

(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a manner
calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to pertinent Plan
provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for the claimant to
perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the steps to be taken if the
claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of
ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not more than an additional 90 days if
special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall give the claimant, before the end of the
initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special circumstances and the date by which the Claims
Administrator expects to render a decision.

 

 (b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice described in
paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.
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(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments, documents, records
and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be provided, upon
request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information “relevant” to claimant’s
claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in making the benefit determination;
(2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether such
document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or (3) demonstrates compliance with
administrative processes and safeguards required under federal law.

 

 

(d) The Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information submitted by the claimant
relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination. The
Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60 days after receipt by the
Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120 days after such receipt if special
circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing prior to the expiration of the original 60 day
period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for the extension and the date by which it is expected
that a decision will be reached. The decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the
claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the
decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and
copies of all documents, records, and other information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional
material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is
necessary; (5) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such
procedures, if any; and (6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse
benefit determination on review.
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(e) If in the event that the reviewing committee must make a determination of disability in order to decide a claim, the reviewing committee
shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor Regulation section 2560.503-1(d).
The reviewing committee shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days) after the claimant’s request for
review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 
(f) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Savings Plan Administrative Committee. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be the
Committee.

ARTICLE X

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. Neither this Supplemental Savings Plan nor a Participant’s Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, shall in any way obligate
the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does either this Supplemental Savings Plan or a Deferral
Agreement limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan or a
Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, by their terms or implications constitute an employment contract of any nature whatsoever
between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this Plan or a Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, by their terms or
implications in any way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Any amount credited to a Participant’s Account under this Supplemental Savings Plan shall not be treated as compensation for
purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the
Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of the Senior Vice President, Human Resources. Any written notice to a Participant
shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at his or her
place of residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company
or the Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this
Supplemental Savings Plan.
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5. By electing to become a Participant hereunder, each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and
consented to all the terms of this Supplemental Savings Plan and all actions or decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with
regard to the Supplemental Savings Plan.

6. The provisions of this Supplemental Savings Plan and the Deferral Agreements hereunder shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal
representatives.

7. A copy of this Supplemental Savings Plan shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under
the Plan at reasonable times at the offices of the Company.

8. The validity of this Supplemental Savings Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all
respects under and by the laws of the State of Maryland, except as to matters of federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

9. This Supplemental Savings Plan and its operation, including but not limited to, the mechanics of deferral elections, the issuance of
securities, if any, or the payment of cash hereunder is subject to compliance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations
(including but not limited to state and federal insider trading, registration, reporting and other securities laws) and such other approvals by any
listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.

10. This Supplemental Savings Plan is intended to constitute an “excess benefit plan” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3(b)(2) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and it shall be construed and applied accordingly. It is the intent of the Company that this Supplemental Savings
Plan satisfy and be interpreted in a manner, that, in the case of Participants who are or may be Section 16 Persons, satisfies any applicable
requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or other exemptive rules under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and will not subject Section 16
Persons to short-swing profit liability thereunder. If any provision of this Supplemental Savings Plan would otherwise frustrate or conflict with the
intent expressed in this Section 10, that provision to the extent possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid such conflict. To
the extent of any remaining irreconcilable conflict with this intent, the provision shall be deemed disregarded. Similarly, any action or election by a
Section 16 Person with respect to the Supplemental Savings Plan to the extent possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid
liability under Section 16 or, if this is not possible, to the extent necessary to avoid liability under Section 16, shall be deemed ineffective.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Supplemental Savings Plan, the provisions of this Supplemental
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Savings Plan may at any time be bifurcated by the Board or the Committee in any manner so that certain provisions of this Supplemental Savings
Plan are applicable solely to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Supplemental Savings Plan to the contrary, if a
distribution which would otherwise occur is prohibited or proposed to be delayed because of the provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or
the provisions of the Supplemental Savings Plan designed to ensure compliance with Section 16, the Section 16 Person involved may
affirmatively elect in writing to have the distribution occur in any event; provided that the Section 16 Person shall concurrently enter into
arrangements satisfactory to the Committee in its sole discretion for the satisfaction of any and all liabilities, costs and expenses arising from this
election.

ARTICLE XI

EFFECTIVE DATE

This amendment and restatement of the Supplemental Savings Plan shall generally become effective on June 26, 2008. Subsequent
amendments to the Supplemental Savings Plan are effective as of the date stated in the amendment or the adopting resolution.

APPENDIX A

This Appendix A shall apply only to the portion of a Participant’s Account Balance (and any earnings attributable to those amounts) that was
deferred and vested prior to January 1, 2005 This Appendix A shall not apply to the portion of a Participant’s Account Balance that is deferred or
becomes vested on or after January 1, 2005 (and any earnings attributable to those amounts).

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan (the “Supplemental Savings Plan”) are to provide certain key
management employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) the opportunity to defer compensation that cannot be
contributed under the Lockheed Martin Salaried Savings Program (the “Qualified Savings Plan”) because of the limitations of Code section 401(a)
(17), 402(g), or 415(c)(1)(A), and to provide those employees with matching credits equal to the matching contributions that would have been made
by the Company on their behalf under the Qualified Savings Plan if the amounts deferred had been contributed to the Qualified Savings Plan.
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ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings hereinafter indicated:
1. ACCOUNT — The bookkeeping account maintained by the Company for each Participant which is credited with the Participant’s Deferred

Compensation, Matching Credits, and earnings (or losses) attributable to the Investment Options selected by the Participant, and which is debited
to reflect distributions. The portions of a Participant’s Account allocated to different Investment Options will be accounted for separately.

2. ACCOUNT BALANCE — The total amount credited to a Participant’s Account at any time, including the portions of the Account allocated
to each Investment Option.

3. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons designated by the Participant as his or her beneficiary under the Qualified Savings Plan.

4. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

5. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

6. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article IX.

7. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries.

8. COMPANY STOCK INVESTMENT OPTION — The Investment Option under which the Participant’s Account is credited as if invested
under the investment option in the Qualified Savings Plan for the common stock of the Company.

9. COMPENSATION — An employee’s base salary from the Company, as defined in the Qualified Savings Plan.

10. DEFERRAL AGREEMENT — The written agreement executed by an Eligible Employee on the form provided by the Company under
which the Eligible Employee elects to defer Compensation for a Year.

11. DEFERRED COMPENSATION — The amount of Compensation deferred and credited to a Participant’s Account under the Supplemental
Savings Plan for a Year.
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12. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — A salaried employee who is eligible to participate in the Qualified Savings Plan as of the thirtieth (30th) day
preceding the last day on which a Deferral Agreement may be made for a Year, and whose annual rate of Compensation equals or exceeds
$150,000 as of November 1 of the Year preceding the Year for which a Deferral Agreement is to take effect, and who satisfies such additional
requirements for participation in this Supplemental Savings Plan as the Committee may from time to time establish. In the exercise of its authority
under this provision, the Committee shall limit participation in the Plan to employees whom the Committee believes to be a select group of
management or highly compensated employees within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended.

13. EXCHANGE ACT — The Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

14. INVESTMENT OPTION — A measure of investment return pursuant to which Deferred Compensation credited to a Participant’s Account
shall be further credited with earnings (or losses). The Investment Options available under this Supplemental Savings Plan shall correspond to the
investment options available under the Qualified Savings Plan.

15. MATCHING CREDIT — Any amount credited to a Participant’s Account under Article IV.

16. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee for whom Compensation has been deferred under this Supplemental Savings Plan; the term
shall include a former employee whose Account Balance has not been fully distributed.

17. QUALIFIED SAVINGS PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Salaried Savings Plan or any successor plan.

18. SECTION 16 PERSON — A Participant who at the relevant time is subject to the reporting and short-swing liability provisions of
Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

19. SUPPLEMENTAL SAVINGS PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan, which was originally adopted by
the Board of Directors of Lockheed Corporation, effective January 1, 1984, as the Lockheed Corporation Supplemental Savings Plan, and which
has been amended and restated (and re-named) pursuant to action of the Board on July 25, 1996, and as further amended from time to time.

20. YEAR — The calendar year.
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ARTICLE III

ELECTION OF DEFERRED AMOUNT

1. Timing of Deferral Elections. An Eligible Employee may elect to defer Compensation for a Year by executing and delivering to the
Company a Deferral Agreement no later than November 30 of the preceding Year. An Eligible Employee’s Deferral Agreement shall be irrevocable
when delivered to the Company and shall remain irrevocably in effect for all succeeding Years, except that the Deferral Agreement may be
modified or revoked with respect to any succeeding year by the Eligible Employee’s execution and delivery to the Company of a new or modified
Deferral Agreement on or before November 30 of such succeeding Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, deferral elections for the 1997 Year may
be made as late as February 28, 1997, in recognition of the fact that the right to enter into Deferral Agreements for the 1997 Year has generally
been suspended pending the distribution of prospectuses for the Plan, as amended and restated; provided, however, no Deferral Agreement for the
1997 Year shall take effect, or apply to Compensation earned, before the date that the Eligible Employee’s Deferral Agreement is executed and
delivered to the Company.

2. Amount of Deferred Compensation. Unless an Eligible Employee elects to make no deferral for a Year, the Eligible Employee’s Deferred
Compensation for a Year shall equal (i) his or her Compensation from the time when his or her Deferral Agreement takes effect during the Year (as
elected under Section 3 of this Article III) until the last day of the Year, multiplied by (ii) the percentage of Compensation that the Eligible
Employee has elected to contribute to the Qualified Savings Plan (whether in the form of pre-tax salary reduction contributions, after-tax
contributions, or a combination thereof) for that Year. An Eligible Employee who has elected to make a deferral for a Year under this Supplemental
Savings Plan shall be precluded from modifying his or her rate of contributions to the Qualified Savings Plan for that Year after the date on which
his or her Deferral Agreement for that Year (including any continuing Deferral Agreement) has become irrevocable under Section 1 of this Article
III.

3. Time when Deferral Agreement Takes Effect. The Eligible Employee may elect to have his or her Deferral Agreement take effect after the
occurrence of either of the following triggering events:

(a) the Eligible Employee’s pre-tax salary reduction contributions under the Qualified Savings Plan for the Year equal the applicable
limit under Code section 402(g), or

(b) the Compensation paid to the Eligible Employee for the Year equals the applicable compensation limit under Code section 401(a)
(17), or, if earlier, the annual additions (within the meaning of Code section 415(c)(2)) of the Eligible Employee for the Year under the
Qualified Savings Plan and any other plan maintained by the Company equal the applicable limit under Code section 415(c)(1)(A).
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An Eligible Employee’s Deferral Agreement shall first take effect and apply to that portion of Compensation earned by the Eligible Employee for a
particular payroll period that exceeds the amount at which, or with respect to which, the triggering event occurs.

ARTICLE IV

MATCHING CREDITS

The Company shall credit to the Account of a Participant as Matching Credits the same percentage of the Participant’s Deferred
Compensation as it would have contributed as matching contributions to the Qualified Savings Plan if the amount of the Participant’s Deferred
Compensation had been contributed as pre-tax salary reduction or after-tax contributions to the Qualified Savings Plan.

ARTICLE V

CREDITING OF ACCOUNTS

1. Crediting of Deferred Compensation. Deferred Compensation shall be credited to a Participant’s Account as of the day on which such
amount would have been credited to the Participant’s account under the Qualified Savings Plan if the Participant’s Deferred Compensation had
been contributed as pre-tax salary reduction or after-tax contributions to the Qualified Savings Plan.

2. Crediting of Matching Credits. Matching Credits shall be credited to a Participant’s Account as of the day on which the Deferred
Compensation to which they relate are credited under Section 1.

3. Crediting of Earnings. Earnings shall be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the Investment Option or Options to which his or her
Account has been allocated, beginning with the day as of which any amounts (or any reallocation of amounts) are credited to the Participant’s
Account. Any amount distributed from a Participant’s Account shall be credited with earnings through the day on which the distribution is
processed. The manner in which earnings are credited under each of the Investment Options shall be determined in the same manner as under the
Qualified Savings Plan.

4. Selection of Investment Options. The amounts credited to a Participant’s Account under this Supplemental Savings Plan shall be
allocated among the Investment Options in the same percentages as the Participant’s account under the Qualified Savings Plan is allocated
among those Investment Options. In the event that an Account is maintained for a Participant under this Supplemental Savings Plan at a time
when an account is no longer maintained for the Participant under the Qualified Savings Plan, the Participant may allocate and reallocate his or
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her Account Balance among the Investment Options in accordance with the procedures and limitations on allocations and reallocations under the
Qualified Savings Plan.

ARTICLE VI

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. General. The Company’s liability to pay benefits to a Participant or Beneficiary under this Supplemental Savings Plan shall be measured
by and shall in no event exceed the Participant’s Account Balance, which shall be fully vested and nonforfeitable at all times. All benefit payments
shall be made in cash and, except as otherwise provided, shall reduce allocations to the Investment Options in the same proportions that the
Participant’s Account Balance is allocated among those Investment Options.

2. Commencement of Payment. The payment of benefits to a Participant shall commence as soon as administratively feasible following the
Participant’s termination of employment with the Company and his or her entitlement to commence receiving benefits under the Qualified Savings
Plan.

3. Form of Payment. At the time an Eligible Employee first completes a Deferral Agreement, he or she shall irrevocably elect the form of
payment of his or her Account Balance from among the following options:
 

 (a) A lump sum.
 

 

(b) Annual payments for a period of 5, 10, 15, or 20 years, as designated by the Participant. The amount of each annual payment
shall be determined by dividing the Participant’s Account Balance on the date such payment is processed by the number of
years remaining in the designated installment period. The installment period may be shortened, in the sole discretion of the
Committee, if the Committee at any time determines that the amount of the annual payments that would be made to the
Participant during the designated installment period would be too small to justify the maintenance of the Participant’s Account
and the processing of payments.

4. Prospective Change of Payment Election. The Committee may, in its discretion, permit a Participant to modify his or her payment election
under Section 3 of this Article VI at the time the Participant enters into a Deferral Agreement for a Year; if accepted, any such modification shall
apply to all amounts credited to the Participant’s Account under this Supplemental Savings Plan. No such modification will be effective if made
within one year of the date of the Participant’s termination of employment.
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5. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a Participant before a complete distribution of his or her Account Balance, the Account Balance will be
paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in an immediate lump sum.

6. Acceleration Upon Conflict of Interest. Notwithstanding a Participant’s form of payment election under Section 3 of this Article VI, if
following a Participant’s termination of employment with the Company, the Participant takes a position (or accepts a position) with a governmental
entity, agency, or instrumentality and that employer has determined or indicated that the Participant’s continued participation in the Plan may
constitute a conflict of interest precluding the Participant from continuing in his position (or from accepting an offered position) with that employer
or subjecting the Participant to penalty, sanction, or otherwise limiting the Participant’s responsibilities for that employer, then the Participant’s
Account Balance shall be distributed to him or her in a lump sum as soon as practical following the later of (i) the date on which the Participant
commences employment with the government employer; or (ii) the date on which it is determined that the conflict of interest may exist.

7. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Supplemental Savings Plan, the Account Balance of each Participant shall be

distributed in a single lump sum within fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”
(b) For purposes of this Supplemental Savings Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following

events:
(1) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of

the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the
Company.

(2) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that
are not Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75%
of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate
by the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination
of holders entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).

(3) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in
and satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities
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of the Company representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities entitled to vote
in the election of directors of the Company.

(4) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

(5) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.
(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7(a), if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(a) would result in a

nonexempt transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act with respect to any Section 16 Person, then the date of distribution to such
Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt transaction or
would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

(d) This Section 7 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout of an
Account Balance in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

(e) The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 7 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control,
this Section 6 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any
defined term used in Section 7 shall not, for purposes of Section 7, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period.

8. Deductibility of Payments. In the event that the payment of benefits in accordance with the Participant’s election under Section 3 of this
Article VI would prevent the Company from claiming an income tax deduction with respect to any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall
have the right to modify the timing of distributions from the Participant’s Account as necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the
exercise of its discretion to adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in
such amounts as most closely approximate the
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Participant’s election, consistent with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to reduce a
Participant’s Account Balance or to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s Account Balance in the event that all or a portion thereof
would not be deductible by the Company.

9. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the Committee determines in good faith, based on consultation with
counsel, that the federal income tax treatment or legal status of this Supplemental Savings Plan has or may be adversely affected by a change in
the Internal Revenue Code, Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable law or by an administrative or
judicial construction thereof, the Committee may direct that the Accounts of affected Participants or of all Participants be distributed as soon as
practicable after such determination is made, to the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Committee to cure or mitigate the
consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in law or interpretation thereof.

10. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder, or with respect to any
amounts credited to a Participant’s Account hereunder, any Federal, state, or local income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish
the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports, statements, or information as may be legally required. However,
the amount of Deferred Compensation or Matching Credits to be credited to a Participant’s Account will not be reduced or adjusted by the amount
of any tax that the Company is required to withhold with respect thereto.

ARTICLE VII

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Supplemental Savings Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in
the future, and each Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial
interest in any specific assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Supplemental Savings Plan. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its obligations under this Supplemental Savings Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or
trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422 (generally known as a “rabbi trust”), and the Company may direct that its
obligations under this Supplemental Savings Plan be satisfied by payments out of such trust or trusts. It is the Company’s intention that this
Supplemental Savings Plan be unfunded for federal income tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights to benefit payments under this Supplemental Savings Plan shall not be subject in any
manner to anticipation, alienation, sale,
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transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance, attachment, or garnishment by creditors of the Participant or the Participant’s Beneficiary.

ARTICLE VIII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Supplemental Savings Plan at any
time subject to any shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the
effect of reducing a Participant’s Account Balance or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his or her
Account Balance.

2. Termination. The Board reserves the right to terminate this Supplemental Savings Plan at any time and to pay all Participants their
Account Balances in a lump sum immediately following such termination or at such time thereafter as the Board may determine; provided,
however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2 would otherwise result in a nonexempt transaction under
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to any Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon
which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the
Exchange Act.

ARTICLE IX

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Supplemental Savings Plan shall be administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board or such other
committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board and constituted so as to permit this Supplemental Savings Plan to comply with the
requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of the members of
the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written consent of the
Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and the Claims Administrator shall have full authority to interpret the Plan,
and interpretations of the Plan by the Committee or Claims Administrator shall be final and binding on all parties.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Supplemental Savings Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose, except that the Committee may not delegate
any authority the delegation
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of which would cause this Supplemental Savings Plan to fail to satisfy the applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3. In making any determination or
in taking or not taking any action under this Supplemental Savings Plan, the Committee may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including
professional advisors to the Company. No member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in
any decision specifically relating to his or her individual rights or benefits under the Supplemental Savings Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this Supplemental Savings Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have
any liability to any party for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Supplemental Savings Plan or for the failure of the Supplemental
Savings Plan or any Participant’s rights under the Supplemental Savings Plan to achieve intended tax consequences, to qualify for exemption or
relief under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the rules thereunder, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the
part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may direct that such
benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such
minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or the Claims Administrator) from all liability with respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Committee or the Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or
incapacity of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is denied by the Claims Administrator are as follows:
 

 (A) The Claims Administrator shall:
 

 (i) notify the claimant within a reasonable time of such denial, setting forth the specific reasons therefore; and
 

 (ii) afford the claimant a reasonable opportunity for a review of the decision.
 

 (B) The notice of such denial shall set forth, in addition to the specific reasons for the denial, the following:
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 (i) identification of pertinent provisions of this Plan;
 

 (ii) such additional information as may be relevant to the denial of the claim; and
 

 (iii) an explanation of the claims review procedure and advice that the claimant may request an opportunity to submit a
statement of issues and comments.

 

 
(C) Within sixty days following advice of denial of a claim, upon request made by the claimant, the Claims Administrator shall take

appropriate steps to review its decision in light of any further information or comments submitted by the claimant. The Claims
Administrator may hold a hearing at which the claimant may present the basis of any claim for review.

 

 
(D) The Claims Administrator shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 120 days) after the claimant’s request

for review and shall advise the claimant in writing of its decision, specifying the reasons and identifying the appropriate
provisions of the Plan.

 

 
(E) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Savings Plan Administrative Committee. Notwithstanding

the foregoing, with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be
the Committee.

ARTICLE X

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. Neither this Supplemental Savings Plan nor a Participant’s Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, shall in any way obligate
the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does either this Supplemental Savings Plan or a Deferral
Agreement limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan or a
Deferral Agreement, either singly or collectively, by their terms or implications constitute an employment contract of any nature whatsoever
between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this Plan or a Plan Agreement, either singly or collectively, by their terms or
implications in any way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.
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2. Any amount credited to a Participant’s Account under this Supplemental Savings Plan shall not be treated as compensation for
purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the
Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of the Vice President, Human Resources. Any written notice to a Participant shall be
made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at his or her place of
residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company
or the Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this
Supplemental Savings Plan.

5. By electing to become a Participant hereunder, each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and
consented to all the terms of this Supplemental Savings Plan and all actions or decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with
regard to the Supplemental Savings Plan.

6. The provisions of this Supplemental Savings Plan and the Deferral Agreements hereunder shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal
representatives.

7. A copy of this Supplemental Savings Plan shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under
the Plan at reasonable times at the offices of the Company.

8. The validity of this Supplemental Savings Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all
respects under and by the laws of the State of Maryland, except as to matters of federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

9. This Supplemental Savings Plan and its operation, including but not limited to, the mechanics of deferral elections, the issuance of
securities, if any, or the payment of cash hereunder is subject to compliance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations
(including but not limited to state and federal insider trading, registration, reporting and other securities laws) and such other approvals by any
listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.
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10. This Supplemental Savings Plan is intended to constitute an “excess benefit plan” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3(b)(2) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and it shall be construed and applied accordingly. It is the intent of the Company that this Supplemental Savings
Plan satisfy and be interpreted in a manner, that, in the case of Participants who are or may be Section 16 Persons, satisfies any applicable
requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or other exemptive rules under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and will not subject Section 16
Persons to short-swing profit liability thereunder. If any provision of this Supplemental Savings Plan would otherwise frustrate or conflict with the
intent expressed in this Section 10, that provision to the extent possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid such conflict. To
the extent of any remaining irreconcilable conflict with this intent, the provision shall be deemed disregarded. Similarly, any action or election by a
Section 16 Person with respect to the Supplemental Savings Plan to the extent possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid
liability under Section 16 or, if this is not possible, to the extent necessary to avoid liability under Section 16, shall be deemed ineffective.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Supplemental Savings Plan, the provisions of this Supplemental Savings Plan may at any time be
bifurcated by the Board or the Committee in any manner so that certain provisions of this Supplemental Savings Plan are applicable solely to
Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Supplemental Savings Plan to the contrary, if a distribution which would otherwise
occur is prohibited or proposed to be delayed because of the provisions of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or the provisions of the Supplemental
Savings Plan designed to ensure compliance with Section 16, the Section 16 Person involved may affirmatively elect in writing to have the
distribution occur in any event; provided that the Section 16 Person shall concurrently enter into arrangements satisfactory to the Committee in its
sole discretion for the satisfaction of any and all liabilities, costs and expenses arising from this election.

ARTICLE XI

EFFECTIVE DATE

This amendment and restatement of the Supplemental Savings Plan shall generally become effective on January 1, 1997. Subsequent
amendments to the Supplemental Savings Plan are effective as of the date stated in the amendment or the adopting resolution.
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Exhibit 10.3

LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION
NONQUALIFIED CAPITAL ACCUMULATION PLAN

(Amended and Restated as of June 26, 2008 )

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Nonqualified Capital Accumulation Plan (the “NCAP” or the “Plan”) are (i) to provide
contributions for certain key management employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) in circumstances where
the Company cannot make contributions on behalf of employees under the Lockheed Martin Salaried Corporation Capital Accumulation Plan (the
“Qualified CAP”) because of the limitations of Code section 401(a)(17) or 415(c)(1)(A); and (ii) to provide a company contribution based on amounts
awarded under Lockheed Martin Corporation Management Incentive Compensation Plan (“MICP”). This Plan is also intended to comply with the
requirements of Code section 409A.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings hereinafter indicated:
1. ACCOUNT — The bookkeeping account maintained by the Company for each Participant which is credited with Contributions made on

behalf of the Participant, and earnings (or losses) attributable to the Investment Options selected by the Participant, and which is debited to reflect
distributions. The portions of a Participant’s Account allocated to different Investment Options will be accounted for separately.

2. ACCOUNT BALANCE — The total amount credited to a Participant’s Account at any time, including the portions of the Account allocated
to each Investment Option.

3. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons designated by the Participant as his or her beneficiary under the Qualified CAP.

4. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

5. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
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6. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article IX.

7. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries.

8. COMPANY STOCK INVESTMENT OPTION — The Investment Option under which the Participant’s Account is credited as if invested
under the investment option in the Qualified CAP for the common stock of the Company.

9. COMPENSATION — An employee’s “Compensation” from the Company, as defined in the Qualified CAP.

10. CONTRIBUTIONS — Contributions made by the Company pursuant to Article IV of this NCAP.

11. DMICP — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Deferred Management Incentive Compensation Plan or any successor plan.

12. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who participates in the Qualified CAP and either (i) accrues benefits under the
Qualified CAP in excess of the Code section 415 limits for a Year ($45,000 in 2007); (ii) earns Compensation in excess of the Code section 401(a)
(17) limit for a Year ($225,000 in 2007); or (iii) is eligible to receive Incentive Compensation with respect to a Year (which may be payable in the
following Year); provided that such employee satisfies such additional requirements for participation in this NCAP as the Committee may from time
to time establish; provided further that employees who are designated by the Company as eligible to participant in a defined benefit-type
nonqualified deferred compensation plan or who are Section 16 Persons shall not be eligible to participate in this NCAP. In the exercise of its
authority under this provision, the Committee shall limit participation in the Plan to employees whom the Committee believes to be a select group
of management or highly compensated employees within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended.

13. EXCHANGE ACT — The Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

13A. INCENTIVE COMPENSATION — The MICP amount granted to an employee by the Company for an Award Year (as defined in the
MICP), regardless of amounts deferred pursuant to the DMICP.

14. INVESTMENT OPTION — A measure of investment return pursuant to which Contributions credited to a Participant’s Account shall be
further credited with earnings (or losses). The Investment Options available under this NCAP shall correspond to the investment options available
under the Qualified CAP (other than the ESOP Fund or the Self-Managed Account, which are not available under this Plan).
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15. MICP — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Management Incentive Compensation Plan or the Lockheed Martin Corporation 2006
Management Incentive Compensation Plan (for Incentive Compensation awarded after February 1, 2006) or any successor plan.

16. NCAP — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Non-Qualified Capital Accumulation Plan, as adopted by the Board of Directors of Lockheed
Martin Corporation, originally effective January 1, 2007, and as further amended from time to time.

17. PARTICIPANT — An employee of the Company who is an Eligible Employee and with respect to whom Contributions have been credited
to his Account; the term shall include a former employee whose Account Balance has not been fully distributed.

18. QUALIFIED CAP — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Capital Accumulation Plan or any successor plan.

19. SECTION 16 PERSON — A Participant who at the relevant time is subject to the reporting and short-swing liability provisions of
Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

20. SUBSIDIARY — As to any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50% or more
of the voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporation), is owned or controlled (directly or indirectly) by that
entity, or by one or more of the Subsidiaries of that entity, or by a combination thereof.

21. WEEKLY RATE OF COMPENSATION — A Participant’s “Weekly Rate of Compensation” as defined in the Qualified CAP.

22. YEAR — The calendar year.

ARTICLE III

ELIGIBILITY

1. Commencement of Participation. An employee of the Company shall become a Participant in the Plan effective on the first of January
following the Year (beginning with 2006) in which he or she first became an Eligible Employee. For example, if an employee becomes an Eligible
Employee in 2006, he or she shall become a Participant in the Plan effective January 1, 2007. If an employee of the Company terminates
employment during the Year in which he or she first became an Eligible Employee, he or she shall not become a Participant in the Plan for the
following Year.

2. Cessation of Eligibility While Still An Employee. A Participant who has not terminated employment with the Company will nevertheless
cease to be an Eligible Employee on
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the first to occur of (i) the employee is no longer eligible to participate in the Qualified CAP; (ii) the employee is designated by the Company as
eligible to participate in a defined benefit-type nonqualified deferred compensation plan; or (iii) the employee becomes a Section 16 Person.
Following cessation of eligibility, the employee will continue to be a Participant in the NCAP but will no longer be eligible to be credited with
Contributions under Article IV.

ARTICLE IV

CONTRIBUTIONS

1. Amount of Contributions. The Company shall make annual Contributions on behalf of a Participant equal to:
a. an amount based on the same percentage of the Participant’s Weekly Rate of Compensation that would have been contributed to

the Qualified CAP on behalf of the Participant for the Year if not for the application of the limits under Code sections 415 and 401(a)(17) for the
Year;

b. with respect to the Participant’s first year of participation, an amount based on the same percentage of the Participant’s Weekly
Rate of Compensation for the preceding Year that would have been contributed to the Qualified CAP on behalf of the Participant for such Year if
not for the application of the limits under Code sections 415 and 401(a)(17) for such Year; and

c. an amount equal to a Participant’s Incentive Compensation for the Year multiplied by the percentage that is used for calculating
Company contributions to the Participant’s account in the Qualified CAP in the Year in which the Incentive Compensation is earned (as opposed to
paid).

2. Crediting of Contributions. Contributions made pursuant to Article IV(1)(a) shall be credited to a Participant’s Account as of the day on
which such amount would have been credited to the Participant’s account under the Qualified CAP if the Participant’s Contributions had been
contributed to the Qualified CAP. Contributions made pursuant to Article IV(1)(b) shall be credited to a Participant’s Account Contributions no later
than March 15 of the Participant’s first year of participation in the Plan. Contributions credited pursuant to Article IV(1)(c) shall be credited to a
Participant’s Account on the same day that Incentive Compensation is credited to the DMICP on behalf of the Participant.

3. Vesting of Contributions. A Participant shall be vested in the following percentage of his Account based on his “Years of Service,” based
upon the definition of “Years of Service” in the Qualified CAP applicable to the Participant, including those Years of Service prior to the Year in
which the employee became a Participant:
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Less than 5 Years of Service   0%
At least 5 Years of Service   100%

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant shall be 100% vested in his Account upon his termination of employment after age 55, layoff or on
account of death or permanent disability. A Participant shall be permanently disabled if the Participant would be considered disabled for purposes
of qualifying for long term disability benefits under the Company’s long term disability plan in which the Participant is eligible to participate A
Participant shall be considered to have been laid off if the Participant’s employment is terminated by the Company due to lack of work and the
Participant is considered to have terminated employment for distribution purposes under Section 409A of the Code. In the event legislative
changes require the vesting of account balances in the Qualified Cap in a period shorter than five Years of Service, then the period required to vest
under the NCAP shall be shortened so as to be consistent with the vesting period in the Qualified CAP applicable to the Participant.

4. Crediting of Earnings. Earnings shall be credited to a Participant’s Account based on the Investment Option or Options to which his or her
Account has been allocated, beginning with the day as of which any amounts (or any reallocation of amounts) are credited to the Participant’s
Account. Any amount distributed from a Participant’s Account shall be credited with earnings through the day on which the distribution is
processed. The manner in which earnings are credited under each of the Investment Options shall be determined in the same manner as under the
Qualified CAP.

5. Selection of Investment Options. A Participant may elect to allocate his or her Account among the Investment Options available under the
Qualified CAP (other than the options designated as the ESOP Fund or the Self Managed Account). The procedures for directing allocation and
reallocations among the Investment Options in the NCAP shall be the same as the procedures for making allocations under the Qualified CAP. In
the event a Participant does not make an investment allocation for the NCAP, his elections will be deemed to be the elections made by the
Participant in the Qualified CAP (except that an election for the ESOP Fund or the Self Managed Account shall be disregarded), or, if no such
election exists, the default investment option designated under the Qualified CAP. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no investment election by a
Section 16 Person to re-allocate all or a portion of his or her Account to, or from, a Company stock investment option shall be effective unless the
reallocation would be exempt from the short-swing profit recovery rules of Section 16 of the Exchange Act.
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ARTICLE V

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. General. The Company’s liability to pay benefits to a Participant or Beneficiary under this NCAP shall be measured by and shall in no
event exceed the Participant’s Account Balance, which shall be fully vested and nonforfeitable at all times. All benefit payments shall be made in
cash and, except as otherwise provided, shall reduce allocations to the Investment Options in the same proportions that the Participant’s Account
Balance is allocated among those Investment Options.

2. Commencement of Payment. The payment of benefits to a Participant shall commence as soon as administratively feasible following the
Participant’s termination of employment with the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) benefits paid under this Plan to a Participant who is
reasonably determined by the Company to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code section 409A(2)(B)(i), shall not commence before
six (6) months following the month in which the Participant terminates employment; and (ii) benefits payable to a Section 16 Person that would
result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction under Section 16 of the Exchange Act shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the
distribution would not result in a nonexempt short-swing transaction.

3. Form of Payment. By December 31 of the later of (i) 2007, (ii) 2008, or (iii) the Year in which an employee of the Company first satisfies
the definition of Eligible Employee, he or she shall irrevocably elect the form of payment of his or her Account Balance from among the following
options:

(a) A lump sum.

(b) Annual payments, as designated by the Participant (i) for a period of 5, 10, 15, or 20 years for distributions commencing prior to
January 1, 2008 or (ii) for a period of years not to exceed 20 years (or 20 annual installments) for distributions commencing on or after January 1,
2008. The amount of each annual payment shall be determined by dividing the Participant’s Account Balance on the date such payment is
processed by the number of years remaining in the designated installment period.

Such election shall be made in writing in the form and manner designated by the Company. If no election is made, a Participant’s Account
Balance shall be payable in a lump sum. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Account Balance of a Participant who is entitled to begin payment
equals $10,000 or less, the Participant’s Account Balance shall be paid in a single lump sum payment as soon as administratively practicable in
full discharge of all liabilities with respect to such benefits.

4. Prospective Change of Payment Election. A Participant may modify his or her payment election with respect to all amounts credited to
the Participant’s Account under this
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NCAP by filing a new written election with the Company. No such modification will be effective if made within 12 months of the date of the first
payment under the Participant’s previous payment election, and the first payment must be delayed by at least 60 months from the date of the
Participant’s previous payment election.

5. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a Participant before a complete distribution of his or her Account Balance, the Account Balance will be
paid to the Participant’s Beneficiary in an immediate lump sum.

6. Acceleration Upon Conflict of Interest. Subject to the provisions of Section 2 of Article VIII, notwithstanding a Participant’s form of
payment election under Section 3 of this Article V, if following a Participant’s termination of employment with the Company, the Participant takes a
position (or accepts a position) with a governmental entity, agency, or instrumentality and that employer has determined or indicated that the
Participant’s continued participation in the Plan may constitute a conflict of interest precluding the Participant from continuing in his position (or
from accepting an offered position) with that employer or subjecting the Participant to penalty, sanction, or otherwise limiting the Participant’s
responsibilities for that employer, then the Participant’s Account Balance shall be distributed to him or her in a lump sum as soon as practical
following the later of (i) the date on which the Participant commences employment with the government employer; or (ii) the date on which it is
determined that the conflict of interest may exist.

7. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this NCAP, the Account Balance of each Participant shall be distributed in a single lump

sum within fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”
(b) For purposes of this NCAP, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:

(1) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of
the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the
Company.

(2) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that
are not Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75%
of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate
by the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination
of holders entitled
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to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).
(3) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in

and satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of the
Company’s then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

(4) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

(5) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no distribution shall be made solely on account of a Change in Control and prior to the benefit

commencement date specified in Section 2 of Article V unless the Change in Control is an event qualifying for a distribution of deferred
compensation under both the definition of Change in Control in the Plan and in Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(v) of the Code.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7(a), if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(a) would result in a
nonexempt transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act with respect to any Section 16 Person, then the date of distribution to such
Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt transaction or
would otherwise not result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.

(d) This Section 7 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout of an
Account Balance in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any Subsidiary.
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(e) The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 7 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control,
this Section 7 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any
defined term used in Section 7 shall not, for purposes of Section 7, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period.

8. Deductibility of Payments. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, in the event that the payment of benefits in accordance
with the Participant’s election under Section 3 of this Article V would prevent the Company from claiming an income tax deduction with respect to
any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the right to modify the timing of distributions from the Participant’s Account as
necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee
shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most closely approximate the Participant’s election, consistent
with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to reduce a Participant’s Account Balance or
to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s Account Balance in the event that all or a portion thereof would not be deductible by the
Company.

9. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, if the Committee
determines in good faith, based on consultation with counsel, that the Federal income tax treatment or legal status of this NCAP has or may be
adversely affected by a change in the Internal Revenue Code, Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable
law or by an administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee may direct that the Accounts of affected Participants or of all
Participants be distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the
Committee to cure or mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in law or interpretation thereof.

10. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder, or with respect to any
amounts credited to a Participant’s Account hereunder, any Federal, state, or local income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish
the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports, statements, or information as may be legally required. However,
the amount of Contributions to be credited to a Participant’s Account will not be reduced or adjusted by the amount of any tax that the Company is
required to withhold with respect thereto.

11. 409A Transition Period Elections. Notwithstanding the above, for periods prior to January 1, 2009, (or such later date as may be provided
by the Internal Revenue Service in guidance of general applicability), the Senior Vice President, Human Resources may provide alternative rules
for elections with respect to the commencement of payment and form of payment that conform to the rules provided in Notice 2005-1, and
subsequent Internal Revenue Service guidance providing transition relief under Code section 409A.
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ARTICLE VI

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This NCAP constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the future, and each
Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial interest in any specific
assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this NCAP. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its
obligations under this NCAP, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422
(generally known as a “rabbi trust”), and the Company may direct that its obligations under this NCAP be satisfied by payments out of such trust or
trusts. It is the Company’s intention that this NCAP be unfunded for federal income tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary. Notwithstanding, any portion of a Participant’s benefit
under this Plan may be paid to a spouse or former spouse pursuant to the terms of a domestic relations order (as defined in Code section 414(p)(1)
(B)), provided that the form of payment designated in such order is one that is provided for under Section 3 of the NCAP.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this NCAP at any time subject to any
shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect of reducing a
Participant’s Account Balance or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his or her Account Balance.

2. Termination. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, the Board reserves the right to terminate this NCAP at any time and to
pay all Participants their Account Balances in a lump sum immediately following such termination or at such time thereafter as the Board may
determine; provided, however, that if a distribution in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2 would otherwise result in a nonexempt
transaction under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, the date of distribution with respect to any Section 16 Person shall be delayed until the
earliest date upon which the distribution either would not result in a nonexempt transaction or would otherwise not result in liability under
Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act.
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ARTICLE VIII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This NCAP shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board or such
other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board and constituted so as to permit this NCAP to comply with the requirements of
Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of the members of the Committee
(but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written consent of the Committee shall
constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and the Claims Administrator (identified in Section 6 below) shall have full authority to interpret
the Plan, and interpretations of the Plan by the Committee or the Claims Administrator shall be final and binding on all parties. Notwithstanding
anything contained in the Plan or in any document issued under the Plan, it is intended that the Plan will at all times conform to the requirements
of Code section 409A and any regulations or other guidance issued thereunder, and that the provisions of the Plan will be interpreted to meet such
requirements. If any provision of the Plan is determined not to conform to such requirements, the Plan shall be interpreted to omit such offending
provision.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this NCAP in accordance with its terms and purpose, except that the Committee may not delegate any authority the
delegation of which would cause this NCAP to fail to satisfy the applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3. In making any determination or in taking or
not taking any action under this NCAP, the Committee or its delegate may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional
advisors to the Company. No member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision
specifically relating to his or her individual rights or benefits under the NCAP.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this NCAP, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have any liability to any
party for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this NCAP or for the failure of the NCAP or any Participant’s rights under the NCAP to
achieve intended tax consequences, to qualify for exemption or relief under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the rules thereunder, or to comply
with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may
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direct that such benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and
custody of such minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this
Section shall completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or the Claims Administrator) from all liability with respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Committee or the Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or
incapacity of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is wholly or partially denied by the Claims Administrator are as follows:
 

 

(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a manner
calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to pertinent Plan
provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for the claimant to
perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the steps to be taken if the
claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of
ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not more than an additional 90 days if
special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall give the claimant, before the end of the
initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special circumstances and the date by which the Claims
Administrator expects to render a decision.

 

 (b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice described in
paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.

 

 

(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments, documents, records
and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be provided, upon
request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information “relevant” to claimant’s
claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in making the benefit determination;
(2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether such
document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or (3) demonstrates compliance with
administrative processes and safeguards required under federal law.
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(d) The Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information submitted by the claimant
relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination. The
Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60 days after receipt by the
Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120 days after such receipt if special
circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing prior to the expiration of the original 60 day
period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for the extension and the date by which it is expected
that a decision will be reached. The decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the
claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the
decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and
copies of all documents, records, and other information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional
material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is
necessary; (5) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such
procedures, if any; and (6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse
benefit determination on review.

 

 

(e) If in the event that the reviewing committee must make a determination of disability in order to decide a claim, the reviewing committee
shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor Regulation section 2560.503-1(d).
The reviewing committee shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days) after the claimant’s request for
review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 
(f) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Savings Plan Administrative Committee. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be the
Committee.
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ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. Neither this NCAP nor a Participant’s elections under this NCAP, either singly or collectively, shall in any way obligate the Company
to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does either this NCAP or a Participant’s elections limit the right of the
Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan or a Participant’s elections, either
singly or collectively, by their terms or implications constitute an employment contract of any nature whatsoever between the Company and a
Participant. In no event shall this Plan or a Participant’s elections, either singly or collectively, by their terms or implications in any way limit the
right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Any amount credited to a Participant’s Account under this NCAP shall not be treated as compensation for purposes of calculating
the amount of a Participant’s benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the Company, except as provided
in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of the Senior Vice President, Human Resources. Any written notice to a Participant
shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at his or her
place of residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company
or the Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this NCAP.

5. By electing to become a Participant hereunder, each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and
consented to all the terms of this NCAP and all actions or decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with regard to the NCAP.

6. The provisions of this NCAP shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to
the Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal representatives.

7. A copy of this NCAP shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under the Plan at
reasonable times at the offices of the Company.
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8. The validity of this NCAP or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects under and by the
laws of the State of Maryland, except as to matters of federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

9. This NCAP and its operation, including but not limited to, the mechanics of payment elections, the issuance of securities, if any, or
the payment of cash hereunder is subject to compliance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations (including but not limited to
state and federal insider trading, registration, reporting and other securities laws) and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or
governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.

10. It is the intent of the Company that this NCAP satisfy and be interpreted in a manner, that, in the case of Participants who are or
may be Section 16 Persons, satisfies any applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or other exemptive rules under Section 16 of
the Exchange Act and will not subject Section 16 Persons to short-swing profit liability thereunder. If any provision of this NCAP would otherwise
frustrate or conflict with the intent expressed in this Section 10, that provision to the extent possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended so
as to avoid such conflict. To the extent of any remaining irreconcilable conflict with this intent, the provision shall be deemed disregarded.
Similarly, any action or election by a Section 16 Person with respect to the NCAP to the extent possible shall be interpreted and deemed amended
so as to avoid liability under Section 16 or, if this is not possible, to the extent necessary to avoid liability under Section 16, shall be deemed
ineffective. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this NCAP, the provisions of this NCAP may at any time be bifurcated by the Board or the
Committee in any manner so that certain provisions of this NCAP are applicable solely to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision
of this NCAP to the contrary, if a distribution which would otherwise occur is prohibited or proposed to be delayed because of the provisions of
Section 16 of the Exchange Act or the provisions of the NCAP designed to ensure compliance with Section 16, the Section 16 Person involved
may affirmatively elect in writing to have the distribution occur in any event; provided that the Section 16 Person shall concurrently enter into
arrangements satisfactory to the Committee in its sole discretion for the satisfaction of any and all liabilities, costs and expenses arising from this
election.

ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE

This amendment and restatement of the NCAP shall generally become effective on June 26, 2008. Subsequent amendments to the NCAP
are effective as of the date stated in the amendment or the adopting resolution.
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Exhibit 10.4
[Excess/401(a)(17) Plan - Rev 9/15/05]

LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION
SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLAN

(Effective June 26, 2008)



ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan (the “Plan”) are:
 

 
(a) to provide certain employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) with those benefits that cannot be

paid from the Company’s tax-qualified plans because of the limitations on contributions and benefits contained in Internal Revenue
Code section 415;

 

 
(b) to provide certain key management employees of the Company with those benefits that cannot be paid from the Company’s tax-

qualified plans because of other limitations on contributions and benefits contained in the Internal Revenue Code, such as the
limitations contained in Code section 401(a)(17); and

 

 (c) to provide certain key management employees of the Company with other supplemental benefits.

The following plans and predecessor plans were amended, restated and merged to form a single Plan, effective July 1, 2004:
 

 1. Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan of Lockheed Martin Corporation (formerly the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan of
Lockheed Corporation)

 

 2. Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan (formerly the Martin Marietta Corporation Supplemental Excess
Retirement Plan)

 

 3. Lockheed Martin Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (formerly the Martin Marietta Supplemental Retirement Income Plan)
 

 4. Lockheed Martin Tactical Systems Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (formerly the Loral Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan).

The Plan is amended and restated, effective January 1, 2005, in order to comply with the requirements of Code section 409A. This
amendment and restatement of the Plan shall apply only to the portion of a Participant’s benefit that accrued and vested on or after January 1,
2005. The portion of a Participant’s benefit that accrued and vested prior to January 1, 2005 shall be governed by the terms of the Plan in effect on
December 31, 2004, attached as Appendix B.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS
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Unless the context indicates otherwise or the term is defined below, all terms shall be defined in accordance with the Lockheed Martin
Corporation Retirement Program.

1. ACTUARIAL EQUIVALENT — The Actuarial Equivalent shall mean a benefit which has the equivalent value computed using the interest
rate which would be used by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation to determine the present value of an immediate lump sum distribution on
termination of a pension plan, as in effect on the first day of the month of termination of employment plus one percent (1%), and the 1983 Group
Annuity Mortality Table with sex distinction; provided that for Years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, in no event shall the interest rate plus
1% exceed 7% or be less than 4%.

2. BENEFICIARY — The Beneficiary of a Participant shall be (a) the Participant’s Spouse or (b) if there is no Spouse surviving the
Participant, the Participant’s estate.

3. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

4. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

5. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article VIII.

6. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its Subsidiaries.

7. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who (1) participates in a Qualified Pension Plan and whose benefits thereunder
are affected by the limitation on benefits imposed by Section 415 or 401(a)(17) of the Code, or (2) is designated by the Committee as eligible to
participate in the Plan; and who satisfies such additional requirements for participation in this Plan as the Committee may from time to time
establish. The Lockheed Martin Pension Plans Administration Committee (the “Pension Committee”) shall interpret the participation requirements
established by the Committee for all participants except elected officers subject to Section 16(b) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934.
Determinations of participation requirements for elected officers shall be made by the Committee.

8. GRANDFATHERED 2004 BENEFIT — The benefit calculated under the terms of the Plan in effect prior to January 1, 2005 (attached as
Appendix B), including benefits calculated under the Annexes to such Plan, determined as if the Participant had terminated from employment on
December 31, 2005 (or the Participant’s actual termination date, if earlier).

9. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee who meets the requirements for participation contained in Article III or the Annexes; the term
shall include a former employee and survivors/beneficiaries whose benefit has not been fully distributed. A Participant shall cease to be an active
Participant upon termination of employment, when he otherwise ceases to be an
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Eligible Employee, or when he otherwise ceases to meet the requirements for participation as amended from time to time.

10. QUALIFIED PENSION PLAN — A defined benefit plan specified in Appendix A in which the Participant participates.

11. PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan, or any successor plan.

12. SUBSIDIARY — As to any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50% or more
of the voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporation), is owned or controlled (directly or indirectly) by that
entity, or by one or more of the Subsidiaries of that entity, or by a combination thereof.

13. YEAR — The calendar year.

ARTICLE III

EXCESS BENEFIT PROVISIONS

1. Introduction. This Article sets forth the terms of the Plan relating to benefits determined by reference to the limitations imposed by Code
section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)(17). This Article amends and restates the provisions relating to those benefits previously contained in the
following plans:
 

 (a) the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan of Lockheed Martin Corporation (formerly known as the Supplemental Benefit Plan of
Lockheed Corporation);

 

 (b) the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan (formerly know as the Martin Marietta Corporation
Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan); and

 

 (c) the Lockheed Martin Tactical Systems Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (formerly known as the Loral Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan).

2. Purpose. Benefits under this Article III supplement the benefits of Eligible Employees to the extent that such benefits cannot be paid from
the Company’s tax-qualified defined benefit plans because of the limitations on benefits contained in Code section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)
(17). It is intended that the provisions of this Article which relate to the limitations imposed by Code section 415 constitute a separate plan for
purposes of Section 3(36) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).
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3. Eligibility. An Eligible Employee who is entitled to benefits under a Qualified Pension Plan, and whose retirement income benefits are
limited by the provisions of the Qualified Pension Plan (as amended from time to time) relating to the limits under Code section 415 and/or Code
section 401(a)(17) shall receive benefits pursuant to this Article III.

4. Amount of Benefit. The benefit that each Participant shall be entitled to receive under the Plan is the amount reasonably determined by
the Company to be the difference between the Participant’s actual benefit under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan and the benefits that would
have been payable under that Plan if:
 

 (a) the Qualified Pension Plan had determined pensionable earnings on a “mix and match” basis, as defined below; and
 

 (b) the Participant’s benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan had not been limited by Code section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)(17).

If a Participant’s compensation under the Management Incentive Compensation Plan (“MICP”) is included in pensionable earnings under a
Qualified Pension Plan, the Participant’s total pensionable earnings shall be determined on a “mix and match” basis. The Participant’s annual
compensation earned under the MICP shall be calculated separately from other annual pensionable earnings. The average of the three (3) highest
years of MICP compensation during the last 10 years shall be added to the average of the three (3) highest years of other pensionable earnings
during the last 10 years to arrive at total final average pensionable earnings for the applicable period under the Qualified Pension Plan.

Benefits under this Article III are intended to supplement the Participant’s actual benefit under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan as
necessary to provide the Participant with the full benefit the Participant would have received under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan on a “mix
and match” basis and without regard to the limitations of Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17). To prevent duplication of benefits, the full
benefit under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan (without regard of to the portion of the benefit attributable to employee contributions, if any)
shall be calculated without reduction for Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), then reduced by the benefit payable from the applicable
Qualified Pension Plan, and then reduced further by the Grandfathered 2004 Benefit, then further reduced by the benefit payable from other
nonqualified pension plans of the Company which corresponds to the benefit payable under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan (including any
benefit payable under Annex B of this Plan and excluding any nonqualified plans designed to supplement qualified defined contribution plans). The
remaining benefit shall be paid from this Plan pursuant to this Article III. Participants have no right to duplicate benefits with respect to the same
period of service, and the Committee may make such adjustments to the benefits under this Plan as the Committee deems necessary to prevent
duplication of benefits.
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The benefit payable under this Article III shall be payable to the Participant or Beneficiary who is receiving or entitled to receive
benefits with respect to the Participant under the Qualified Pension Plan.

If the benefits payable under the Qualified Pension Plan to any Participant are increased following the Participant’s retirement as a
result of a general increase in the benefits payable to retired employees under that Plan, no such increase will be made under this Plan.

ARTICLE IV

SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS

In addition to the benefits described in Article III, the Plan also provides benefits to certain key management employees, as set forth in the
Annexes. Eligibility for, and the amount of, such benefits is set forth in the applicable Annex. Payment options for such benefits are described in
Article V.

ARTICLE V

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. Vesting. Except as provided in Article VI, and subject to the Company’s right to discontinue the Plan as provided in Article VII, a
Participant shall have a non-forfeitable benefit payable under this Plan to the same extent as benefits are vested under the applicable Qualified
Pension Plan. As provided in Article VI, if a Participant acquires a right to receive payments under this Plan, such right shall be no greater than
the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company.

2. Form and Timing of Payment.
a. Regular Form. A Participant may elect to receive benefits in any annuity form that is available under the applicable Qualified

Pension Plan on the date of the Participant’s election that has been designated by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources as available for
election under this Plan, provided (i) the election is filed with the Company in writing no later than the later of (a) December 16, 2005 and (b) the
date that is 30 days after the Participant commences participation in the Plan, and (ii) the Participant’s employment has not terminated prior to
filing the election. All elections under this Section 2.a. must be made in the form and manner prescribed by the Company. If the Participant has
not validly elected any annuity form under this Section 2.a. or a lump sum payment as provided in Section 2.b. of Article V, (i) an unmarried
Participant shall be deemed to have elected payment in the form of a monthly annuity for the life of the Participant with no further payments to
anyone after his or her death, and (ii) a
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married Participant shall be deemed to have elected payment in the form of a reduced monthly annuity for the life of the Participant with, after the
Participant’s death, a 50% survivor annuity for the life of the Participant’s spouse. Actuarial adjustments shall be based on the factors set forth in
the Qualified Pension Plan. Benefits paid in a form described in this Section 2.a. shall commence as soon as administratively practicable following
the later of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates employment, or (ii) the month in which the Participant attains age fifty-five (55).
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, benefits paid in a form described in this Section 2.a. to a Participant who is reasonably determined by the
Company to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code section 409A(2)(B)(i), shall not commence before six (6) months following the
later of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates employment, or (ii) the month in which the Participant attains age fifty-five (55). No interest
shall be paid between the date of termination of employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable, and the payment date.

b. Lump Sum Option. In lieu of the forms described in Section 2.a. of Article V, a Participant may make a one-time election to receive
a full lump sum payment in an amount which is the Actuarial Equivalent of a monthly annuity for the life of the Participant with no further payments
to anyone after his or her death, provided the election is filed with the Company in writing no later than December 16, 2005 and the Participant’s
employment has not terminated prior to filing the election. For all Participants who elect a lump sum under this Section 2.b., the lump sum
payment shall be made six (6) months following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates employment, or (ii) the month in which
the Participant attains age fifty-five (55). No interest shall be paid between the date of termination of employment or attainment of age fifty-five
(55), as applicable, and the payment date. All elections under this Section 2.b. must be made in the form and manner prescribed by the Company.
This Section shall not apply to Participants who first become eligible for participation in the Plan after December 16, 2005.

c. Cash-out of Small Benefits. Notwithstanding the above, if the Value of the sum of the benefits payable to a Participant or
Beneficiary under this Plan does not exceed $10,000, all such benefits will be paid in a single lump sum payment in full discharge of all liabilities
with respect to such benefits. For purposes of this Section, Value shall be determined as of the Participant’s termination of employment or
attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable, and shall mean the present value of a Participant’s or Beneficiary’s benefits, excluding the
Grandfathered 2004 Benefit, based (i) for terminations prior to January 1, 2008 upon the applicable mortality table and applicable interest rate in
Code section 417(e)(3)(ii), or for terminations on or after January 1, 2008, upon the applicable mortality table and applicable interest rate under
Code section 417(e)(3), as amended by the Pension Protection Act of 2006, for the calendar month preceding the Plan Year in which the
termination of employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55) occurs. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, benefits paid under this Section 2.c.
to a Participant who is reasonably determined by the Company to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code section 409A(2)(B)(i), shall
not commence before six (6) months following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates
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employment, or (ii) the month in which the Participant attains age fifty-five (55). No interest shall be paid between the date of termination of
employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable, and the payment date.

d. Payment Upon Death or Disability.
i. Death. No other death benefits are provided under this Plan other than as specified in this Section 2.d.i.

A. Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit. In the event the Participant dies prior to terminating employment or attaining age 55,
a pre-retirement survivor benefit will be payable to the Participant’s surviving spouse (if any) (the “Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit” and the
“Surviving Spouse”) in the form elected by the Participant under the terms of the Plan. If the Participant’s benefit was payable in a lump sum, the
lump sum shall be the Actuarial Equivalent of a monthly annuity payable for the life of the Surviving Spouse with no further payments to anyone
after his or her death. The Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit shall commence as soon as administratively practicable following the later of (i) the
month in which the Participant dies, or (ii) the month in which the Participant would have attained age fifty-five (55). No Pre-Retirement Survivor
Benefit is payable to anyone other than the Participant’s Surviving Spouse. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to all Participants who
elected a lump sum under Section 2.b., a lump sum Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit shall be paid to the Participant’s Surviving Spouse six
(6) months following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant dies, or (ii) the month in which the Participant would have attained age fifty-
five (55).

B. Death After Termination of Employment or Attainment of Age 55. If a Participant who is required to wait six (6) months
for a lump sum payment (in accordance with Section 2 of Article V) dies after the Participant’s termination of employment or attainment of age
fifty-five (55), as applicable, but before payment is made, the lump sum payment shall be made to the Participant’s Beneficiary.

ii. Disability. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Article V, the benefit of a Disabled Participant who is eligible for a disability
pension from the Lockheed Martin Retirement Income Plan, the KAPL Inc. Pension Plan for Salaried Employees, or the Lockheed Martin
Corporation Retirement Income Plan III shall be paid in the form elected by the Participant under the terms of the Plan as soon as administratively
practicable following the date the Participant is reasonably determined by the Company to be Disabled. For the purposes of this Section 2.d.ii., the
terms “Disabled” or “Disability” shall have the meaning set forth in the Lockheed Martin Retirement Income Plan, the KAPL Inc. Pension Plan for
Salaried Employees, or the Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan III, as applicable, to the extent consistent with the requirements
of Code section 409A(a)(2(C).
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e. Prospective Change of Payment Elections. Participants may elect to change the form of payment of benefits or further delay the
commencement of benefits as provided in this Section 2.e. All elections under this Section 2.e. must be made in the form and manner prescribed
by the Company. This Section 2.e. does not apply to Surviving Spouses or Beneficiaries. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII,
other changes in the form of benefit, including changes between actuarially equivalent forms of benefit, if any, may be made only as determined by
the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, of the Company in accordance with Code section 409A.

i. Form of Payment. A Participant who is deemed to have elected payment in a form described in Section 2.a. of Article V or
has validly elected a lump sum payment in accordance with Section 2.b. of Article V may later elect to receive payment in any other annuity form
designated by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, of the Company, provided that such election is made in writing not less than twelve
(12) months before the date the payment would have first commenced under the Participant’s prior election. In addition, the first payment under the
new election must commence no earlier than sixty (60) months from the date when the payment would have first commenced under the
Participant’s prior election. The timing of the payment of any form available under this Section 2.e.i. shall be governed by Section 2.a. of this
Article V.

ii. Timing of Payment. Regardless of the form of payment, a Participant may elect to delay payment of his benefit provided
such election is made in writing not less than twelve (12) months before the date the payment would have first commenced under the Participant’s
prior election. In addition, the first payment under the new election must commence no earlier than sixty (60) months from when the payment
would have first commenced under the Participant’s prior election.

f. Notwithstanding the above, for periods prior to January 1, 2009, (or such later date as may be provided by the Internal Revenue
Service in guidance of general applicability), the Senior Vice President, Human Resources may provide alternative rules for elections with respect
to the commencement of payment and form of payment, provided that such rules conform to Code section 409A and Internal Revenue Service
guidance issued thereunder.

g. If a Participant participates in more than one supplemental pension plan sponsored by the Corporation, the Participant must make a
single election that shall apply to his or her benefits under all such plans with respect to the form of annuity (under Section 2.a. of this Article 5)
and with respect to prospective changes of payment (under Section 2.e. of this Article 5).

3. Deductibility of Payments. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, in the event that the payment of benefits under Section 2
would prevent the Company from claiming an income tax deduction with respect to any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the
right to modify the form and timing of distributions as necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to
adopt a modified distribution
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schedule, the Committee shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most closely approximate the payment
method described in Section 2, consistent with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to
reduce a Participant’s accrued benefit under this Plan or to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s accrued benefit in the event that all
or a portion thereof would not be deductible by the Company.

4. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, if the Committee
determines in good faith, based on consultation with counsel, that the federal income tax treatment or legal status of this Plan has or may be
adversely affected by a change in the Code, Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable law or by an
administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee may direct that the benefits of affected Participants or of all Participants be
distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Committee to cure or
mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in law or interpretation thereof.

5. Acceleration upon Change in Control. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the accrued benefit of each Participant shall be
one-hundred percent (100%) vested and be distributed in a single lump sum within fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”

For purposes of this Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:
 

 (a) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(b) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that are not
Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75% of the
outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate by
the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination of
holders entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).

 

 
(c) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in and

satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange
Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company
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 representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of
directors of the Company.

 

 

(d) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

 

 (e) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no distribution shall be made solely on account of a Change in Control and prior to the benefit
commencement date specified in Section 2 of Article V unless the Change in Control is an event qualifying for a distribution of deferred
compensation under Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(v) of the Code. This Section 5 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation
and shall not cause immediate payout of benefits under this Plan in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other
disposition of any subsidiary.

The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 5 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control, this
Section 5 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any defined term
used in Section 5 shall not, for purposes of Section 5, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period.

6. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder any Federal, state, or local
income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports,
statements, or information as may be legally required. No benefit payments shall be made to the Participant until the withholding obligation for
taxes under Code sections 3101(a) and 3101(b) has been satisfied with respect to the Participant.

7. Retiree Medical Withholding. A Participant may direct the Company to withhold from the Participant’s benefit payments hereunder all or a
portion of the amount that the Participant is required to pay for Company-provided retiree medical coverage.
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8. Reemployment. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, the retirement benefit otherwise payable hereunder to any Participant
who previously retired or otherwise had a Termination of Employment and is subsequently reemployed shall be treated in a manner consistent with
the treatment of the benefit under the applicable Qualified Plan.

9. Mistaken Payments. No Participant or Beneficiary shall have any right to any payment made (1) in error, (2) in contravention to the terms
of the Plan, the Code, or ERISA, or (3) because the Committee or its delegates were not informed of any death. The Committee shall have full
rights under the law and ERISA to recover any such mistaken payment, and the right to recover attorney’s fees and other costs incurred with
respect to such recovery. Recovery shall be made from future Plan payments, or by any other available means.

ARTICLE VI

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the future, and each
Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial interest in any specific
assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its
obligations under this Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422, and
the Company may direct that its obligations under this Plan be satisfied by payments out of such trust or trusts. The assets of any such trust will
remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Company. It is the Company’s intention that the Plan be unfunded for Federal income
tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary or transfer of an interest in this Plan to a Participant’s
former spouse incident to divorce under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.
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3. Forfeiture. If, following the date on which a Participant shall retire under this Plan, a Participant shall engage in the operation or
management of a business, whether as owner, stockholder, partner, officer, employee, consultant, or otherwise, which at such time is in
competition with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or shall disclose to unauthorized persons information relative to the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which the Participant shall have reason to believe is confidential, or otherwise act, or conduct oneself, in a
manner which the Participant shall have reason to believe is contrary to the best interest of the Company, or shall be found by the Committee to
have committed an act during the term of the Participant’s employment which would have justified the Participant being discharged for cause, the
Participant’s retirement benefit under this Plan shall terminate. Application of this Section will be at the discretion of the Committee.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Plan at any time subject to any
shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect of reducing a
Participant’s accrued benefit or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his accrued benefit unless each
affected Participant consents to such change.

2. Termination. The Board reserves the right to terminate this Plan at any time and, subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, to
pay all Participants their accrued benefits in a lump sum or to make other provisions for the payment of benefits (e.g. purchase of annuities)
immediately following such termination or at such time thereafter as the Board may determine.

3. Transfer of Liability. The Board reserves the right to transfer to another entity all of the obligations of Company with respect to a
Participant under this Plan if such entity agrees pursuant to a binding written agreement with the Company or its subsidiaries to assume all of the
obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant.

4. Merger. The Board reserves the right to merge all or part of this Plan with or into another plan, provided (1) such other plan preserves all of
the obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant and (2) each Participant in the Plan would (if the Plan then
terminated) receive a benefit immediately after the merger which is equal to or greater than the benefit he would have been entitled to receive
immediately before the merger (if the Plan had then terminated).
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ARTICLE VIII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Plan shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board or such
other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of
the members of the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written
consent of the Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and its delegates shall have full discretion to construe and
interpret the terms and provisions of the Plan, which interpretation or construction shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties, including but
not limited to the Company and any Participant or Beneficiary, except as otherwise provided by law. Notwithstanding anything contained in the
Plan or in any document issued under the Plan, it is intended that the Plan will at all times conform to the requirements of Code section 409A,
including the rules for “grandfathered” benefits under Code section 409A, and any regulations or other guidance issued thereunder, and that the
provisions of the Plan will be interpreted to meet such requirements. If any provision of the Plan is determined not to conform to such
requirements, the Plan shall be interpreted to omit such offending provision.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action
under this Plan, the Committee may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Company. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 6, the Committee delegates the authority to adjudicate claims to the Pension Plans Administrative Committee. No
member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision specifically relating to his or
her individual rights or benefits under the Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have any liability to any party
for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Plan or for the failure of the Plan or any Participant’s rights under the Plan to achieve
intended tax consequences, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.
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4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Pension Plans Administrative Committee
may direct that such benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care
and custody of such minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with
this Section shall completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or Pension Plans Administrative Committee) from all liability with
respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or incapacity of any
Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is wholly or partially denied by the Claims Administrator are as follows:
 

 

(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a manner
calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to pertinent Plan
provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for the claimant to
perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the steps to be taken if the
claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of
ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not more than an additional 90 days if
special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall give the claimant, before the end of the
initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special circumstances and the date by which the Claims
Administrator expects to render a decision.

 

 (b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice described in
paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.
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(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments, documents, records
and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be provided, upon
request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information “relevant” to claimant’s
claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in making the benefit determination;
(2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether such
document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or (3) demonstrates compliance with
administrative processes and safeguards required under federal law.
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(d) The Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information submitted by the claimant
relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination. The
Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60 days after receipt by the
Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120 days after such receipt if special
circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing prior to the expiration of the original 60 day
period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for the extension and the date by which it is expected
that a decision will be reached. The decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the
claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the
decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and
copies of all documents, records, and other information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional
material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is
necessary; (5) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such
procedures, if any; and (6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse
benefit determination on review.

 

 

(e) If in the event that the reviewing committee must make a determination of disability in order to decide a claim, the reviewing committee
shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor Regulation section 2560.503-1(d).
The reviewing committee shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days) after the claimant’s request for
review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 
(f) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Pension Plans Administrative Committee. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be the
Committee.
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ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. This Plan shall not in any way obligate the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does this Plan
limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan constitute an
employment contract of any nature whatsoever between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this Plan by its terms or implications in
any way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Any benefits accrued under this Plan shall not be treated as compensation for purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s
benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of Pension Plan Operations, Human Resource Services. Any written notice to a
Participant shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at
his or her place of residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company or the
Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this Plan.

5. Each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and consented to all the terms of this Plan and all actions or
decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with regard to the Plan.

6. The provisions of this Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the
Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal representatives.

7. The validity of this Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects under and by the laws of
the State of Maryland, except as to matters of Federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.
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8. This Plan and its operation, including the payment of cash hereunder, is subject to compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws,
rules and regulations and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the
Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.

ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Plan, including any amendment and restatement of the prior plans, is generally effective June 26, 2008.

ANNEX A

[RESERVED]

ANNEX B TO JANUARY 1, 2005 RESTATEMENT

Additional Benefits Previously Provided under the
Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan

1. Introduction. The benefits described in this Annex previously were provided as part of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental
Excess Retirement Plan. That Plan was formerly known as the Martin Marietta Corporation Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan, and included
provisions previously contained in the Lockheed Martin Supplemental Retirement Income Plan.

2. Purpose. This Annex provides a supplemental benefit to salaried employees who were considered highly compensated employees as of
December 31, 1990 and who were also participants in the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan as of September 30, 1975, whose
benefits are limited by Code section 401(a)(4).

3. Eligibility. This Annex provides benefits to salaried employees who were considered highly compensated employees as of December 31,
1990 (as determined under the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan as in effect on that date) and who were also covered
employees in the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan as of September 30, 1975 or were participants for 12 consecutive months
prior to September 30, 1975 who receive a pension benefit calculated under the Pre-ERISA formula in the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement
Income Plan.
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4. Amount of Benefit. Participants shall receive a retirement benefit from this Plan that is reasonably determined by the Company to equal to
the excess, if any, of (1) the pension benefit calculated based on the formula described in Article V(1)(b) or Article IX(2)(b) of the January 1, 1995
Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan without regard to the limitation described in Article V(1)(c), Article IX(2)(c) or Code section 415
or Code section 401(a)(17), reduced by the greater of the pension benefits described in Article V(1)(b) or Article IX(2)(b) of the January 1, 1995
Retirement Income Plan. To prevent duplication of benefits, the benefit payable under this Annex shall be coordinated with any benefit payable
under Article III of the Plan, as set forth in Article III.

In no event shall the computation of benefits under this Annex take into account any service performed by a Participant after
separation from employment with the Company or its subsidiaries.

APPENDIX A TO JANUARY 1, 2005 RESTATEMENT

Qualified Pension Plans
 
 1. Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees
 

 2. Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan
 

 3. Lockheed Martin Account Balance Retirement Plan
 

 4. Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan III
 

 5. Lockheed Martin Pension Plan for Former Salaried and Hourly Employees of Inactive Commercial Divisions
 

 6. KAPL Inc. Pension Plan for Salaried Employees
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APPENDIX B TO JANUARY 1, 2005 RESTATEMENT

This Appendix B shall govern the portion of a Participant’s benefit that accrued and vested under the Plan on or before December 31, 2004.
This Appendix B shall not apply to the portion of a Participant’s benefit that accrued and vested under the Plan on or after January 1, 2005.

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan (the “Plan”) are:
 

 
(a) to provide certain employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) with those benefits that cannot be

paid from the Company’s tax-qualified plans because of the limitations on contributions and benefits contained in Internal Revenue
Code section 415;

 

 
(b) to provide certain key management employees of the Company with those benefits that cannot be paid from the Company’s tax-

qualified plans because of other limitations on contributions and benefits contained in the Internal Revenue Code, such as the
limitations contained in Code section 401(a)(17); and

 

 (c) to provide certain key management employees of the Company with other supplemental benefits.

The following plans and predecessor plans are amended, restated and merged to form this Plan, effective July 1, 2004:
 

 5. Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan of Lockheed Martin Corporation (formerly the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan of
Lockheed Corporation)

 

 6. Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan (formerly the Martin Marietta Corporation Supplemental Excess
Retirement Plan)

 

 7. Lockheed Martin Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (formerly the Martin Marietta Supplemental Retirement Income Plan)
 

 8. Lockheed Martin Tactical Systems Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (formerly the Loral Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan).
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ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise or the term is defined below, all terms shall be defined in accordance with the Lockheed Martin
Corporation Retirement Program.

3. ACTUARIAL EQUIVALENT — The Actuarial equivalent shall mean a benefit which has the equivalent value computed using the interest
rate which would be used by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation to determine the present value of an immediate lump sum distribution on
termination of a pension plan, as in effect on first day of the month of termination of employment plus one percent (1%), and the 1983 Group
Annuity Mortality Table with sex distinction.

4. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons designated by the Participant as his or her beneficiary under the Qualified Pension Plan. If no
beneficiary is designated under the Qualified Pension Plan, then the beneficiary shall be (a) the Participant’s Spouse or (b) if there is no Spouse
surviving the Participant, the Participant’s estate.

3. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

4. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

5. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article VIII.

6. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries.

7. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who (1) participates in a Qualified Pension Plan and whose benefits thereunder
are affected by the limitation on benefits imposed by Section 415 or 401(a)(17) of the Code, or (2) is designated by the Committee as eligible to
participate in the Plan; and who satisfies such additional requirements for participation in this Plan as the Committee may from time to time
establish. The Lockheed Martin Pension Plans Administration Committee (the “Pension Committee”) shall interpret the participation requirements
established by the Committee for all participants except elected officers subject to Section 16(b) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934.
Determinations of participation requirements for elected officers shall be made by the Committee.

8. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee who meets the requirements for participation contained in Article III or the Annexes; the term
shall include a former employee and survivors/beneficiaries whose benefit has not been fully distributed. A Participant shall cease to be an active
Participant upon termination of employment, when he otherwise ceases to be an
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Eligible Employee, or when he otherwise ceases to meet the requirements for participation as amended from time to time.

9. QUALIFIED PENSION PLAN — A defined benefit plan specified in Appendix A in which the Participant participates.

10. PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan, or any successor plan.

11. YEAR — The calendar year.

ARTICLE III

EXCESS BENEFIT PROVISIONS

1. Introduction. This Article sets forth the terms of the Plan relating to benefits determined by reference to the limitations imposed by Code
section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)(17). This Article amends and restates the provisions relating to those benefits previously contained in the
following plans:
 

 (a) the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan of Lockheed Martin Corporation (formerly known as the Supplemental Benefit Plan of
Lockheed Corporation);

 

 (b) the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan (formerly know as the Martin Marietta Corporation
Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan); and

 

 (c) the Lockheed Martin Tactical Systems Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (formerly known as the Loral Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan).

2. Purpose. Benefits under this Article III supplement the benefits of Eligible Employees to the extent that such benefits cannot be paid from
the Company’s tax-qualified defined benefit plans because of the limitations on benefits contained in Code section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)
(17). It is intended that the provisions of this Article which relate to the limitations imposed by Code section 415 constitute a separate plan for
purposes of Section 3(36) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).

3. Eligibility. An Eligible Employee who is entitled to benefits under a Qualified Pension Plan, and whose retirement income benefits are
limited by the provisions of the Qualified Pension Plan (as amended from time to time) relating to the limits under Code section 415 and/or Code
section 401(a)(17) shall receive benefits pursuant to this Article III.
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4. Amount of Benefit. The benefit that each Participant shall be entitled to receive is the difference between the Participant’s actual benefit
under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan and the benefits that would have been payable under that Plan if:
 

 (a) the Qualified Pension Plan had determined pensionable earnings on a “mix and match” basis, as defined below; and
 

 (b) the Participant’s benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan had not been limited by Code section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)(17).

If a Participant’s compensation under the Management Incentive Compensation Plan (“MICP”) is included in pensionable earnings under a
Qualified Pension Plan, the Participant’s total pensionable earnings shall be determined on a “mix and match” basis. The Participant’s annual
compensation earned under the MICP shall be calculated separately from other annual pensionable earnings. The average of the three (3) highest
years of MICP compensation during the last 10 years shall be added to the average of the three (3) highest years of other pensionable earnings
during the last 10 years to arrive at total final average pensionable earnings for the applicable period under the Qualified Pension Plan.

Benefits under this Article III are intended to supplement the Participant’s actual benefit under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan as
necessary to provide the Participant with the full benefit the Participant would have received under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan on a “mix
and match” basis and without regard to the limitations of Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17). To prevent duplication of benefits, the full
benefit under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan shall be calculated without reduction for Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), then
reduced by the benefit payable from the applicable Qualified Pension Plan, and then reduced further by the benefit payable from other nonqualified
pension plans of the Company which corresponds to the benefit payable under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan (including any benefit payable
under Annex B of this Plan and excluding any nonqualified plans designed to supplement qualified defined contribution plans). The remaining
benefit shall be paid from this Plan pursuant to this Article III. Participants have no right to duplicate benefits with respect to the same period of
service, and the Committee may make such adjustments to the benefits under this Plan as the Committee deems necessary to prevent
duplication of benefits.

The benefit payable under this Article III shall be payable to the Participant or Beneficiary or any other person who is receiving or
entitled to receive benefits with respect to the Participant under the Qualified Pension Plan.

If the benefits payable under the Qualified Pension Plan to any Participant are increased following the Participant’s retirement as a
result of a general increase in the benefits payable to retired employees under that Plan, no such increase will be made under this Plan unless the
Committee expressly so provides in writing.
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ARTICLE IV

SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS

In addition to the benefits described in Article III, the Plan also provides benefits to certain key management employees, as set forth in the
Annexes. Eligibility for, and the amount of, such benefits is set forth in the applicable Annex. Payment options for such benefits are described in
Article V.

ARTICLE V

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. Vesting. Except as provided in Article VI, and subject to the Company’s right to discontinue the Plan as provided in Article VII, a
Participant shall have a non-forfeitable benefit payable under this Plan to the same extent as benefits are vested under the applicable Qualified
Pension Plan. As provided in Article VI, if a Participant acquires a right to receive payments under this Plan, such right shall be no greater than
the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company.

2. Form of Payment. Benefits shall be paid in the same form at the same times and for the same period as benefits are paid with respect to
the Participant under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan, except as provided in the following paragraphs. Actuarial adjustments shall be based
on the factors set forth in the Qualified Pension Plan, except as provided in the following paragraphs. If the benefits payable under this Plan
correspond to Qualified Pension Plan benefits with multiple commencement dates, each portion of the benefits payable under this Plan shall be
paid at the same time as the corresponding portion of the benefits is paid from the Qualified Pension Plan. If an Employee’s benefits under the
Qualified Pension Plan are suspended for any month in accordance with the re-employment provisions thereof, the Participant’s benefit for that
month shall likewise be suspended under this Plan.

Lump Sum Option. A Participant may irrevocably elect to receive a full or partial single lump sum payment in an amount which
is the Actuarial Equivalent of the benefit described above, and with no interest for the period between the date of termination of employment and
the payment date. This election must be made within the time period for electing the form of benefit under the corresponding Qualified Pension
Plan, by filing a written election in the form and manner prescribed by the Company. Payment will be made six (6) months following the date
payments would otherwise begin pursuant to the above paragraph.
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Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit. In the event the Participant dies prior to the date his or her retirement has commenced under
this Plan and the corresponding Qualified Pension Plan, the pre-retirement survivor benefit payable to the surviving spouse (if any) under this Plan
(the “Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit” and the “Surviving Spouse”) will be payable, at the election of the Surviving Spouse, in any of the following
forms:
 

 (a) in the form of a monthly annuity payable to the Surviving Spouse for his lifetime, with no further payments to anyone after his death
(which will be referred to as the “Regular Form”);

 

 
(b) in the form of a lump sum payment which is the Actuarial Equivalent of the Regular Form (the “100% Lump Sum”), but with Actuarial

Equivalent determined as of the Election Date , and with no interest for the period between the Election Date (or, if later, the date the
Participant would have attained age 55 had he survived) and the payment date; or

 

 

(c) in the form of a combined lump sum and life annuity benefit of (x) and (y), where (x) equals a lump sum amount selected by the
Surviving Spouse which is less than the 100% Lump Sum and (y) is a monthly single life annuity for the life of Surviving Spouse (with
no further payments to anyone after his death) in an amount that can be provided with the difference between (x) and the 100% Lump
Sum.

Any election to receive the benefit in the form of a lump sum as set forth in (b) above or a combined lump sum and annuity as set forth in
(c) above must be made by the Surviving Spouse no later than 90 days after the date of the Participant’s death or, if later, the date the Participant
would have attained age 55 had he survived (with the date such election is made by the Surviving Spouse referred to as the “Election Date”). In
the event the Surviving Spouse makes an election for a lump sum or partial lump sum payment within this period, payment will not be made to the
Surviving Spouse until six months after the Election Date (or, if later, six months after the date the benefit would otherwise be payable under this
Plan).

Cash-out of Small Benefits. Notwithstanding the above, if the Value of the sum of the benefits payable to a Participant or Beneficiary
under this Plan does not exceed the amount that may be distributed without consent under Section 411(a)(11) of the Code, all such benefits will be
paid in a single lump sum payment in full discharge of all liabilities with respect to such benefits. For purposes of this Section, Value shall be
determined as of the Participant’s termination of employment, and shall mean the present value of a Participant’s or Beneficiary’s benefits based
upon the applicable mortality table and applicable interest rate in Code section 417(e)(3)(ii) for the calendar month preceding the Plan Year in which
the termination of employment occurs.
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3. Deductibility of Payments. In the event that the payment of benefits under Section 2 would prevent the Company from claiming an income
tax deduction with respect to any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the right to modify the form and timing of distributions as
necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee
shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most closely approximate the payment method described in
Section 2, consistent with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to reduce a
Participant’s accrued benefit under this Plan or to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s accrued benefit in the event that all or a
portion thereof would not be deductible by the Company.

4. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the Committee determines in good faith, based on consultation with
counsel, that the federal income tax treatment or legal status of this Plan has or may be adversely affected by a change in the Code, Title I of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable law or by an administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee
may direct that the benefits of affected Participants or of all Participants be distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to
the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Committee to cure or mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in
law or interpretation thereof.

5. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the accrued benefit of each Participant shall be distributed in a single lump sum within

fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”

For purposes of this Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:
 

 (a) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(b) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that are not
Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75% of the
outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate by
the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination of
holders entitled
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 to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).
 

 

(c) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in and
satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange
Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then
outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(d) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

 

 (e) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.

This Section 5 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout of
benefits under this Plan in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 5 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control, this
Section 5 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any defined term
used in Section 6 shall not, for purposes of Section 5, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period

6. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder any Federal, state, or local
income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports,
statements, or information as may be legally required. No benefit payments shall be made to the Participant until the withholding obligation for
taxes under Code sections 3101(a) and 3101(b) has been satisfied with respect to the Participant.
 

- 27 -



7. Retiree Medical Withholding. A Participant may direct the Company to withhold from the Participant’s benefit payments hereunder all or a
portion of the amount that the Participant is required to pay for Company-provided retiree medical coverage.

8. Reemployment. The retirement benefit otherwise payable hereunder to any Participant who previously retired or otherwise had a
Termination of Employment and is subsequently reemployed shall be treated in a manner consistent with the treatment of the benefit under the
applicable Qualified Plan.

9. Mistaken Payments. No participant or Beneficiary shall have any right to any payment made (1) in error, (2) in contravention to the terms
of the Plan, the Code, or ERISA, or (3) because the Committee or its delegates were not informed of any death. The Committee shall have full
rights under the law and ERISA to recover any such mistaken payment, and the right to recover attorney’s fees and other costs incurred with
respect to such recovery. Recovery shall be made from future Plan payments, or by any other available means.

ARTICLE VI

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the future, and each
Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial interest in any specific
assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its
obligations under this Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422, and
the Company may direct that its obligations under this Plan be satisfied by payments out of such trust or trusts. The assets of any such trust will
remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Company. It is the Company’s intention that the Plan be unfunded for Federal income
tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary or transfer of an interest in this Plan to a Participant’s
former spouse incident to divorce under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.
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3. Forfeiture. If, following the date on which a Participant shall retire under this Plan, a Participant shall engage in the operation or
management of a business, whether as owner, stockholder, partner, officer, employee, consultant, or otherwise, which at such time is in
competition with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or shall disclose to unauthorized persons information relative to the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which the Participant shall have reason to believe is confidential, or otherwise act, or conduct oneself, in a
manner which the Participant shall have reason to believe is contrary to the best interest of the Company, or shall be found by the Committee to
have committed an act during the term of the Participant’s employment which would have justified the Participant being discharged for cause, the
Participant’s retirement benefit under this Plan shall terminate. Application of this Section will be at the discretion of the Committee.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Plan at any time subject to any
shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect of reducing a
Participant’s accrued benefit or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his accrued benefit unless each
affected Participant consents to such change.

2. Termination. The Board reserves the right to terminate this Plan at any time and to pay all Participants their accrued benefits in a lump
sum or to make other provisions for the payment of benefits (e.g. purchase of annuities) immediately following such termination or at such time
thereafter as the Board may determine.

3. Transfer of Liability. The Board reserves the right to transfer to another entity all of the obligations of Company with respect to a
Participant under this Plan if such entity agrees pursuant to a binding written agreement with the Company or its subsidiaries to assume all of the
obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant.

4. Merger. The Board reserves the right to merge all or part of this Plan with or into another plan, provided (1) such other plan preserves all of
the obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant and (2) each Participant in the Plan would (if the Plan then
terminated) receive a benefit immediately after the merger which is equal to or greater than the benefit he would have been entitled to receive
immediately before the merger (if the Plan had then terminated).
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ARTICLE VIII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Plan shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board or such
other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of
the members of the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written
consent of the Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and its delegates (including the Claims Administrator) shall
have full discretion to construe and interpret the terms and provisions of the Plan, which interpretation or construction shall be final, conclusive and
binding on all parties, including but not limited to the Company and any Participant or Beneficiary, except as otherwise provided by law. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 6, the Committee delegates the authority to adjudicate claims to the Pension Committee.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action
under this Plan, the Committee or its delegate may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Company. No
member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision specifically relating to his or
her individual rights or benefits under the Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have any liability to any party
for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Plan or for the failure of the Plan or any Participant’s rights under the Plan to achieve
intended tax consequences, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may direct that such
benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such
minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or the Claims Administrator) from all liability with respect thereto.
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5. Proof of Claims. The Pension Plans Administrative Committee may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or
incapacity of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is wholly or partially denied by the Claims Administrator are as follows:
 

 

(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a manner
calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to pertinent Plan
provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for the claimant to
perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the steps to be taken if the
claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of
ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not more than an additional 90 days if
special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall give the claimant, before the end of the
initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special circumstances and the date by which the Claims
Administrator expects to render a decision.

 

 (b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice described in
paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.

 

 

(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments, documents, records
and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be provided, upon
request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information “relevant” to claimant’s
claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in making the benefit determination;
(2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether such
document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or (3) demonstrates compliance with
administrative processes and safeguards required under federal law.
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(d) The Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information submitted by the claimant
relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination. The
Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60 days after receipt by the
Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120 days after such receipt if special
circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing prior to the expiration of the original 60 day
period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for the extension and the date by which it is expected
that a decision will be reached. The decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the
claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the
decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and
copies of all documents, records, and other information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional
material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is
necessary; (5) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such
procedures, if any; and (6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse
benefit determination on review.

 

 

(e) If in the event that the reviewing committee must make a determination of disability in order to decide a claim, the reviewing committee
shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor Regulation section 2560.503-1(d).
The reviewing committee shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days) after the claimant’s request for
review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 
(f) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Pension Plans Administrative Committee. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be the
Committee.

ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. This Plan shall not in any way obligate the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does this Plan
limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan
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constitute an employment contract of any nature whatsoever between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this Plan by its terms or
implications in any way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Any benefits accrued under this Plan shall not be treated as compensation for purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s
benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of Pension Plan Operations, Human Resource Services. Any written notice to a
Participant shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at
his or her place of residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company or the
Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this Plan.

5. Each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and consented to all the terms of this Plan and all actions or
decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with regard to the Plan.

6. The provisions of this Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the
Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal representatives.

7. The validity of this Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects under and by the laws of
the State of Maryland, except as to matters of Federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

8. This Plan and its operation, including the payment of cash hereunder, is subject to compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws,
rules and regulations and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the
Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.
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ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Plan, including any amendment and restatement of the prior plans, is generally effective July 1, 2004.

ANNEX A TO APPENDIX B

Additional Benefits under
Lockheed Martin Corporation Termination Benefits Agreements

1. Introduction. The benefits described in this Annex previously were provided as part of the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan of
Lockheed Martin Corporation. That Plan was formerly known as the Supplemental Benefit Plan of Lockheed Corporation.

2. Purpose. This Annex provides a supplemental benefit to those employees who entered into certain Termination Benefits Agreements with
Lockheed Corporation (now Lockheed Martin Corporation).

3. Eligibility. An Eligible Employee who entered into a Termination Benefits Agreement with Lockheed Corporation (now Lockheed Martin
Corporation) prior to August 29, 1994, shall receive benefits pursuant to this Annex.

4. Amount of Benefit. The benefit that each Eligible Employee shall be entitled to receive is any additional benefit to which the Eligible
Employee becomes entitled with respect to the Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees pursuant to
Section 6(a) of his or her Termination Benefits Agreement on account of the merger of Lockheed Corporation contemplated by the Agreement and
Plan of Reorganization, dated as of August 29, 1994, by and among Lockheed Martin Corporation, Martin Marietta Corporation, and Lockheed
Corporation.

ANNEX B TO APPENDIX B

Additional Benefits Previously Provided under the
Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan

1. Introduction. The benefits described in this Annex previously were provided as part of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental
Excess Retirement Plan. That Plan was formerly known as the Martin Marietta Corporation Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan, and included
provisions previously contained in the Lockheed Martin Supplemental Retirement Income Plan.
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2. Purpose. This Annex provides a supplemental benefit to salaried employees who were considered highly compensated employees as of
December 31, 1990 and who were also participants in the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan as of September 30, 1975, whose
benefits are limited by Code section 401(a)(4).

3. Eligibility. This Annex provides benefits to salaried employees who were considered highly compensated employees as of December 31,
1990 (as determined under the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan as in effect on that date) and who were also covered
employees in the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan as of September 30, 1975 or were participants for 12 consecutive months
prior to September 30, 1975 who receive a pension benefit calculated under the Pre-ERISA formula in the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement
Income Plan.

4. Amount of Benefit. Participants shall receive a retirement benefit from this Plan equal to the excess, if any, of (1) the pension benefit
calculated based on the formula described in Article V(1)(b) or Article IX(2)(b) of the January 1, 1995 Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement
Income Plan without regard to the limitation described in Article V(1)(c), Article IX(2)(c) or Code section 415 or Code section 401(a)(17), reduced by
the greater of the pension benefits described in Article V(1)(b) or Article IX(2)(b) of the January 1, 1995 Retirement Income Plan. To prevent
duplication of benefits, the benefit payable under this Annex shall be coordinated with any benefit payable under Article III of the Plan, as set forth
in Article III.

In no event shall the computation of benefits under this Annex take into account any service performed by a Participant after
separation from employment with the Company or its subsidiaries.

APPENDIX A TO APPENDIX B

Qualified Pension Plans
 
 1. Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees
 
 2. Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan
 
 3. Lockheed Martin Account Balance Retirement Plan
 
 4. Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan III
 
 5. Lockheed Martin Pension Plan for Former Salaried and Hourly Employees of Inactive Commercial Divisions
 
 6. KAPL Inc. Pension Plan for Salaried Employees
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Exhibit 10.5

[Transfer/Incentive Plan]

SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN
FOR CERTAIN TRANSFERRED EMPLOYEES

OF LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION

(Effective June 26, 2008)



ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation (the “Plan”)
are:
 

 (a) to provide an additional retirement benefit for certain employees whose regular retirement benefits have been limited as a result of
employment service at a Lockheed Martin company that does not have a Qualified Pension Plan; and

 

 (b) to provide an additional retirement benefit for certain employees hired on or after January 1, 2006 (January 1, 2007 for KAPL, Inc.) at a
Lockheed Martin company that has a Qualified Pension Plan that is frozen to new participants as of such date; and

 

 
(c) to provide the above employees with those benefits that cannot be paid from the tax-qualified plans of Lockheed Martin Corporation

and its subsidiaries because of the limitations on contributions and benefits contained in Internal Revenue Code sections 415 and
401(a)(17).

The following plans and predecessor plans were amended, restated and merged to form this Plan, effective July 1, 2004:
 

 1. Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation (formerly known as the
Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Corporation)

 

 2. Incentive Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Executives of Lockheed Martin Corporation (formerly known as the Incentive Retirement
Benefit Plan for Certain Executives of Lockheed Corporation)

The Plan was amended and restated, effective January 1, 2005, in order to comply with the requirements of Code section 409A. The 2005
amendment and restatement of the Plan applied only to the portion of a Participant’s benefit that accrued on or after January 1, 2005. The portion
of a Participant’s benefit that accrued prior to January 1, 2005 shall be governed by the terms of the Plan in effect on December 31, 2004,
attached as Appendix A. The Plan is hereby amended and restated, generally effective June 26, 2008, in order to clarify certain provisions in
accordance with the final Treasury Regulations issued under Code section 409A and to make other clarifications with respect to eligibility and
benefits.
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ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise or the term is defined below, all terms shall be defined in accordance with the Lockheed Martin
Corporation Salaried Employee Retirement Program:
 

 

1. ACTUARIAL EQUIVALENT – The Actuarial Equivalent shall mean a benefit which has the equivalent value computed using the
interest rate which would be used by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation to determine the present value of an immediate lump
sum distribution on termination of a pension plan, as in effect on first day of the month of termination of employment plus one percent
(1%), and the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table with sex distinction; provided that for Years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, in
no event shall the interest rate plus 1% exceed 7% or be less than 4%.

 

 2. BENEFICIARY — The Beneficiary of a Participant shall be (a) the Participant’s Spouse or (b) if there is no Spouse surviving the
Participant, the Participant’s estate.

 

 3. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.
 

 4. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 

 5. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article VIII.
 

 6. COMPANY – Lockheed Martin Corporation and its Subsidiaries.
 

 

7. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who meets the eligibility criteria in Section 1 of Article III or Section 1 of
Article IV, and who satisfies such additional requirements for participation in this Plan as the Committee may from time to time
establish. The Lockheed Martin Pension Plans Administrative Committee (the “Pension Committee”) shall interpret the participation
requirements established by the Committee for all Participants except elected officers subject to Section 16(b) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934. Determinations of participation requirements for elected officers shall be made by the Committee.

 

 
8. GRANDFATHERED 2004 BENEFIT — The benefit calculated under the terms of the Plan in effect prior to January 1, 2005 (attached

as Appendix A), determined as if the Participant had terminated from employment on December 31, 2004 (or the Participant’s actual
termination date, if earlier).
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9 PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee who meets the requirements for participation contained in Article III or Article IV; the term
shall include a former employee and survivors/beneficiaries whose benefit has not been fully distributed. A Participant shall cease to
be an active Participant upon termination of employment, when he ceases to be an Eligible Employee, or when he ceases to meet the
requirements for participation as amended from time to time.

 

 10. QUALIFIED PENSION PLAN – The Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees, the Lockheed
Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan and the Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan III, or any successor plans.

 

 11. PLAN – The Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation, or any
successor plan.

 

 
12. SUBSIDIARY — As to any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50% or

more of the voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporation), is owned or controlled (directly or
indirectly) by that entity, or by one or more of the Subsidiaries of that entity, or by a combination thereof.

 

 13. YEAR — The calendar year.

ARTICLE III

TRANSFER BENEFITS

1. Eligibility. Benefits pursuant to this Article III are available to employees of the Company who:
 

 (a) are Members of the Qualified Pension Plan, and
 

 (i) are transferred to a Participating Company that does not have a Qualified Pension Plan, and
 

 (ii) are identified by such Participating Company as a key employee at the time of such transfer, and
 

 (iii) are designated in writing by the Committee as a Participant in this Plan;
 

 (b) effective January 1, 2006 (January 1, 2007 for KAPL, Inc.), are not Members of the Qualified Pension Plan, and
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 (i) are hired by a Participating Company on or after January 1, 2006 (or by KAPL, Inc. on or after January 1, 2007), and
 

 (ii) are Vice Presidents (Level 8) or above on their date of hire, or are promoted to Vice President (Level 8) after their date of hire,
and

 

 (iii) are not hired by a Participating Company pursuant to the Company’s acquisition of an entity that does not sponsor a qualified
defined benefit pension plan.

A “Participating Company” is a business unit designated in writing by the Committee as a unit participating in this Plan. A list of
Participating Units is set forth in Schedule 1.

2. Amount of Benefit. The benefit that each Participant shall be entitled to receive under the Plan is the amount reasonably determined by
the Company to be the difference between the Participant’s actual benefit, if any, under the Qualified Pension Plan and the benefits that would
have been payable under that Plan, subject to the offset below, if:
 

 (a) the Qualified Pension Plan had determined pensionable earnings on a “mix and match” basis, as defined below;
 

 (b) the Participant’s period of employment service as a Participant at a Participating Company at which no Credited Service is earned was
deemed to be years of Credited Service under the Qualified Pension Plan; and

 

 (c) the Participant’s benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan had not been limited by Code section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)(17).

If a Participant’s compensation under the Management Incentive Compensation Plan (“MICP”) is included in pensionable earnings
under the Qualified Pension Plan, the Participant’s total pensionable earnings shall be determined on a “mix and match” basis. The Participant’s
annual compensation earned under the MICP shall be calculated separately from other annual pensionable earnings. The average of the three
(3) highest years of MICP compensation during the last 10 years shall be added to the average of the three (3) highest years of other pensionable
earnings during the last 10 years to arrive at total final average pensionable earnings for the applicable period under the Qualified Pension Plan.

The above benefit (the “Transfer Benefit”) shall be offset by the benefits payable on behalf of the Participant under the Lockheed Martin
Corporation Capital Accumulation Plan (the “Lockheed Martin CAP”) and under the Lockheed Martin Account Balance Retirement Plan (“ABRP”). In
calculating the offset, the Participant’s total account balance from the Lockheed Martin CAP shall be converted into an annuity using the 1983
Group Annuity Mortality Table for males and shall be calculated as of the Participant’s termination of employment, using the
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PBGC immediate interest rate for lump sums rate plus 1% and the Participant’s age on the date of distribution. If the Participant received any prior
distributions from the Lockheed Martin CAP, the Transfer Benefit shall be reduced by the annuity value of the prior distribution, using the Lockheed
Martin CAP distribution amount, the PBGC interest rate plus 1% and Participant’s age on the date of distribution. The Transfer Benefit is then
reduced for the amount of the normal retirement benefit from the ABRP.

Combined benefits under this Article III, the Lockheed Martin CAP and the ABRP are intended to supplement the Participant’s actual
benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan as necessary to provide the Participant with the full benefit the Participant would have received under the
Qualified Pension Plan on a “mix and match” basis, without regard to the limitations of Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), and with the
special adjustments described above. To prevent duplication of benefits, the full benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan and the enhanced
Transfer Benefit described above shall be calculated without reduction for Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), then reduced by the
benefit payable from the Qualified Pension Plan (without regard to the portion of such benefit attributable to employee contributions, if any), then
reduced by the benefit payable from the Lockheed Martin CAP and ABRP, and then reduced by the 2004 Grandfathered Benefit. The remainder of
the benefit shall be paid from this Plan. Participants have no right to duplicate benefits with respect to the same period of service, and the
Committee may make such adjustments to the benefits under this Plan as the Committee deems necessary to prevent duplication of benefits.

The benefit payable under this Article III shall be payable to the Participant or Beneficiary or any other person who is receiving or
entitled to receive benefits with respect to the Participant under the Qualified Pension Plan.

If the benefits payable under the Qualified Pension Plan to any Participant are increased following the Participant’s retirement as a
result of a general increase in the benefits payable to retired employees under that Plan, no such increase will be made under this Plan.

ARTICLE IV

INCENTIVE BENEFITS

1. Eligibility. Benefits pursuant to this Article IV are available to the employees described below. However, an employee who terminated
employment with Lockheed Corporation prior to January 1, 1984, when eligible for a deferred retirement benefit under Section 5.03 of the Lockheed
Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees is not eligible to receive a benefit under this Article IV.

An employee or former employee of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries who:
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 (a) is employed by a Lockheed Martin business unit that is not covered by a Qualified Pension Plan, and
 

 (b) is identified by such business unit as a key employee, and
 

 

(c) at the time of eligibility for benefits is, or for any year during his or her last ten (10) years of service with Lockheed Martin Corporation
was, a participant in the Lockheed Martin Corporation Management Incentive Compensation Plan (including the Deferred Management
Incentive Compensation Plan of Lockheed Martin Corporation), or any incentive compensation plan of any subsidiary or affiliated
corporation of Lockheed Martin Corporation which the Committee determines is a corresponding incentive plan; and

 

 (d) who has been specifically designated in writing by the Committee as a Participant; and
 

 (e) who is not eligible for a benefit under Article III of this Plan

2. Amount of Benefit.
A. Normal or Disability Retirement. The benefit payable under this Article IV to a Participant is the amount reasonably determined to be

the difference between the Participant’s actual benefit under the Lockheed Martin Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees (or such other
Qualified Pension Plan as designated by the Committee (the “Designated Qualified Plan”) and the benefits that would have been payable under
that Plan, subject to the offset below, if:
 

 (a) the Designated Qualified Plan had determined pensionable earnings on a “mix and match” basis, as defined below;
 

 
(b) the Participant’s period of employment service as a Participant with the Company during which period no Credited Service is earned

either because the Participant was not in a covered group or because of a limitation on Credited Service under the Qualified Pension,
was deemed to be years of Credited Service under the Designated Qualified Pension Plan; and

 

 (c) the Participant’s benefit under the Designated Qualified Plan had not been limited by Code section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)(17).

If a Participant’s compensation under the Management Incentive Compensation Plan (“MICP”) is included in pensionable earnings
under the Qualified Pension Plan, the Participant’s total pensionable earnings shall be determined on a “mix and match” basis. The Participant’s
annual compensation earned under the MICP shall be calculated separately from other annual pensionable earnings. The average of the highest
years of MICP compensation shall
 

6



be added to the average of the highest years of other pensionable earnings to arrive at total final average pensionable earnings for the applicable
period under the Qualified Pension Plan.

The above benefit (the “Incentive Benefit”) shall be offset by the benefits payable on behalf of the Participant under the Lockheed
Martin Corporation Capital Accumulation Plan (the “Lockheed Martin CAP”) and under the Lockheed Martin Account Balance Retirement Plan
(“ABRP”). In calculating the offset, the Participant’s total account balance from the Lockheed Martin CAP shall be converted into an annuity using
the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table and shall be calculated as of the Participant’s termination of employment, using the PBGC immediate
interest rate for lump sums rate plus 1% and Participant’s age on the date of distribution. If the Participant received any prior distributions from the
Lockheed Martin CAP, the Incentive Benefit shall be reduced by the annuity value of the prior distribution, using the Lockheed Martin CAP
distribution amount, PBGC immediate interest rate for lump sums rate plus 1% and Participant’s age on the date of distribution. The Incentive
Benefit is then reduced for the amount of the Participant’s normal retirement benefit from the ABRP, and then reduced by the Participant’s 2004
Grandfathered Benefit.

C. No Duplication. Combined benefits under this Article IV, the Lockheed Martin CAP and the ABRP are intended to supplement the
Participant’s actual benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan as necessary to provide the Participant with the full benefit the Participant would have
received under the Qualified Pension Plan on a “mix and match” basis, without regard to the limitations of Code section 415 and Code section
401(a)(17), and with the special adjustments described above. To prevent duplication of benefits, the full benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan
and the enhanced Incentive Benefit described above shall be calculated without reduction for Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), then
reduced by the benefit payable from the Qualified Pension Plan then reduced by the benefit payable from the Lockheed Martin CAP and ABRP,
and then reduced by the Participant’s 2004 Grandfathered Benefit. The remainder of the benefit shall be paid from this Plan. Participants have no
right to duplicate benefits with respect to the same period of service, and the Committee may make such adjustments to the benefits under this
Plan as the Committee deems necessary to prevent duplication of benefits.

The benefit payable under this Article IV shall be payable to the Participant or Beneficiary or any other person who would be entitled to
receive benefits with respect to the Participant under the Designated Qualified Plan.

If the benefits that would be payable under the Designated Qualified Plan to any Participant are increased following the Participant’s
retirement as a result of a general increase in the benefits payable to retired employees under that Plan, no such increase will be made under this
Plan.
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ARTICLE V

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. Vesting. Except as provided in Article VI, and subject to the Company’s right to discontinue the Plan as provided in Article VII, a
Participant shall have a non-forfeitable interest in benefits payable under this Plan to the same extent as benefits are vested under the applicable
Qualified Pension Plan. As provided in Article VI, if a Participant acquires a right to receive payments under this Plan, such right shall be no
greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company.

2. Form and Timing of Payment.
 

 

(a) Regular Form. A Participant may elect to receive benefits in any annuity form that is available under a Qualified Pension Plan on the
date of the Participant’s election that has been designated by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources as available for election
under this Plan, provided (i) the election is filed with the Company in writing no later than the later of (a) December 16, 2005 and (b) the
date that is 30 days after the Participant commences participation in the Plan, and (ii) the Participant’s employment has not terminated
prior to filing the election. All elections under this Section 2.a. must be made in the form and manner prescribed by the Company. If the
Participant has not validly elected any annuity form under this Section 2.a. or a lump sum payment as provided in Section 2.b. of
Article V, (i) an unmarried Participant shall be deemed to have elected payment in the form of a monthly annuity for the life of the
Participant with no further payments to anyone after his or her death, and (ii) a married Participant shall be deemed to have elected
payment in the form of a reduced monthly annuity for the life of the Participant with, after the Participant’s death, a 50% survivor
annuity for the life of the Participant’s spouse. Actuarial adjustments shall be based on the factors set forth in the Qualified Pension
Plan. Benefits paid in a form described in this Section 2.a. shall commence as soon as administratively practicable following the later
of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates employment, or (ii) the month in which the Participant attains age fifty-five (55).
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, benefits paid in a form described in this Section 2.a. to a Participant who is reasonably
determined by the Company to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code section 409A(2)(B)(i), shall not commence before
six (6) months following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates employment, or (ii) the month in which the
Participant attains age fifty-five (55). No interest shall be paid between the date of termination of employment or attainment of age fifty-
five (55), as applicable, and the payment date.

 

 (b) Lump Sum Option. In lieu of the forms described in Section 2.a. of Article V, a Participant may make a one-time election to receive a
full lump sum payment in
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an amount which is the Actuarial Equivalent of a monthly annuity for the life of the Participant with no further payments to anyone after
his or her death, provided the election is filed with the Company in writing no later than December 15, 2008 and the Participant’s
employment has not terminated prior to filing the election. For all Participants who elect a lump sum under this Section 2.b., the lump
sum payment shall be made six (6) months following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates employment, or
(ii) the month in which the Participant attains age fifty-five (55). No interest shall be paid between the date of termination of
employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable, and the payment date. All elections under this Section 2.b. must be
made in the form and manner prescribed by the Company. This Section shall not apply to Participants who first become eligible for
participation in the Plan after December 16, 2005.

 

 

(c) Cash-out of Small Benefits. Notwithstanding the above, if the Value of the sum of the benefits payable to a Participant or Beneficiary
under this Plan does not exceed $10,000, all such benefits will be paid in a single lump sum payment in full discharge of all liabilities
with respect to such benefits. For purposes of this Section, Value shall be determined as of the Participant’s termination of
employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable, and shall mean the present value of a Participant’s or Beneficiary’s
benefits, excluding the Grandfathered 2004 Benefit, based (i) for terminations prior to January 1, 2008 upon the applicable mortality
table and applicable interest rate in Code section 417(e)(3)(ii), or for terminations on or after January 1, 2008, upon the applicable
mortality table and applicable interest rate under Code section 417(e)(3), as amended by the Pension Protection Act of 2006, for the
calendar month preceding the Plan Year in which the termination of employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55) occurs.
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, benefits paid under this Section 2.c. to a Participant who is reasonably determined by the
Company to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code section 409A(2)(B)(i), shall not commence before six (6) months
following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates employment, or (ii) the month in which the Participant attains age
fifty-five (55). No interest shall be paid between the date of termination of employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable,
and the payment date.

 

 (d) Payment Upon Death or Disability.
 

 i. Death. No other death benefits are provided under this Plan other than as specified in this Section 2.d.i.
 

 A. Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit. In the event the Participant dies prior to terminating employment or attaining age fifty-
five (55), a pre-retirement survivor benefit will be payable to the Participant’s
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surviving spouse (if any) (the “Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit” and the “Surviving Spouse”) in the form elected by the
Participant under the terms of the Plan. If the Participant’s benefit was payable in a lump sum, the lump sum shall be the
Actuarial Equivalent of a monthly annuity payable for the life of the Surviving Spouse with no further payments to anyone
after his or her death. The Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit shall commence as soon as administratively practicable
following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant dies, or (ii) the month in which the Participant would have
attained age fifty-five (55). Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to all Participants who elected a lump sum under
Section 2.b., a lump sum Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit shall be paid to the Participant’s Surviving Spouse six
(6) months following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant dies, or (ii) the month in which the Participant would
have attained age fifty-five (55). No Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit is payable to anyone other than the Participant’s
Surviving Spouse.

 

 

B. Death After Termination of Employment or Attainment of Age 55. If a Participant who is required to wait six (6) months for
a lump sum payment (in accordance with Section 2 of Article V) dies after the Participant’s termination of employment or
attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable, but before payment is made, the lump sum payment shall be made to the
Participant’s Beneficiary.

 

 

ii. Disability. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Article V, the benefit of a Disabled Participant who is eligible for a disability
pension from the Lockheed Martin Retirement Income Plan or the Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan III shall
be paid in the form elected by the Participant under the terms of the Plan as soon as administratively practicable following the
date the Participant is reasonably determined by the Company to be Disabled. For the purposes of this Section 2.d.ii., the
terms “Disabled” or “Disability” shall have the meaning set forth in the Lockheed Martin Retirement Income Plan or the
Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan III, as applicable, to the extent consistent with the requirements of Code
section 409A(a)(2(C).

 

 

(e) Prospective Change of Payment Elections. Participants may elect to change the form of payment of benefits or further delay the
commencement of benefits as provided in this Section 2.e. All elections under this Section 2.e. must be made in the form and manner
prescribed by the Company. This Section 2.e. does not apply to Surviving Spouses or Beneficiaries. Subject to the provisions of
Section
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 1 of Article VIII, other changes in the form of benefit, including changes between actuarially equivalent forms of benefit, if any, may be
made only as determined by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, of the Company in accordance with Code section 409A.

 

 

i. Form of Payment. A Participant who has validly elected payment in a form described in Section 2.a. of Article V or has elected
a lump sum payment in accordance with Section 2.b. of Article V may later elect to receive payment in any other annuity form
designated by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, of the Company, provided that such election is made in writing not
less than twelve (12) months before the date the payment would have first commenced under the Participant’s prior election. In
addition, the first payment under the new election must commence no earlier than sixty (60) months from the date when the
payment would have first commenced under the Participant’s prior election. The timing of the payment of any form available
under this Section 2.e.i. shall be governed by Section 2.a. of this Article V.

 

 

ii. Timing of Payment. Regardless of the form of payment, a Participant may elect to delay payment of his benefit provided such
election is made in writing not less than twelve (12) months before the date the payment would have first commenced under the
Participant’s prior election. In addition, the first payment under the new election must commence no earlier than sixty
(60) months from when the payment would have first commenced under the Participant’s prior election.

This Section 2.e. does not apply to Surviving Spouses or Beneficiaries.

(f) Notwithstanding the above, for periods prior to January 1, 2009, (or such later date as may be provided by the Internal Revenue Service in
guidance of general applicability), the Senior Vice President, Human Resources may provide alternative rules for elections with respect to the
commencement of payment and form of payment, provided that such rules conform to Code section 409A and Internal Revenue Service guidance
issued thereunder.

(g) If a Participant participates in more than one supplemental pension plan sponsored by the Corporation, the Participant must make a
single election that shall apply to his or her benefits under all such plans with respect to the form of annuity (under Section 2.a. of this Article 5)
and with respect to prospective changes of payment (under Section 2.e. of this Article 5).

3. Deductibility of Payments. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII , in the event that the payment of benefits under Section 2
would prevent the Company from claiming an income tax deduction with respect to any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the
right to modify the form and timing of distributions as necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to
adopt a modified distribution
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schedule, the Committee shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most closely approximate the payment
method described in Section 2 consistent with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to
reduce a Participant’s accrued benefit under this Plan or to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s accrued benefit in the event that all
or a portion thereof would not be deductible by the Company.

4. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, if the Committee
determines in good faith, based on consultation with counsel, that the federal income tax treatment or legal status of this Plan has or may be
adversely affected by a change in the Code, Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable law or by an
administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee may direct that the benefits of affected Participants or of all Participants be
distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Committee to cure or
mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in law or interpretation thereof.

5. Acceleration upon Change in Control. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the accrued benefit of each Participant shall be
one-hundred percent (100%) vested and be distributed in a single lump sum within fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”

For purposes of this Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:
 

 (a) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(b) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that are not
Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75% of the
outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate by
the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination of
holders entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).

 

 
(c) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in and

satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange
Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company
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 representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of
directors of the Company.

 

 

(d) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

 

 (e) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no distribution shall be made solely on account of a Change in Control and prior to the benefit
commencement date specified in Section 2 of Article V unless the Change in Control is an event qualifying for a distribution of deferred
compensation under Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(v) of the Code.

This Section 5 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout of
benefits under this Plan in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 5 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control, this
Section 5 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any defined term
used in Section 5 shall not, for purposes of Section 5, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period

6. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder any Federal, state, or local
income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports,
statements, or information as may be legally required. No benefit payments shall be made to the Participant until the withholding obligation for
taxes under Code sections 3101(a) and 3101(b) has been satisfied with respect to the Participant.

7. Retiree Medical Withholding. A Participant may direct the Company to withhold from the Participant’s benefit payments hereunder all or a
portion of the amount that the Participant is required to pay for Company-provided retiree medical coverage.
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8. Reemployment. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, the retirement benefit otherwise payable hereunder to any Participant
who previously retired or otherwise had a Termination of Employment and is subsequently reemployed shall be treated in a manner consistent with
the treatment of the benefit under the applicable Qualified Plan.

9. Mistaken Payments. No Participant or Beneficiary shall have any right to any payment made (1) in error, (2) in contravention to the terms
of the Plan, the Code, or ERISA, or (3) because the Committee or its delegates were not informed of any death. The Committee shall have full
rights under the law and ERISA to recover any such mistaken payment, and the right to recover attorney’s fees and other costs incurred with
respect to such recovery. Recovery shall be made from future Plan payments, or by any other available means.

ARTICLE VI

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the future, and each
Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial interest in any specific
assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its
obligations under this Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422, and
the Company may direct that its obligations under this Plan be satisfied by payments out of such trust or trusts. The assets of any such trust will
remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Company. It is the Company’s intention that the Plan be unfunded for Federal income
tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary or transfer of an interest in this Plan to a Participant’s
former spouse incident to divorce under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

3. Forfeiture. If, following the date on which a Participant shall retire under this Plan, a Participant shall engage in the operation or
management of a business, whether as owner, stockholder, partner, officer, employee, consultant, or otherwise, which at such time is in
competition with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or shall disclose to unauthorized persons information relative to the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which the Participant shall have reason to believe is confidential, or otherwise act, or conduct oneself, in a
manner which the Participant shall have reason to believe is contrary to the best interest of the Company, or shall be found by the Committee to
have committed an act during the term of the
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Participant’s employment which would have justified the Participant being discharged for cause, the Participant’s retirement benefit under this Plan
shall terminate. Application of this Section will be at the discretion of the Committee.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Plan at any time subject to any
shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect of reducing a
Participant’s accrued benefit or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his accrued benefit unless each
affected Participant consents to such change.

2. Termination. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VIII, the Board reserves the right to terminate this Plan at any time and to
pay all Participants their accrued benefits in a lump sum or to make other provisions for the payment of benefits (e.g. purchase of annuities)
immediately following such termination or at such time thereafter as the Board may determine.

3. Transfer of Liability. The Board reserves the right to transfer to another entity all of the obligations of Company with respect to a
Participant under this Plan if such entity agrees pursuant to a binding written agreement with the Company or its subsidiaries to assume all of the
obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant.

4. Merger. The Board reserves the right to merge all or part of this Plan with or into another plan, provided (1) such other plan preserves all of
the obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant and (2) each Participant in the Plan would (if the Plan then
terminated) receive a benefit immediately after the merger which is equal to or greater than the benefit he would have been entitled to receive
immediately before the merger (if the Plan had then terminated).

ARTICLE VIII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Plan shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board or such
other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of
the members of the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written
consent of the Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and its delegates (including the Claims Administrator) shall
have full discretion to construe and interpret the terms and provisions of the
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Plan, which interpretation or construction shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties, including but not limited to the Company and any
Participant or Beneficiary, except as otherwise provided by law. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Plan or in any document issued under
the Plan, it is intended that the Plan will at all times conform to the requirements of Code section 409A and any regulations or other guidance
issued thereunder, and that the provisions of the Plan will be interpreted to meet such requirements. If any provision of the Plan is determined not
to conform to such requirements, the Plan shall be interpreted to omit such offending provision.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action
under this Plan, the Committee or its delegate may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Company.
Except as otherwise provided in Section 6, the Committee delegates the authority to adjudicate claims to the Pension Plans Administration
Committee. No member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision specifically
relating to his or her individual rights or benefits under the Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have any liability to any party
for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Plan or for the failure of the Plan or any Participant’s rights under the Plan to achieve
intended tax consequences, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may direct that such
benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such
minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or Claims Administrator) from all liability with respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Committee or Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or incapacity
of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is wholly or partially denied by the Claims Administrator are as follows:
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(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a manner
calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to pertinent Plan
provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for the claimant to
perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the steps to be taken if the
claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of
ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not more than an additional 90 days if
special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall give the claimant, before the end of the
initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special circumstances and the date by which the Claims
Administrator expects to render a decision.

 

 (b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice described in
paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.

 

 

(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments, documents, records
and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be provided, upon
request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information “relevant” to claimant’s
claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in making the benefit determination;
(2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether such
document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or (3) demonstrates compliance with
administrative processes and safeguards required under Federal law.

 
17



 

(d) The Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information submitted by the claimant
relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination. The
Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60 days after receipt by the
Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120 days after such receipt if special
circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing prior to the expiration of the original 60 day
period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for the extension and the date by which it is expected
that a decision will be reached. The decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the
claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the
decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and
copies of all documents, records, and other information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional
material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is
necessary; (5) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such
procedures, if any; and (6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse
benefit determination on review. If in the event that the reviewing committee must make a determination of disability in order to decide
a claim, the reviewing committee shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor
Regulation section 2560.503-1(d). The reviewing committee shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days)
after the claimant’s request for review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 (e) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Pension Plan Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with
respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be the Committee.
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ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. This Plan shall not in any way obligate the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does this Plan
limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan constitute an
employment contract of any nature whatsoever between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this Plan by its terms or implications in
any way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Any benefits accrued under this Plan shall not be treated as compensation for purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s
benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of Pension Plan Operations, Human Resource Services. Any written notice to a
Participant shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at
his or her place of residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company or the
Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this Plan.

5. Each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and consented to all the terms of this Plan and all actions or
decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with regard to the Plan.

6. The provisions of this Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the
Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal representatives.

7. A copy of this Plan shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under the Plan at reasonable
times at the offices of the Company.

8. The validity of this Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects under and by the laws of
the State of Maryland, except as to matters of Federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of competent
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jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

9. This Plan and its operation, including the payment of cash hereunder, is subject to compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws,
rules and regulations and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the
Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.

ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Plan, including any amendment and restatement of the prior plans, is generally effective June 26, 2008.
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APPENDIX A TO JANUARY 1, 2005 RESTATEMENT

This Appendix A shall apply to the portion of a Participant’s benefit that accrued and vested on or before December 31, 2004. This Appendix
A shall not apply to the portion of a Participant’s benefit that accrues or becomes vested on or after January 1, 2005.

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation (the “Plan”)
are:
 

 (a) to provide an additional retirement benefit for certain employees whose regular retirement benefits have been limited as a result of
employment service at a Lockheed Martin company that does not have a Qualified Pension Plan; and

 

 
(b) to provide the above employees with those benefits that cannot be paid from the tax-qualified plans of Lockheed Martin Corporation

and its subsidiaries because of the limitations on contributions and benefits contained in Internal Revenue Code sections 415 and
401(a)(17).

The following plans and predecessor plans are amended, restated and merged to form this Plan, effective July 1, 2004:
 

 3. Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation (formerly known as the
Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Corporation)

 

 4. Incentive Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Executives of Lockheed Martin Corporation (formerly known as the Incentive Retirement
Benefit Plan for Certain Executives of Lockheed Corporation)

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise or the term is defined below, all terms shall be defined in accordance with the Lockheed Martin
Corporation Salaried Retirement Program:
 

 1. ACTUARIAL EQUIVALENT — The Actuarial Equivalent shall mean a benefit which has the equivalent value computed using the
interest rate which would be used by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation to determine the present value
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 of an immediate lump sum distribution on termination of a pension plan, as in effect on first day of the month of termination of
employment plus one percent (1%), and the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table with sex distinction.

 

 

2. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons designated by the Participant as his or her beneficiary under the applicable Qualified Pension
Plan (or, if the Participant has never been covered under a Qualified Pension Plan, the person or persons designated by the Participant
as his or her beneficiary under this Plan on such form as required by the Committee). If no beneficiary is designated under the
Qualified Pension Plan or under this Plan, or if no designated beneficiary survives the Participant, the Participant’s estate shall be the
beneficiary.

 

 3. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.
 

 4. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 

 5. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article VIII.
 

 6. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries.
 

 

7. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who meets the eligibility criteria in Section 1 of Article III or Section 1 of
Article IV, and who satisfies such additional requirements for participation in this Plan as the Committee may from time to time
establish. The Lockheed Martin Pension Plans Administrative Committee (the “Pension Committee”) shall interpret the participation
requirements established by the Committee for all Participants except elected officers subject to Section 16(b) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934. Determinations of participation requirements for elected officers shall be made by the Committee

 

 

8. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee who meets the requirements for participation contained in Article III or Article IV; the term
shall include a former employee and survivors/beneficiaries whose benefit has not been fully distributed. A Participant shall cease to
be an active Participant upon termination of employment, when he ceases to be an Eligible Employee, or when he ceases to meet the
requirements for participation as amended from time to time.

 

 9. QUALIFIED PENSION PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees, the Lockheed
Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan and the Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan III, or any successor plans.

 

 10. PLAN — The Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan for Certain Transferred Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation, or any
successor plan.
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 11. YEAR — The calendar year.

ARTICLE III

TRANSFER BENEFITS

1. Eligibility. Benefits pursuant to this Article III are available to employees of the Company who:
 

 (a) are Members of the Qualified Pension Plan, and
 

 (b) are transferred to a Participating Company that does not have a Qualified Pension Plan, and
 

 (c) are identified by such Participating Company as a key employee at the time of such transfer, and
 

 (d) are designated in writing by the Committee as a Participant in this Plan.

A “Participating Company” is a business unit designated in writing by the Committee as a unit participating in this Plan. A list of Participating Units
is set forth in Schedule 1.

2. Amount of Benefit. The benefit that each Participant shall be entitled to receive is the difference between the Participant’s actual benefit
under the Qualified Pension Plan and the benefits that would have been payable under that Plan, subject to the offset below, if:
 

 (a) the Qualified Pension Plan had determined pensionable earnings on a “mix and match” basis, as defined below;
 

 (b) the Participant’s period of employment service as a Participant at a Participating Company at which no Credited Service is earned was
deemed to be years of Credited Service under the Qualified Pension Plan; and

 

 (c) the Participant’s benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan had not been limited by Code section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)(17).

If a Participant’s compensation under the Management Incentive Compensation Plan (“MICP”) is included in pensionable earnings
under the Qualified Pension Plan, the Participant’s total pensionable earnings shall be determined on a “mix and match” basis. The Participant’s
annual compensation earned under the MICP shall be calculated separately from other annual pensionable earnings. The average of the three
(3) highest years of MICP compensation during the last 10 years shall be added to the average of the three (3) highest years
 

23



of other pensionable earnings during the last 10 years to arrive at total final average pensionable earnings for the applicable period under the
Qualified Pension Plan.

The above benefit (the “Transfer Benefit”) shall be offset by the benefits payable on behalf of the Participant under the Lockheed Martin
Corporation Capital Accumulation Plan (the “Lockheed Martin CAP”) and under the Lockheed Martin Account Balance Retirement Plan (“ABRP”). In
calculating the offset, the Participant’s total account balance from the Lockheed Martin CAP shall be converted into an annuity using the 1983
Group Annuity Mortality Table for males and the PBGC interest rate. The benefits payable under the Lockheed Martin CAP shall be calculated as
of the Participant’s termination of employment, using the Actuarial Equivalent. If the Participant received any prior distributions from the Lockheed
Martin CAP, the Transfer Benefit shall be reduced by the annuity value of the prior distribution, using the Lockheed Martin CAP distribution
amount, the PBGC interest rate plus 1% and Participant’s age on the date of distribution. The Transfer Benefit is then reduced for the amount of
the normal retirement benefit from the ABRP.

Combined benefits under this Article III, the Lockheed Martin CAP and the ABRP are intended to supplement the Participant’s actual
benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan as necessary to provide the Participant with the full benefit the Participant would have received under the
Qualified Pension Plan on a “mix and match” basis, without regard to the limitations of Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), and with the
special adjustments described above. To prevent duplication of benefits, the full benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan and the enhanced
Transfer Benefit described above shall be calculated without reduction for Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), then reduced by the
benefit payable from the Qualified Pension Plan, and then reduced by the benefit payable from the Lockheed Martin CAP and ABRP. The
remainder of the benefit shall be paid from this Plan. Participants have no right to duplicate benefits with respect to the same period of service,
and the Committee may make such adjustments to the benefits under this Plan as the Committee deems necessary to prevent duplication of
benefits.

The benefit payable under this Article III shall be payable to the Participant or Beneficiary or any other person who is receiving or
entitled to receive benefits with respect to the Participant under the Qualified Pension Plan.

If the benefits payable under the Qualified Pension Plan to any Participant are increased following the Participant’s retirement as a
result of a general increase in the benefits payable to retired employees under that Plan, no such increase will be made under this Plan unless the
Committee expressly so provides in writing.
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ARTICLE IV

INCENTIVE BENEFITS

1. Eligibility. Benefits pursuant to this Article IV are available to the employees described below. However, an employee who terminated
employment with Lockheed Corporation prior to January 1, 1984, when eligible for a deferred retirement benefit under Section 5.03 of the Lockheed
Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees is not eligible to receive a benefit under this Article IV.

An employee or former employee of Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries who:
 

 (a) is employed by a Lockheed Martin business unit that is not covered by a Qualified Pension Plan, and
 

 (b) is identified by such business unit as a key employee, and
 

 

(c) at the time of eligibility for benefits is, or for any year during his or her last ten (10) years of service with Lockheed Martin
Corporation was, a participant in the Lockheed Martin Corporation Management Incentive Compensation Plan (including the
Deferred Management Incentive Compensation Plan of Lockheed Martin Corporation), or any incentive compensation plan of
any subsidiary or affiliated corporation of Lockheed Martin Corporation which the Committee determines is a corresponding
incentive plan; and

 

 (d) who has been specifically designated in writing by the Committee as a Participant; and
 

 (e) who is not eligible for a benefit under Article III of this Plan.

2. Amount of Benefit.
A. Normal or Disability Retirement. The benefit payable under this Article IV to a Participant at normal retirement age is the difference

between the Participant’s actual benefit under the Lockheed Martin Retirement Plan for Certain Salaried Employees (or such other Qualified
Pension Plan as designated by the Committee ( the “Designated Qualified Plan”) and the benefits that would have been payable under that Plan,
subject to the offset below, if:
 

 (a) the Designated Qualified Plan had determined pensionable earnings on a “mix and match” basis, as defined below;
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(b) the Participant’s period of employment service as a Participant with the Company at which no Credited Service is earned because the

Participant was not in a covered group or because of a limitation on Credited Service under the Qualified Pension Plan was deemed to
be years of Credited Service under the Designated Qualified Pension Plan; and

 

 (c) the Participant’s benefit under the Designated Qualified Plan had not been limited by Code section 415 and/or Code section 401(a)(17).

If a Participant’s compensation under the Management Incentive Compensation Plan (“MICP”) is included in pensionable earnings
under the Qualified Pension Plan, the Participant’s total pensionable earnings shall be determined on a “mix and match” basis. The Participant’s
annual compensation earned under the MICP shall be calculated separately from other annual pensionable earnings. The average of the highest
years of MICP compensation shall be added to the average of the highest years of other pensionable earnings to arrive at total final average
pensionable earnings for the applicable period under the Qualified Pension Plan.

The above benefit (the “Incentive Benefit”) shall be offset by the benefits payable on behalf of the Participant under the Lockheed
Martin Corporation Capital Accumulation Plan (the “Lockheed Martin CAP”) and under the Lockheed Martin Account Balance Retirement Plan
(“ABRP”). In calculating the offset, the Participant’s total account balance from the Lockheed Martin CAP shall be converted into an annuity using
the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table and the PBGC interest rate. The benefits payable under the Lockheed Martin CAP shall be calculated as
of the Participant’s termination of employment, using the Actuarial Equivalent. If the Participant received any prior distributions from the Lockheed
Martin CAP, the Incentive Benefit shall be reduced by the annuity value of the prior distribution, using the Lockheed Martin CAP distribution
amount, PBGC immediate interest rate for lump sums rate plus 1% and Participant’s age on the date of distribution. The Incentive Benefit is then
reduced for the amount of the Participant’s normal retirement benefit from the ABRP.

B. Early Retirement. The benefit payable under this Article IV to a Participant who satisfies the Designated Qualified Plan rules for
early retirement eligibility as set forth in Article IV of the Qualified Pension Plan or for a deferred monthly retirement benefit in accordance with the
rules set forth in Article VIII of the Qualified Pension Plan, whether or not such Participant is a member of the Qualified Pension Plan, shall be
calculated in accordance with the provisions of Article V of the Qualified Pension Plan, for early retirement, or Article VIII of the Qualified Pension
Plan, for deferred retirement, as applied to the benefit amount calculated in accordance with Paragraph A, above.

C. Pre-Retirement Surviving Spouse Benefit. If a Pre-retirement Surviving Spouse Benefit would have applied had the Participant been
eligible to participate in the Designated Qualified Plan, such survivor benefit shall automatically apply to any benefit which he or she may be
eligible under this Plan. The survivor benefit shall be adjusted and paid in the
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same manner as such pension payable under the Designated Qualified Plan would be adjusted and paid on account of such survivor benefit.

Combined benefits under this Article IV, the Lockheed Martin CAP and the ABRP are intended to supplement the Participant’s actual
benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan as necessary to provide the Participant with the full benefit the Participant would have received under the
Qualified Pension Plan on a “mix and match” basis, without regard to the limitations of Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), and with the
special adjustments described above. To prevent duplication of benefits, the full benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan and the enhanced
Incentive Benefit described above shall be calculated without reduction for Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), then reduced by the
benefit payable from the Qualified Pension Plan, and then reduced by the benefit payable from the Lockheed Martin CAP and ABRP. The
remainder of the benefit shall be paid from this Plan. Participants have no right to duplicate benefits with respect to the same period of service,
and the Committee may make such adjustments to the benefits under this Plan as the Committee deems necessary to prevent duplication of
benefits.

The benefit payable under this Article IV shall be payable to the Participant or Beneficiary or any other person who would be entitled to
receive benefits with respect to the Participant under the Designated Qualified Plan.

If the benefits that would be payable under the Designated Qualified Plan to any Participant are increased following the Participant’s
retirement as a result of a general increase in the benefits payable to retired employees under that Plan, no such increase will be made under this
Plan unless the Committee expressly so provides in writing.
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ARTICLE V

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. Vesting. Except as provided in Article VI, and subject to the Company’s right to discontinue the Plan as provided in Article VII, a
Participant shall have a non-forfeitable interest in benefits payable under this Plan to the same extent as benefits are vested under the applicable
Qualified Pension Plan. As provided in Article VI, if a Participant acquires a right to receive payments under this Plan, such right shall be no
greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company.

2. Form of Payment. Benefits shall be paid in the same form at the same times and for the same period as benefits are paid with respect to
the Participant under the applicable Qualified Pension Plan, except as provided in the following paragraphs. Actuarial adjustments shall be based
on the factors set forth in the Qualified Pension Plan, except as provided in the following paragraphs. If the benefits payable under this Plan
correspond to Qualified Pension Plan benefits with multiple commencement dates, each portion of the benefits payable under this Plan shall be
paid at the same time as the corresponding portion of the benefits is paid from the Qualified Pension Plan. If a Participant is not entitled to
benefits under the Qualified Pension Plan, benefits shall be paid as if the Participant had been a member of the Lockheed Martin Retirement Plan
for Certain Salaried Employees (or such other Qualified Retirement Plan as designated by the Committee) and had chosen from among the forms
of payment available under such Plan. If an Employee’s benefits under the Qualified Pension Plan are suspended for any month in accordance
with the re-employment provisions thereof, the Participant’s benefit for that month shall likewise be suspended under Articles III and IV of this
Plan.

Lump Sum Option. A Participant may irrevocably elect to receive a full or partial single lump sum payment in an amount which is the
actuarial equivalent of the benefit described above. The actuarial equivalent will be computed using the Actuarial Equivalent, and with no interest
for the period between the date of termination of employment and the payment date. This election must be made within the time period for electing
the form of benefit under the corresponding Qualified Pension Plan, by filing a written election in the form and manner prescribed by the Company.
Payment will be made six (6) months following the date payments would otherwise begin pursuant to the above paragraph. If a Participant is not
entitled to benefits under the Qualified Pension Plan, the Participant may make the election at any time after the Participant would have qualified
for early retirement under the Qualified Pension Plan had the Participant been a member of such Plan. Payment will be made six (6) months
following the date of such Participant’s election.

Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit. In the event the Participant dies prior to the date his or her retirement has commenced under this
Plan and the corresponding Qualified Pension Plan, the pre-retirement survivor benefit payable to the surviving spouse (if any) under this Plan (the
“Pre-Retirement Survivor Benefit” and the “Surviving Spouse”) will be payable, at the election of the Surviving Spouse, in any of the following
forms:
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 (a) in the form of a monthly annuity payable to the Surviving Spouse for his lifetime, with no further payments to anyone after his death
(which will be referred to as the “Regular Form”);

 

 
(b) in the form of a lump sum payment which is the actuarial equivalent of the Regular Form ( the “100% Lump Sum”), but with actuarial

equivalence determined as of the Election Date using the Actuarial Equivalent, and with no interest for the period between the Election
Date (or, if later, the date the Participant would have attained age 55 had he survived) and the payment date; or

 

 

(c) in the form of a combined lump sum and life annuity benefit of (x) and (y), where (x) equals a lump sum amount selected by the
Surviving Spouse which is less than the 100% Lump Sum and (y) is a monthly single life annuity for the life of Surviving Spouse (with
no further payments to anyone after his death) in an amount that can be provided with the difference between (x) and the 100% Lump
Sum.

Any election to receive the benefit in the form of a lump sum as set forth in (b) above or a combined lump sum and annuity as set forth in
(c) above must be made by the Surviving Spouse no later than 90 days after the date of the Participant’s death or, if later, the date the Participant
would have attained age 55 had he survived (with the date such election is made by the Surviving Spouse referred to as the “Election Date”). In
the event the Surviving Spouse makes an election for a lump sum or partial lump sum payment within this period, payment will not be made to the
Surviving Spouse until six months after the Election Date (or, if later, six months after the date the benefit would otherwise be payable under this
Plan).

Cash-out of Small Benefits. Notwithstanding the above, if the Value of the sum of the benefits payable to a Participant or Beneficiary
under this Plan does not exceed the amount that may be distributed without consent under Section 411(a)(11) of the Code, all such benefits will be
paid in a single lump sum payment in full discharge of all liabilities with respect to such benefits. For purposes of this Section, Value shall be
determined as of the Participant’s termination of employment, and shall mean the present value of a Participant’s or Beneficiary’s benefits based
upon the applicable mortality table and applicable interest rate in Code section 417(e)(3)(ii) for the calendar month preceding the Plan Year in which
the termination of employment occurs.

3. Deductibility of Payments. In the event that the payment of benefits under Section 2 would prevent the Company from claiming an income
tax deduction with respect to any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the right to modify the form and timing of distributions as
necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee
shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most closely approximate the payment
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method described in Section 2, consistent with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to
reduce a Participant’s accrued benefit under this Plan or to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s accrued benefit in the event that all
or a portion thereof would not be deductible by the Company.

4. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the Committee determines in good faith, based on consultation with
counsel, that the federal income tax treatment or legal status of this Plan has or may be adversely affected by a change in the Code, Title I of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable law or by an administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee
may direct that the benefits of affected Participants or of all Participants be distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to
the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Committee to cure or mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in
law or interpretation thereof.

5. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the accrued benefit of each Participant shall be distributed in a single lump sum within

fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”

For purposes of this Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:
 

 (a) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(b) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that are not
Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75% of the
outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate by
the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination of
holders entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).

 

 

(c) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in and
satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange
Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then
outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.
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(d) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

 

 (e) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.

This Section 5 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout of
benefits under this Plan in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 5 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control, this
Section 5 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any defined term
used in Section 5 shall not, for purposes of Section 5, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period

6. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder any Federal, state, or local
income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports,
statements, or information as may be legally required. No benefit payments shall be made to the Participant until the withholding obligation for
taxes under Code sections 3101(a) and 3101(b) has been satisfied with respect to the Participant.

7. Retiree Medical Withholding. A Participant may direct the Company to withhold from the Participant’s benefit payments hereunder all or a
portion of the amount that the Participant is required to pay for Company-provided retiree medical coverage.

8. Reemployment. The retirement benefit otherwise payable hereunder to any Participant who previously retired or otherwise had a
Termination of Employment and is subsequently reemployed shall be treated in a manner consistent with the treatment of the benefit under the
applicable Qualified Pension Plan or Designated Qualified Plan.
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9. Mistaken Payments. No Participant or Beneficiary shall have any right to any payment made (1) in error, (2) in contravention to the terms
of the Plan, the Code, or ERISA, or (3) because the Committee or its delegates were not informed of any death. The Committee shall have full
rights under the law and ERISA to recover any such mistaken payment, and the right to recover attorney’s fees and other costs incurred with
respect to such recovery. Recovery shall be made from future Plan payments, or by any other available means.

ARTICLE VI

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the future, and each
Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial interest in any specific
assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its
obligations under this Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422, and
the Company may direct that its obligations under this Plan be satisfied by payments out of such trust or trusts. The assets of any such trust will
remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Company. It is the Company’s intention that the Plan be unfunded for Federal income
tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary or transfer of an interest in this Plan to a Participant’s
former spouse incident to divorce under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

3. Forfeiture. If, following the date on which a Participant shall retire under this Plan, a Participant shall engage in the operation or
management of a business, whether as owner, stockholder, partner, officer, employee, consultant, or otherwise, which at such time is in
competition with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or shall disclose to unauthorized persons information relative to the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which the Participant shall have reason to believe is confidential, or otherwise act, or conduct oneself, in a
manner which the Participant shall have reason to believe is contrary to the best interest of the Company, or shall be found by the Committee to
have committed an act during the term of the Participant’s employment which would have justified the Participant being discharged for cause, the
Participant’s retirement benefit under this Plan shall terminate. Application of this Section will be at the discretion of the Committee.
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ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Plan at any time subject to any
shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect of reducing a
Participant’s accrued benefit or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his accrued benefit unless each
affected Participant consents to such change.

2. Termination. The Board reserves the right to terminate this Plan at any time and to pay all Participants their accrued benefits in a lump
sum or to make other provisions for the payment of benefits (e.g. purchase of annuities) immediately following such termination or at such time
thereafter as the Board may determine.

3. Transfer of Liability. The Board reserves the right to transfer to another entity all of the obligations of Company with respect to a
Participant under this Plan if such entity agrees pursuant to a binding written agreement with the Company or its subsidiaries to assume all of the
obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant.

4. Merger. The Board reserves the right to merge all or part of this Plan with or into another plan, provided (1) such other plan preserves all of
the obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant and (2) each Participant in the Plan would (if the Plan then
terminated) receive a benefit immediately after the merger which is equal to or greater than the benefit he would have been entitled to receive
immediately before the merger (if the Plan had then terminated).

ARTICLE VIII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Plan shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board or such
other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of
the members of the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written
consent of the Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and its delegates (including the Claims Administrator) shall
have full discretion to construe and interpret the terms and provisions of the Plan, which interpretation or construction shall be final, conclusive and
binding on all parties, including but not limited to the Company and any Participant or Beneficiary, except as otherwise provided by law. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 6, the Committee delegates the authority to adjudicate claims to the Pension Plans Administrative Committee.
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2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action
under this Plan, the Committee or its delegate may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Company. No
member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision specifically relating to his or
her individual rights or benefits under the Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have any liability to any party
for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Plan or for the failure of the Plan or any Participant’s rights under the Plan to achieve
intended tax consequences, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may direct that such
benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such
minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or the Claims Administrator) from all liability with respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Committee and the Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or
incapacity of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.
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6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is wholly or partially denied by Claims Administrator are as follows:
 

 

(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a
manner calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to
pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for
the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the
steps to be taken if the claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil
action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not
more than an additional 90 days if special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall
give the claimant, before the end of the initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special
circumstances and the date by which the Claims Administrator expects to render a decision.

 

 (b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice
described in paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.

 

 

(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments, documents,
records and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be
provided, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information
“relevant” to claimant’s claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in
making the benefit determination; (2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination,
without regard to whether such document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or
(3) demonstrates compliance with administrative processes and safeguards required under federal law.
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(d) The Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information submitted by the
claimant relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit
determination. The Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60
days after receipt by the Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120
days after such receipt if special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing
prior to the expiration of the original 60 day period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for
the extension and the date by which it is expected that a decision will be reached,

 

 

(e) The decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant and shall include:
(1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the decision is based;
(3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all
documents, records, and other information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional
material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is
necessary; (5) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such
procedures, if any; and (6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an
adverse benefit determination on review.

 

 

(f) In the event that the Claims Administrator must make a determination of disability in order to decide a claim, the Claims
Administrator shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor Regulation
section 2560.503-1(d). The Claims Administrator shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days) after
the claimant’s request for review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 (g) For purposes of this Section 6, claimant shall include the duly authorized representative of claimant, if any.
 

 
(h) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Pension Plan Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing,

with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be the
Committee.
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ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. This Plan shall not in any way obligate the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does this Plan
limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan constitute an
employment contract of any nature whatsoever between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this Plan by its terms or implications in
any way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Any benefits accrued under this Plan shall not be treated as compensation for purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s
benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of Pension Plan Operations, Human Resource Services. Any written notice to a
Participant shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at
his or her place of residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company or the
Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this Plan.

5. Each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and consented to all the terms of this Plan and all actions or
decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with regard to the Plan.

6. The provisions of this Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the
Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal representatives.

7. A copy of this Plan shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under the Plan at reasonable
times at the offices of the Company.

8. The validity of this Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects under and by the laws of
the State of Maryland, except as to matters of Federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.
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9. This Plan and its operation, including the payment of cash hereunder, is subject to compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws,
rules and regulations and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the
Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.

ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Plan, including any amendment and restatement of the prior plans, is generally effective July 1, 2004.
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Exhibit 10.6

LOCKHEED MARTIN SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION PLAN
FOR TRANSFERRED EMPLOYEES OF GE OPERATIONS

(Effective June 26, 2008)

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Supplementary Pension Plan for Transferred Employees of GE Operations (the “Plan”) is to provide
Transferred Employees with a supplemental pension benefit that, in combination with the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan II
(now the Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan) or KAPL Inc. Pension Plan for Salaried Employees and anticipated social security
benefits, delivers a total retirement income equal to a maximum of 60 percent of the employee’s average compensation over the final three years.

The Plan was amended and restated effective January 1, 2005, in order to comply with the requirements of Code section 409A. The
amendment and restatement applied only to the portion of a Participant’s benefit that is earned or becomes vested on or after January 1, 2005.
The portion of a Participant’s benefit that was earned and vested prior to January 1, 2005 shall be governed by Appendix A. The Plan is hereby
amended and restated, generally effective June 26, 2008, in order to clarify certain provisions in accordance with the final Treasury Regulations
issued under Code section 409A and to make other clarifications with respect to eligibility and benefits.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and phrases when used in this Plan shall have the meanings hereinafter
indicated:

1. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons designated by the Participant as his or her beneficiary under the Qualified Pension Plan. If no
beneficiary is designated under the Qualified Pension Plan, or if no designated beneficiary survives the Participant, the Participant’s estate shall
be the beneficiary.

2. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

3. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
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4. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article VII.

5. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries.

6. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who transferred employment to Martin Marietta Corporation as a result of the
agreement between Martin Marietta Corporation and General Electric Company dated November 22, 1992 or who transferred employment under the
Lakeland Transfer Agreement and who meets the eligibility criteria in Section 1 of Article III, and who satisfies such additional requirements for
participation in this Plan as the Committee may from time to time establish. The Pension Plans Administration Committee shall interpret the
participation requirements established by the Committee for all Participants except elected officers subject to Section 16(b) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934. Determinations of participation requirements for elected officers shall be made by the Committee.

7. GRANDFATHERED 2004 BENEFIT — The benefit calculated under the terms of the Plan in effect prior to January 1, 2005 (attached as
Appendix A), determined as if the Participant had terminated from employment on December 31, 2004 (or the Participant’s actual termination date,
if earlier).

8. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee who meets the requirements for participation contained in Article III; the term shall include a
former employee and survivors/beneficiaries whose benefit has not been fully distributed.

9. PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Supplementary Pension Plan for Transferred Employees of GE Operations, or any successor plan.

10. QUALIFIED PENSION PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan (“Retirement Income Plan”) or KAPL Inc.
Pension Plan for Salaried Employees (“KAPL Inc. Plan”). All terms used in this Plan which are defined in the Retirement Income Plan or KAPL
Inc. Plan have the same meanings, unless otherwise expressly provided in this Plan.

11. SUBSIDIARY — As to any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50% or more
of the voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporation), is owned or controlled (directly or indirectly) by that
entity, or by one or more of the Subsidiaries of that entity, or by a combination thereof.

12. YEAR — The calendar year.
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ARTICLE III

SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION BENEFIT

1. Eligibility. Each Employee who was classified as an Executive Career Band (“EB”) employee on or prior to December 31, 1993, who has
five or more years of Vesting Service and who is a participant in the Qualified Pension Plan shall be eligible to receive benefits under this Article
III. However, except as provided in Section 2.D., an Employee who retires under the Qualified Pension Plan before the first day of the month
following attainment of age 55 or an Employee who leaves the Service of the Company before attainment of age 55, shall not be eligible for a
benefit under this Article III.

An Employee who meets the other requirements specified in this Section shall be eligible for benefits under this Article III so long as
his assigned position level or position of equivalent responsibility throughout any consecutive three years of the 15 year period ending on the last
day of the month preceding his termination of service is at least at the level of a director (or other position equivalent to General Electric
Company’s EB) even though he is not employed at that level on the date his Service terminates.

2. Amount of Benefit.
 

 A. Definitions. For purposes of this Section 2, the following terms have the following meanings:
Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit. The annual equivalent of the maximum possible Primary Insurance Amount payable, after

reduction for early retirement, as an old-age benefit to an employee who retired at age 62 on January 1 of the calendar year in which occurred the
Employee’s actual date of retirement or death, whichever is earlier. The Company shall determine the Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit in
accordance with the Social Security Act in effect at the end of the calendar year preceding such January 1.

If an Employee has less than 35 years of Credited Service, the Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit determined under the above
paragraph is multiplied by a factor, the numerator of which is the number of years of the Employees’ Credited Service to his or her date of
retirement or death, whichever is earlier, and the denominator of which is 35.

The Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit shall be adjusted to include any social security, severance, or similar benefit provided
under foreign law or regulations as the Committee may prescribe by rules and regulations.

Annual Pension Payable under the Qualified Pension Plan. The sum of:
 

 (1) (i) the annual normal, early or late retirement benefit under Article V of the Qualified Pension Plan, including the Personal
Pension Account (excluding the

 
3



GE SERP
 

 
regular supplement under Article V(4) of the Qualified Pension Plan), or (ii) the normal, optional or disability retirement benefit
under the RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan, less

 

 

(2) to the extent the Committee so determines, the benefit payable under any other pension plan contract, or policy of the Plan
Sponsor (whether qualified or non-qualified), or government program attributable to periods of service for which Credited Service
is granted by the Committee for the determination of the benefit under this Plan or is credited by the Qualified Pension. All such
amounts shall be determined before applying any reduction factors for Early, Optional or Disability Retirement, for election of
any optional form of Pension at retirement, a qualified domestic relations order(s), if any, or in connection with any other
adjustment or supplement made pursuant to the Qualified Pension Plan or any other pension plan.

For purposes of this paragraph, the Employee’s Pension shall include the Personal Pension Account Annuity payable to the Employee or the
Employee’s spouse on the date of the Employee’s retirement or death, regardless of whether such annuity commenced on such date.

Annual Retirement Income. For Employees who retire or die in active Service on or after April 5, 1993, the amount determined by
multiplying 1.75% of Average Annual Compensation by the number of years of Credited Service completed at the date of retirement or death,
whichever is earlier.

Average Annual Compensation. One-third of the Employee’s Compensation for the highest consecutive three years during the last 10
years immediately preceding his date of retirement or death, whichever is earlier. In computing Average Annual Compensation, normal straight-
time earnings shall be substituted for actual Compensation for any month in which such normal straight-time earnings are greater.

Compensation. Salary (including any deferred salary approved by the Committee as compensation for purposes of this Plan) plus:
 

 (1) For persons then eligible for Incentive Compensation, the total amount of any Management Incentive Compensation Plan
earnings, unless such Incentive Compensation is excluded by the Board or a committee thereof.

 

 
(2) For persons who would then have been eligible for Incentive Compensation if they had not been participants in a Sales

Commission Plan or other variable compensation plan, the total amount of sales commissions (or other variable compensation
earned unless such compensation is excluded by the Board or a committee thereof);
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(3) For all other persons, the sales commissions and other variable compensation earned to the extent such earnings were then
included under the Qualified Pension Plan, plus any amounts (other than salary and those mentioned in clauses (1) through
(3) above) which were then included as compensation under the Qualified Pension Plan except any amounts which the
Committee may exclude from the computation of “Compensation” and subject to the powers of the Committee with respect to
payment of benefits.

The Committee shall specify the basis for determining an Employee’s Compensation for any portion of the three years used to compute the
Employee’s Average Annual Compensation during which the Employee was not employed by an employer participating in this Plan.

Credited Service. Credited Service has the same meaning as in the Qualified Pension Plan. For periods before January 1, 1976,
Credited Service as a full-time Employee also includes all Service credited under the Qualified Pension Plan for any period during which the
employee was a full-time Employee for purposes of the Qualified Pension Plan. Credited Service also includes:
 

 (1) Any period of Service with the Company or an Affiliate as the Committee may otherwise provide by rules and regulations issued
with respect to this Plan; and

 

 (2) Any period of service with another employer as the Board may approve, if any conditions specified in such approval have been
met.

 
B. Normal Retirement Benefit. Subject to the limitations in Section G and Section 1 of Article VII, the benefit payable to an eligible Employee

who retires on or after his or her normal retirement date under the Plan, shall be the excess, if any, of the employee’s Annual Retirement
Income, over the sum of

 

 (1) The Employee’s Annual Pension Payable under the Qualified Pension Plan (including the Personal Pension Account Annuity
and excluding any supplements payable under the Qualified Pension Plan) (calculated as a five-year certain annuity),

 

 (2)  1/2 of the Employee’s Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit,
 

 (3) the benefit payable from the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan.

C. Early, Optional or Disability Retirement. Subject to the limitations in Section G and Section 1 of Article VII, the benefit payable to an eligible
Employee who, after reaching age 60, retires on an optional retirement date under the Qualified Pension Plan shall be computed in the manner
provided by Section B (for an employee retiring on his or her normal retirement date) but taking into account only Credited Service and Average
Annual Compensation to the actual date of optional retirement. The annual benefit payable to an eligible Employee who, after reaching
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age 55 (but before reaching age 60), retires under the early retirement provisions of the Qualified Pension Plan shall equal the amount in section B
but taking into account only Credited Service and Average Annual Compensation to the Employee’s actual termination of employment and reduced
for early retirement using the early retirement reduction factor under Article V(2) of the Qualified Pension Plan.

Subject to the requirements of Section 1 of Article VII, the annual benefit payable to an eligible Employee who has satisfied the eligibility
requirements to receive a Disability Pension under the RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan (to the extent consistent with the
requirements of Code section 409A(a)(2(C)) shall be computed in the manner provided by Section B (for an Employee retiring on his normal
retirement date) taking into account only Credited Service and Average Annual Compensation to the actual date of disability retirement and not
reduced for the Disability Supplement in the RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan. In the case of an eligible Employee whose date
of retirement precedes the first day of the month after reaching age 60 the Plan benefit shall then be reduced by 12%.

Subject to provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, if the Disability Pension payable to the Employee under the Qualified Pension Plan is
discontinued as a result of the Employee’s disability ceasing before the Employee reaches age 60, the benefit provided under this Section C. shall
also be discontinued.

D. Special Benefit Protection for Certain Employees. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, a former Employee whose Service with
the Company is terminated on or after December 31, 1994 and after completing 25 or more years of Vesting Service, who does not withdraw his
required or voluntary contributions from the Qualified Pension Plan before retirement, shall be eligible for a benefit under this Plan commencing
upon the later of termination of employment with the Company and the attainment of age 60 if:
 

 (1) the Employee’s Service is terminated for transfer to a successor employer and
 

 (2) the Employee does not retire under the Qualified Pension Plan until the later of (1) termination of service with the successor
employer and (2) the first of the month after reaching age 60.

In determining the benefit under this Plan, the Average Annual Compensation shall be based on the last 120 completed months with
the successor employer before the Employee’s Service termination date and the Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit shall be
determined as though the Employee’s retirement date was the date of termination.

E. Survivor Benefits. Subject Section 1 of Article VII, if a survivor benefit applies with respect to the past and future service annuity portion of an
Employee’s Annual Pension payable under the Qualified Pension Plan, such survivor benefit shall automatically apply to any benefit which he or
she may be eligible under this Plan. The Employee’s benefit shall be adjusted and
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paid in the same manner as such pension payable under the Qualified Pension Plan is adjusted and paid on account of such survivor benefit.
Payments to the survivor shall commence as soon as administratively practicable following the later of: (1) the Employee’s 55th birthday, or (2) the
Employee’s date of death.
 
F. Payments Upon Death.

Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, if an eligible Employee dies in active Service, or following retirement with a benefit from
this Plan, and a death benefit (other than a return of Employee contributions with interest including an Employee’s Personal and Voluntary
Pension Account) is payable to the beneficiary or Surviving Spouse of such Employee under the Qualified Pension Plan, a death benefit
shall also be payable to the beneficiary or Surviving Spouse under this Plan as follows:

 

 

(1) Any such death benefit payable to a surviving spouse under this Plan shall equal 50% of the Employee’s Annual Retirement Income
under this Plan reduced by (1) 100% of the Employee’s preretirement surviving spouse benefit payable or other lump sum benefit under
the Qualified Pension Plan, (2) 25% of the Employee’s Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit, (3) the Employee’s Personal
Pension Account benefit, and (4) the benefit payable under the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan. Payments
to the surviving spouse shall commence as soon as administratively practicable after the later of: (1) the Employee’s 55th birthday, or
(2) the Employee’s date of death.

 

 
(2) Any such death benefit payable to a surviving spouse under this Plan shall take into account only Credited Service and Average

Annual Compensation to the earlier of the Employee’s death or termination of employment and will be reduced for early retirement
using the early retirement reduction factors under Article V(2) of the Qualified Pension Plan.

 

 

(3) Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, any such benefit payable to a surviving spouse shall be paid as soon as
administratively practicable after the later of: (1) the Employee’s 55th birthday, or (2) the Employee’s date of death and will be paid in
accordance with the payment provisions of the RIP or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan. If benefits from the Qualified
Pension Plan are paid under the payment provisions of the RIP or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan, then benefits from this
Plan will be paid in the same payment form.

 
G. Limitations on Benefits.

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, if the sum of:
 

 
(1) The annual benefit (calculated before applying any reductions for early retirement or additions for any supplements payable under the

Qualified Pension Plan, and prior to any calculation for disability retirement reductions) otherwise payable to an Employee under this
Plan;
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 (2) The Employee’s Annual Pension Payable under the Qualified Pension Plan (including the Personal Pension Account Annuity)
(calculated as a five-year certain annuity);

 

 (3) 100% of the Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit before any adjustment for less than 35 years of Pension Benefit Service;
 

 (4) the Employee’s annual benefit under the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan; and
to the extent the Committee so determines, the benefit payable under any other pension plan contract, or policy of the Plan Sponsor
(whether qualified or non-qualified), or government program attributable to periods of service for which Credited Service is granted by the
Committee for the determination of the benefit under this Plan or is credited by the Qualified Pension exceeds 60% of his or her Annual
Average Compensation, the benefit payable under this Plan shall be reduced by the amount of the excess.

(b) Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan to the contrary, the amount of the benefit payable and any death benefit payable to or on
behalf of any Employee who is or was an Officer of the Company on the date of his termination of employment or death, whichever is earlier,
shall be determined according to such general rules and regulations as a Committee appointed by the Board of Directors may adopt, subject
to the limitation that any such benefit or death benefit may not exceed the amount which would be payable under this Plan in the absence of
such rules and regulations.

H. Adjustments Following Retirement. If the Pension payable under the Qualified Pension Plan to any Employee is increased following the
Employee’s retirement as a result of a general increase in the Pensions payable to retired employees under that plan, no such increase will be
made under this Plan.

I. Non-duplication of Benefits. Benefits under this Article III are intended to supplement the Participant’s actual benefit under the Qualified Pension
Plan as necessary to provide the Participant with the full benefit the Participant would have received under the Qualified Pension Plan with the
special adjustments described above. To prevent duplication of benefits, the full benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan and the enhanced benefit
described above shall be calculated without reduction for Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), then reduced by the benefit payable from
the Qualified Pension Plan and further reduced by the benefit payable from the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan, then
reduced by the Grandfathered 2004 Benefit. Participants have no right to duplicate benefits with respect to the same period of service, and the
Committee may make such adjustments to the benefits under this Plan as the Committee deems necessary to prevent duplication of benefits.
 

8



GE SERP
 

ARTICLE IV

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. Vesting. Except as provided in Article V, and subject to the Company’s right to discontinue the Plan as provided in Article VI, a
Participant shall have a non-forfeitable interest in benefits payable under this Plan to the same extent as benefits are vested under the applicable
Qualified Pension Plan. As provided in Article V, if a Participant acquires a right to receive payments under this Plan, such right shall be no
greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company.

2. Form of Payment. A Participant may elect to receive benefits in any annuity form that is available under a Qualified Pension Plan on the
date of the Participant’s election that has been designated by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources as available for election under this
Plan, provided (i) the election is filed with the Company in writing no later than the later of (a) December 16, 2005 and (b) the date that is 30 days
after the Participant commences participation in the Plan, and (ii) the Participant’s employment has not terminated prior to filing the election. If the
Participant has not validly elected a form of payment, (i) an unmarried Participant shall be deemed to have elected payment in the form of a
monthly annuity for the life of the Participant with no further payments to anyone after his or her death, and (ii) a married Participant shall be
deemed to have elected payment in the form of a reduced monthly annuity for the life of the Participant with, after the Participant’s death, a 50%
survivor annuity for the life of the Participant’s spouse. No lump sum payment form is available under this Plan. Actuarial adjustments shall be
based on the factors set forth in the Qualified Pension Plan. All elections under this Section 2 must be made in the form and manner prescribed by
the Company. Benefits paid in a form described in this Section 2 shall commence as soon as administratively practicable following the later of
(i) the month in which the Participant terminates employment, or (ii) the month in which the Participant attains age 55. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, benefits paid on account of the termination of employment of a Participant who is reasonably determined by the Company to be a
“specified employee” within the meaning of Code section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i), shall not commence before six (6) months following the month in which
the Participant terminates employment. No interest shall be paid between the date of termination of employment and the payment date.

Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, if an Employee’s pension benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan is suspended
for any month in accordance with the re-employment provisions thereof, the Employee’s benefit under this Plan for that month shall likewise be
suspended.

Cash-out of Small Benefits. Notwithstanding the above, if the Value of the sum of the benefits payable to a Participant or Beneficiary
under this Plan does not exceed $10,000, all such benefits will be paid in a single lump sum payment in full discharge of all liabilities with respect
to such benefits. For purposes of this Section, Value shall be determined as of the
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Participant’s termination of employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable, and shall mean the present value of a Participant’s or
Beneficiary’s benefits, excluding the Grandfathered 2004 Benefit, based (i) for terminations prior to January 1, 2008 upon the applicable mortality
table and applicable interest rate in Code section 417(e)(3)(ii), or (ii) for terminations on or after January 1, 2008, upon the applicable mortality table
and applicable interest rate under Code section 417(e)(3), as amended by the Pension Protection Act of 2006, for the calendar month preceding
the Plan Year in which the termination of employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55) occurs. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, benefits
paid under this Section 2. to a Participant who is reasonably determined by the Company to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code
section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i), shall not commence before six (6) months following the later of (i) the month in which the Participant terminates
employment, or (ii) the month in which the Participant attains age fifty-five (55). No interest shall be paid between the date of termination of
employment or attainment of age fifty-five (55), as applicable, and the payment date.

Prospective Elections. Participants may elect to change the form of payment of benefits or further delay the commencement of
benefits as provided in this Section 2. All prospective elections must be made in the form and manner prescribed by the Company. This provision
does not apply to Surviving Spouses or Beneficiaries. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, other changes in the form of benefit,
including changes between actuarially equivalent forms of benefit, if any, may be made only as determined by the Senior Vice President, Human
Resources, of the Company in accordance with Code section 409A.

Form of Payment. A Participant may elect to delay the commencement of payments or to receive payment in any other annuity form
designated by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, of the Company, provided that such election is made in writing not less than twelve
(12) months before the date the payment would have first commenced under the Participant’s prior election. In addition, the first payment under the
new election must commence no earlier than sixty (60) months from the date when the payment would have first commenced under the
Participant’s prior election.

If a Participant participates in more than one supplemental pension plan sponsored by the Corporation, the Participant must make a single
election that shall apply to his or her benefits under all such plans with respect to the form of annuity and with respect to prospective changes of
payment under this Section 2 of Article IV.

Notwithstanding the above, for periods prior to January 1, 2009, (or such later date as may be provided by the Internal Revenue Service in
guidance of general applicability), the Senior Vice President, Human Resources may provide alternative rules for elections with respect to the
commencement of payment and form of payment, provided that such rules conform to Code section 409A and Internal Revenue Service guidance
issued thereunder.
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3. Deductibility of Payments. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, in the event that the payment of benefits under Section 2
would prevent the Company from claiming an income tax deduction with respect to any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the
right to modify the form and timing of distributions as necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to
adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most
closely approximate the payment method described in Section 2, consistent with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The
Committee shall have no authority to reduce a Participant’s accrued benefit under this Plan or to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s
accrued benefit in the event that all or a portion thereof would not be deductible by the Company.

4. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, if the Committee
determines in good faith, based on consultation with counsel, that the federal income tax treatment or legal status of this Plan has or may be
adversely affected by a change in the Code, Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable law or by an
administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee may direct that the benefits of affected Participants or of all Participants be
distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Committee to cure or
mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in law or interpretation thereof.

5. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the accrued benefit of each Participant shall be one-hundred percent (100%) vested

and distributed in a single lump sum within fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”

For purposes of this Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:
 

 (a) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(b) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that are not
Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75% of the
outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate by
the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination of
holders entitled
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 to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).
 

 

(c) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in and
satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange
Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then
outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(d) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

 

 (e) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no distribution shall be made solely on account of a Change in Control and prior to the benefit
commencement date specified in Section 2 of Article V unless the Change in Control is an event qualifying for a distribution of deferred
compensation under Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(v) of the Code.

This Section 5 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout of
benefits under this Plan in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 5 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control, this
Section 5 shall remain in force and effect, and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any defined term
used in Section 5 shall not, for purposes of Section 5, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period

6. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder any Federal, state, or local
income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports,
statements, or information as may be legally required. No benefit payments
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shall be made to the Participant until the withholding obligation for taxes under Code sections 3101(a) and 3101(b) has been satisfied with respect
to the Participant.

7. Retiree Medical Withholding. A Participant may direct the Company to withhold from the Participant’s benefit payments hereunder all or a
portion of the amount that the Participant is required to pay for Company-provided retiree medical coverage.

ARTICLE V

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the future, and each
Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial interest in any specific
assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its
obligations under this Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422, and
the Company may direct that its obligations under this Plan be satisfied by payments out of such trust or trusts. The assets of any such trust will
remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Company. It is the Company’s intention that the Plan be unfunded for Federal income
tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary or transfer of an interest in this Plan to a Participant’s
former spouse incident to divorce under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

3. Forfeiture. If, following the date on which a Participant shall retire under this Plan, a Participant shall engage in the operation or
management of a business, whether as owner, stockholder, partner, officer, employee, consultant, or otherwise, which at such time is in
competition with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or shall disclose to unauthorized persons information relative to the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which the Participant shall have reason to believe is confidential, or otherwise act, or conduct oneself, in a
manner which the Participant shall have reason to believe is contrary to the best interest of the Company, or shall be found by the Committee to
have committed an act during the term of the Participant’s employment which would have justified the Participant being discharged for cause, the
Participant’s retirement benefit under this Plan shall terminate. Application of this Section will be at the discretion of the Committee.
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ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Plan at any time subject to any
shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect of reducing a
Participant’s accrued benefit or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his accrued benefit unless each
affected Participant consents to such change.

2. Termination. Subject to the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, the Board reserves the right to terminate this Plan at any time and
to pay all Participants their accrued benefits in a lump sum or to make other provisions for the payment of benefits (e.g. purchase of annuities)
immediately following such termination or at such time thereafter as the Board may determine.

3. Transfer of Liability. The Board reserves the right to transfer to another entity all of the obligations of Company with respect to a
Participant under this Plan if such entity agrees pursuant to a binding written agreement with the Company or its subsidiaries to assume all of the
obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant.

4. Merger. The Board reserves the right to merge all or part of this Plan with or into another plan, provided (1) such other plan
preserves all of the obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant and (2) each Participant in the Plan would (if the
Plan then terminated) receive a benefit immediately after the merger which is equal to or greater than the benefit he would have been entitled to
receive immediately before the merger (if the Plan had then terminated).

ARTICLE VII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Plan shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board or such
other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of
the members of the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written
consent of the Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and its delegates (including the Claims Administrator) shall
have full discretion to construe and interpret the terms and provisions of the Plan, which interpretation or construction shall be final, conclusive and
binding on all parties, including but not limited to the Company and any Participant or Beneficiary, except as otherwise
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provided by law. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Plan or in any document issued under the Plan, it is intended that the Plan will at all
times conform to the requirements of Code section 409A and any regulations or other guidance issued thereunder, and that the provisions of the
Plan will be interpreted to meet such requirements. If any provision of the Plan is determined not to conform to such requirements, the Plan shall
be interpreted to omit such offending provision.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action
under this Plan, the Committee or its delegate may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Company. No
member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision specifically relating to his or
her individual rights or benefits under the Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have any liability to any party
for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Plan or for the failure of the Plan or any Participant’s rights under the Plan to achieve
intended tax consequences, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may direct that such
benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such
minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee (or the Claims Administrator) from all liability with respect thereto.

5. Proof of Claims. The Committee or the Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or
incapacity of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is wholly or partially denied by the Claims Administrator are as follows:
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(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a manner
calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to pertinent Plan
provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for the claimant to
perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the steps to be taken if the
claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of
ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not more than an additional 90 days if
special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall give the claimant, before the end of the
initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special circumstances and the date by which the Claims
Administrator expects to render a decision.

 

 (b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice described in
paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.

 

 

(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments, documents, records
and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be provided, upon
request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information “relevant” to claimant’s
claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in making the benefit determination;
(2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether such
document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or (3) demonstrates compliance with
administrative processes and safeguards required under Federal law.
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(d) The Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information submitted by the claimant
relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination. The
Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60 days after receipt by the
Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120 days after such receipt if special
circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing prior to the expiration of the original 60 day
period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for the extension and the date by which it is expected
that a decision will be reached. The decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the
claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the
decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and
copies of all documents, records, and other information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional
material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is
necessary; (5) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such
procedures, if any; and (6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse
benefit determination on review. If in the event that the reviewing committee must make a determination of disability in order to decide
a claim, the reviewing committee shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor
Regulation section 2560.503-1(d). The reviewing committee shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days)
after the claimant’s request for review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 
(e) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Pension Plans Administrative Committee. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be the
Committee.

ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. This Plan shall not in any way obligate the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does this Plan
limit the right of the Company at any time
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and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan constitute an employment contract of any nature
whatsoever between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this Plan by its terms or implications in any way limit the right of the
Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Any benefits accrued under this Plan shall not be treated as compensation for purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s
benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of Pension Plan Operations, Human Resource Services. Any written notice to a
Participant shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at
his or her place of residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company or the
Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this Plan.

5. Each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and consented to all the terms of this Plan and all actions or
decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with regard to the Plan.

6. The provisions of this Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the
Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal representatives.

7. A copy of this Plan shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under the Plan at reasonable
times at the offices of the Company.

8. The validity of this Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects under and by the laws of
the State of Maryland, except as to matters of Federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

9. This Plan and its operation, including the payment of cash hereunder, is subject to compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws,
rules and regulations and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the
Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.
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ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE

This restated Plan, including any amendment and restatement of the prior plans, is generally effective June 26, 2008.

APPENDIX A

LOCKHEED MARTIN SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION PLAN
FOR TRANSFERRED EMPLOYEES OF GE OPERATIONS

(Effective July 1, 2004)

ARTICLE I

PURPOSES OF THE PLAN

The purposes of the Lockheed Martin Supplementary Pension Plan for Transferred Employees of GE Operations (the “Plan”) is to provide
Transferred Employees with a supplemental pension benefit that, in combination with the Martin Marietta Corporation Retirement Income Plan II
(now the Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan II) or KAPL Inc. Pension Plan for Salaried Employees and anticipated social
security benefits, delivers a total retirement income equal to a maximum of 60 percent of the employee’s average compensation over the final
three years.

The Lockheed Martin Supplementary Pension Plan for Transferred Employees of GE Operations (formerly known as the Martin Marietta
Supplementary Pension Plan for Employees of Transferred GE Operations) and predecessor plan is amended, restated , effective July 1, 2004

The Plan was subsequently amended and restated effective January 1, 2005 in order to comply with the requirements of Code section 409A.
The amendment and restatement applies only to the portion of a Participant’s benefit that is earned or becomes vested on or after January 1,
2005. The portion of a Participant’s benefit that was earned and vested prior to January 1, 2005 shall be governed by this Appendix A.

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and phrases when used in this Plan shall have the meanings hereinafter
indicated:
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1. BENEFICIARY — The person or persons designated by the Participant as his or her beneficiary under the Qualified Pension Plan. If no
beneficiary is designated under the Qualified Pension Plan, or if no designated beneficiary survives the Participant, the Participant’s estate shall
be the beneficiary.

2. BOARD — The Board of Directors of Lockheed Martin Corporation.

3. CODE — The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

4. COMMITTEE — The committee described in Section 1 of Article VII.

5. COMPANY — Lockheed Martin Corporation and its subsidiaries.

6. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE — An employee of the Company who transferred employment to Martin Marietta Corporation as a result of the
agreement between Martin Marietta Corporation and General Electric Company dated November 22, 1992 or who transferred employment under the
Lakeland Transfer Agreement and who meets the eligibility criteria in Section 1 of Article III, and who satisfies such additional requirements for
participation in this Plan as the Committee may from time to time establish. The Pension Plans Administration Committee shall interpret the
participation requirements established by the Committee for all Participants except elected officers subject to Section 16(b) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934. Determinations of participation requirements for elected officers shall be made by the Committee.

7. PARTICIPANT — An Eligible Employee who meets the requirements for participation contained in Article III; the term shall include a
former employee and survivors/beneficiaries whose benefit has not been fully distributed.

8. PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Supplementary Pension Plan for Transferred Employees of GE Operations, or any successor plan.

9. QUALIFIED PENSION PLAN — The Lockheed Martin Corporation Retirement Income Plan (“Retirement Income Plan II”) or KAPL Inc.
Pension Plan for Salaried Employees (“KAPL Inc. Plan”). All terms used in this Plan which are defined in the Retirement Income Plan II or KAPL
Inc. Plan have the same meanings, unless otherwise expressly provided in this Plan.

10. YEAR — The calendar year.
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ARTICLE III

SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION BENEFIT

1. Eligibility. Each Employee who was classified as an Executive Career Band (“EB”) employee on or prior to December 31, 1993, who has
five or more years of Vesting Service and who is a participant in the Qualified Pension Plan shall be eligible to receive benefits under this Article
III. However, except as provided in Section 2.D., an Employee who retires under the Qualified Pension Plan before the first day of the month
following attainment of age 55 or an Employee who leaves the Service of the Company before attainment of age 55, shall not be eligible for a
benefit under this Article III.

An Employee who meets the other requirements specified in this Section shall be eligible for benefits under this Article III so long as
his assigned position level or position of equivalent responsibility throughout any consecutive three years of the 15 year period ending on the last
day of the month preceding his termination of service is at least at the level of a director (or other position equivalent to General Electric
Company’s EB) even though he is not employed at that level on the date his Service terminates.

2. Amount of Benefit.
 

 C. Definitions. For purposes of this Section 2, the following terms have the following meanings:
Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit. The annual equivalent of the maximum possible Primary Insurance Amount payable, after

reduction for early retirement, as an old-age benefit to an employee who retired at age 62 on January 1 of the calendar year in which occurred the
Employee’s actual date of retirement or death, whichever is earlier. The Company shall determine the Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit in
accordance with the Social Security Act in effect at the end of the calendar year preceding such January 1.

If an Employee has less than 35 years of Credited Service, the Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit determined under the above
paragraph is multiplied by a factor, the numerator of which is the number of years of the Employees’ Credited Service to his or her date of
retirement or death, whichever is earlier, and the denominator of which is 35.

The Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit shall be adjusted to include any social security, severance, or similar benefit provided
under foreign law or regulations as the Committee may prescribe by rules and regulations.

Annual Pension Payable under the Qualified Pension Plan. The sum of:
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(3) (i) the annual normal, early or late retirement benefit under Article V of the Qualified Pension Plan, including the Personal

Pension Account (excluding the regular supplement under Article V(4) of the Qualified Pension Plan), or (ii) the normal, optional
or disability retirement benefit under the RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan, less

 

 

(4) to the extent the Committee so determines, the benefit payable under any other pension plan contract, or policy of the Plan
Sponsor (whether qualified or non-qualified), or government program attributable to periods of service for which Credited Service
is granted by the Committee for the determination of the benefit under this Plan or is credited by the Qualified Pension. All such
amounts shall be determined before applying any reduction factors for Early, Optional or Disability Retirement, for election of
any optional form of Pension at retirement, a qualified domestic relations order(s), if any, or in connection with any other
adjustment or supplement made pursuant to the Qualified Pension Plan or any other pension plan.

For purposes of this paragraph, the Employee’s Pension shall include the Personal Pension Account Annuity payable to the Employee or the
Employee’s spouse on the date of the Employee’s retirement or death, regardless of whether such annuity commenced on such date.

Annual Retirement Income. For Employees who retire or die in active Service on or after April 5, 1993, the amount determined by
multiplying 1.75% of Average Annual Compensation by the number of years of Credited Service completed at the date of retirement or death,
whichever is earlier.

Average Annual Compensation. One-third of the Employee’s Compensation for the highest consecutive three years during the last 10
years immediately preceding his date of retirement or death, whichever is earlier. In computing Average Annual Compensation, normal straight-
time earnings shall be substituted for actual Compensation for any month in which such normal straight-time earnings are greater.

Compensation. Salary (including any deferred salary approved by the Committee as compensation for purposes of this Plan) plus:
 

 (4) For persons then eligible for Incentive Compensation, the total amount of any Management Incentive Compensation Plan
earnings, unless such Incentive Compensation is excluded by the Board or a committee thereof.

 

 
(5) For persons who would then have been eligible for Incentive Compensation if they had not been participants in a Sales

Commission Plan or other variable compensation plan, the total amount of sales commissions (or other variable compensation
earned unless such compensation is excluded by the Board or a committee thereof);
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(6) For all other persons, the sales commissions and other variable compensation earned to the extent such earnings were then
included under the Qualified Pension Plan, plus any amounts (other than salary and those mentioned in clauses (1) through
(3) above) which were then included as compensation under the Qualified Pension Plan except any amounts which the
Committee may exclude from the computation of “Compensation” and subject to the powers of the Committee with respect to
payment of benefits.

The Committee shall specify the basis for determining an Employee’s Compensation for any portion of the three years used to compute the
Employee’s Average Annual Compensation during which the Employee was not employed by an employer participating in this Plan.

Credited Service. Credited Service has the same meaning as in the Qualified Pension Plan. For periods before January 1, 1976,
Credited Service as a full-time Employee also includes all Service credited under the Qualified Pension Plan for any period during which the
employee was a full-time Employee for purposes of the Qualified Pension Plan. Credited Service also includes:
 

 (3) Any period of Service with the Company or an Affiliate as the Committee may otherwise provide by rules and regulations issued
with respect to this Plan; and

 

 (4) Any period of service with another employer as the Board may approve, if any conditions specified in such approval have been
met.

 
D. Normal Retirement Benefit. Subject to the limitations in Section G, the benefit payable to an eligible Employee who retires on or after his or

her normal retirement date under the Plan, shall be the excess, if any, of the employee’s Annual Retirement Income, over the sum of
 

 (4) The Employee’s Annual Pension Payable under the Qualified Pension Plan (including the Personal Pension Account Annuity and
excluding any supplements payable under the Qualified Pension Plan) (calculated as a five-year certain annuity),

 

 (5)  1/2 of the Employee’s Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit,
 

 (6) the benefit payable from the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan
 
E. Early, Optional or Disability Retirement. Subject to the limitations in Section G, the benefit payable to an eligible Employee who, after

reaching age 60, retires on an optional retirement date under the Qualified Pension Plan shall be computed in the manner
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provided by Section B (for an employee retiring on his or her normal retirement date) but taking into account only Credited Service and
Average Annual Compensation to the actual date of optional retirement. The annual benefit payable to an eligible Employee who, after
reaching age 55 (but before reaching age 60) retires under the early retirement provisions of the Qualified Pension Plan shall equal the
amount in section B but taking into account only Credited Service and Average Annual Compensation to the Employee’s actual termination
of employment and reduced for early retirement using the early retirement reduction factor under Article V(2) of the Qualified Pension Plan.

The annual benefit payable to an eligible Employee who has satisfied the eligibility requirements to receive a Disability Pension under the
RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan shall be computed in the manner provided by Section B (for an Employee retiring on his
normal retirement date) taking into account only Credited Service and Average Annual Compensation to the actual date of disability retirement and
not reduced for the Disability Supplement in the RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan. In the case of an eligible Employee whose
date of retirement precedes the first day of the month after reaching age 60 the Plan benefit shall then be reduced by 12%.

If the Disability Pension payable to the Employee under the Qualified Pension Plan is discontinued as a result of the Employee’s disability
ceasing before the Employee reaches age 60, the benefit provided under this Section C. shall also be discontinued.
 
F. Special Benefit Protection for Certain Employees. A former Employee whose Service with the Company is terminated on or after

December 31, 1994 and after completing 25 or more years of Vesting Service, who does not withdraw his required or voluntary contributions
from the Qualified Pension Plan before retirement, shall be eligible for a benefit under this Plan commencing upon his or her retirement under
the Qualified Pension Plan after reaching age 60 if:

 

 (3) the Employee’s Service is terminated for transfer to a successor employer and
 

 (4) the Employee does not retire under the Qualified Pension Plan until the later of (1) termination of service with the successor employer
and (2) the first of the month after reaching age 60.

In determining the benefit under this Plan, the Average Annual Compensation shall be based on the last 120 completed months with the
successor employer before the Employee’s Service termination date and the Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit shall be determined
as though the Employee’s retirement date was the date of termination.

 
G. Survivor Benefits. Subject to Section F.(b), if a survivor benefit applies with respect to the past and future service annuity portion of a

Employee’s Annual Pension payable under the Qualified Pension Plan, such survivor benefit shall automatically apply to any benefit which
he or she may be eligible under this Plan. The Employee’s benefit shall be

 
24



GE SERP
 

 
adjusted and paid in the same manner as such pension payable under the Qualified Pension Plan is adjusted and paid on account of such
survivor benefit.

 
H. Payments Upon Death.

(a) If an eligible Employee dies in active Service, or following retirement with a benefit from this Plan, and a death benefit (other than a
return of Employee contributions with interest including an Employee’s Personal and Voluntary Pension Account ) is payable to the
beneficiary or Surviving Spouse of such Employee under the Qualified Pension Plan, a death benefit shall also be payable to the beneficiary
or Surviving Spouse under this Plan as follows:

 

 

(4) Any such death benefit payable to a surviving spouse under this Plan shall equal 50% of the Employee’s Annual Retirement Income
under this Plan reduced by (1) 100% of the Employee’s preretirement surviving spouse benefit payable or other lump sum benefit under
the Qualified Pension Plan, (2) 25% of the Employee’s Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit, (3) the Employee’s Personal
Pension Account benefit , and (4) the benefit payable under the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan.
Payments to the surviving spouse shall commence on the later of: (1) the Employee’s 55th birthday, or (2) the Employee’s date of
death.

 

 
(5) Any such death benefit payable to a surviving spouse under this Plan shall take into account only Credited Service and Average

Annual Compensation to the earlier of the Employee’s death or termination of employment and will be reduced for early retirement
using the early retirement reduction factors under Article V(2) of the Qualified Pension Plan.

 

 

(6) Any such benefit payable to a surviving spouse shall be paid at the same time as the Qualified Pension Plan and will be paid in
accordance with the payment provisions of the RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan. If benefits from the Qualified
Pension Plan are paid under the payment provisions of the RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan, then benefits from this
Plan will be paid in the same payment form.
(b) In lieu of the benefit otherwise payable to a beneficiary or surviving spouse under Section E. or paragraph (a) of this Section, an

Employee may elect to have all or any portion of such benefit (or the equivalent value of all or any portion) paid to the beneficiary designated
in the employee’s election in any of the following forms:

 

 
(1) An annuity for the spouse’s remaining lifetime. If the beneficiary dies before the spouse, the remaining benefit shall be paid as

provided in the employee’s election. In the absence of any such provision, the equivalent value of the remaining payments shall be
paid to the beneficiary’s estate, if any, otherwise to the beneficiary’s Personal Representative.
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 (2) An annuity for the beneficiary’s remaining lifetime. If any annuity otherwise payable under this item (2) is less than $5,000 annually, the
equivalent value shall be paid instead to the beneficiary in a lump sum.

 

 (3) A lump sum.
Any such election must be made in writing to the Qualified Pension Plan Administrator prior to the Employee’s death, and becomes

effective when the Qualified Pension Plan Administrator receives it. For purposes of this election, an Employee may designate as his
beneficiary only his estate, his former spouse, or a member of his immediate family.

For the purpose of determining the benefit conversions required to provide the benefit payments referred to above, the interest rate
assumption shall be the interest rate used by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation at the beginning of the year in which the Employee’s
death occurs, in valuing immediate annuities for terminating single employer trusteed plans, and the mortality assumption shall be based on
the UP-1984 Mortality Table.

 
I. Limitations on Benefits.

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, if the sum of:
 

 
(5) The annual benefit (calculated before applying any reductions for early retirement or additions for any supplements payable under the

Qualified Pension Plan, and prior to any calculation for disability retirement reductions) otherwise payable to an Employee under this
Plan;

 

 (6) The Employee’s Annual Pension Payable under the Qualified Pension Plan (including the Personal Pension Account Annuity)
(calculated as a five-year certain annuity);

 

 (7) 100% of the Annual Estimated Social Security Benefit before any adjustment for less than 35 years of Pension Benefit Service;
 

 (8) the Employee’s annual benefit under the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan; and
to the extent the Committee so determines, the benefit payable under any other pension plan contract, or policy of the Plan Sponsor
(whether qualified or non-qualified), or government program attributable to periods of service for which Credited Service is granted by the
Committee for the determination of the benefit under this Plan or is credited by the Qualified Pension exceeds 60% of his or her Annual
Average Compensation, the benefit payable under this Plan shall be reduced by the amount of the excess.
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(b) Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan to the contrary, the amount of the benefit payable and any death benefit payable to or on
behalf of any Employee who is or was an Officer of the Company on the date of his retirement or death, whichever is earlier, shall be
determined according to such general rules and regulations as a Committee appointed by the Board of Directors may adopt, subject to the
limitation that any such benefit or death benefit may not exceed the amount which would be payable under this Plan in the absence of such
rules and regulations.

J. Adjustments Following Retirement. If the Pension payable under the Qualified Pension Plan to any Employee is increased following the
Employee’s retirement as a result of a general increase in the Pensions payable to retired employees under that plan, no such increase will be
made under this Plan unless the Committee makes such determination.

K. Non-duplication of Benefits. Benefits under this Article III are intended to supplement the Participant’s actual benefit under the Qualified
Pension Plan as necessary to provide the Participant with the full benefit the Participant would have received under the Qualified Pension Plan
with the special adjustments described above. To prevent duplication of benefits, the full benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan and the
enhanced benefit described above shall be calculated without reduction for Code section 415 and Code section 401(a)(17), then reduced by the
benefit payable from the Qualified Pension Plan and further reduced by the benefit payable from the Lockheed Martin Corporation Supplemental
Retirement Plan. Participants have no right to duplicate benefits with respect to the same period of service, and the Committee may make such
adjustments to the benefits under this Plan as the Committee deems necessary to prevent duplication of benefits.

ARTICLE IV

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

1. Vesting. Except as provided in Article V, and subject to the Company’s right to discontinue the Plan as provided in Article VI, a
Participant shall have a non-forfeitable interest in benefits payable under this Plan to the same extent as benefits are vested under the applicable
Qualified Pension Plan. As provided in Article V, if a Participant acquires a right to receive payments under this Plan, such right shall be no
greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company.

2. Form of Payment. Benefits shall be paid at the same time as the Qualified Pension Plan and will be paid in accordance with the payment
provisions of the RIP II or KAPL Annex of the Qualified Pension Plan. If benefits from the Qualified Pension Plan are paid under the payment
provisions of the RIP II or KAPL Annex, then benefits from this Plan will be paid in the same payment form.
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If an Employee’s pension benefit under the Qualified Pension Plan is suspended for any month in accordance with the re-employment
provisions thereof, the Employee’s benefit under this Plan for that month shall likewise be suspended.

Cash-out of Small Benefits. Notwithstanding the above, if the Value of the sum of the benefits payable to a Participant or Beneficiary
under this Plan does not exceed the amount that may be distributed without consent under Section 411(a)(11) of the Code, all such benefits will be
paid in a single lump sum payment in full discharge of all liabilities with respect to such benefits. For purposes of this Section, Value shall be
determined as of the Participant’s termination of employment, and shall mean the present value of a Participant’s or Beneficiary’s benefits based
upon the applicable mortality table and applicable interest rate in Code section 417(e)(3)(ii) for the calendar month preceding the Plan Year in which
the termination of employment occurs.

3. Deductibility of Payments. In the event that the payment of benefits under Section 2 would prevent the Company from claiming an income
tax deduction with respect to any portion of the benefits paid, the Committee shall have the right to modify the form and timing of distributions as
necessary to maximize the Company’s tax deductions. In the exercise of its discretion to adopt a modified distribution schedule, the Committee
shall undertake to have distributions made at such times and in such amounts as most closely approximate the payment method described in
Section 2, consistent with the objective of maximum deductibility for the Company. The Committee shall have no authority to reduce a
Participant’s accrued benefit under this Plan or to pay aggregate benefits less than the Participant’s accrued benefit in the event that all or a
portion thereof would not be deductible by the Company.

4. Change of Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the Committee determines in good faith, based on consultation with
counsel, that the federal income tax treatment or legal status of this Plan has or may be adversely affected by a change in the Code, Title I of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or other applicable law or by an administrative or judicial construction thereof, the Committee
may direct that the benefits of affected Participants or of all Participants be distributed as soon as practicable after such determination is made, to
the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Committee to cure or mitigate the consequences, or possible consequences of, such change in
law or interpretation thereof.

5. Acceleration upon Change in Control.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the accrued benefit of each Participant shall be distributed in a single lump sum within

fifteen (15) calendar days following a “Change in Control.”

For purposes of this Plan, a Change in Control shall include and be deemed to occur upon the following events:
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 (a) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the
combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(b) The Company is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that are not
Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75% of the
outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate by
the stockholders of the Company (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination of
holders entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).

 

 

(c) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in and
satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange
Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then
outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Company.

 

 

(d) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other
reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least
a majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who
were members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their
successors or pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then
Board members (or successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

 

 (e) The stockholders of the Company approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Company’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.

This Section 5 shall apply only to a Change in Control of Lockheed Martin Corporation and shall not cause immediate payout of
benefits under this Plan in any transaction involving the Company’s sale, liquidation, merger, or other disposition of any subsidiary.

The Committee may cancel or modify this Section 5 at any time prior to a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control, this
Section 5 shall remain in force and effect,
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and shall not be subject to cancellation or modification for a period of five years, and any defined term used in Section 5 shall not, for purposes of
Section 5, be subject to cancellation or modification during the five year period

6. Tax Withholding. To the extent required by law, the Company shall withhold from benefit payments hereunder any Federal, state, or local
income or payroll taxes required to be withheld and shall furnish the recipient and the applicable government agency or agencies with such reports,
statements, or information as may be legally required. No benefit payments shall be made to the Participant until the withholding obligation for
taxes under Code sections 3101(a) and 3101(b) has been satisfied with respect to the Participant.

7. Retiree Medical Withholding. A Participant may direct the Company to withhold from the Participant’s benefit payments hereunder all or a
portion of the amount that the Participant is required to pay for Company-provided retiree medical coverage.

ARTICLE V

EXTENT OF PARTICIPANTS’ RIGHTS

1. Unfunded Status of Plan. This Plan constitutes a mere contractual promise by the Company to make payments in the future, and each
Participant’s rights shall be those of a general, unsecured creditor of the Company. No Participant shall have any beneficial interest in any specific
assets that the Company may hold or set aside in connection with this Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to assist the Company in meeting its
obligations under this Plan, the Company may set aside assets in a trust or trusts described in Revenue Procedure 92-64, 1992-2 C.B. 422, and
the Company may direct that its obligations under this Plan be satisfied by payments out of such trust or trusts. The assets of any such trust will
remain subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Company. It is the Company’s intention that the Plan be unfunded for Federal income
tax purposes and for purposes of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

2. Nonalienability of Benefits. A Participant’s rights under this Plan shall not be assignable or transferable and any purported transfer,
assignment, pledge or other encumbrance or attachment of any payments or benefits under this Plan, or any interest therein shall not be permitted
or recognized, other than the designation of, or passage of payment rights to, a Beneficiary or transfer of an interest in this Plan to a Participant’s
former spouse incident to divorce under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.
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3. Forfeiture. If, following the date on which a Participant shall retire under this Plan, a Participant shall engage in the operation or
management of a business, whether as owner, stockholder, partner, officer, employee, consultant, or otherwise, which at such time is in
competition with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or shall disclose to unauthorized persons information relative to the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which the Participant shall have reason to believe is confidential, or otherwise act, or conduct oneself, in a
manner which the Participant shall have reason to believe is contrary to the best interest of the Company, or shall be found by the Committee to
have committed an act during the term of the Participant’s employment which would have justified the Participant being discharged for cause, the
Participant’s retirement benefit under this Plan shall terminate. Application of this Section will be at the discretion of the Committee.

ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1. Amendment. The Board or its authorized delegate may amend, modify, suspend or discontinue this Plan at any time subject to any
shareholder approval that may be required under applicable law, provided, however, that no such amendment shall have the effect of reducing a
Participant’s accrued benefit or postponing the time when a Participant is entitled to receive a distribution of his accrued benefit unless each
affected Participant consents to such change.

2. Termination. The Board reserves the right to terminate this Plan at any time and to pay all Participants their accrued benefits in a lump
sum or to make other provisions for the payment of benefits (e.g. purchase of annuities) immediately following such termination or at such time
thereafter as the Board may determine.

3. Transfer of Liability. The Board reserves the right to transfer to another entity all of the obligations of Company with respect to a
Participant under this Plan if such entity agrees pursuant to a binding written agreement with the Company or its subsidiaries to assume all of the
obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant.

4. Merger. The Board reserves the right to merge all or part of this Plan with or into another plan, provided (1) such other plan preserves all of
the obligations of the Company under this Plan with respect to such Participant and (2) each Participant in the Plan would (if the Plan then
terminated) receive a benefit immediately after the merger which is equal to or greater than the benefit he would have been entitled to receive
immediately before the merger (if the Plan had then terminated).
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ARTICLE VII

ADMINISTRATION

1. The Committee. This Plan shall be administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board or such
other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board. The members of the Committee shall be designated by the Board. A majority of
the members of the Committee (but not fewer than two) shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of a quorum or the unanimous written
consent of the Committee shall constitute action by the Committee. The Committee and its delegates (including the Claims Administrator) shall
have full discretion to construe and interpret the terms and provisions of the Plan, which interpretation or construction shall be final, conclusive and
binding on all parties, including but not limited to the Company and any Participant or Beneficiary, except as otherwise provided by law. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 5, the Committee delegates the authority to adjudicate claims to the Pension Plans Administration Committee.

2. Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Company the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action
under this Plan, the Committee or its delegate may obtain and rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Company. No
member of the Committee or officer of the Company who is a Participant hereunder may participate in any decision specifically relating to his or
her individual rights or benefits under the Plan.

3. Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Company nor any member of the Board or of the Committee, nor any other person participating in
any determination of any question under this Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application thereof, shall have any liability to any party
for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Plan or for the failure of the Plan or any Participant’s rights under the Plan to achieve
intended tax consequences, or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Company.

4. Facility of Payment. If a minor, person declared incompetent, or person incapable of handling the disposition of his or her property is
entitled to receive a benefit, make an application, or make an election hereunder, the Committee or the Claims Administrator may direct that such
benefits be paid to, or such application or election be made by, the guardian, legal representative, or person having the care and custody of such
minor, incompetent, or incapable person. Any payment made, application allowed, or election implemented in accordance with this Section shall
completely discharge the Company and the Committee from all liability with respect thereto.
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5. Proof of Claims. The Committee or the Claims Administrator may require proof of the death, disability, incompetency, minority, or
incapacity of any Participant or Beneficiary and of the right of a person to receive any benefit or make any application or election.

6. Claim Procedures. The procedures when a claim under this Plan is wholly or partially denied by the Claims Administrator are as follows:
 

 

(a) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a
manner calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to
pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for
the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the
steps to be taken if the claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil
action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not
more than an additional 90 days if special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall
give the claimant, before the end of the initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special
circumstances and the date by which the Claims Administrator expects to render a decision.

 

 (b) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice
described in paragraph (a), the claimant or his duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his claim.

 

 

(c) In connection with such review, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues, comments, documents,
records and other information relating to the claim for benefits to the Claims Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be
provided, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, or other information
“relevant” to claimant’s claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is “relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in
making the benefit determination; (2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination,
without regard to whether such document, record or information was relied upon in making the benefit determination; or
(3) demonstrates compliance with administrative processes and safeguards required under federal law.
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(d) The Plan will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information submitted by the
claimant relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit
determination. The Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant within 60
days after receipt by the Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended to not more than 120
days after such receipt if special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The claimant will be notified in writing
prior to the expiration of the original 60 day period if such an extension is required, and such notice will include the reason for
the extension and the date by which it is expected that a decision will be reached. The decision on review shall be in writing,
set forth in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision;
(2) specific reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is
entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, and other
information “relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional material or information necessary
for the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (5) a statement
describing any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such procedures, if any; and
(6) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse benefit
determination on review.

 

 

(e) If in the event that the reviewing committee must make a determination of disability in order to decide a claim, the reviewing
committee shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor Regulation section
2560.503-1(d). The reviewing committee shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90 days) after the
claimant’s request for review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 
(f) The Claims Administrator shall be the Lockheed Martin Corporation Pension Plans Administrative Committee. Notwithstanding

the foregoing, with respect to claims and appeals brought by elected officers of the Company, the Claims Administrator shall be
the Committee.
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ARTICLE IX

GENERAL AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1. This Plan shall not in any way obligate the Company to continue the employment of a Participant with the Company, nor does this Plan
limit the right of the Company at any time and for any reason to terminate the Participant’s employment. In no event shall this Plan constitute an
employment contract of any nature whatsoever between the Company and a Participant. In no event shall this Plan by its terms or implications in
any way limit the right of the Company to change an Eligible Employee’s compensation or other benefits.

2. Any benefits accrued under this Plan shall not be treated as compensation for purposes of calculating the amount of a Participant’s
benefits or contributions under any pension, retirement, or other plan maintained by the Company, except as provided in such other plan.

3. Any written notice to the Company referred to herein shall be made by mailing or delivering such notice to the Company at 6801
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, Maryland 20817, to the attention of Pension Plan Operations, Human Resource Services. Any written notice to a
Participant shall be made by delivery to the Participant in person, through electronic transmission, or by mailing such notice to the Participant at
his or her place of residence or business address.

4. In the event it should become impossible for the Company or the Committee to perform any act required by this Plan, the Company or the
Committee may perform such other act as it in good faith determines will most nearly carry out the intent and the purpose of this Plan.

5. Each Eligible Employee shall be deemed conclusively to have accepted and consented to all the terms of this Plan and all actions or
decisions made by the Company, the Board, or Committee with regard to the Plan.

6. The provisions of this Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, its successors, and its assigns, and to the
Participants and their heirs, executors, administrators, and legal representatives.

7. A copy of this Plan shall be available for inspection by Participants or other persons entitled to benefits under the Plan at reasonable
times at the offices of the Company.

8. The validity of this Plan or any of its provisions shall be construed, administered, and governed in all respects under and by the laws of
the State of Maryland, except as to matters of Federal law. If any provisions of this instrument shall be held by a court of competent
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jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof shall continue to be fully effective.

9. This Plan and its operation, including the payment of cash hereunder, is subject to compliance with all applicable Federal and state laws,
rules and regulations and such other approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the
Company, be necessary or advisable in connection therewith.

ARTICLE X

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Plan, including any amendment and restatement of the prior plans, is generally effective July 1, 2004.
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Exhibit 10.7

Lockheed Martin Corporation
Severance Benefit Plan For Certain Management Employees

Originally Effective January 1, 2008
Amended and Restated Effective June 26, 2008

This document sets forth the terms of the Lockheed Martin Corporation Severance Benefit Plan for Certain Management Employees (the “Plan”).
The Plan provides benefits to Eligible Employees who leave the employment of the Corporation as a result of an Executive Layoff Event and
otherwise satisfy the eligibility requirements of the Plan. The Plan is intended to constitute an employee welfare benefit plan under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) that provides severance benefits to a select group of management or highly compensated
employees.
 
1. Definitions. The following terms when capitalized have the following meaning:
 

 
(a) Affiliate - Any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50% or more of the

voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporations), is owned or controlled (directly or indirectly) by
the Company or by one or more of its Affiliates, or by a combination thereof.

 

 (b) Annual Base Pay - An amount equal to fifty-two (52) weeks of Base Pay.
 

 (c) Base Pay - The Employee’s weekly salary at the time of the Employee’s termination of employment. Base Pay shall not include
management incentive compensation, overtime or any other additions to salary.

 

 (d) Basic Severance Benefit - The benefit payable under Section 5(a) of the Plan.
 

 (e) Cause - Any of the following: (i) Commission of a crime that the Company determines could harm the Company’s reputation or
financial prospects or could subject the Company to penalties or sanctions; (ii) A violation of any of
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the Company’s corporate policy statements that involve compliance with law which violation the Company determines could harm the
Company’s reputation or financial prospects; (iii) A violation of the Company’s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that the Company
determines could harm the Company’s reputation or financial prospects; (iv) Refusal to cooperate with the Company in a Company
investigation; or (v) Any similar conduct with respect to which the Company determines in its sole discretion that the payment of a
benefit under the Plan would not be in the Company’s best interest.

 

 (f) Claims Administrator - The Committee, in the case of an Officer, and the Savings Plan Administrative Committee, in the case of any
other Employee.

 

 (g) Committee - The Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors.
 

 (h) Company - Lockheed Martin Corporation. For the purposes of the Plan, the term “Company” shall include any successor entity (by
merger or otherwise).

 

 (i) Eligible Employee - An Employee who satisfies the requirements for eligibility for coverage under Section 3 and who is not covered
by any of the exceptions described in Section 4.

 

 
(j) Employee - An individual who is employed by the Company and is treated on the Company’s payroll records as a salaried employee of

the Company. The term “Employee” includes an Officer but does not include anyone who is not a citizen or resident of the United
States and whose duties are primarily performed outside the United States.

 

 

(k) Executive Layoff Event - Termination of employment of an Eligible Employee that is (i) initiated by the Company for reasons other
than for Cause; and (ii) designated by the Board of Directors in the case of an Officer, or the Senior Vice President, Human Resources
in the case of any Employee other than an Officer, as an Executive Layoff Event. An Executive Layoff Event does not include a
termination that is described in Section 4.

 

 (l) Follow-on Benefits - A payment equal to the cost to the Eligible Employee of continuing for one year his or her coverage under the
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Company’s medical, dental and vision plans under the plans and with the same level of coverage as elected by the Eligible Employee
during open enrollment for the Plan Year in which the Executive Layoff Event occurs (but excluding flexible spending account plans).
The amount will be equal to the cost charged Employees for coverage provided by the Company pursuant to the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987 (COBRA coverage).

 

 
(m) Full Bonus Equivalent - An amount equal to an Eligible Employee’s Annual Base Pay multiplied by the target level assigned to the

Eligible Employee under Paragraph B of Exhibit A to the Lockheed Martin Corporation 2006 Management Incentive Compensation Plan
(Performance-Based) or any successor plan.

 

 (n) Long Term Incentive Performance Award - A cash award under the Lockheed Martin Corporation Amended and Restated 2003
Incentive Performance Award Plan or any successor plan that measures performance over a three year cycle.

 

 (o) Officer - An Employee who is elected as an officer of the Company by the Board of Directors.
 

 (p) Plan Administrator - Lockheed Martin Corporation.
 

 (q) Plan Year - The 12-month period beginning on January 1 each year and ending on the following December 31.
 

 

(r) Prorated Bonus Equivalent - An amount equal to (i) an Eligible Employee’s Base Pay multiplied by the target percentage assigned to
the Eligible Employee under Paragraph B of Exhibit A to the Lockheed Martin Corporation 2006 Management Incentive Compensation
Plan (2006) (or any successor plan), and (ii) then multiplying the product obtained under (i) by the number of full weeks for which the
Eligible Employee was employed by the Company in the Plan Year in which the Executive Layoff Event occurs.

 

 (s) Salaried Employee Plan - The Severance Benefit Plan for Employees of Lockheed Martin Corporation or any successor plan that
provides benefits in the case of a layoff or reduction in force to salaried employees of the Company or its Affiliates.
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 (m) Severance Benefit - Benefits payable under the Plan which could be a Basic Severance Benefit or a Supplemental Severance Benefit.
 

 (n) Supplemental Severance Benefit - The benefit payable under Section 5(b) of the Plan.
 

 
(o) Years of Service - The number of consecutive calendar months from (and including) the month of the Eligible Employee’s date of hire

through and including the month in which the applicable Employee’s Executive Layoff Event occurs, divided by 12, subject to the
following:

 

 
(i) Service Limited to Whole Years. Fractional Years of Service will be disregarded, so that only full Years of Service will be

recognized. The only exception relating to fractional years of service pertains to Eligible Employees who have more than six
months of service, but less than a full year of service, in which case the Years of Service will be calculated as one year.

 

 
(ii) Certain Periods of Leave. Time periods of leave during the Employee’s employment that do not or would not qualify for credited

service under the pension plan applicable to the Eligible Employee will be deducted from the total period of employment to
calculate the Eligible Employee’s Years of Service;

 

 (iii) An Eligible Employee’s Years of Service under the foregoing rules shall never exceed the actual number of full years worked by
the Employee for the Company.

 
2. Effective Date. The Plan shall be effective with respect to Executive Layoff Events that occur and are announced on or after January 1,

2008.
 
3. Eligibility for Coverage. An Employee shall be eligible for coverage under the Plan if the Employee satisfies all of the following:
 

 (a) At the time of the Executive Layoff Event, the Employee is either
 

 (i) an Officer,
 

 (ii) an Employee who has been granted a Long Term Incentive
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 Performance Award for which a performance cycle is still ongoing; or
 

 (iii) an Employee who is designated in writing by the Senior Vice President, Human Resources to participate in the Plan.
 

 (b) The Employee has not waived coverage under the Plan;
 

 (c) The Employee is not receiving a benefit under the Salaried Employee Plan and is not a party to another plan, agreement or
arrangement providing severance or similar benefits on account of termination of employment;

 

 (d) The Employee is not disqualified for a Severance Benefit because the Employee’s termination of employment is on account of one of
the exceptions set forth in Section 4; and

 

 
(e) The Senior Vice President, Human Resources determines in his or her sole discretion that the Employee’s employment has or will

terminate on account of Executive Layoff Event. In the case of an Officer, this determination will be made by the Committee in its sole
discretion.

 
4. Exceptions To Coverage As An Executive Layoff Event. Notwithstanding Section 3 or anything else to the contrary, an Employee’s

termination of employment will not be considered to have occurred on account of an Executive Layoff Event and the Employee will not be
entitled to a Severance Benefit if:

 

 (a) the Employee is transferred to or assumes another position within the Company or with any Affiliate;
 

 

(b) the Employee is transferred to, assumes, or is offered a job or position with (A) a purchaser of stock of the Company, or of assets of
the Company, or of a business unit(s) of the Company, or of stock or other equity interests or assets of an Affiliate(s) or of a business
unit(s) of an Affiliate; (B) the surviving entity following a merger or consolidation of the Company or an Affiliate(s) with another entity;
(C) an entity serving as a contractor or a succeeding contractor (including a subcontractor or outsourcer) for business or functions
performed by the Company; (D) an entity including but not limited to a joint venture, limited liability
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company or partnership to whom control of a business unit, organization or function within the Company or a business unit of the
Company or of an Affiliate, or contract is transferred, whether by a stock or asset sale or other means; or (E) an affiliate of any such
purchaser, contractor, succeeding contractor, subcontractor, outsourcer or entity;

 

 (c) the Employee is terminated for Cause; or
 

 
(d) the Employee terminates employment on his or her own initiative including retirement, resignation, failure to return from leave of

absence or disability, or dies. If an Employee elects to retire concurrent with an Executive Layoff Event, then the Employee will not fall
within this exception to coverage.

 
5. Calculation of Severance Benefit.
 

 (a) Basic Severance Benefit Applicable to all Eligible Employees. The Basic Severance Benefit payable to an Eligible Employee shall
equal two weeks of the Eligible Employee’s Base Pay.

 

 

(b) Supplemental Severance Benefit. The following Supplemental Severance Benefits are in addition to the Basic Severance Benefit and
are available only to Eligible Employees who within [45] calendar days of the Eligible Employee’s termination of employment as a
result of an Executive Layoff Event execute both (i) a valid and binding written release of the Company and its directors, officers and
Employees of claims of any kind or nature in respect of the Employee’s employment with the Company and any predecessor employer
(and each of their affiliates) in the form supplied by the Company; and do not revoke any such release of claims within any revocation
period provided for in the release of claims, and (ii) Post-Employment Conduct Agreement substantially in the form attached to the
Plan as Exhibit A and as amended to reflect specific jurisdictional or other requirements.

 

 i. For the Chief Executive Officer – a lump sum payment equal to the sum of 2.99 times Annual Base Pay plus 2.99 times
Full Bonus Equivalent plus Follow-on
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 Benefits.
 

 ii. For an Officer other than the Chief Executive Officer – a lump sum payment equal to the sum of Annual Base Pay plus
Full Bonus Equivalent plus Follow-on Benefits.

 

 

iii. For an Eligible Employee who has received a Long Term Incentive Performance Award for which the performance period
has not concluded or any other Eligible Employee and is not covered by Section 5(b)(i) or (ii) above – a lump sum
payment equal to the sum of (a) the product of the number of full Years of Service (up to a maximum of 26) credited to
the Eligible Employee multiplied by the Eligible Employee’s weekly rate of Base Pay at the time of termination of
employment, plus (b) the Eligible Employee’s Pro Rata Bonus Equivalent, plus (c) Follow-on Benefits.

 

 

iv. In addition to the applicable amount specified in Section (b) (i), (ii), or (iii) above, an Eligible Employee who is receiving a
Supplemental Severance Benefit also will be eligible to receive (a) outplacement services for one year; and (b) if the
Eligible Employee relocated in order to fill the position held by the Eligible Employee at the time of the Executive Layoff
Event, he or she will also be eligible for relocation services in accordance with CPS 538.

 

 

(c) Timing of Payment of Severance Benefit - The amount of the Severance Benefit payable under Section 5(a) and Section 5 (b)(i), (ii) or
(iii) above will be paid in a lump sum, less applicable tax withholdings as soon as practicable following the Eligible Employee’s
termination of employment (and the expiration of any applicable revocation period thereunder without revocation of such release of
claims) in the case of payment of a Basic Severance Benefit and execution of a release of claims following Executive Layoff Event in
the case of payment of a Supplemental Severance Benefit, but in no event later than the March 15 immediately
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following the year in which the Eligible Employee’s Executive Layoff Event occurs. Outplacement and relocation expenses paid as part
of the Supplemental Severance Benefit will be provided by a third party provider selected by the Company. Outplacement or relocation
expenses will be paid by the Company to the third party providing the services following billing to the Company and must be incurred
no later than December 31 of the second year following the year in which the Eligible Employee’s Executive Layoff Event occurred and
paid by the Company no later than December 31 of the third year following the year in which the Eligible Employee’s termination of
employment occurred.

 

 

(d) Maximum Benefit Payable - Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, if the total amount of benefits, including Plan
benefits, provided to an Eligible Employee would result in an “excess parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the Company, in its sole discretion, may reduce the benefits provided under the Plan so
that the total payment will not result in an excess parachute payment to the Eligible Employee.

 
6. Further Conditions on Payment of Severance Benefit.
 

 

(a) The Company retains the right to condition payment of a Basic Severance Benefit or Supplemental Severance Benefit upon the
Eligible Employee maintaining fully satisfactory work performance until the effective date of the Eligible Employee’s Executive Layoff
Event as agreed to by the Company, including the Eligible Employee’s faithful performance of any remaining obligations the Employee
may owe to the Company such as prompt reimbursement to the Company for cash advances and debit balances and the return of all
Company property.

 

 

(b) In the event an Eligible Employee who is entitled to a Supplemental Severance Benefit becomes employed by the Company (or an
Affiliate) prior to the first anniversary of his or her Executive Layoff Event, the Eligible Employee shall be obligated to repay to the
Company an amount equal to the amount of the Employee’s Supplemental Severance Benefit multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of
which is the
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number of weeks (capped at 52) in the one-year period following the Employee’s termination of employment during which the Employee
is employed by the Company and the denominator of which is (i) fifty-two (52), in the case of an Officer; and (ii) twenty-six (26) in the
case of any other Eligible Employee.

 

 

(c) If an Eligible Employee dies after his or her termination of employment, but before payment of a Basic Severance Benefit is made, the
Basic Severance Benefit will be paid to his or her estate. If an Eligible Employee dies after he or she has signed the release of claims
and the release of claims is delivered to the Company within the time limit provided in Section 5(b) of the Plan, then the Supplemental
Severance Benefit will be paid to his or her estate.

 

 

(d) The benefits under the Plan are in lieu of, and not in addition to, any other severance or similar benefits for which the Eligible
Employee may be eligible under any Company plan, policy, agreement or arrangement (including but not limited to the Salaried
Employee Plan). As a condition to receiving a benefit under the Plan, the Company may require that the Eligible Employee waive rights
under all other plans, policies, agreements or arrangements providing severance or similar benefits or may reduce the amount payable
under the Plan by the amount payable under any other such plan policy, agreement or arrangement.

 
7. Administration. The Company shall be the named fiduciary of the Plan and the Plan Administrator for purposes of ERISA. The Company

shall be responsible for the overall operation of the Plan and shall have the fiduciary responsibility for the general operation of the Plan. The
Company may appoint or employ such persons as it deems necessary to render advice with respect to any responsibility of the Company
under the Plan. The Committee, with respect to Officers, and the Savings Plan Administrative Committee, with respect to all other
Employees shall determine the eligibility of any Employee to participate in the Plan and the right of any Employee to any benefit and the
amount of any benefit payable under the Plan to any individual. The Committee and the Savings Plan Administrative

 
EXECUTION COPY   9   



 Committee shall have the discretionary authority to interpret any term of the Plan.
 
8. Claims Procedure.
 

 

(a) The Senior Vice President, Human Resources shall notify each Eligible Employee who has been determined to have incurred an
Executive Layoff Event and who is eligible to receive benefits under the Plan and shall provide any forms required in connection with
application for such benefits. If any Employee disagrees with determination of his or her benefits, the Employee may submit a written
statement to the Claims Administrator describing the basis of the claim for benefits, together with any forms required in connection
with application for a benefit, at any time within the 120 day period following the date on which the Employee claims to have become
entitled to the Basic Severance Benefits or the Supplemental Severance Benefits.

 

 (b) The procedures when a claim under the Plan is wholly or partially denied are as follows:
 

 

(i) The Claims Administrator shall, within 90 days after receipt of a claim, furnish to claimant a written notice setting forth, in a
manner calculated to be understood by claimant: (1) the specific reason or reasons for the denial; (2) specific reference to
pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial is based; (3) a description of any additional materials or information necessary for
the claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (4) an explanation of the
steps to be taken if the claimant wishes to have the denial reviewed; and (5) a statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil
action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse determination on review. The 90 day period may be extended for not
more than an additional 90 days if special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The Claims Administrator shall
give the claimant, before the end of the initial 90 day period, a written notice of such extension, stating such special
circumstances and the date by which the Senior Vice President expects to render a decision.
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(ii) By a written application filed with the Claims Administrator within 60 days after receipt by claimant of the written notice

described in paragraph (a), the claimant or his or her duly authorized representative may request review of the denial of his or
her claim by the Claims Administrator.

 

 

(iii) In connection with review by the Claims Administrator, the claimant or his duly authorized representative may submit issues,
comments, documents, records and other information relating to the claim for benefits under the Plan to the Claims
Administrator. In addition, the claimant will be provided, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all
documents, records, or other information “relevant” to claimant’s claim for benefits. A document, record, or other information is
“relevant” if it: (1) was relied upon in making the benefit determination; (2) was submitted, considered or generated in the course
of making the benefit determination, without regard to whether such document, record or information was relied upon in making
the benefit determination; or (3) demonstrates compliance with administrative processes and safeguards required under federal
law.

 

 

(iv) The Claims Administrator will provide an impartial review that takes into account all comments, records and other information
submitted by the claimant relating to the claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the
initial benefit determination. The Claims Administrator shall make a decision and furnish such decision in writing to the claimant
within 60 days after receipt by the Claims Administrator of the request for review. This period may be extended by the Claims
Administrator to not more than 120 days after such receipt if special circumstances make such an extension necessary. The
claimant will be notified in writing prior to the expiration of the original 60 day period if such an extension is required, and such
notice will include the reason for the extension and the date by which it is expected that a decision will be reached. The
decision on review shall be in writing, set forth in
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a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant and shall include: (1) the specific reasons for the decision; (2) specific
reference to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the decision is based; (3) a statement that the claimant is entitled to
receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, and other information
“relevant” to the claimant’s claim for benefits; (4) a description of any additional material or information necessary for the
claimant to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; (5) a statement describing
any voluntary appeal procedures and the claimant’s right to obtain information about such procedures, if any; and (6) a
statement of the claimant’s right to bring a civil action under section 502(a) of ERISA following an adverse benefit determination
on review. In the event that the Claims Administrator must make a determination of disability in order to decide a claim, the
Claims Administrator shall follow the special claims procedures for disability benefits described in Department of Labor
Regulation section 2560.503-1(d). The Claims Administrator shall render a decision within a reasonable time (not to exceed 90
days) after the claimant’s request for review, rather than within 120 days as set forth in the above paragraph.

 

 (v) In filing a claim or appeal under this Section 8, an Employee at his or her option may act through an authorized representative.
 
9. Funding. The Plan shall not be funded through a trust, insurance contract or otherwise, and all benefit payments from the Plan shall be

made from the general assets of the Company. Accordingly, an Employee shall not have any claim against specific assets of the Company,
and shall be only a general creditor, with respect to any rights he/she may have under the Plan.

 
10. Amendment and Termination of Plan. The Plan may be amended, in whole or in part, at any time by action of the Committee or by any

authorized delegate, without notice, except that any amendment that would change the eligibility requirements or the amount of benefits
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payable under the Plan must be approved by the Committee. The Plan may be terminated by action of the Committee at any time. Upon
termination of the Plan, the Company shall have no further liability hereunder, and all Plan benefits (including any amounts payable to
Employees who separated from service before the date of Plan termination) shall cease.

 
11. No Assignment. No Basic Severance Benefit or Supplemental Severance Benefit payable under the Plan may be assigned, transferred,

pledged as a security for indebtedness or otherwise encumbered, or subjected to any legal process for the payment of any claim against an
Employee.

 
12. Relationship to Other Benefits. An Employee’s Basic Severance Benefit or Supplemental Severance Benefit shall not be taken into

account to increase any benefits provided (or to continue coverage) under any other plan, policy, or arrangement of the Company or any
Affiliate, except as otherwise expressly provided in writing in the other plan, policy, or arrangement, including accelerating vesting or other
rights under the Lockheed Martin Corporation Amended and Restated Incentive Performance Award Plan (or any successor plan).

 
13. Governing Law. Except to the extent preempted by Federal law, the Plan shall be construed, administered and enforced according to the

laws of the State of Maryland, without regard to its conflict of laws provisions. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, payments
under this Award Agreement shall be made at a time and in a manner that satisfies the requirements of Internal Revenue Code
Section 409A.
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The Plan has been approved by the Management Development and Compensation Committee and is effective as of January 1, 2008.
Amendments to the Plan are effective as of the date(s) set forth above.
 
LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION

By  /s/ Kenneth J. Disken
 Kenneth J. Disken
 Senior Vice President, Human Resources
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Exhibit A

Post-Employment Conduct Agreement

[Will vary by state and current legal and professional
requirements at time of termination]

This Post Employment Conduct Agreement dated [                    ] (this “PECA”), together with the Release of Claims being
entered into contemporaneous with this PECA, is entered into in consideration of the payment (“Severance Payment”) to be made to me under the
Lockheed Martin Corporation Severance Benefit Plan for Certain Management Employees (“Severance Plan”). By signing below, I agree as
follows:

(a) Restrictions Following Termination of Employment.
(a) Covenant Not To Compete - Without the express written consent of the [Chief Executive Officer/Senior Vice President, Human

Resources]1 of the Company, during the [two/one]2 -year period following the date of my termination of employment with the Company
(“Termination Date”), I will not, directly or indirectly, be employed by, provide services to, or advise a “Restricted Company” (as defined in
Section 6 below), whether as an employee, advisor, director, officer, partner or consultant, or in any other position, function or role that, in any
such case,
 

 (i) oversees, controls or affects the design, operation, research, manufacture, marketing, sale or distribution of “Competitive
Products or Services” (as defined in Section 6 below) of or by the Restricted Company, or

 

 

(ii) would involve a substantial risk that the “Confidential or Proprietary Information” (as defined in Section 1(c) below) of the
Company (including but not limited to technical information or intellectual property, strategic plans, information relating to
pricing offered to the Company by vendors or suppliers or to prices charged or pricing contemplated to be charged by the
Company, information relating to employee performance, promotions or identification for promotion, or information relating
to the Company’s cost base) could be used to the disadvantage of the Company.

 
1 CEO for elected officers; SVP HR for others.
2 Two years for elected officers; one year for others.
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(b) Non-Solicit - Without the express written consent of the [Chief Executive Officer/Senior Vice President, Human Resources]1 of
the Company, during the [two/one]2 -year period following the Termination Date, I will not (i) interfere with any contractual relationship between the
Company and any customer, supplier, distributor or manufacturer of or to the Company to the detriment of the Company or (ii) induce or attempt to
induce any person who is an employee of the Company to perform work or services for any entity other than the Company.

(c) Protection of Proprietary Information - Except to the extent required by law, following my Termination Date, I will have a continuing
obligation to comply with the terms of any non-disclosure or similar agreements that I signed while employed by the Company committing to hold
confidential the “Confidential or Proprietary Information” (as defined below) of the Company or any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, related companies,
joint ventures, partnerships, customers, suppliers, partners, contractors or agents, in each case in accordance with the terms of such agreements.
I will not use or disclose or allow the use or disclosure by others to any person or entity of Confidential or Proprietary Information of the Company
or others to which I had access or that I was responsible for creating or overseeing during my employment with the Company. In the event I
become legally compelled (by deposition, interrogatory, request for documents, subpoena, civil investigative demand or otherwise) to disclose any
proprietary or confidential information, I will immediately notify the Company’s Senior Vice President and General Counsel as to the existence of
the obligation and will cooperate with any reasonable request by the Company for assistance in seeking to protect the information. All materials to
which I have had access, or which were furnished or otherwise made available to me in connection with my employment with the Company shall
be and remain the property of the Company. For purposes of this PECA, “Confidential or Proprietary Information” means Proprietary Information
within the meaning of CPS 710 (a copy of which has been made available to me), including but not limited to information that a person or entity
desires to protect from unauthorized disclosure to third parties that can provide the person or entity with a business, technological, or economic
advantage over its competitors, or which, if known or used by third parties or if used by the person’s or entity’s employees or agents in an
unauthorized manner, might be detrimental to the person’s or entity’s interests. Confidential or Proprietary Information may include, but is not
limited to:
 

 (i) existing and contemplated business, marketing and financial business information such as business plans and methods, marketing
information, cost estimates, forecasts, financial data, cost or pricing data, bid and proposal information, customer identification,
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 sources of supply, contemplated product lines, proposed business alliances, and information about customers or competitors, or
 

 
(ii) existing or contemplated technical information and documentation pertaining to technology, know how, equipment, machines, devices

and systems, computer hardware and software, compositions, formulas, products, processes, methods, designs, specifications, mask
works, testing or evaluation procedures, manufacturing processes, or production processes.

(d) No disparagement - Following the Termination Date, I will not make any statements, whether verbal or written, that disparage or
reasonably may be interpreted to disparage the Company or its stockholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, representatives,
technology, products or services with respect to any matter whatsoever.

(e) Cooperation in Litigation and Investigations - Following the Termination Date, I will, to the extent reasonably requested, cooperate
with the Company in any pending or future litigation (including alternative dispute resolution proceedings) or investigations in which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or affiliates is a party or is required or requested to provide testimony and regarding which, as a result of my employment
with the Company, I reasonably could be expected to have knowledge or information relevant to the litigation or investigation. Notwithstanding any
other provision of this PECA, nothing in this PECA shall affect my obligation to cooperate with any governmental inquiry or investigation or to give
truthful testimony in court.

2. Consideration and Release of Claims. I acknowledge and agree that the Severance Payment being made to me is in addition to the
payments or benefits that otherwise are or would be owed to me by the Company and that the Severance Benefit being provided to me is in
consideration for my entering into this PECA and the Release of Claims attached to this PECA. I acknowledge that the scope and duration of the
restrictions in Section 1 are necessary to be effective and are fair and reasonable in light of the value of the payments being made to me. I further
acknowledge and agree that as a result of the high level executive and management positions I have held within the Company and the access to
and extensive knowledge of the Company’s Confidential or Proprietary Information, employees, suppliers and customers, these restrictions are
reasonably required for the protection of the Company’s legitimate business interests.

3. Remedies For Breach of Section 1; Additional Remedies of Clawback and Recoupment.
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(a) I agree, upon demand by the Company, to repay the Severance Payment to the Company in the event any of the following occur:
 

 (i) I breach any of the covenants in Section 1;
 

 

(ii) The Company determines that either (a) my intentional misconduct or gross negligence, or (b) my failure to report another person’s
intentional misconduct or gross negligence of which I had knowledge during the period I was employed by the Company, contributed to
the Company having to restate all or a portion of its financial statements filed for any period with the Securities and Exchange
Commission; or

 

 

(iii) The Company determines that I engaged in fraud, bribery or any other illegal act or that my intentional misconduct or gross negligence
(including the failure to report the acts of another person of which I had knowledge during the period I was employed by the Company)
contributed to another person’s fraud, bribery or other illegal act, which in any such case adversely affected the Company’s financial
position or reputation.

(b) The remedy provided in Section 3(a) shall not be the exclusive remedy available to the Company for any of the conduct described
in Section 3(a) and shall not limit the Company from seeking damages or injunctive relief.

4. Injunctive Relief. I acknowledge that the Company’s remedies at law may be inadequate to protect the Company against any actual
or threatened breach of the provisions of Section 1 or the conduct described in Section 3(a), and, therefore, without prejudice to any other rights
and remedies otherwise available to the Company at law or in equity (including but not limited to, an action under Section 3(a), the Company shall
be entitled to the granting of injunctive relief in its favor and to specific performance without proof of actual damages and without the requirement
of the posting of any bond or similar security.

5. Invalidity; Unenforceability. It is the desire and intent of the parties that the provisions of this PECA shall be enforced to the fullest
extent permissible. Accordingly, if any particular provision of this PECA is adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable, this PECA shall be deemed
amended to delete the portion adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable, such deletion to apply only with
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respect to the operation of this provision in the particular jurisdiction in which such adjudication is made.

6. Definitions. Capitalized terms not defined in this PECA have the meaning given to them in the Severance Plan, as applicable. For
purposes of this PECA, the following terms have the meanings given below:

(a) “Restricted Company” means The Boeing Company, General Dynamics Corporation, Northrop Grumman Corporation, the Raytheon
Company, United Technologies Corporation, Honeywell International Inc., BAE Systems Inc., L-3 Communications Corporation, the Harris
Corporation, Thales, EADS North America and (i) any entity directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with any of the
foregoing, and (ii) any successor to all or part of the business of any of the foregoing as a result of a merger, reorganization, consolidation, spin-
off, split-up, acquisition, divestiture, or similar transaction.

(b) “Competitive Products or Services” means products or services that compete with, or are an alternative or potential alternative to,
products sold or services provided by a subsidiary, business area, division or operating unit or business of the Company as of the Termination
Date and at any time within the two-year period ending on the Termination Date; provided, that, (i) if I had direct responsibility for the business of,
or function with respect to, a subsidiary, or for a business area, division or operating unit or business of the Company at any time within the two-
year period ending on the Termination Date, Competitive Products or Services includes the products so sold or the services so provided during
that two-year period by the subsidiary, business area, division or operating unit of the Company for which I had responsibility, and (ii) if I did not
have direct responsibility for the business of, or function with respect to, a subsidiary, or for a business area, division or operating unit or business
of the Company at any time within the two-year period ending on the Termination Date, Competitive Products or Services includes the products so
sold or the services so provided by a subsidiary, business area, division or operating unit of the Company for which I had access (or was required
or permitted such access in the performance of my duties or responsibilities with the Company) to Confidential or Proprietary Information of the
Company at any time during the two-year period ending on the Termination Date.

7. Miscellaneous
(a) The Severance Plan, this PECA with the attached Release of Claims constitute the entire agreement governing the terms of the

Severance Payment and supersede all other prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, between me
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and the Company or any employee, officer or director of the Company concerning payments on account of my termination of employment.

(b) This PECA shall be governed by Maryland law, without regard to its provisions governing conflicts of law.

(c) This PECA shall inure to the benefit of the Company’s successors and assigns and may be assigned by the Company without my
consent.
 

 SIGNED this      day of             , 2        .  

    
 (Signature)   

    
 (Printed Name)   

    
 (Title)   

 FOR LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION:  

    
 (Signature)   

    
 (Printed Name)   

    
 (Title)   

    
 (Date)   
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[Release – Will Vary By State and Current Legal Requirements at Time of
Termination]
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Exhibit 10.8

LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION AMENDED AND RESTATED
2003 INCENTIVE PERFORMANCE AWARD PLAN

As Amended and Restated June 26, 2008

SECTION 1. Purpose.
The purpose of this Plan is to benefit the Corporation’s stockholders by encouraging high levels of performance by individuals who contribute

to the success of the Corporation and its Subsidiaries and to enable the Corporation and its Subsidiaries to attract, motivate, retain and reward
talented and experienced individuals. This purpose is to be accomplished by providing eligible employees with an opportunity to obtain or increase
their proprietary interest in the Corporation and by providing eligible employees with additional incentives to join or remain with the Corporation and
its Subsidiaries.

SECTION 2. Definitions; Rules of Construction.
(a) Defined Terms. The terms defined in this Section shall have the following meanings for purposes of this Plan:

“Award” means an award granted pursuant to Section 4.
“Award Agreement” means an agreement described in Section 6 entered into between the Corporation and a Participant, setting forth

the terms and conditions of an Award granted to a Participant.
“Beneficiary” means a person or persons (including a trust or trusts) validly designated by a Participant as the Participant’s beneficiary

under this Plan, or, in the absence of a valid designation, the personal representative of the Participant’s estate in the event of a
Participant’s death.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Corporation.
“Cash-Based Awards” means Awards that, if paid, must be paid in cash and that are neither denominated in nor have a value derived

from the value of, nor an exercise or conversion privilege at a price related to, shares of Stock, as described in Section 4(a)(6).
“Cash Flow” means cash and cash equivalents derived from either (i) net cash flow from operations or (ii) net cash flow from

operations, financings and investing activities, as determined by the Committee at the time an Award is granted.
“Change in Control” means a change in control as defined in Section 7(c).
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
“Committee” means the Committee described in Section 8.
“Corporation” means Lockheed Martin Corporation.
“Date of Grant” means the date specified by the Committee as the date on which an Award is to be granted (which date shall be no

earlier than the date the resolution approving the Award is adopted by the Committee), or if no such date is specified by the Committee, the
date on which the Committee adopts a resolution making the Award.



“Employee” means any officer (whether or not also a director) or any key salaried employee of the Corporation or any of its
Subsidiaries, but excludes, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, an Employee of any Subsidiary that is not a “subsidiary corporation” of
the Corporation as defined in Code Section 424(f).

“EPS” means earnings per common share on a fully diluted basis determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time.
“Executive Officer” means executive officer as defined in Rule 3b-7 under the Exchange Act, provided that, if the Board has

designated the executive officers of the Corporation for purposes of reporting under the Exchange Act, the designation by the Board shall be
conclusive for purposes of this Plan.

“Fair Market Value” means the closing sale price of the relevant security as reported by the New York Stock Exchange on its web site
as the closing price (or, if the security is not so listed or if the principal market on which it is traded is not the New York Stock Exchange,
such other reporting system as shall be selected by the Committee) on the relevant date, or, if no sale of the security is reported for that
date, the next preceding day for which there is a reported sale. The Committee shall determine the Fair Market Value of any security that is
not publicly traded, using criteria as it shall determine, in its sole direction, to be appropriate for the valuation.

“Insider” means any person who is subject to the reporting obligations of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.
“Option” means a Nonqualified Stock Option or an Incentive Stock Option as described in Section 4(a)(1) or (2).
“Participant” means an Employee who is granted an Award pursuant to this Plan so long as the Award remains outstanding.
“Performance-Based Awards” means an Award contemplated by Section 4(b).
“Performance Goal” means EPS or ROIC or Cash Flow or Total Stockholder Return, and “Performance Goals” means any combination

thereof.
“Plan” means this Lockheed Martin Corporation 2003 Incentive Performance Award Plan.
“ROIC” means return on invested capital calculated as (A) (i) net income plus (ii) interest expense times one minus the highest

marginal federal corporate tax rate, divided by (B) (i) the average quarter end debt (including current maturities of long-term debt) plus (ii) the
average quarter end stockholders’ equity, in each case determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States.

“Rule 16b-3” means Rule 16b-3 under Section 16 of the Exchange Act, as amended from time to time.
“Share-Based Awards” means Awards that are payable or denominated in or have a value derived from the value of, or an exercise or

conversion privilege at a price related to, shares of Stock, as described in Sections 4(a)(1) through (5).
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“Share Units” means the number of units under a Share-Based Award that is payable solely in cash or is actually paid in cash,
determined by reference to the number of shares of Stock by which the Share-Based Award is measured.

“Stock” means shares of common stock of the Corporation, par value $1.00 per share, subject to adjustments made under Section 7 or
by operation of law.

“Subsidiary” means, as to any person, any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture or other business entity of which 50
percent or more of the voting stock or other equity interests (in the case of entities other than corporations), is owned or controlled (directly
or indirectly) by that entity, or by one or more of the Subsidiaries of that entity, or by a combination thereof.

“Total Stockholder Return” means with respect to the Corporation or other entities (if measured on a relative basis), the (i) change in
the market price of its common stock (as quoted in the principal market on which it is traded as of the beginning and ending of the period)
plus dividends and other distributions paid, divided by (ii) the beginning quoted market price, all of which is adjusted for any changes in
equity structure, including but not limited to stock splits and stock dividends.

(b) Financial and Accounting Terms. Except as otherwise expressly provided or the context otherwise requires, financial and accounting
terms, including terms defined herein as Performance Goals, are used as defined for purposes of, and shall be determined in accordance with,
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and as derived from the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation,
prepared in the ordinary course of business and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time.

(c) Rules of Construction. For purposes of this Plan and the Award Agreements, unless otherwise expressly provided or the context
otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Plan include the plural and the singular, and pronouns of either gender or neuter shall include, as
appropriate, the other pronoun forms.

SECTION 3. Eligibility.
Any one or more Awards may be granted to any individual who is an Employee on the Date of Grant and who is designated by the

Committee to receive an Award, provided that no individual who beneficially owns Stock possessing five percent (5 percent) or more of the
combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Corporation shall be eligible to participate in this Plan.

SECTION 4. Awards.
(a) Type of Awards. The Committee may grant any of the following types of Awards, either singly or in combination with other Awards:

(1) Nonqualified Stock Options. A Nonqualified Stock Option is an Award in the form of an option to purchase Stock that is not
intended to comply with the requirements of Code Section 422 or any successor provision of the Code. The exercise price of each
Nonqualified Stock Option granted under this Plan shall be not less than the Fair Market Value of the Stock on the Date of Grant of the
Option. All Nonqualified Stock Options shall be treated as Performance-Based Awards subject to the applicable restrictions of Section 4(b).

(2) Incentive Stock Options. An Incentive Stock Option is an Award in the form of an option to purchase Stock that is intended to
comply with the requirements of Code Section 422 or any successor section of the Code. The exercise price of each Incentive Stock Option
granted
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under this Plan shall be not less than the Fair Market Value of the Stock on the Date of Grant of the Option. To the extent that the aggregate
“fair market value” of Stock with respect to which one or more incentive stock options first become exercisable by a Participant in any
calendar year exceeds $100,000, taking into account both Stock subject to Incentive Stock Options under this Plan and stock subject to
incentive stock options under all other plans of the Corporation or of other entities referenced in Code Section 422(d)(1), the options shall be
treated as Nonqualified Stock Options. For this purpose, the “fair market value” of the Stock subject to options shall be determined as of the
Date of Grant of the Options. All Incentive Stock Options shall be treated as Performance-Based Awards subject to the applicable
restrictions of Section 4(b).

(3) Stock Appreciation Rights. A Stock Appreciation Right is an Award in the form of a right to receive, upon surrender of the right, but
without other payment, an amount based on appreciation in the value of Stock over a base price established in the Award, payable in cash,
Stock or such other form or combination of forms of payout, at times and upon conditions (which may include a Change in Control), as may
be approved by the Committee. The minimum base price of a Stock Appreciation Right granted under this Plan shall be not less than the
Fair Market Value of the underlying Stock on the Date of Grant of the Stock Appreciation Right, or, in the case of a Stock Appreciation Right
related to an Option (whether already outstanding or concurrently granted), the exercise price of the related Option. All Stock Appreciation
Rights shall be treated as Performance-Based Awards subject to the applicable restrictions under Section 4(b).

(4) Restricted Stock. Restricted Stock is an Award of shares of Stock of the Corporation that are issued, but subject to restrictions on
transfer and/or such other restrictions on incidents of ownership as the Committee may determine. Awards of Restricted Stock to Executive
Officers that are either granted or vest upon attainment of one or more of the Performance Goals shall only be granted as Performance-
Based Awards subject to the applicable restrictions under Section 4(b).

(5) Stock Units. A Stock Unit is an Award payable in cash or Stock and represented by a bookkeeping credit where the amount
represented by the bookkeeping credit for each Stock Unit equals the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on the Date of Grant and which
amount shall be subsequently increased or decreased to reflect the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on any date from the Date of
Grant up to the date the Stock Unit is paid to the Participant in cash or Stock. Stock Units are not outstanding shares of Stock and do not
entitle a Participant to voting or other rights with respect to Stock; provided, however, that an Award of Stock Units may provide for a cash
payment in an amount equal to the dividends paid on Stock while the Award is outstanding or the crediting of additional Stock Units based
on the value of dividends paid on Stock while the Award is outstanding. Stock Unit Awards to Executive Officers that are either granted or
vest upon attainment of one or more of the Performance Goals shall only be granted as Performance-Based Awards subject to the applicable
restrictions under Section 4(b).

(6) Cash-Based Awards. Cash-Based Awards are Awards that provide Participants with the opportunity to earn a cash payment based
upon the level of performance of the Corporation relative to one or more Performance Goals established by the Committee for an award cycle
of more than one but not more than five years. For each award cycle, the Committee shall determine the size of the Awards, the
Performance Goals, the performance targets as to each of the Performance Goals, the level or levels of achievement necessary for award
payments and the weighting of the Performance Goals, if more than one Performance Goal is applicable. Cash-Based Awards to Executive
Officers that are either granted or become vested, exercisable or payable based on attainment of one or more Performance Goals shall only
be granted as Performance-Based Awards subject to the applicable restrictions under Section 4(b).
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(b) Special Performance-Based Awards. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any of the types of Awards listed in Section 4(a)
may be granted as awards that satisfy the requirements for “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 162(m)
(“Performance-Based Awards”), the grant, vesting, exercisability or payment of which depends on the degree of achievement of the Performance
Goals relative to preestablished targeted levels for the Corporation on a consolidated basis. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section 4(b)
to the contrary, any Option or Stock Appreciation Right shall be subject only to the requirements of clause (1) and Sections 4(c)(1) and (2) below in
order for such Awards to satisfy the requirements for Performance-Based Awards under this Section 4(b) (with such Awards hereinafter referred to
as a “Qualifying Option” or a “Qualifying Stock Appreciation Right,” respectively). With the exception of any Qualifying Option or Qualifying Stock
Appreciation Right, an Award that is intended to satisfy the requirements of this Section 4(b) shall be designated as a Performance-Based Award
at the time of grant. Nothing in this Plan shall limit the ability of the Committee to grant Options or Stock Appreciation Rights with an exercise
price or a base price greater than Fair Market Value on the Date of Grant or to make the vesting of the Options or Stock Appreciation Rights
subject to Performance Goals or other business objectives.

(1) Eligible Class. The eligible class of persons for Awards under this Section 4(b) shall be all Employees.
(2) Performance Goals. The performance goals for any Awards under this Section 4(b) (other than Qualifying Options and Qualifying

Stock Appreciation Rights) shall be, on an absolute or relative basis, one or more of the Performance Goals. The specific performance
target(s) with respect to Performance Goal(s) must be established by the Committee in advance of the deadlines applicable under Code
Section 162(m) and while the performance relating to the Performance Goal(s) remains substantially uncertain.

(3) Committee Certification. Before any Performance-Based Award under this Section 4(b) (other than Qualifying Options and
Qualifying Stock Appreciation Rights) is paid, the Committee must certify in writing (by resolution or otherwise) that the applicable
Performance Goal(s) and any other material terms of the Performance-Based Award were satisfied; provided, however, that a Performance-
Based Award may be paid without regard to the satisfaction of the applicable Performance Goal in the event of a Change in Control as
provided in Section 7(b).

(4) Terms and Conditions of Awards; Committee Discretion to Reduce Performance Awards. The Committee shall have discretion to
determine the conditions, restrictions or other limitations, in accordance with and subject to the terms of this Plan and Code Section 162(m),
on the payment of individual Performance-Based Awards under this Section 4(b). To the extent set forth in an Award Agreement, the
Committee may reserve the right to reduce the amount payable in accordance with any standards or on any other basis (including the
Committee’s discretion), as the Committee may determine.

(5) Adjustments for Material Changes. The Committee shall have the right to specify any adjustment that it deems necessary or
appropriate to any Performance Goals and/or performance targets to take into account or exclude any extraordinary gain or loss or other
event that is considered an extraordinary item under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, provided that the
Committee exercises this right to specify the adjustment at the time the Performance Goals and/or performance targets are established
under this Section 4(b). In addition, the Committee shall have the right to specify any adjustment that it deems necessary or appropriate to
take into account or exclude any other gain or loss or event recognized under any accounting policy or practice affecting the Corporation
and/or any Performance Goals or performance targets, provided that the Committee exercises this right to exclude or take such gain or loss
or event into account at the time the related Performance Goals and/or performance targets are established under this Section 4(b).
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(6) Interpretation. Except as specifically provided in this Section 4(b), the provisions of this Section 4(b) shall be interpreted and
administered by the Committee in a manner consistent with the requirements for exemption of Performance-Based Awards granted to
Executive Officers as “performance-based compensation” under Code Section 162(m) and the regulations thereunder.

(c) Individual Limits.
(1) Share-Based Awards. The maximum number of shares of Stock or Share Units that are issuable under the Plan pursuant to

Options, Stock Appreciation Rights payable in shares of Stock, Restricted Stock or Stock Units payable in shares of Stock (described under
Section 4(a)(5)) that are granted as Performance-Based Awards during any calendar year to any Participant shall not exceed 1,000,000,
subject to adjustment as provided in Section 7; provided, that the maximum number of shares of Stock that may be granted as Restricted
Stock Awards during any calendar year to any Participant under the Plan (including as Performance-Based Awards) shall not exceed
250,000 shares, subject to adjustment as provided in Section 7. Awards that are canceled during the year shall be counted against this limit.

(2) Share Unit Awards. The maximum number of Share Units that are issuable as Stock Units payable in cash only or Stock
Appreciation Rights payable in cash only during any calendar year to any Participant as Performance-Based Awards shall not exceed
300,000, subject to adjustment as provided in Section 7. Awards that are canceled due to expiration or forfeiture during the year shall be
counted against this limit.

(3) Cash-Based Awards. The aggregate amount of compensation to be paid to any Participant in respect of those Cash-Based Awards
that are granted during any calendar year as Performance-Based Awards shall not exceed $5,000,000.

(d) Maximum Term of Awards. No Award that contemplates exercise or conversion may be exercised or converted to any extent, and no
other Award that defers vesting, shall remain outstanding and unexercised, unconverted or unvested more than ten (10) years after the date the
Award was initially granted.

(e) Code Section 409A. It is the intent of the Corporation that no Award under the Plan be subject to taxation under Section 409A(a)(1) of the
Code. Accordingly, if the Committee determines that an Award granted under the Plan is subject to Section 409A of the Code, such Award shall be
interpreted and administered to meet the requirements of Sections 409A(a)(2), (3) and (4) of the Code and thus to be exempt from taxation under
Section 409A(a)(1) of the Code.

SECTION 5. Shares of Stock and Share Units Available Under Plan.
(a) Aggregate Share Limit for Share-Based Awards. The maximum number of shares of Stock that may be subject to Options (including

Incentive Stock Options), Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock and Stock Units granted or issued under the Plan is 44,500,000, subject to
adjustment as provided in this Section 5 or Section 7.

(b) Annual Share Limit for Share-Based Awards. Subject to Section 5(a), the maximum number of shares of Stock that may be subject to
Options (including Incentive Stock Options), Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock and Stock Units granted or issued in any calendar year
is 1.6 percent of the Corporation’s outstanding shares of Stock on December 31 of the calendar year immediately preceding the Date of Grant of
the Award, as reported by the Corporation in its Annual Report on Form 10-K or its Annual Report to Shareholders for such year. The number of
shares of Stock available for grant or issuance under this Section 5(b) in any calendar year shall be increased by the number of shares of Stock
available under the Plan for grant or issuance under this Section 5(b) in previous calendar years but not
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covered by Awards granted as Options (including Incentive Stock Options), Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock and Stock Units in
previous calendar years.

(c) Aggregate Share Unit Limit. The maximum number of Share Units that may be issued as Stock Units payable in cash only and Stock
Appreciation Rights payable in cash only under the Plan is 22,500,000, subject to adjustment as provided in this Section 5 or Section 7.

(d) Shares Available For Restricted Stock Grants. The maximum number of shares of Stock that may be issued as Restricted Stock under
the Plan is 28 percent of the shares authorized under Section 5(a) of the Plan, subject to adjustment as provided in this Section 5 or Section 7.

(e) Reissue of Shares and Share Units. Any unexercised, unconverted or undistributed portion of any Award resulting from termination,
expiration or forfeiture of that Award, or any alternative form of consideration under an Award that is not paid in connection with the settlement of
an Award or any portion of an Award, shall again be available for Award under Section 5(a), 5(b), 5(c) or 5(d), as applicable, whether or not the
Participant has received benefits of ownership (such as dividends or dividend equivalents or voting rights) during the period in which the
Participant’s ownership was restricted or otherwise not vested. Shares of Stock that are issued pursuant to Restricted Stock Awards and
subsequently reacquired by the Corporation due to termination, expiration or forfeiture of the Award shall also be available for reissuance under the
Plan.

(f) Interpretive Issues. Additional rules for determining the number of shares of Stock or Share Units authorized under this Plan or available
for grant or issuance from time to time may be adopted by the Committee, as it deems necessary or appropriate.

(g) Source of Shares; No Fractional Shares. The Stock that may be issued (which term includes Stock reissued or otherwise delivered)
pursuant to an Award under this Plan may be authorized but unissued Stock or Stock acquired by the Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries,
subsequently or in anticipation of a transaction under this Plan, in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. No fractional shares of
Stock shall be issued under the Plan, but fractional interests may be accumulated pursuant to the terms of an Award.

(h) Consideration. The Stock issued under this Plan may be issued (subject to Section 10(d)) for any lawful form of consideration, the value
of which equals the par value of the Stock or such greater or lesser value as the Committee, consistent with Sections 10(d), may require.

(i) Purchase or Exercise Price; Withholding. The exercise or purchase price (if any) of the Stock issuable pursuant to any Award and any
withholding obligation under applicable tax laws shall be paid in cash or, subject to the Committee’s express authorization and the terms,
restrictions, conditions and procedures as the Committee may in its sole discretion impose (subject to Section 10(d)), any one or combination of
(i) cash, (ii) the delivery of shares of Stock, (iii) a reduction in the amount of Stock or other amounts otherwise issuable or payable pursuant to
such Award, (iv) the delivery of a promissory note, or other obligation for the future payment in money, or (v) in the case of purchase price only,
labor or service as an Employee to be performed or actually performed. In the case of a payment by the means described in clause (ii) or
(iii) above, the Stock to be so delivered or offset shall be determined by reference to the Fair Market Value of the Stock on the date as of which
the payment or offset is made. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Insider shall be permitted to satisfy the purchase or exercise price or withholding
obligation with respect to an Award by using a method of payment otherwise authorized under the Plan or an Award Agreement if such method of
payment would constitute a personal loan under Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act. If an Award Agreement to a Participant who is not an Insider
authorizes a method of payment that would constitute a personal loan under Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act and the Participant subsequently
becomes an Insider, then the payment method will no longer be available to the Participant and the Committee shall take whatever steps are
necessary to make
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such payment method void as to such Participant, including but not limited to requiring the immediate payment of any note or loan previously
obtained in connection with an Award.

(j) Cashless Exercise. Subject to any restrictions on Insiders pursuant to Section 13(k) of the Exchange Act, the Committee may permit the
exercise of the Award and payment of any applicable withholding tax in respect of an Award by delivery of notice, subject to the Corporation’s
receipt from a third party of payment (or commitment to make payment) in full in cash for the exercise price and the applicable withholding prior to
issuance of Stock, in the manner and subject to the procedures as may be established by the Committee.

SECTION 6. Award Agreements.
Each Award under this Plan shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement in a form approved by the Committee setting forth, in the case of

Share-Based Awards, the number of shares of Stock or Share Units, as applicable, subject to the Award, and the price (if any) and term of the
Award and, in the case of Performance-Based Awards, the applicable Performance Goals. The Award Agreement also shall set forth (or
incorporate by reference) other material terms and conditions applicable to the Award as determined by the Committee consistent with the
limitations of this Plan.

(a) Mandatory Provisions for Options. Award Agreements for Options shall be deemed to contain the following provisions:
(1) Vesting: A provision providing for a minimum vesting schedule pursuant to which no Award of Options may become fully

exercisable prior to the second anniversary of the Date of Grant, and to the extent an Award provides for vesting in installments over a
period of no less than two years, no portion of an Award of Options may become exercisable prior to the first anniversary of the Date of
Grant. In the event that the Participant is not an Employee on the date on which an Option would otherwise vest and become exercisable,
the Options subject to that vesting date will be forfeited. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) any Award Agreement governing Options may
provide for any additional vesting requirements, including but not limited to longer periods of required employment or the achievement of
Performance Goals; (ii) any Award Agreement may provide that all or a portion of the Options subject to an Award vest immediately or,
alternatively, vest in accordance with the vesting schedule but without regard to the requirement for continued employment with the
Corporation (or a Subsidiary) in the event of a Change in Control, or in the case of termination of employment with the Corporation (or a
Subsidiary) due to death, disability, layoff, retirement or divestiture, or in the case of a vesting period longer than two years, vest and
become exercisable or fail to be forfeited and continue to vest in accordance with the schedule in the Award Agreement prior to the
expiration of any period longer than two years for any reason designated by the Committee; (iii) any Award Agreement may provide that
employment by another entity be treated as employment by the Corporation (or a Subsidiary) in the event a Participant terminates
employment with the Corporation (or a Subsidiary) on account of a divestiture; and (iv) Award Agreements for Options covering, in the
aggregate, up to 1,500,000 shares of Stock may contain a shorter or no vesting requirement for all or a portion of the Options subject to the
Award. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Award Agreement may provide for immediate vesting on account of a layoff.

(2) Option Holding Period: Subject to the authority of the Committee under Section 7, a minimum six-month period shall elapse
between the date of initial grant of any Option and the sale of the underlying shares of Stock, and the Corporation may impose legend and
other restrictions on the Stock issued on exercise of the Options to enforce this requirement.

(3) No Waivers: A provision that neither the Committee nor the Board of Directors has retained the authority to waive the requirements
set forth in Sections 6(a)(1) and (2).
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(b) Mandatory Provisions for Restricted Stock and Stock Units Payable in Stock. Award Agreements for Restricted Stock shall be deemed
to contain the following provisions:

(1) Vesting: A provision prohibiting the sale of any shares of Restricted Stock granted under an Award prior to the third anniversary of
the Date of Grant of the Award and requiring the forfeiture of all shares of Restricted Stock subject to the Award in the event that the
Participant does not remain an Employee for at least three years following the Date of Grant of the Restricted Stock; provided, that (i) any
Award Agreement governing Restricted Stock may provide for any additional vesting requirements, including but not limited to longer periods
of required employment or the achievement of Performance Goals; and (ii) any Award Agreement may provide that Restricted Stock vests
prior to the third anniversary of the Date of Grant (A) in the event of a Change in Control, (B) in the case of termination of employment with
the Corporation (or a Subsidiary) due to death, disability, layoff, retirement or divestiture, or (C) in the case of a vesting period longer than
three years, prior to the expiration of any period longer than three years for any reason designated by the Committee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, no Award Agreement may provide for immediate vesting on account of a layoff. The vesting requirements of this Section 6(b) shall
also apply to Award Agreements governing Stock Units payable in Stock unless the Stock Units are granted in conjunction with, or part of
another Award.

(2) No Waivers: A provision that neither the Committee nor the Board of Directors has retained the authority to waive the requirements
set forth in Section 6(b)(1).

(c) Mandatory Provisions Applicable to All Award Agreements. Award Agreements shall be subject to the terms of this Plan and shall be
deemed to include the following terms, unless the Committee in the Award Agreement consistent with applicable legal considerations, provides
otherwise:

(1) Non-assignability: The Award shall not be assignable nor transferable, except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and
during the lifetime of a Participant, the Award shall be exercised only by the Participant or by his or her guardian or legal representative. The
designation of a Beneficiary hereunder shall not constitute a transfer prohibited by the foregoing provisions.

(2) Rights as Stockholder: A Participant shall have no rights as a holder of Stock with respect to any unissued securities covered by
an Award until the date the Participant becomes the holder of record of the securities. Except as provided in Section 7, no adjustment or
other provision shall be made for dividends or other stockholder rights, except to the extent that the Award Agreement provides for dividend
equivalents or similar economic benefits.

(3) Withholding: The Participant shall be responsible for payment of any taxes or similar charges required by law to be withheld from an
Award, or an amount paid in satisfaction of an Award and these obligations shall be paid by the Participant on or prior to the payment of the
Award. In the case of an Award payable in cash, the withholding obligation shall be satisfied by withholding the applicable amount and paying
the net amount in cash to the Participant. In the case of an Award paid in shares of Stock, a Participant shall satisfy the withholding
obligation as provided in Section 5(i).

(d) Other Provisions. Award Agreements may include other terms and conditions as the Committee shall approve, including but not limited to
the following:

(1) Other Terms and Conditions: Any other terms consistent with the terms of this Plan as are necessary, appropriate, or desirable to
effect the Award to the Participant, including provisions describing the treatment of an Award in the event of the death, disability, layoff,
retirement, divestiture or other termination of a Participant’s employment with or services to the Corporation or a Subsidiary, any provisions
relating to the vesting, exercisability, forfeiture or
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cancellation of the Awards, any requirements for continued employment, any other restrictions or conditions (including performance
requirements and holding periods) of the Award and the method by which the restrictions or conditions lapse, and the effect on the Award of
a Change in Control, subject, in the case of Performance-Based Awards, to the requirements for “performance-based compensation” under
Code Section 162(m) and in the case of Options and Restricted Stock, to the requirements of Sections 6(a) (b), and (7).

(2) Non-competition clause: A provision requiring the forfeiture of an Award (whether or not vested) on account of activities deemed by
the Committee in its sole discretion to be harmful to the Corporation, including but not limited to employment with a competitor and misuse of
the Corporation’s proprietary or confidential information.

(e) Contract Rights, Forms and Signatures. Any obligation of the Corporation to any Participant with respect to an Award shall be based
solely upon contractual obligations created by this Plan and an Award Agreement. Subject to the provisions of Section 8(h), no Award shall be
enforceable until the Award Agreement or an acknowledgement of receipt has been signed by the Participant and on behalf of the Corporation by
an Executive Officer (other than the recipient) or his or her delegate. By executing the Award Agreement or an acknowledgement of receipt, a
Participant shall be deemed to have accepted and consented to the terms of this Plan and any action taken in good faith under this Plan by and
within the discretion of the Committee, the Board of Directors or their delegates. Unless the Award Agreement otherwise expressly provides, there
shall be no third party beneficiaries of the obligations of the Corporation to the Participant under the Award Agreement.

SECTION 7. Adjustments; Change in Control; Acquisitions.
(a) Adjustments. If there shall occur any recapitalization, stock split (including a stock split in the form of a stock dividend), reverse stock

split, merger, combination, consolidation, or other reorganization or any extraordinary dividend or other extraordinary distribution in respect of the
Stock (whether in the form of cash, Stock or other property), or any split-up, spin-off, split-off, extraordinary redemption, or exchange of
outstanding Stock, or there shall occur any other similar corporate transaction or event in respect of the Stock, or a sale of substantially all the
assets of the Corporation as an entirety, then the Committee shall, in the manner and to the extent, if any, as it deems appropriate and equitable
to the Participants and consistent with the terms of this Plan, and taking into consideration the effect of the event on the holders of the Stock,
proportionately adjust any or all of the following:

(1) the number and type of shares of Stock and Share Units that thereafter may be made the subject of Awards (including the specific
maximum and numbers of shares of Stock or Share Units set forth elsewhere in this Plan),

(2) the number and type of shares of Stock, other property, Share Units or cash subject to any or all outstanding Awards,
(3) the grant, purchase or exercise price, or conversion ratio of any or all outstanding Awards, or of the Stock, other property or Share

Units underlying the Awards,
(4) the securities, cash or other property deliverable upon exercise or conversion of any or all outstanding Awards,
(5) subject to Section 4(b), the performance targets or standards appropriate to any outstanding Performance-Based Awards, or
(6) any other terms as are affected by the event.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, no adjustment shall be made that would cause this Plan to violate
Section 424(a) of the Code or any successor provisions thereto, without
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the written consent of the Participant adversely affected thereby. The Committee may act prior to an event described in this Section 7(a) (including
at the time of an Award by means of more specific provisions in the Award Agreement) if deemed necessary or appropriate to permit the
Participant to realize the benefits intended to be conveyed by an Award in respect of the Stock in the case of an event described in Section 7(a).

(b) Change in Control. The Committee may, in the Award Agreement, provide for the effect of a Change in Control on an Award. Such
provisions may include but are not limited to any one or more of the following with respect to any or all Awards: (i) the specific consequences of a
Change in Control on the Awards; (ii) the acceleration or extension of time periods for purposes of exercising, vesting in, or realizing gain from, the
Awards; (iii) a reservation of the Committee’s right to determine in its discretion at any time that there shall be full acceleration or no acceleration
of benefits under the Awards; (iv) that only certain or limited benefits under the Awards shall be accelerated; (v) that the Awards shall be
accelerated for a limited time only; or (vi) that acceleration of the Awards shall be subject to additional conditions precedent (such as a termination
of employment following a Change in Control).

In addition to any action required or authorized by the terms of an Award, the Committee may take any other action it deems appropriate to
ensure the equitable treatment of Participants in the event of or in anticipation of a Change in Control, including but not limited to any one or more
of the following with respect to any or all Awards: (i) the waiver of conditions on the Awards that were imposed for the benefit of the Corporation;
(ii) provision for the cash settlement of the Awards for their equivalent cash value, as determined by the Committee, as of the date of the Change
in Control; or (iii) such other modification or adjustment to the Awards as the Committee deems appropriate to maintain and protect the rights and
interests of Participants upon or following the Change in Control. The Committee also may accord any Participant a right to refuse any acceleration
of exercisability, vesting or benefits, whether pursuant to the Award Agreement or otherwise, in such circumstances as the Committee may
approve.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 7(b) or any provision in an Award Agreement to the contrary, if any Award to any
Insider is accelerated to a date that is less than six months after the Date of Grant, the Committee may prohibit a sale of the underlying Stock
(other than a sale by operation or law in exchange for or through conversion into other securities), and the Corporation may impose legend and
other restrictions on the Stock to enforce this prohibition.

(c) Change in Control Definition. For purposes of this Plan, a “Change in Control” shall include and be deemed to occur upon one or more of
the following events:

(1) A tender offer or exchange offer is consummated for the ownership of securities of the Corporation representing 25 percent or more
of the combined voting power of the Corporation’s then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the
Corporation.

(2) The Corporation is merged, combined, consolidated, recapitalized or otherwise reorganized with one or more other entities that are
not Subsidiaries and, as a result of the merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization or other reorganization, less than 75 percent of
the outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation shall immediately after the event be owned in the aggregate by the
stockholders of the Corporation (directly or indirectly), determined on the basis of record ownership as of the date of determination of holders
entitled to vote on the action (or in the absence of a vote, the day immediately prior to the event).

(3) Any person (as this term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, but excluding any person described in and
satisfying the conditions of Rule 13d-1(b)(1) thereunder), becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act),
directly or indirectly, of securities of the Corporation representing 25 percent or more of the
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combined voting power of the Corporation’s then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors of the Corporation.
(4) At any time within any period of two years after a tender offer, merger, combination, consolidation, recapitalization, or other

reorganization or a contested election, or any combination of these events, the “Incumbent Directors” shall cease to constitute at least a
majority of the authorized number of members of the Board. For purposes hereof, “Incumbent Directors” shall mean the persons who were
members of the Board immediately before the first of these events and the persons who were elected or nominated as their successors or
pursuant to increases in the size of the Board by a vote of at least three-fourths of the Board members who were then Board members (or
successors or additional members so elected or nominated).

(5) The stockholders of the Corporation approve a plan of liquidation and dissolution or the sale or transfer of substantially all of the
Corporation’s business and/or assets as an entirety to an entity that is not a Subsidiary.

With respect to Awards granted on or after April 28, 2005, in the event the Committee determines that an Award could be subject to taxation
under Section 409A(a)(1) of the Code, a Change in Control shall have no effect on the Award unless the Change in Control also would constitute a
change in the ownership or effective control of the Corporation or in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the Corporation within
the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(v) of the Code.

(d) Business Acquisitions. Awards may be granted under this Plan on terms and conditions as the Committee considers appropriate, which
may differ from those otherwise required by this Plan to the extent necessary to reflect a substitution for or assumption of stock incentive awards
held by employees of other entities who become Employees of the Corporation or a Subsidiary as the result of a merger of the employing entity
with, or the acquisition of the property or stock of the employing entity by, the Corporation or a Subsidiary, directly or indirectly.
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SECTION 8. Administration.
(a) Committee Authority and Structure. This Plan and all Awards granted under this Plan shall be administered by the Management

Development and Compensation Committee of the Board or such other committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board and
constituted so as to permit this Plan to comply with the disinterested administration requirements of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act and the
“outside director” requirement of Code Section 162(m). The Board shall designate the members of the Committee.

(b) Selection and Grant. The Committee shall have the authority to determine the Employees to whom Awards will be granted under this
Plan, the type of Award or Awards to be made, and the nature, amount, pricing, timing, and other terms of Awards to be made to any one or more
of these individuals, subject to the terms of this Plan.

(c) Construction and Interpretation. The Committee shall have the power to interpret and administer this Plan and Award Agreements, and to
adopt, amend and rescind related rules and procedures. All questions of interpretation and determinations with respect to this Plan, the number of
shares of Stock, Stock Appreciation Rights, or units or other Awards granted, and the terms of any Award Agreements, the adjustments required
or permitted by Section 7, and other determinations hereunder shall be made by the Committee and its determination shall be final and conclusive
upon all parties in interest. In the event of any conflict between an Award Agreement and any non-discretionary provisions of this Plan, the terms
of this Plan shall govern.

(d) Limited Authority of Committee to Change Terms of Awards. In addition to the Committee’s authority under other provisions of this Plan
(including Sections 7 and 9), the Committee shall have the authority to accelerate the exercisability or vesting of an Award, to extend the term or
waive early termination provisions of an Award (subject to the maximum ten-year term under Section 4(a)), and to waive the Corporation’s rights
with respect to an Award or restrictive conditions of an Award (including forfeiture conditions), in any case in such circumstances as the
Committee deems appropriate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee’s authority under this Section 8(d) is subject to any express
limitations of this Plan (including under Sections 6(a), 6(b), 7 and 9) and this Section 8(d) does not authorize the Committee to accelerate
exercisability or vesting or waive early termination provisions if that acceleration or waiver would be inconsistent with the mandatory vesting
requirements set forth in Sections 6(a)(1) and 6(b)(1).

(e) Rule 16b-3 Conditions; Bifurcation of Plan. It is the intent of the Corporation that this Plan and Share-Based Awards hereunder satisfy
and be interpreted in a manner, that, in the case of Participants who are or may be Insiders, satisfies any applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3,
so that these persons will be entitled to the benefits of Rule 16b-3 or other exemptive rules under Section 16 under the Exchange Act and will not
be subjected to avoidable liability thereunder as to Awards intended to be entitled to the benefits of Rule 16b-3. If any provision of this Plan or of
any Award would otherwise frustrate or conflict with the intent expressed in this Section 8(e), that provision to the extent possible shall be
interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid such conflict. To the extent of any remaining irreconcilable conflict with this intent, the provision
shall be deemed disregarded as to Awards intended as Rule 16b-3 exempt Awards. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, the
provisions of this Plan may at any time be bifurcated by the Board or the Committee in any manner so that certain provisions of this Plan or any
Award Agreement intended (or required in order) to satisfy the applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3 are only applicable to Insiders and to those
Awards to Insiders intended to satisfy the requirements of Rule 16b-3.

(f) Delegation and Reliance. The Committee may delegate to the officers or employees of the Corporation the authority to execute and deliver
those instruments and documents, to do all acts and things, and to take all other steps deemed necessary, advisable or convenient for the
effective administration of this Plan in accordance with its terms and purpose, except that the Committee may not
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delegate any discretionary authority to grant or amend an Award or with respect to substantive decisions or functions regarding this Plan or Awards
as these relate to the material terms of Performance-Based Awards to Executive Officers or to the timing, eligibility, pricing, amount or other
material terms of Awards to Insiders. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action under this Plan, the Board and the
Committee may obtain and may rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to the Corporation. No director, officer, employee
or agent of the Corporation shall be liable for any such action or determination taken or made or omitted in good faith.

(g) Exculpation and Indemnity. Neither the Corporation nor any member of the Board of Directors or of the Committee, nor any other person
participating in any determination of any question under this Plan, or in the interpretation, administration or application of this Plan, shall have any
liability to any party for any action taken or not taken in good faith under this Plan or for the failure of an Award (or action in respect of an Award) to
satisfy Code requirements as to incentive stock options or to realize other intended tax consequences, to qualify for exemption or relief under Rule
16b-3 or to comply with any other law, compliance with which is not required on the part of the Corporation.

(h) Notices, Signature, Delivery. Whenever a signature, notice or delivery of a document is required or appropriate under the Plan or pursuant
to an Award Agreement, signature, notice or delivery may be accomplished by paper or written format, or to the extent authorized by the
Committee, subject to Section 10(d), by electronic means. In the event the Committee authorizes electronic means for the signature, notice or
delivery of a document hereunder, the electronic record or confirmation of that signature, notice or delivery maintained by or on behalf of the
Committee shall for purposes of this Plan and any applicable Award Agreement be treated as if it was a written signature or notice and was
delivered in the manner provided herein for a written document.

SECTION 9. Amendment and Termination of this Plan.
The Board of Directors may at any time terminate, suspend or discontinue this Plan. The Board of Directors may amend this Plan at any

time, provided that any material amendment to the Plan will not be effective unless approved by the Corporation’s stockholders. For this purpose,
a material amendment is any amendment that would (i) materially increase the number of shares of Stock available under the Plan or issuable to a
Participant (other than a change in the number of shares made pursuant to Section 7); (ii) change the types of awards that may be granted under
the Plan; (iii) expand the class of persons eligible to receive awards or otherwise participate in the Plan; (iv) reduce the price at which an Option is
exercisable either by amendment of an Award Agreement or by substitution of a new Option Award at a reduced price (other than as permitted in
Section 7); or (v) require stockholder approval pursuant to the New Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual (so long as the Corporation is a listed
company on the New York Stock Exchange) or applicable law. The Committee may at any time alter or amend any or all Award Agreements under
this Plan in any manner that would be authorized for a new Award under this Plan, including but not limited to any manner set forth in Section 8(d)
(subject to any applicable limitations thereunder), so long as such an amendment would not require approval of the Corporation’s stockholders, if
such amendment was made to the Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such action by the Board or the Committee shall, in any manner
adverse to a Participant other than as expressly permitted by the terms of an Award Agreement, affect any Award then outstanding and evidenced
by an Award Agreement without the consent in writing of the Participant or a Beneficiary who has become entitled to an Award.

SECTION 10. Miscellaneous.
(a) Unfunded Plan. This Plan shall be unfunded. Neither the Corporation, the Board of Directors nor the Committee shall be required to

segregate any assets that may at any time be represented by Awards made pursuant to this Plan. Neither the Corporation, the Board of Directors,
nor the Committee shall be deemed to be a trustee of any amounts to be paid or securities to be issued under this Plan.
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(b) Rights of Employees.
(1) No Right to an Award. Status as an Employee shall not be construed as a commitment that any one or more Awards will be made

under this Plan to an Employee or to Employees generally. Status as a Participant shall not entitle the Participant to any additional future
Awards.

(2) No Assurance of Employment. Nothing contained in this Plan (or in any other documents related to this Plan or to any Award) shall
confer upon any Employee or Participant any right to continue in the employ or other service of the Corporation or any Subsidiary or
constitute any contract (of employment or otherwise) or limit in any way the right of the Corporation or any Subsidiary to change a person’s
compensation or other benefits or to terminate the employment of a person with or without cause.

(c) Effective Date; Duration. This Plan has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation and shall become effective upon and
shall be subject to the approval of the Corporation’s stockholders. This Plan shall remain in effect until any and all Awards under this Plan have
been exercised, converted or terminated under the terms of this Plan and applicable Award Agreements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Award
may be granted under this Plan after February 28, 2013. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Award granted under the Plan on or prior to
February 28, 2013 may be amended after such date in any manner that would have been permitted prior to such date, except that no such
amendment shall increase the number of shares of Stock or Stock Units subject to, comprising or referenced in such Award (other than in
accordance with Section 7(a)).

(d) Compliance with Laws. This Plan, Award Agreements, and the grant, exercise, conversion, operation and vesting of Awards, and the
issuance and delivery of shares of Stock and/or other securities or property or the payment of cash under this Plan, Awards or Award Agreements,
are subject to compliance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations (including but not limited to state and federal insider
trading, registration, reporting and other securities laws and federal margin requirements) and to such approvals by any listing, regulatory or
governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the Corporation, be necessary or advisable to comply with all legal requirements. Any
securities delivered under this Plan shall be subject to such restrictions (and the person acquiring such securities shall, if requested by the
Corporation, provide such evidence, assurance and representations to the Corporation as to compliance with any thereof) as counsel to the
Corporation may deem necessary or desirable to assure compliance with all applicable legal requirements.

(e) Applicable Law. This Plan, Award Agreements and any related documents and matters shall be governed by and in accordance with the
laws of the State of Maryland, except as to matters of federal law.

(f) Non-Exclusivity of Plan. Nothing in this Plan shall limit or be deemed to limit the authority of the Corporation, the Board of Directors or the
Committee to grant awards or authorize any other compensation, with or without reference to the Stock, under any other plan or authority.
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Exhibit 12

Lockheed Martin Corporation
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

For the Six Months Ended June 29, 2008
(In millions, except ratio)

 
Earnings   
Earnings before income taxes   $2,389 
Interest expense    179 
Losses (undistributed earnings) of 50% and less than 50% owned companies, net    (64)
Portion of rents representative of an interest factor    27 
Amortization of debt premium and discount, net    (3)

Adjusted earnings from continuing operations before income taxes   $2,528 
Fixed Charges   
Interest expense   $ 179 
Portion of rents representative of an interest factor    27 
Amortization of debt premium and discount, net    (3)
Capitalized interest    —   

Total fixed charges   $ 203 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges    12.5 



Exhibit 15

Acknowledgement of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors
Lockheed Martin Corporation

We are aware of the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements of Lockheed Martin Corporation:
 

1) Registration Statement Number 33-58067 on Form S-3, dated March 14, 1995;
 

2) Registration Statement Numbers: 33-58073, 33-58075, 33-58077, 33-58079, 33-58081, and 33-58097 on Form S-8, each dated March 15,
1995;

 

3) Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on Form S-8 to the Registration Statement Number 33-57645 on Form S-4, dated March 15, 1995;
 

4) Registration Statement Number 33-63155 on Form S-8, dated October 3, 1995;
 

5) Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on Form S-8 to the Registration Statement Number 33-58083, dated January 22, 1997;
 

6) Registration Statement Numbers: 333-20117 and 333-20139 on Form S-8, each dated January 22, 1997;
 

7) Registration Statement Number 333-27309 on Form S-8, dated May 16, 1997;
 

8) Registration Statement Number 333-37069 on Form S-8, dated October 2, 1997;
 

9) Registration Statement Number 333-40997 on Form S-8, dated November 25, 1997;
 

10) Registration Statement Number 333-58069 on Form S-8, dated June 30, 1998;
 

11) Registration Statement Number 333-69295 on Form S-8, dated December 18, 1998;
 

12) Registration Statement Number 333-92197 on Form S-8, dated December 6, 1999;
 

13) Registration Statement Number 333-92363 on Form S-8, dated December 8, 1999;
 

14) Post-Effective Amendments No. 2 and 3 on Form S-8 to the Registration Statement Number 333-78279, each dated August 3, 2000;
 

15) Registration Statement Number 333-43048 on Form S-3, dated August 4, 2000;
 

16) Registration Statement Number 333-56926 on Form S-8, dated March 12, 2001;
 

17) Registration Statement Number 333-84154 on Form S-8, dated March 12, 2002;
 

18) Registration Statement Number 333-105118 on Form S-8, dated May 9, 2003;
 

19) Registration Statement Numbers: 333-113769, 333-113770, 333-113771, 333-113772, and 333-113773 on Form S-8, each dated March 19,
2004;

 

20) Registration Statement Number 333-115357 on Form S-8, dated May 10, 2004;



21) Post-Effective Amendment No. 4 on Form S-3 to the Registration Statement Number 333-108333, dated November 3, 2004;
 

22) Registration Statement Number 333-127084 on Form S-8, dated August 1, 2005;
 

23) Registration Statement Number 333-138352 on Form S-4, dated November 14, 2006;
 

24) Registration Statement Number 333-146963 on Form S-8, dated October 26, 2007; and
 

25) Registration Statement Number 333-149630 on Form S-3, dated March 11, 2008
of our report dated July 22, 2008, relating to the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Lockheed Martin
Corporation that are included in its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2008.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
July 22, 2008



Exhibit 31.1

I, Robert J. Stevens, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, certify that:
 

 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Lockheed Martin Corporation;
 

 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

 

 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

 

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

 

 
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

 

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

 
Date: July 23, 2008   /s/ Robert J. Stevens

  Robert J. Stevens
  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

 



Exhibit 31.2

I, Bruce L. Tanner, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, certify that:
 

 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Lockheed Martin Corporation;
 

 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

 

 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

 

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

 

 
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

 

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

 
Date: July 23, 2008  /s/ Bruce L. Tanner

 Bruce L. Tanner
 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Lockheed Martin Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 29, 2008
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert J. Stevens, Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Corporation.
 
/s/ Robert J. Stevens
Robert J. Stevens
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
July 23, 2008

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Corporation and will be retained by the
Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Lockheed Martin Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 29, 2008
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Bruce L. Tanner, Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Corporation.
 
/s/ Bruce L. Tanner
Bruce L. Tanner
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
July 23, 2008

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Corporation and will be retained by the
Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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